#### CONTENTS

No.	OF ACT SHORT TITLE	- PAGE
1.	The Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Repeal Act, 2003	1
2.	The Representation of the People (Second Amendment) Act, 2003	. 5
3.	The Delimitation (Amendment) Act, 2003	7
4.	The Prevention of Terrorism (Amendment) Act, 2003	9
5.	The Indian Council of World Affairs (Amendment) Act, 2003	11
6.	The Citizenship (Amendment) Act, 2003	13
7.	The Uttar Pradesh Reorganisation (Amendment) Act, 2003	21
8.	The Indian Telegraph (Amendment) Act, 2003	22
9.	The Salary, Allowances and Pension of Members of Parliament (Amendment) Act, 2003	24
10.	The Appropriation (Railways) Act, 2004	28
11.	The Appropriation (Railways) No. 2 Act, 2004	30
12.	The Appropriation (Railways) Vote on Account Act, 2004	32
13.	The Finance Act, 2004	34
14.	The Appropriation Vote on Account Act, 2004	41
15.	The Appropriation Act, 2004	47
16.	The Foreigners (Amendment) Act, 2004	50
17.	The British Statutes (Repeal) Act, 2004	52
18.	The Appropriation (Railways) Vote on Account No. 2 Act, 2004	53
19.	The Appropriation (No. 2) Act, 2004	55
20.	The Appropriation (Vote on Account) No. 2 Act, 2004	57
21.	The Appropriation (Railways) No. 3 Act, 2004	63
22.	The Appropriation (No. 3) Act, 2004	65
23.	The Finance (No. 2) Act, 2004	69
24.	The Banking Regulation (Amendment) and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 2004	148
25.	The Customs and Central Excise Laws (Repeal) Act, 2004	152
26.	The Prevention of Terrorism (Repeal) Act, 2004	154
27.	The Appropriation (Railways) No. 4 Act, 2004	156
28.	The Special Tribunals (Supplementary Provisions) Repeal Act, 2004	158
29.	The Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Amendment Act, 2004	159
30.	The Enforcement of Security Interest and Recovery of Debts Laws (Amendment) Act, 2004	173
	The Constitution (Ninety-first Amendment) Act, 2003	- 181
	The Constitution (Ninety-second Amendment) Act, 2003	183.

and the state of t

garanteti germanian eta parte da eta barren La transportante eta barren eta b

### TABLE SHOWING EFFECT OF PARLIAMENTARY LEGISLATION OF 2004

Part I.—Central Acts Amended, Repealed on otherwise Affected

Year of Act	No. of Act		How affected	No. and section of 2004 Act by which affected
1	2	3	4	5
873	5	Government Savings Bank	S. 3 amended	23, ś. 116.
885	13	Act, 1873 Indian Telegraph Act, 1885	Ss: 3,4 and 7 amended (w.e.f. 1-4-2002)	8, ss. 2,3 and 4.
			Part 11-A inserted	1bid., s. 5.
1899	2	Indian Stamp Act, 1899	(w.e.f. 1-4-2002) Ss. 2, 9 and Schedule 1 amended	23, s. 117.
1944	i	Central Excise Act, 1944	Ss. 9A, 11,35,35B, 35C and 37 Third Schedule and CENVAT Credit Rules, 2002 amended	23, ss. 79,80,82,83,84,85,86 and 88
1946	26	Special Tribunals	S. 33A inserted Repealed	lbid., s. 81. 28, s. 2.
	A. P.	(Supplementary Provisions) Act,	more than the second of the se	en er
1946	31	1946, Foreigners Act, 1946	S. 14 Substituted	16. s. 2.
1949	10	Banking Regulation Act, 1949	s. 56 amended (w.e.f. 24-9-2004)	24, s. 25 see 150 see 1
1950	43	Representation of the People	S. 13AA amended (w.e.f. 29-10-2003)	2, s. 2. The second rand 11. The second rand 12. The second rand rand rand rand rand rand rand ra
1951	43	Act, 1950 Representation of the People Act, 1951	Ss. 26 and 78 amended (w.e.f. 29-10-2003)	2, s. 3.
1954	30	Salary, Allowances and	Ss. 2,4,5; 8A and 9 amended.	9, ss. 2,3,4,6 and 9.
		Pension of Members of Parliament Act,	SA PROPERTY OF	er en er er geskungsbalker († 1755) Se er er fall det i der er de 1996 († 1756) Sede er er er gade Alfrede (†
		1954 <sub>30.87 Å - 4.7</sub>	· STANDARGERANDE	W. Z. Charles
1955	57	Citizenship Act,	S. 8 AA Substituted Ss. 5 A and 8AB inserted Ss. 2,4,5,6,8,9,14,17,18 and Third Schedule amended	lbid., s. 7. lbid., ss. 5. and 8. 6, ss. 2,4,5,6,8,9,11,14,15, and 18
		A Child State Stat	S. 3, Second Schedule Substituted (w.e.f.————).	Ibid., ss. 3 and 17.
	, .		Heading and New Sections 7A, 7B, 7C, 7D, 14A, 15A and Fourth Schedule inserted	lbid., ss. 7,12,13 and 19
		电弧点 医黄斑红斑 符 一次电路 建门电路	(w.e.f.———) Ss. 11,12 and First Schedule Omitted	Ibid., ss. 10 and 16.
1956	i	Companies Act,	(w.e.f. ———) Ss. 4A and 424A amended (w.e.f. 11-11-2004)	30, ss 21 and 22.
1956	74	1956 Central Sales	S. 8 Chapter VI, amended	23, ss. 118 and 119.
1957	27	Tax Act, 1956 Wealth-tax Act,	Ss. 35 HA amended	23, s. 65.
1961	43	1957 Income-tax Act,	(w.e.f. 1-1-2002) Ss. 2,7,10,12AA, 17,32,33AC, 35-	23, ss. 3 to 14, 16, to
		1961	AC, 40,48,56,71,80DD,80-1A, 80-1B,80-U,87,88,90,94,115- AD,115-JB,115-R,119,139	21,24,25,26,27,28,29,31,32,3 35, 36,37,39,40,41,42,43,44,4 48,49,50 to 54, 56, 57, 58, 59
			139A,153,153B, 194C,197,198, 199,200,202,203,204,205,206,	61,62 and 64.
			206-C,206-CA,245-RR,246-A, 253,272-A,272-B,272-BBB,273- B,278-B and 279 Thirteenth	Augine things of the second
			Schedule amended (w.e.f.1-4-2004). Ss.80CCD, 88D, 88E, 111A, X11-G,142A,194-	ibid ss. 15,22, 23, 26, 30, 34, 38, 46, 35 and 60.
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	* * *	LA,203AA,27IF and 277A, inserted (w.e.f1-1-2004)	10 1 12 14 Mai Bi

ear of Act	No. of Act	Short title of Act	How affected	No. and section of 2004 Act by which affected
1	2	3.	4 22 (18) 8-3	3 5 AND TO S
961	47	Deposit Insurance and Credit	S.2 amended (w.e.f.24-9-2004)	24. s.3.
	1/ 1	Guarantee Corporation Act, 1961	And the second s	Talanteerikke († 1905) John Mondo Hillerikke
962	52	Customs Act, 1962	Ss. 41, 128, 129A, 129B, 137, 142 and 156 amended	23, ss. 66, 68, 69, 70, 71, 72 and 73.
	2.5	TIAL AND THE STATE OF THE STATE	S. 122A, inserted	ibid. 67
967	37	Unlawful Activities	Long title, chapter I, s. 5 and schedule amended	29, ss. 2, 4, 5 and 35
		(Prevention) Act,	(w.e.f. 21.9.2004)	July 8 ph by 62 1
		1907	The Word "Code", s. 10, New	Ibid., 3, 6, and 7.
		: : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :	Chapters and Schedule for Chapter IV Substituted	
97 <i>5</i>	51	Customs Tariff Act,	(w.e.f. 21.9.2004)	23, ss. 75 76, 77 and 78.
		1975	Schedule amendment	<ul> <li>A subject to the subjec</li></ul>
986	1	Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act 1985	Repealed (w.e.f. )	1, s. 3.
986	. 5	Provisions) Act, 1985 Central Excise Tariff Act, 1986	First Schedule amended	23, \$. 89 (1991 1992 9) (2)
993	51	Recovery of Debts Due to Banks	Ss. 2 and 19 amended (w.e.f. 11-11-2004)	30, ss. 19 and 20
	٠.	and Financial Institutions Act, 1993	The state of the s	to not or negligible to the
94.	32	Finance Act, 1994	Ss, 65, 66, 67, 71 to 75, 75A, 76, 77, 78, 79, 80, 81, 85,	23, s. 90
200	29	Standard St.	86, 94 and 95 amended	7, s. 2
000	29	Uttar Pradesh Reorganisation Act, 2000	S. 18 Substituted	the state of the s
001	29	Indian Council of World Affairs Act, 2001	Ss. 7 and 15 amended	5, ss. 2 and 3.
	٠.	Vor Buri	Ss. 23A and 28A inserted historian and a second sec	Ibid., ss. 4 and 5.
002	15	Prevention of Terrorism Act,	S. 60 amended (1.5) half (2.5) ab (1.5) (w.e.f. 27-10-2003)	4, s. 2.
002	33	2002 Delimitation Act, 2002	Ss. 3, 4, 8, and 9 amended (w.e.f. 31-10-2003)	3. ss. 2, 3, 4 and 5.
002	15,	Prevention of Terrorism Act, 2002	Repealed (w.e.f. 21-09-2004)	26, s. 2.
002	54	Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and	Ss. 2, 3, 4, 7, 13, 15, 17, 18, 25, 28 31 and 38 amended (w.e.f: 11-11-7 2004) (w.e.f: 11-11-7	30, ss. 2,3, 4, 6, 8, 9, 10, 12, 15, 16, 17 and 18.
		Enforcement of Security Interest Act,	S. 19 substituted (Section 1997)	<i>Ibid.</i> , s. 14.
		2002	(w.e.f. 11-11-2004) Ss. 5A, 12A, 17A, 18A and 18B	Ibid., ss. 5, 7, 11 and 13.
003	32	Finance Act, 2003	inserted (w.e.f. 11-11-2004) S. 2 and First Schedule amended	13 s 2 M A San Rull
003		Thialite Act, 2003	(w.e.f, 1-4-2004)	13, 8. 2.
003	39	Fiscal security in the control of th	S. 169 amendment S. 4 amended	Ibid., s. 3, 23, s. 20.
,,	illes.	Responsibility and Budget	A SWILL PROPERTY AND A SWING TO A	23, 8, 20.
004	17	Management Act, 2003 British Statutes	Repealed on A 23 1 M 25 1.00	17, s. 3.
	1.5"5.415	(Repeal) Act, 2004	AND THE BOOK AND THE TOTAL AND THE STATE OF	
004 004	13 25	Finance Act, 2004 Customs and	S. 2 Repealed Certain enactments specified in	23, s. 121. 25, s. 2.
	231	Central Excise Laws (Repeal) Act, 2004	the Schedule repealed	~~, G. 4.
	- :		Anthony on the state of the sta	
	·	S. Jac Jac San San Perform	A FER SAN MAX SECTION OF THE	
		Hattage 20 West 1	The state of the s	
			College F. S. Landing or State (1984) type of high	
	٠.	At the wife they	The state of the s	

1390

Part II.-Central Ordinances Repealed

Year of Ordinance	No. of Ordinance	Short title of Ordinance	No. and section of 2004 Act by which repealed
1	2	3	4
2003	. 4	Prevention of Terrorism (Amendment) Ordinance, 2003	4, s. 3.
2003	5	Representation of the People (Second Amendment) Ordinance, 2003.	2, s. 4.
2003	6	Delimitation (Amendment) Ordinance, 2003.	3, s. 6.
2003	7	Indian Telegraph (Amendment) Ordinance, 2003.	8, s. 6.
2004.	1.	Prevention of Terrorism (Repeal) Ordinance, 2004.	26, s. 3.
2004	2	Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Amendment Ordinance, 2004.	29, s. 8
2004	3	Banking Regulation (Amendment) and Miscellaneous Provisions Ordinance, 2004.	24, s. 4.
2004	. 5	Enforcement of Security Interest and Recovery of Debts Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2004.	30, s. 23.

### Part III.--Constitution of India Amended

How affected	No. and Section of 2004 Act by which affected
Articles 75, 164 and Tenth Schedule amended	Constitution (Ninety-first Amendment) Act 2003, ss. 2, 3 and 5.
Article 361-B inserted.	<i>lbid.</i> , s. 4.
Eighth Schedule amended	Constitution (Ninety-second Amendment) Act, 2003.

The service of the se

### THE SICK INDUSTRIAL COMPANIES (SPECIAL PROVISIONS) REPEAL ACT, 2003

No. 1 of 2004

nering for Bough special real Englishment of Real applications of the rece

make mengelit kang anjartan karanti telah dialah terbesah dan seke [1st January, 2004.]

An Act to repeal the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985. was the give a man in the contract of the cont

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fourth Year of the Republic of India as follows:---

1. (1) This Act may be called the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Repeal Act, 2003. | Aprel 17 gives 18 11.00 bits | 1.00 bits

Short title and commencement.

- (2) It shall come into force on such date as the Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, appoint
  - 2. In this Act, unless the context otherwise requires,

986

thought on the or Prairie in the he had become full.

Definitions.

(a) "Appellate Authority" means the Appellate Authority for Industrial and Financial R econstruction constituted under section 5 of the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985;

างเด็วรายให้เพื่อนี้ได้ได้ได้ เพื่อให้เดิดเกาะเลือนได้ เพละ เกาะหนึ่งเกียรสมรับเก

- (b) "Board" means the Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction established under section 4 of the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act,
- (c) words and expressions used herein and not defined but defined in the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985, shall have the meanings per respectively assigned to them in that Act. The second of the second

as the placet to a made set out no sept out a placet out to the a college successful trained) भागिकार्यपुरस संदर्भ स्थानेस । सीच दाराने जर्मना में नामां माने कि में अनुसूचकराज्य । , प्रश्तिक प्र d da la colonia dougraph a tractemado como fortificam por a la trace, pero viragandon de Abadil corbe office on the experience from all homeour and the of the description of the decrease meaning of being

as the least term and the first state areas the attenuated of the

รู และโดย หลังเดอเสมาธิสุริธ เกรดเกษาจากเลือง การเลือง เพียงกับเรื่องสิ่นทั้งโดย ถูกกรู้กับ . An a single of the works and the administration of the single of the property of the contract of the contract of of professional collection grantests while the bring profession between the brings Repeal of Act 1 of 1986 and dissolution of Appellate Authority and Board

Consequential provisions.

sport title a

prescribed;

- 3. The Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985 (hereinafter referred to as the repealed enactment) is hereby repealed and the Appellate Authority and the Board stand dissolved.
  - 4. On the dissolution of the Appellate Authority and the Board,-
  - (a) (i) the persons appointed as Chairman and Member of the Appellate Authority or the Board; and
  - (ii) every other person appointed by the Central Government, Appellate Authority or the Board,

and holding office as such immediately before the commencement of this Act, shall vacate his office and no such Chairman, Member or other person shall be entitled to claim any compensation for premature termination of the term of his office or of any contract of service:

Provided that every officer or employee who has been, immediately before the dissolution of the Appellate Authority or the Board, appointed on deputation basis to the Appellate Authority or the Board, shall stand reverted to his parent cadre, Ministry or Department, as the case may be:

Provided further that every officer or employee who has been, immediately before the dissolution of the Appellate Authority or the Board, employed on regular basis by the Appellate Authority or the Board, shall become, on and from the date of such dissolution, the officer and employee, respectively, of the Central Government with the same rights and privileges as to pension, gratuity and other like matters as would have been admissible to him if the rights in relation to such Appellate Authority or the Board had not been transferred to, and vested in, the Central Government and shall continue to do so unless and until his employment in the Central Government is duly terminated or until his remuneration, terms and conditions of employment are duly altered by that Government:

Provided also that notwithstanding anything contained in the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947, or in any other law for the time being in force, the transfer of the services of any officer or other employee, employed in the Appellate Authority or the Board, to the Central Government, shall not entitle such officer or employee to any compensation under this Act or any other law for the time being in force and no such/claim shall be entertained by any court, tribunal or other authority:

Provided also that where the Appellate Authority or the Board has established a provident fund, superannuation, welfare or other fund for the benefit of the officers and employees employed in the Appellate Authority or the Board, the monies relatable to the officers and employees whose services have been transferred by or under this Act to the Central Government shall, out of the monies standing, on the dissolution of the Appellate Authority or the Board, to the credit of such provident fund, superannuation, welfare or other fund, stand transferred to, and vest in, the Central Government and such monies which stand so transferred shall be dealt with by that Government in such manner as may be

(b) any appeal preferred to the Appellate Authority or any reference made to the Board or any inquiry pending before the Board or any other authority or any proceeding of whatever nature pending before the Appellate Authority or the Board immediately before the commencement of this Act shall stand abated:

14 of 194

Provided that a company:--

1 of 1956.

(i) in respect of which such appeal or reference or inquiry stand abated under this clause may make a reference under PART VIA of the Companies Act, 1956 within one hundred and eighty days from the commencement of this Act in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956;

1 of 1956. 11 of 2003. (ii) which had become a sick industrial company as defined in clause (46AA) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 1956, before the commencement of the Companies (Second Amendment) Act, 2002 may make a reference under PART VIA of the Companies Act, 1956 within one hundred and eighty days from the commencement of the Companies (Second Amendment) Act, 2002 or within sixty days of final adoption of accounts after such commencement, whichever is earlier,

and reference so made shall be dealt with in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956:

1 of 1956.

Provided further that no fee shall be payable for making such reference under PART VIA of the Companies Act, 1956 by a company whose appeal or reference or inquiry stand abated under this clause:

Provided also that any scheme sanctioned under sub-section (4) or any scheme under implementation under sub-section (12) of section 18 of the repealed enactment shall be deemed to be a scheme sanctioned or under implementation under section 424D of the Companies Act, 1956 and shall be dealt with in accordance with the provisions contained in PART VIA of that Act;

1 of 1956.

- (c) the balance of all monies (including any fee) received by, or advanced to the Appellate Authority or the Board, as the case may be, and not spent by it before the commencement of this Act shall, on the commencement of this Act, stand transferred to, and vest in, the Central Government and shall be utilised for the purposes of clauses (e) and (f);
- (d) all property of whatever kind owned by, or vested in, the Appellate Authority or the Board, as the case may be, and not spent by it before the commencement of this Act shall, on the commencement of this Act, stand transferred to, and shall vest in the Central Government;
- (e) all liabilities and obligations of whatever kind incurred by the Appellate Authority or the Board and subsisting immediately before the commencement of this Act shall, on and from the commencement of this Act, be deemed to be the liabilities or obligations, as the case may be, of the Central Government; and any proceeding or cause of action, pending or existing immediately before the commencement of this Act by or against the Appellate Authority or the Board in relation to such liability or obligation may, as from the commencement of this Act, be continued or enforced by or against the Central Government;
- (f) all monies vested in the Central Government under clause (c) shall, after deducting the amount incurred for discharging the liabilities and obligations referred to in that clause, be refunded by the Central Government to the person to whom such amount is due.
  - 5. (1) The repeal by this Act of the repealed enactment shall not—

Saving.

- (a) affect any other enactment in which the repealed enactment has been applied, incorporated or referred to;
- (b) affect the previous operation of the repealed enactment or anything duly done or suffered thereunder;

- (c) affect any right, privilege, obligation or liability acquired, accrued, or incurred under the repealed enactment;
  - (d) affect any order made by the Board for sanction of the schemes:
- (e) affect the validity, invalidity, effect or consequences of anything already done or suffered, or any right, title, obligation or liability already acquired, accrued or incurred or any remedy or proceeding in respect thereof or any release or discharge of or from any debt, penalty, obligation, liability, claim or demand, or any indemnity already granted, or the proof of any past act or thing;
- (f) affect any penalty, forfeiture or punishment incurred in respect of any offence committed against the repealed enactment, affect any investigation, legal proceedings or remedy in respect of any such right, privilege, obligation, liability, penalty, forfeiture or punishment as aforesaid, and any such investigation, legal proceeding or remedy may be instituted, continued or enforced, and any such privilege, forfeiture or punishment may be imposed as if this Act had not been passed;
- (g) affect any principle or rule of law, or established jurisdiction, form or course of pleading, practice or procedure, or existing usage, custom, privilege, restriction, exemption, office or appointment; notwithstanding that the same respectively may have been in any manner affirmed or recognised or derived by, in, or from, the repealed enactment:
- (h) revive or restore any jurisdiction, office, custom, liability, right, title, privilege, restriction, exemption, usage, practice, procedure or other matter or thing not now existing or in force.
- (2) Save as otherwise provided in section 4 and in sub-section (1) of this section, the mention of particular matters in the said section and sub-section shall not be held to prejudice or affect the general application of section 6 of the General Clauses Act, 1897, with regard to the effect of repeal.

10 of 1897.

Power to make rules.

- 6. (1) The Central Government may, by notification, make rules for carrying out the provisions of this Act.
- (2) In particular, and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing power, such rules may provide for all or any of the following matters, namely:—
  - (a) the manner in which the monies standing to the credit of provident fund, superannuation, welfare or other fund of officers and employees on their transfer to the Central Government, shall be dealt with by that Government under the fourth proviso to clause (a) of section 4;
  - (b) any other matter which is to be, or may be, prescribed, or in respect of which provision is to be made, by rules.
- (3) Every rule made under this Act shall be laid, as soon as may be after it is made, before each House of Parliament, while it is in session, for a total period of thirty days which may be comprised in one session or in two or more successive sessions, and if, before the expiry of the session immediately following the session or the successive sessions aforesaid, both Houses agree in making any modification in the rule or both Houses agree that the rule should not be made, the rule shall thereafter have effect only in such modified form or be of no effect, as the case may be; so, however, that any such modification or annulment shall be without prejudice to the validity of anything previously done under that rule.

्रक्षमेत्रक तक्का अने अनुसार असन् केमा अक्का अले स्वीतिहरू का लिए स्वाप्तकार करते हैं है के लिए के स्वीतिहरू

har germanach desead and built take eit To nedberga succeeding outstrongs (ii)

3. (1) The arguest by this log of the arguest out of the arguest o

the state of the receipt of the

# THE REPRESENTATION OF THE PEOPLE (SECOND AMENDMENT) ACT, 2003

No. 2 of 2004

[1st January, 2004.]

An Act further to amend the Representation of the People Act, 1950 and the Representation of the People Act, 1951.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fourth Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

#### **CHAPTER I**

### PRELIMINARY

1. (1) This Act may be called the Representation of the People (Second Amendment) Act, 2003.

Short title and commencement.

(2) It shall be deemed to have come into force on the 29th day of October, 2003.

### **CHAPTER II**

AMENDMENT OF THE REPRESENTATION OF THE PEOPLE ACT, 1950

2. In section 13AA of the Representation of the People Act, 1950, in sub-section (1), the words "other than a Union territory," shall be omitted.

Amendment of section 13AA of Act 43 of 1950.

#### **CHAPTER III**

Amendment of the Representation of the People Act, 1951

- 3. In the Representation of the People Act, 1951,—
  - (a) in section 26, sub-section (5) shall be omitted;
  - (b) in section 78, sub-section (2) shall be omitted.

Amendment of sections 26 and 78 of Act 43 of 1951. 13 11 sid rivery 2014 3

Silvingstorius

Repeal and saving.

4. (1) The Representation of the People (Amendment) Ordinance, 2003 is hereby repealed.

Ord. 5 of 2003.

(2) Notwithstanding such repeal, anything done or any action taken under the Representation of the People Act, 1950 and the Representation of the People Act, 1951 as amended by the said Ordinance, shall be deemed to have been done or taken under the said Acts, as amended by this Act.

વર્ષીને કેમ્પણ ઉદ્દેગી પુરાવા કરી ફાઇન્ડી કરીક ના તમારી દાફતજારામાં કુઈ છે. તમારા કરી જો પ્રાપ્ય કરી છે.

The character of the state of the work states with the character of the wall and

· 1 (1) (1) (1) (1)

Augustificity with the state of the contract of the contract of the contract of

र होते पृष्टि पुरस्कार रहे हो ते पहुँ की विशेष्ट राज करें कालती हो निर्देशक कर वे तर का बाद एक हो हो है है है

the contract with the property of the contract within .

and so that the second second

of the Barth Stephens will be more for the confliction to a

र केंद्र क्षण्य है । अपने पर पूर्ण के प्रकृतिक के एक केंद्र के प्रकृतिक के प्रकृतिक के प्रकृतिक के प्रकृतिक के

But worth Banks was to Bank

motor in I then it in manage the street will now in

11.人员民的1.对对节

43 of 1950. 43 of 1951.

### THE DELIMITATION (AMENDMENT) ACT, 2003

No. 3 of 2004

[1st January, 2004.]

### An Act to amend the Delimitation Act, 2002.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fourth Year of the Republic of India as follows:--

1. (1) This Act may be called the Delimitation (Amendment) Act, 2003.

002.

Short title and commencement.

(2) It shall be deemed to have come into force on the 31st day of October, 2003.

2. In section 3 of the Delimitation Act, 2002 (hereinafter referred to as the principal Act), for the Explanation, the following Explanation shall be substituted, namely:-

Amendment of section 3.

"Explanation.—For the purposes of clause (c), the State Election Commissioner of concerned State,-

- (i) in respect of the duties of the Commission relating to a State (other than the States of Meghalaya, Mizoram and Nagaland), means the State Election Commissioner appointed by the Governor of that State under clause (1) of article 243K; and
- (ii) in respect of the duties of the Commission relating to the State of Meghalaya or the State of Mizoram or the State of Nagaland, as the case may be, means a person nominated by the Governor of that State for such purposes.".
- 3. In section 4 of the principal Act, in sub-section (2), for the figures "1991", the Amendment figures "2001" shall be substituted.

of section 4.

Amendment of section 8.

- 4. In section 8 of the principal Act,---
  - (i) in clause (a), for the figures "1991", the figures "2001" shall be substituted;
  - (ii) in clause (b), for the figures "1991", the figures "2001" shall be substituted.

the continued by Parliam no his for Stay over the form

Married of the me it appeals in a sufficiency

colonial the get but the Read was often unantities of the mode of their c

the state of the s

ત્ય કોંગ્રાફ **પ્રશાસિક** કર્યું કે તો કહ્યું કે પ્રાથમિક પ્રતિકારનો પાર્ટિક કર્યો કર્યો હતો. તેમ પાર્ટિક પ્રતિકાર કર્યો કે પાર્કા ક્રાંત્રી કે ક્ષેત્રી સામે જાણા કર્યું કહ્યું કે હતા. તેમ કર્યો કે મોર્ટિક કે મુક્તિ માનું કર્યો મોર્ટિક

englisher de light i mengerika pakisi kapang kalili sebiah menggal kapang bilang di panggalan di panggalan di Kaling tersepakan kaling tersepaki sebiah di tersepaki panggalan sebiah di panggalan di tersepaki sebiah sebia

Supplied appropriate to the later later than the state of

Amendment of section 9.

5. In section 9 of the principal Act, in sub-section (1), for the figures "1991", the figures "2001" shall be substituted.

Repeal and saving.

al entertaila. Of evilon 3. 6. (1) The Delimitation (Amendment) Ordinance, 2003 is hereby repealed.

Ord. 6 of 200

(2) Notwithstanding such repeat, anything done or any action taken under the principal Act as amended by the said Ordinance, shall be deemed to have been done or taken under the principal Act, as amended by this Act.

# THE PREVENTION OF TERRORISM (AMENDMENT) ACT, 2003

No. 4 of 2004

[2nd January, 2004.]

### An Act to amend the Prevention of Terrorism Act, 2002.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fourth Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

1. (1) This Act may be called the Prevention of Terrorism (Amendment) Act, 2003.

Short title and commencement

- (2) It shall be deemed to have come into force on the 27th day of October, 2003.
- 2. In section 60 of the Prevention of Terrorism Act, 2002, after sub-section (3), the following sub-sections shall be inserted, namely:—

Amendment of section 60.

- "(4) Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Act, any Review Committee constituted under sub-section (1) shall, on an application by any aggrieved person, review whether there is a *prima facie* case for proceeding against the accused under this Act and issue directions accordingly.
  - (5) Any direction issued under sub-section (4),-
  - (i) by the Review Committee constituted by the Central Government, shall be binding on the Central Government, the State Government and the police officer investigating the offence; and
  - (ii) by the Review Committee constituted by the State Government, shall be binding on the State Government and the police officer investigating the offence.
- (6) Where the reviews under sub-section (4) relating to the same offence under this Act, have been made by a Review Committee constituted by the Central Government and a Review Committee constituted by the State Government, under sub-section (1), any direction issued by the Review Committee constituted by the Central Government shall prevail.

2002.

(7) Where any Review Committee constituted under sub-section (1) is of opinion that there is no *prima facie* case for proceeding against the accused and issues directions under sub-section (4), then, the proceedings pending against the accused shall be deemed to have been withdrawn from the date of such direction."

Repeal and saving.

- 3. (1) The Prevention of Terrorism (Amendment) Ordinance, 2003, is hereby Ord. 4 of 20
- (2) Notwithstanding such repeal, anything done or any action taken under the Prevention of Terrorism Act, 2002, as amended by the said Ordinance, shall be deemed to have been 15 of 2002 done or taken under the said Act, as amended by this Act.

e desse en la estador de períodos destendes de cidades de la cidade de la cidade de la cidade de la cidade de l La entre estada de la especia de la cidade de La entre en la cidade de la cidade del cidade de la cidade del cidade de la cidade del cidade del cidade del cidade de la cidade del cid

र प्रिक्त कार विकास के प्रमुं के किया है। अस्तर हो एक्ट प्रमाण कार के किया कि एक किया है। असे कि एक किया कि एक

andressa in conjuncti and a traje de leatificações de traje de traje de traje de traje de traje de traje. Antre fina esplicio en interpreta contra parte final antre que raditir en 11 de traje, de traje en 19 ente.

as gravitation in the control of the

lindring overlis in not tradified. Lindrice en entrene est en lieden en fille en hande en est fill trotin. 1990 et de georgia est a l'indringer en en el list fin get heldes from a regionalise d'iller est est est per pagnice y note tennale en en gelle all fill anno a chimmy l'en en est broke fill viere el automosti sons

## THE INDIAN COUNCIL OF WORLD AFFAIRS (AMENDMENT) ACT, 2003

#### No. 5 of 2004

[7th January, 2004.]

### An Act to amend the Indian Council of World Affairs Act, 2001.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fourth Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

1. This Act may be called the Indian Council of World Affairs (Amendment) Act, 2003.

Short title.

2. In section 7 of the Indian Council of World Affairs Act, 2001 (hereinafter referred to as the principal Act), in sub-section (2),—

Amendment of section 7.

- (i) the words and figures "which shall not be later than three months from the date of assent by the President of the Indian Council of World Affairs Bill, 2001" shall be omitted and shall be deemed always to have been omitted;
- (ii) in clause (b), for the words "as may be nominated by the Council", the words, brackets and figure "to be nominated, in the first instance by the Council constituted under sub-section (1) and thereafter by the Council constituted under this sub-section" shall be substituted;
  - (iii) for clause (c), the following clause shall be substituted; namely:—
    - "(c) Director-General, ex officio Member-Secretary;";
- (iv) in clause (e), for the words "to be nominated by the Council", the words, brackets and figure "to be nominated, in the first instance by the Council constituted under sub-section (1) and thereafter by the Council constituted under this sub-section" shall be substituted;
- ( $\nu$ ) in clause (f), for the words "to be nominated by the Council", the words, brackets and figure "to be nominated, in the first instance by the Council constituted under sub-section (I) and thereafter by the Council constituted under this sub-section" shall be substituted;

### (vi) in clause (g),---

(a) for the words "either media personalities or representatives of organisations", the words "either media personalities or persons from organisations" shall be substituted;

29 of 2001.

(b) for the word "selected", the word "nominated" shall be substituted:

(vii) in clause (h), for the words "who are representatives of Business or", the words "from Business or" shall be substituted;

(viii) in clause (i), the words ", to be nominated by the Chairperson of the Governing Body" shall be omitted.

Amendment of section 15.

- 3. In section 15 of the principal Act, for sub-sections (1) and (2), the following sub-sections shall be substituted, namely:—
  - "(1) There shall be a Director-General of the Council who shall, before a Council is constituted under sub-section (2) of section 7, be appointed by the Council constituted under sub-section (1) of that section and thereafter during the tenure of a Council constituted under sub-section (2) of section 7, by that Council.
  - (1A) Every appointment of the Director-General under sub-section (1) shall be made from a panel of at least two names recommended by the Government of India in the Ministry of External Affairs.
    - (1B) The Director-General shall be the chief executive officer of the Council.
  - (1C) The Director-General shall be at least equivalent to the rank of Additional Secretary to the Government of India and shall have a tenure not exceeding three years.
  - (2) The Director-General shall act as ex officio Member-Secretary to the Council, its Governing Body and other bodies and Committees thereof.".
  - 4. After section 23 of the principal Act, the following section shall be inserted, namely:—

Insertion of new section 23A. Transitory

provision.

and the second of the second o

"23A. For the removal of doubts, it is hereby declared that till the constitution of a Council in terms of sub-section (2) of section 7, the Council referred to in sub-section (1) thereof shall be deemed to have been a Council for the purposes of this Act not-withstanding anything contrary contained in any provision of this Act:

Provided that anything done or any action taken or any proceeding initiated under any provision of this Act or rules or regulations made thereunder shall not be called in question before any court or other authority because of non-existence of a Council in terms of sub-section (2) of section 7.".

Insertion of new section 28A.

5. After section 28 of the principal Act, the following section shall be inserted, namely:—

Power to remove difficulties.

"28A. (1) If any difficulty arises in giving effect to the provisions of the Indian Council of World Affairs (Amendment) Act, 2003, the Central Government may, by order, do anything not inconsistent with such provisions for the purpose of removing the difficulty:

Provided that no such order shall be made after the expiry of a period of two years from the commencement of the Indian Council of World Affairs (Amendment) Act, 2003.

(2) Every order made under this section shall be laid, as soon as may be after it is made, before each House of Parliament.".

### THE CITIZENSHIP (AMENDMENT) ACT, 2003

### No. 6 of 2004

Strange august beginner

had with a look of the contribute on the patients of page the contribute of the contribute with

says is a maken sayawaya as penggan akan saya saya sa sa sa sa sa saya sa [7th January, 2004.]

### An Act further to amend the Citizenship Act, 1955.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fourth Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

1. (1) This Act may be called the Citizenship (Amendment) Act, 2003.

Short title and commencement.

(2) It shall come into force on such date as the Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, appoint:

Provided that different dates may be appointed for different provisions of this Act and any reference in any such provision to the commencement of this Act shall be construed as a reference to the commencement of that provision.

2. In section 2 of the Citizenship Act, 1955 (hereinafter referred to as the principal Act), in sub-section (1),—

Amendment of section 2.

- (i) for clauses (b) and (c) and the provisor to clause (c), the following clause shall be substituted, namely:—
  - '(b) "illegal migrant" means a foreigner who has entered into India—
- (i) without a valid passport or other travel documents and such other document or authority as may be prescribed by or under any law in that behalf; or
  - (ii) with a valid passport or other travel documents and such other document or authority as may be prescribed by or under any law in that behalf but remains therein beyond the permitted period of time;';

i7 of 1955.

to almost of the grade means are it is a disposed at a city of the fact and the SQR space

I want of starter made out a sured done it was being

of the first region of a great angle and the state of the state of

- (ii) after clause (e), the following clause shall be inserted, namely:—
  - '(ee) "overseas citizen of India" means a person who-
    - (i) is of Indian origin being a citizen of a specified country, or
  - (ii) was a citizen of India immediately before becoming a citizen of a specified country,

and is registered as an overseas citizen of India by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 7A;';

- (iii) after clause (g), the following clause shall be inserted, namely:—
- '(gg) "specified country" means a country specified in the Fourth Schedule:

Provided that the Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, amend the said Schedule by way of addition or omission of any entry therein:

Provided further that every notification issued under this clause shall, as soon as may be, after it is made, be laid before each House of Parliament;'.

3. For section 3 of the principal Act, the following section shall be substituted, namely:—

Substitution of new section for section 3.

Citizenship by birth.

- "3. (1) Except as provided in sub-section (2), every person born in India—
- (a) on or after the 26th day of January, 1950, but before the 1st day of July, 1987:
- (b) on or after the 1st day of July, 1987, but before the commencement of the Citizenship (Amendment) Act, 2003 and either of whose parents is a citizen of India at the time of his birth;
- (c) on or after the commencement of the Citizenship (Amendment) Act, 2003, where—
  - (i) both of his parents are citizens of India; or
  - (ii) one of whose parents is a citizen of India and the other is not an illegal migrant at the time of his birth,

shall be a citizen of India by birth.

- (2) A person shall not be a citizen of India by virtue of this section if at the time of his birth—
  - (a) either his father or mother possesses such immunity from suits and legal process as is accorded to an envoy of a foreign sovereign power accredited to the President of India and he or she, as the case may be, is not a citizen of India; or
  - (b) his father or mother is an enemy alien and the birth occurs in a place then under occupation by the enemy.".

Amendment of section 4.

- 4. In section 4 of the principal Act, for sub-section (1), the following sub-sections shall be substituted, namely:—
  - "(1) A person born outside India shall be a citizen of India by descent,—
  - (a) on or after the 26th day of January, 1950, but before the 10th day of December, 1992, if his father is a citizen of India at the time of his birth; or

794 BU 3 v

The station according to the

(b) on or after the 10th day of December, 1992, if either of his parents is a citizen of India at the time of his birth:

Provided that if the father of a person referred to in clause (a) was a citizen of India by descent only, that person shall not be a citizen of India by virtue of this section unless—

- (a) his birth is registered at an Indian consulate within one year of its occurrence or the commencement of this Act, whichever is later, or, with the permission of the Central Government, after the expiry of the said period; or
  - (b) his father is, at the time of his birth, in service under a Government in India:

Provided further that if either of the parents of a person referred to in clause (b) was a citizen of India by descent only, that person shall not be a citizen of India by virtue of this section, unless—

- (a) his birth is registered at an Indian consulate within one year of its occurrence or on or after the 10th day of December, 1992, whichever is later, or, with the permission of the Central Government, after the expiry of the said period; or
- (b) either of his parents is, at the time of his birth, in service under a Government in India:

Provided also that on or after the commencement of the Citizenship (Amendment)
Act, 2003, a person shall not be a citizen of India by virtue of this section, unless his
birth is registered at an Indian consulate in such form and in such manner, as may be
prescribed,—

- (i) within one year of its occurrence or the commencement of the Citizenship (Amendment) Act, 2003, whichever is later; or
- (ii) with the permission of the Central Government, after the expiry of the said period:

Provided also that no such birth shall be registered unless the parents of such person declare, in such form and in such manner as may be prescribed, that the minor does not hold the passport of another country.

- (1A) A minor who is a citizen of India by virtue of this section and is also a citizen of any other country shall cease to be a citizen of India if he does not renounce the citizenship or nationality of another country within six months of attaining full age.
  - 5. In section 5 of the principal Act,—

of section 5

Amendment

- (a) for sub-section (1), the following shall be substituted, namely:—
- "(1) Subject to the provisions of this section and such other conditions and restrictions as may be prescribed, the Central Government may, on an application made in this behalf, register as a citizen of India any person not being an illegal migrant who is not already such citizen by virtue of the Constitution or of any other provision of this Act if he belongs to any of the following categories, namely:—
  - (a) a person of Indian origin who is ordinarily resident in India for seven years before making an application for registration;
    - (b) a person of Indian origin who is ordinarily resident in any country or place outside undivided India;
    - (c) a person who is married to a citizen of India and is ordinarily resident in India for seven years before making an application for registration;

- (d) minor children of persons who are citizens of India;
- (e) a person of full age and capacity whose parents are registered as citizens of India under clause (a) of this sub-section or sub-section (1) of section 6:
- (f) a person of full age and capacity who, or either of his parents, was earlier citizen of independent India, and has been residing in India for one year immediately before making an application for registration;
- (g) a person of full age and capacity who has been registered as an overseas citizen of India for five years, and who has been residing in India for two years before making an application for registration.

Explanation 1.—For the purposes of clauses (a) and (c), an applicant shall be deemed to be ordinarily resident in India if—

- (i) he has resided in India throughout the period of twelve months immediately before making an application for registration; and
- (ii) he has resided in India during the eight years immediately preceding the said period of twelve months for a period of not less than six

Explanation 2.—For the purposes of this sub-section, a person shall be deemed to be of Indian origin if he, or either of his parents, was born in undivided India or in such other territory which became part of India after the 15th day of August, 1947.";

- Grandware (b) after sub-section (5), the following sub-section shall be inserted, namely:—
- "(6) If the Central Government is satisfied that circumstances exist which render it necessary to grant exemption from the residential requirement under clause (c) of sub-section (I) to any person or a class of persons, it may, for reasons to be recorded in writing, grant such exemption."

6. In section 6 of the principal Act, in sub-section (1), for the words "who is not a citizen of a country specified in the First Schedule", the words "not being an illegal migrant" shall be substituted.

7. After section 7 of the principal Act, the following heading and sections shall be inserted, namely:

### OVERSEAS CITIZENSHIP

- 7A. (1) The Central Government may, subject to such conditions and restrictions including the condition of reciprocity as may be prescribed, on an application made in this behalf, register any person as an overseas citizen of India if—
  - (a) that person is of Indian origin of full age and capacity who is a citizen of a specified country; or
- (b) that person is of full age and capacity who has obtained the citizenship of a specified country on or after the commencement of the Citizenship (Amendment) Act, 2003 and who was a citizen of India immediately before such commencement; or
  - (c) that person is a minor of a person mentioned in clause (a) or clause (b).
  - (2) The person registered as an overseas citizen of India under sub-section (1) shall be an overseas citizen of India as from the date on which he is so registered.
  - (3) No person who has been deprived of his Indian citizenship under this Act shall be registered as an overseas citizen of India under sub-section (1) except by an order of the Central Government.

Amendment of section 6.

Insertion of heading and new sections 7A, 7B, 7C and 7D.

Registration of overseas citizens.

Promise to

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section and sections 7B, 7C and 7D, the expression "person of Indian origin" shall mean a citizen of another country who—

- (i) was eligible to become a citizen of India at the time of the commencement of the Constitution;
- (ii) belonged to a territory that became part of India after the 15th day of August, 1947; and
- (iii) the children and grand-children of a person covered under clauses (i) and (ii), but does not include a person who is or had been at any time a citizen of Pakistan, Bangladesh or such other country as the Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, specify.
- 7B. (1) Notwithstanding anything contained in any other law for the time being in force, an overseas citizen of India shall be entitled to such rights [other than the rights specified under sub-section (2)] as the Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, specify in this behalf.

Conferment of rights on overseas citizens of India.

- (2) An overseas citizen of India shall not be entitled to the rights conferred on a citizen of India—
  - (a) under article 16 of the Constitution with regard to equality of opportunity in matters of public employment;
    - (b) under article 58 of the Constitution for election as President;
    - (c) under article 66 of the Constitution for election of Vice-President;
  - (d) under article 124 of the Constitution for appointment as a Judge of the Supreme Court;
  - (e) under article 217 of the Constitution for appointment as a Judge of the High Court;
  - to registration as a voter;
  - (g) under sections 3 and 4 of the Representation of the People Act, 1951 with regard to the eligibility for being a member of the House of the People or of the Council of States, as the case may be;
  - (h) under sections 5, 5A and 6 of the Representation of the People Act, 1951 with regard to the eligibility for being a member of the Legislative Assembly or a Legislative Council, as the case may be, of a State;
  - (i) for appointment to public services and posts in connection with the affairs of the Union or of any State except for appointment in such services and posts as the Central Government may by special order in that behalf specify.
- (3) Every notification issued under sub-section (1) shall be laid before each House of Parliament.
- 7C. (1) If any overseas citizen of India of full age and capacity makes in the prescribed manner a declaration renouncing his overseas citizenship of India, the declaration shall be registered by the Central Government, and upon such registration, that person shall cease to be an overseas citizen of India.

Renunciation of overseas citizenship.

- (2) Where a person ceases to be an overseas citizen of India under sub-section (1), every minor child of that person registered as an overseas citizen of India, shall thereupon cease to be an overseas citizen of India.
- 7D. The Central Government may, by order, cancel the registration granted under sub-section (1) of section 7A if it is satisfied that—
  - (a) the registration as an overseas citizen of India was obtained by means of fraud, false representation or the concealment of any material fact; or

Cancellation of registration as overseas citizen of India.

1950.

1951.

.

1951.

- (b) the overseas citizen of India has shown disaffection towards the Constitution of India as by law established; or
- (c) the overseas citizen of India has, during any war in which India may be engaged, unlawfully traded or communicated with an enemy or been engaged in, or associated with, any business or commercial activity that was to his knowledge carried on in such manner as to assist an enemy in that war; or
- (d) the overseas citizen of India has, within five years after registration under sub-section (1) of section 7A has been sentenced to imprisonment for a term of not less than two years; or any analysis and the delivers
- (e) it is necessary so to do in the interest of the sovereignty and integrity of India, the security of India, friendly relations of India with any foreign country, principles of the general public.'.

Amendment of section 8.

- 8. In section 8 of the principal Act,—
- (a) in sub-section (1), the words "who is also a citizen or national of another country" shall be omitted;
- (b) in the proviso to sub-section (2), after the word "declaration", the words "in the prescribed form and manner" shall be inserted;
  - (c) sub-section (3) shall be omitted, when the section (3) shall be omitted.

Amendment of section 9.

9. In section 9 of the principal Act, in sub-section (2), for the word "person", the words "citizen of India" shall be substituted. and on Dia Africa Aria Arab (d

Omission of sections 11 and 12.

10. Sections 11 and 12 of the principal Act shall be omitted.

Amendment of section 14.

11. In secion 14 of the principal Act, for the words and figures "sections 5 and 6", the words, figures and letter "sections 5, 6 and 7A" shall be substituted.

Insertion of new section 14A.

12. After section 14 of the principal Act, the following section shall be inserted, namely:-

Issue of national identity cards.

- "14A. (1) The Central Government may compulsorily register every citizen of India and issue national identity card to him.
- (2) The Central Government may maintain a National Register of Indian Citizens and for that purpose establish a National Registration Authority.
- (3) On and from the date of commencement of the Citizenship (Amendment) Act, 2003, the Registrar General, India, appointed under sub-section (1) of section 3 of the Registration of Births and Deaths Act, 1969 shall act as the National Registration Authority and he shall function as the Registrar General of Citizen Registration.

18 of 1969

- (4) The Central Government may appoint such other officers and staff as may be required to assist the Registrar General of Citizen Registration in discharging his functions and responsibilities.
  - (5) The procedure to be followed in compulsory registration of the citizens of India shall be such as may be prescribed. that pursue that recentaries in overes
  - 13. After section 15 of the principal Act, the following section shall be inserted, namely:-

"15A. (1) Any person aggrieved by an order made by the Central Government, may, within thirty days from the date of such order, make an application for review of such order:

Provided that the Central Government may entertain an application after the expiry of the said period of thirty days, if it is satisfied that the applicant was prevented by sufficient cause from making the application in time:

Insertion of new section 15A.

num dalgar lain

Provided further that an application for a review of an order passed in terms of the provisions of section 14A shall be disposed of in the manner provided for in the procedure as may be laid down under clause (ia) of sub-section (2) of section 18.

- (2) On receipt of an application under sub-section (1), the Central Government shall, make such order as it deems fit, and the decision of the Central Government on such review shall be final.".
- 14. In section 17 of the principal Act,

Amendment of section 17.

(a) for the words "six months", the words "five years" shall be substituted;

commissions of that commission

- (b) for the words "with fine", the words "with fine which may extend to fifty thousand rupees" shall be substituted.
- 15. In section 18 of the principal Act,—

Amendment of section 18.

- (i) in sub-section (2),—
  - (a) after clause (a), the following clause shall be inserted, namely:
  - "(aa) the form and manner in which a declaration under sub-section (1) of section 4 shall be made;";
  - (b) after clause (i), the following clause shall be inserted, namely:—
  - "(ia) the procedure to be followed in compulsory registration of the citizens of India under sub-section (5) of section 14A;"; section 3
- (ii) in sub-section (3), the following proviso shall be inserted, namely:—

"Provided that any rule made in respect of a matter specified in clause (ia) of sub-section (2) may provide that a breach thereof shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend to three months, or with fine which may extend to five thousand rupees, or with both."

16. The First Schedule to the principal Act shall be omitted.

Omission of First Schedule.

17. For the Second Schedule to the principal Act, the following Schedule shall be substituted, namely:

Substitution of Second Schedule by a new Schedule.

# "THE SECOND SCHEDULE [See sections 5(2) and 6(2)]

### OATH OF ALLEGIANCE

- I, A/B......do solemnly affirm (or swear) that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the Constitution of India as by law established, and that I will faithfully observe the laws of India and fulfil my duties as a citizen of India".
- 18. In the Third Schedule to the principal Act,—

Amendment of Third Schedule.

- (a) in the opening portion, the words "who is not a citizen of a country specified in the First Schedule" shall be omitted;
- (b) in clause (b), for the words "he has renounced the citizenship of that country in accordance with the law therein in force in that behalf and has notified such renunciation to the Central Government", the words "he undertakes to renounce the citizenship of that country in the event of his application for Indian citizenship being accepted" shall be substituted;

### (c) in clause (d),—

- (i) for the words "twelve years", the words "fourteen years" shall be substituted; American Artika a Kina a Priling a Kina a
- (ii) for the words "nine years", the words "eleven years" shall be substituted:

jehod plikici kacasi islaq

with the conservation of one of the above his bit if

month deposite the establishment of the Manuschie to

one, independent stellte de te eer in verkeling geloot heater de skipping

19 (2) have as a reacted by a residence of an author bears.

(d) in the proviso, in clause (ii), for the words "thirteen years", the words "fifteen years" shall be substituted.

Insertion of new Fourth Schedule

عبرو من الله الله

El morning to

someriore. hamas 7.5s

n (e) Sapaital

Lineres da A Traffi R

19. After the Third Schedule to the principal Act, the following Schedule shall be inserted, namely:

### "THE FOURTH SCHEDULE [See section 2(1)(gg)]

- 1. Australia.
- 2. Canada.
- 3. Finland, potential differ towards, the other on this result is about
- 4. France.
- 5. Greece.
- 6. Ireland.
- 7. Israel 30 leady with at the home to special first and the loads were the
- "gas da goggedist in de feit socit principation y de du**ckint...8**t duc
  - 9. Netherlands. And miny Tiler is the resemble to be to descrete to 10. New Zealand.
  - 11. Portugal.
- (m)12. Republic of Cyprus.
  - 13. Sweden.
  - 14. Switzerland.

  - 16. United States of America."

T. K. VISWANATHAN

Secy. to the Govt. of India. ANNERSON DECISION

drangelis kaa dianos u see histrad pervera jariba, randah vaaraa aa dibinta griddlight flant, is som bestalt brown to be a later to be lessed be to

เป็นการที่ Your same case earlies you think has a discline, and military sale

topics the expectage positions of the effect . Interest of the fatherness will have a

I'A. Por the Secret well-thing to the religious him, the fiftelying Schelling shall be

vidgam, milita gatzatudu, isuta konamaenasi tuotiai nin eti eti net peta puanistat (ti dans bollyton and box reason to the act of all they will be also presented by The system made for accomplished and the first of the first object of the first of colors, eithe at the colors in account with the signification of the articles and the articles and

Springershee by the hangeron

at the Private Ladewise to the property at

# THE UTTAR PRADESH REORGANISATION (AMENDMENT)

No. 7 of 2004

[7th January, 2004.]

### An Act to amend the Uttar Pradesh Reorganisation Act, 2000.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fourth Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

1. This Act may be called the Uttar Pradesh Reorganisation (Amendment) Short title. Act, 2003.

43 of 1950.

2. For section 18 of the Uttar Pradesh Reorganisation Act, 2000, the following section shall be substituted and shall be deemed to have been substituted with effect from the 9th day of November, 2000, namely:

Substitution of section 18 of Act 29 of 2000.

'18. On and from the appointed day, there shall be one hundred seats in the Legislative Council of Uttar Pradesh, and in the Third Schedule to the Representation of the People Act, 1950, for the existing entry 8, the following entry shall be substituted, namely:—

Legislative Council of Uttar Pradesh.

29 of 2000.

3. All things done and all steps taken by the Legislative Council of Uttar Pradesh during the period commencing on the 9th day of November, 2000 and ending on the day on which the Uttar Pradesh Reorganisation (Amendment) Bill, 2003 receives the assent of the President shall be deemed to have been validly and effectively done or taken as if the provisions of section 18 of the Uttar Pradesh Reorganisation Act, 2000, as substituted by section 2 of this Act were in force at all material times such things were done or such steps were taken.

"diplomental - The paylocal some for the gold of the plan of a location of the paylocal sistence of the color states of the color of the paylocal states of the color of the paylocal states of the color of the colo

Validation of acts and proceedings of the Uttar Pradesh Legislative Council during certain period.

### THE INDIAN TELEGRAPH (AMENDMENT) ACT, 2003

### No. 8 of 2004

[9th January, 2004.]

### An Act further to amend the Indian Telegraph Act, 1885.

MELLA coreina e la comina de la como en la c

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fourth Year of the Republic of India as ann tooch <mark>follows</mark> that nake) in Asia hangar As dealtr

Short title and commencement. LONG MEMBERS WEST

- 1. (1) This Act may be called the Indian Telegraph (Amendment) Act, 2003.
- with the world and the property of the property of the will a (2) It shall be deemed to have come into force on the 1st day of April, 2002.

Amendment of section 3:

- 2. In section 3 of the Indian Telegraph Act, 1885 (hereinafter referred to as the principal Act), clause (1) shall be renumbered as clause (1AA) and before clause (1AA) as so renumbered, the following clauses shall be inserted, namely:-
  - '(1) "Fund" means the Universal Service Obligation Fund established under sub-section (1) of section 9A;
  - (1A) "Universal Service Obligation" means the obligation to provide access to basic telegraph services to people in the rural and remote areas at affordable and reasonable prices;'.

Amendment

สมากไทลิสัยสารณ

Thomas guit he

3. In section 4 of the principal Act, in sub-section (1), the following Explanation shall of section 4.400 be inserted at the end, namely:

"Explanation.—The payments made for the grant of a licence under this subsection shall include such sum attributable to the Universal Service Obligation as may be determined by the Central Government after considering the recommendation made in this behalf by the Telecom Regulatory Authority of India established under subsection (1) of section 3 of the Telecom Regulatory Authority of India Act, 1997.".

4. In section 7 of the principal Act, in sub-section (2), after clause (ee), the following clauses shall be inserted, namely:—

Amendment of section 7.

"(eea) the manner in which the Fund may be administered;

(eeb) the criteria based on which sums may be released.".

5. After Part II of the principal Act, the following Part shall be inserted, namely:—

Insertion of new Part IIA.

### "PART IIA Universal Service Obligation Fund

9A. (1) On and from the commencement of the Indian Telegraph (Amendment) Act, 2003, there shall be deemed to have been established, for the purposes of this Act, a Fund to be called the Universal Service Obligation Fund.

Establishment of Universal Service Obligation Fund.

- (2) The Fund shall be under the control of the Central Government and there shall be credited thereto—
  - (a) any sums of money paid under section 9B;
  - (b) any grants and loans made by the Central Government under section 9C.
- (3) The balance to the credit of the Fund shall not lapse at the end of the financial year.
- 9B. The sums of money received towards the Universal Service Obligation under section 4 shall first be credited to the Consolidated Fund of India, and the Central Government may, if Parliament by appropriation made by law in this behalf so provides, credit such proceeds to the Fund from time to time for being utilised exclusively for meeting the Universal Service Obligation.

Crediting of sums to Consolidated Fund of India.

9C. The Central Government may, after due appropriation made by Parliament by law in this behalf, credit by way of grants and loans such sums of money as that Government may consider necessary in the Fund.

Grants and loans by Central Government.

- 9D. (1) The Central Government shall have the power to administer the Fund in such manner as may be prescribed by rules made under this Act.
- Administration and utilisation of Fund.
- (2) The Fund shall be utilised exclusively for meeting the Universal Service Obligation.
- (3) The Central Government shall be responsible for the co-ordination and ensuring timely utilisation and release of sums in accordance with the criteria as may be prescribed by rules made under this Act.".
- 6. (1) The Indian Telegraph (Amendment) Ordinance, 2003, is hereby repealed.

Repeal and saving.

(2) Notwithstanding the repeal of the Indian Telegraph (Amendment) Ordinance, 2003, anything done or action taken under the principal Act as amended by the said Ordinance, shall be deemed to have been done or taken under the principal Act, as amended by this Act.

resida habitatantes que verbrará maim a

o tode est mandet. En espet o

ya dherre esti (bi

7 of 2003

. 7 of 2003.

# THE SALARY, ALLOWANCES AND PENSION OF MEMBERS OF PARLIAMENT (AMENDMENT) ACT, 2003

to serie with the received

Politica Tale graph (Lancadorena)

med that is most of the party of No. 2 of 2004 and for a first of the state of

The orders bashous agreem, he was:

Section that is a confidence of the confidence o

The little of the compared the description of the first of the little of the contract of the c

high man, with the medical part and share any of their server, the self-server [9th January, 2004.]

# An Act further to amend the Salary, Allowances and Pension of Members of Parliament Act, 1954.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fourth Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

Short title.

88 3500

heapping mad

1. This Act may be called the Salary, Allowances and Pension of Members of Parliament (Amendment) Act, 2003.

Amendment of section 2.

- 2. In section 2 of the Salary, Allowances and Pension of Members of Parliament Act, 1954 (hereinafter referred to as the principal Act), after clause (a), the following clause shall 30 of 1954. be inserted, namely:—
  - '(aa) "dependent" means any of the following relatives of a deceased member,
  - bus noticed (i) a minor legitimate son, and an unmarried legitimate daughter and a widowed mother; or note to be a second at the resident of an income.
  - (ii) if wholly dependent on the earnings of the member at the time of his death, a son or a daughter who has attained the age of eighteen years and who
  - is the control (iii) if wholly or in part dependent on the earnings of the member at the time of his death,—
    - (a) the parent; or
    - (b) a minor brother or an unmarried sister; or

Man, with vide pulmonance on the hadronism back to me maked within the parotic graph Spain Avecs.

(c) a widowed daughter-in-law; or

- (d) a minor child of a pre-deceased son; or
- (e) a minor child of a pre-deceased daughter where no parent of the child is alive; or
  - (f) the paternal grandparent if no parent of the member is alive; or
- (g) such other person as may be specified by the rules made under section 9 by the Joint Committee;'.

### 3. In section 4 of the principal Act,—

Amendment of section 4.

(a) in sub-section (2), after the second proviso, the following provisos shall be inserted, namely:—

"Provided also that in case a member resides within a distance of three hundred kilometers from Delhi, he or his spouse, for the journey performed by him by road, may draw the mileage allowance referred to in sub-clause (ii) of clause (c) of sub-section (1) in place of the travelling allowance which would have been admissible to him had he performed such journey by rail or by road, as the case may be:

Provided also that in case a member resides in the States of Arunachal Pradesh, Assam, Manipur, Meghalaya, Mizoram, Nagaland, Sikkim or Tripura, he or his spouse may draw the mileage allowance referred to in sub-clause (ii) of clause (c) of sub-section (1) for journey performed by him by road from his residence in any of the said States to the nearest airport.";

- (b) after sub-section (3), the following sub-section shall be inserted, namely:—
  - "(4) There shall be paid to a person—
  - (a) who has been elected in a biennial election as a member of the Council of States but the notification in the Official Gazette notifying his name under section 71 of the Representation of the People Act, 1951 has not been published in the Official Gazette; or
  - (b) who has been elected as a member of the House of the People in a general election held for the purpose of constituting a new House of the People but the notification in the Official Gazette notifying his name under section 73 of the Representation of the People Act, 1951 has not been published in the Official Gazette; or
- (c) who has been elected in a bye-election as a member of either House of Parliament or nominated as a member to either House of Parliament.

an amount equivalent to the fare in respect of every journey performed by him for coming to Delhi before the publication of notification referred to in clause (a) or clause (b), or election or nomination under clause (c):

Provided that in case the journey is performed by rail or steamer or road, he shall be entitled to the reimbursement of the fare or road mileage to which a member is entitled:

of 1951.

of 1951.

Provided further that in case he performs the journey by air, such journey shall be included for the purpose of counting thirty-two journeys referred to in the first proviso to sub-section (2) of section 5.".

Amendment of section 5.

4. In section 5 of the principal Act, in sub-section (2), after the second proviso, the following proviso shall be inserted, namely:—

"Provided also that the spouse or companion of a member, as the case may be, may alone perform maximum eight journeys by air from any place of India to the place in India for the purpose of visiting such member and such journey shall be included for the purpose of counting thirty-two journeys referred to in the first proviso to subsection (2)."

Insertion of 5. new section 5A namely:—

5. After section 5 of the principal Act, the following section shall be inserted, nelv:—

Transit accommodation.

'5A. Where a person referred to in sub-section (4) of section 4 comes to Delhi, he shall be entitled to such transit accommodation for such period as may be specified by the rules made under clause (ccc) of sub-section (3) of section 9 by the Joint Committee."

Amendment of section 8A.

- 6. In section 8A of the principal Act, for sub-sections (1) and (1A), the following sub-sections shall be substituted, namely:—
  - '(1) With effect from the commencement of the Salary, Allowances and Pension of Members of Parliament (Amendment) Act, 2003, there shall be paid a pension of three thousand rupees per mensem to every person who has served for any period, as a member of the Provisional Parliament or either House of Parliament:

Provided that where any person has served as a member of the Provisional Parliament or either House of Parliament for a period exceeding five years, there shall be paid to him an additional pension of six hundred rupees per mensem for every year in excess of five years.

Explanation.—For the purpose of this sub-section, "Provisional Parliament" shall include the body which functioned as the Constituent Assembly of the Dominion of India immediately before the commencement of the Constitution.

(1A) With effect from the commencement of the Salary, Allowances and Pension of Members of Parliament (Amendment) Act, 2003, there shall be paid a pension of rupees one thousand and five hundred per mensem, to the spouse, if any, or dependent of any member who dies during his term of office as such member, for a period of five years from the date of his death.

Explanation.—For the removal of doubts, it is hereby declared that the spouse or the dependent of the member referred to in this sub-section shall be entitled to receive the family pension even if the member has died on or before the commencement of the Salary, Allowances and Pension of Members of Parliament (Amendment) Act, 2003.

Substitution of new section for section 8AA. 7. For section 8AA of the principal Act, the following section shall be substituted, namely:—

Travel facilities to ex-Members.

"8AA. Every person who is not a sitting Member but has served for any period as a Member of either House of Parliament shall be,—

(a) with effect from the 18th day of January, 1999, entitled along with a companion to travel in any train by any railway in India in air-conditioned two-tier class; or

(b) entitled to travel alone in any train by any railway in India in air-conditioned first class,

without payment of any charges on the basis of an authorisation issued for this purpose by the Secretariat of either House of Parliament as the case may be.".

8. After section 8AA of the principal Act, the following section shall be inserted, namely:—

Insertion of new section 8AB.

"8AB. Where the period for which the pension is payable under this Act contains a part of a year, then, if such part is nine months or more, it shall be reckoned equivalent to complete one year for the purpose of payment of additional pension under sub-section (1) of section 8A and if such part is less than nine months, it shall be ignored."

Rounding off period of pension.

9. In section 9 of the principal Act, in sub-section (3),—

Amendment of section 9.

- (i) after clause (a), the following clause shall be inserted, namely:—
- "(aa) the person who may be specified as dependent under sub-clause (g) of clause (aa) of section 2;";
- (ii) after clause (cc), the following clause shall be inserted, namely:—
- "(ccc) the transit accommodation and the period for which such accommodation may be provided under section 5A;";
- (iii) after clause (ff), the following clause shall be inserted, namely:—
- "(fff) to provide for carry forward of unutilised free telephone calls pertaining to any year beginning on or after the 1st day of April, 2002 to any subsequent year;".

### THE APPROPRIATION (RAILWAYS) ACT, 2004

No. 10 of 2004

[7th February, 2004.]

An Act to authorise payment and appropriation of certain further sums from and out of the Consolidated Fund of India for the services of the financial year 2003-04 for the purposes of Railways.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fifth Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

Short title.

- 1. This Act may be called the Appropriation (Railways) Act, 2004.
- Issue of Rs. 1033,77,98,000 out of the Consolidated Fund of India for the financial year 2003-04.
- 2. From and out of the Consolidated Fund of India there may be paid and applied sums not exceeding those specified in column 3 of the Schedule amounting in the aggregate to the sums of one thousand thirty-three crores, seventy-seven lakhs and ninety-eight thousand rupees towards defraying the several charges which will come in course of payment during the financial year 2003-04, in respect of the services relating to Railways specified in column 2 of the Schedule.

Appropriation.

3. The sums authorised to be paid and applied from and out of the Consolidated Fund of India by this Act shall be appropriated for the services and purposes expressed in the Schedule in relation to the said year.

### THE SCHEDULE

(See sections 2 and 3)

	2	3			
		Sums not exceeding			
١.		Voted by	Charged on the	Total	
	Services and purposes	Parliament	Consolidated		
te			Fund		
		Rs.	Rs.	Rs.	
	General Superintendence and Services on		5.00.000		
	Railways	.,	5,23,000	5,23,000	
ŀ	Repairs and Maintenance of Permanent		. (8.11.000	60.11.000	
	Way and Works.	•	68,11,000	68,11,000	
5	Repairs and Maintenance of Motive		1 10 000	1 10 000	
	Power.	••	1,18,000	1,18,000	
5	Repairs and Maintenance of Carriages and		50.02.000	50.00.000	
_	Wagons	•	50,02,000	50,02,000	
7	Repairs and Maintenance of Plant and	lie in line in die 13. Le lieuwe in die 13.	71,000	71 000	
	Equipment	•	71;000	71,000	
8	Operating Expenses—Rolling Stock and		11,64,000	11.64.000	
	Equipment	•		11,64,000	
9	Operating Expenses—Traffic	•	10,67,000	10,67,000	
1	Staff Welfare and Amenities	••	5,75,000	5,75,000	
2	Miscellaneous Working Expenses	•	9,99,61,000	9,99,61,000	
4	Appropriation to Funds	187,00,00,000	•	187,00,00,000	
5	Dividend to General Revenues, Repayment		F 11.		
	of Loans taken from General Revenues and		in the second		
	Amortization of Over-Capitalization	335,25,00,000	•	335,25,00,000	
6	Assets—Acquisition, Construction and				
	Replacement—				
	Revenue	9,99,74,000	26,000	10,00,00,000	
	Other Expenditure		s .		
	Capital	300,00,00,000	•	300,00,00,000	
	Railway Funds	146,76,41,000	39,26,000	147,15,67,000	
	Railway Safety Fund	6,000		6,000	
	Special Railway Safety Fund	40,64,15,000	2,20,18,000	42,84,33,000	
	Total	1019,65,36,000	14,12,62,000	1033,77,98,000	

### THE APPROPRIATION (RAILWAYS) No. 2 ACT, 2004

### No. 11 of 2004

[7th February, 2004.]

An Act to provide for the authorisation of appropriation of moneys out of the Consolidated Fund of India to meet the amounts spent on certain services for the purposes of Railways during the financial year ended on the 31st day of March, 2002 in excess of the amounts granted for those services and for that year.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fifth Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

Short title.

1. This Act may be called the Appropriation (Railways) No. 2 Act, 2004.

Issue of Rs. 210,70,50,825 out of the Consolidated Fund of India to meet certain expenditure for the year ended on the 31st day of March, 2002.

2. From and out of the Consolidated Fund of India, the sums specified in column 3 of the Schedule amounting in the aggregate to the sum of two hundred ten crores, seventy lakhs, fifty thousand, eight hundred and twenty-five rupees shall be deemed to have been authorised to be paid and applied to meet the amounts spent for defraying the charges in respect of the services relating to Railways specified in column 2 of the Schedule during the financial year ended on the 31st day of March, 2002, in excess of the amounts granted for those services and for that year.

Appropriation. 3. The sums deemed to have been authorised to be paid and applied from and out of the Consolidated Fund of India under this Act shall be deemed to have been appropriated for the services and purposes expressed in the Schedule in relation to the financial year ended on the 31st day of March, 2002.

# THE SCHEDULE (See sections 2 and 3)

	2	Com	3	
o. f	Services and purposes	Voted by Parliament	Charged on the Consolidated Fund	Total
3	General Superintendence and Services on Railways	Rs.	Rs. 6,55,479	Rs. 6,55,479
4	Repairs and Maintenance of Permanent Way and Works		7,07,849	7,07,849
7	Repairs and Maintenance of Plant and Equipment	•	3,83,181	3,83,181
8	Operating Expenses—Rolling Stock and Equipment	•	89,081	89,081
9	Operating Expenses—Traffic	er i v <u>.</u> Pilop	20,67,315	20,67,315
1.	Staff Welfare and Amenities		8,13,804	8,13,804
5	Dividend to General Revenues, Repayment of Loans taken from General Revenues and Amortization of Over-Capitalization	209,58,57,115	The second	209,58,57,115
16	Assets—Acquisition, Construction and Replacement— Other Expenditure Capital Railway Safety Fund Special Railway Safety Fund		33,84,815 1,39,186 29,53,000	33,84,815 1,39,186 29,53,000
	Total	209,58,57,115	1,11,93,710	210,70,50,825

## THE APPROPRIATION (RAILWAYS) VOTE ON ACCOUNT ACT, 2004

No. 12 of 2004

[7th February, 2004.]

An Act to provide for the withdrawal of certain sums from and out of the Consolidated Fund of India for the services of a part of the financial year 2004-05 for the purposes of Railways.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fifth Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

Short title.

- Issue of Rs. 26111,87,00,000 from and out of the Consolidated Fund of India for the financial year 2004-05.
- 1. This Act may be called the Appropriation (Railways) Vote on Account Act, 2004.
- 2. From and out of the Consolidated Fund of India there may be withdrawn sums not exceeding those specified in column 3 of the Schedule amounting in the aggregate to the sums of twenty-six thousand one hundred eleven crores and eighty-seven lakh rupees towards defraying the several charges which will come in course of payment during the financial year 2004-05, in respect of the services relating to Railways specified in column 2 of the Schedule.

Appropriation. 3. The sums authorised to be withdrawn from and out of the Consolidated Fund of India by this Act shall be appropriated for the services and purposes expressed in the Schedule in relation to the said year.

## THE SCHEDULE (See sections 2 and 3)

1	2	3		
No. of	Services and purposes	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Sums not exceeding	
Vote		Voted by Parliament	Charged on the Consolidated Fund	Total
		Rs.	Rs.	Rs.
1	Railway Board	24,11,67,000		24,11,67,000
2	Miscellaneous Expenditure (General)	84,66,67,000	.	84,66,67,000
3	General Superintendence and Services on Railways	573,30,17,000	33,333	573,30,50,333
4	Repairs and Maintenance of Permanent Way and Works	1121,41,98,000	70,000	1121,42,68,000
5	Repairs and Maintenance of Motive Power	576,56,22,000	16,667	576,56,38,667
6	Repairs and Maintenance of Carriages and Wagons	1141,42,45,000		1141,42,45,000
7	Repairs and Maintenance of Plant and Equipment	630,75,89,000		630,75,89,000
8	Operating Expenses — Rolling Stock and Equipment	938,62,74,000		938,62,74,000
9	Operating Expenses — Traffic	2953,83,79,000		2953,83,79,000
.10	Operating Expenses — Fuel	2760,66,58,000	•	2760,66,58,000
11	Staff Welfare and Amenities	470,05,62,000	98,333	470,06,60,333
12	Miscellaneous Working Expenses	576,57,67,000	11,94,03,000	588,51,70,000
13	Provident Fund, Pension and Other Retirement Benefits	2186,51,14,000	22,01,333	2186,73,15,333
14	Appropriation to Funds	3206,66,67,000	· ·	3206,66,67,000
15	Dividend to General Revenues, Repayment of loans taken from General		,	•
	Revenues and Amortization of Over- Capitalization	24,45,22,000		24,45,22,000
16	Assets—Acquisition, Construction and Replacement—	21,10,22,000		n =
	Revenue	11,66,67,000		11,66,67,000
	Other Expenditure			
/ *. /*	Capital	6514,64,28,000	2,66,66,668	6517,30,94,668
	Railway Funds	1084,76,67,000		1085,10,00,333
	Railway Safety Fund	133,66,67,000		133,66,67,000
	Special Railway Safety Fund	1081,96,67,000		1082,30,00,333
,	Total	26096,35,44,000		26111,87,00,000

## THE FINANCE ACT, 2004

## No. 13 of 2004

[12th February, 2004.]

An Act to continue for the financial year 2004-05 the existing rates of income-tax and the levy of the National Calamity Contingent Duty and the National Calamity Contingent Duty of Customs on certain items.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fifth Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

### **CHAPTER I**

## PRELIMINARY

Short title and commencement.

- 1. (1) This Act may be called the Finance Act, 2004.
- (2) Section 2 shall come into force on the 1st day of April, 2004 and section 3 shall come into force at once.

## CHAPTER II

### RATES OF INCOME-TAX

Income-tax.

2. The provisions of section 2 of, and the First Schedule to, the Finance Act, 2003, 32 of 2003. shall apply in relation to income-tax for the assessment year or, as the case may be, the financial year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2004, as they apply in relation to incometax for the assessment year or, as the case may be, the financial year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2003, with the following modifications, namely:—

(a) in section 2,—

(i) in sub-section (1), for the figures "2003", the figures "2004" shall be substituted;

(ii) in sub-section (3),—

(A) the second proviso shall be omitted;

(B) for the third proviso, the following proviso shall be substituted, namely:—

"Provided further that in respect of any income chargeable to tax under sections 115A, 115AB, 115AC, 115ACA, 115AD, 115B, 115BBA, 115E and 115JB of the Income-tax Act, the amount of income-tax computed under this sub-section shall be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union, calculated,—

- (a) in the case of every individual, Hindu undivided family, association of persons and body of individuals, whether incorporated or not, at the rate of ten per cent. of such incometax where the total income exceeds eight hundred and fifty thousand rupees;
- (b) in the case of every co-operative society, firm, local authority and company, at the rate of two and one-half percent. of such income-tax;
  - (c) in the case of every artificial juridical person referred to in sub-clause (vii) of clause (31) of section 2 of the Income-tax Act, at the rate of ten per cent. of such income-tax.";

White Mill and ask the second was with

n percentify will regreate the state of the

struber of dole to said by the bong

- (iii) in sub-section (6), in clause (a), for the words "exceeds rupees", the word "exceeds" shall be substituted;
  - (iv) in sub-section (8), in clause (a), for the words "exceeds rupees", the word "exceeds" shall be substituted;
- (v) in sub-section (11), in clause (a), for the figures "2003", the figures "2004" shall be substituted;
  - (b) in the First Schedule,—

શું હતું કોંગુના કઈ હતું એ આ શતકાં કોંગુલા પાસી

he also to was take he bugs

(i) for PART I, the following PART shall be substituted, namely:—

## "PART I

## INCOME-TAX

## Paragraph A

In the case of every individual or Hindu undivided family or association of persons or body of individuals, whether incorporated or not, or every artificial juridical person referred to in sub-clause (vii) of clause (31) of section 2 of the Income-tax Act, not being a case to which any other Paragraph of this Part applies,

### Rates of income-tax

Manual to become all (1) where the total income does not exceed (12) shall, in the case of every MM. Rs. 50,000 several and the one in presence the sale belong of the one of the learning to where the total income exceeds Rs. 50,000 10 per cent. of the amount by which but does not exceed Rs. 60,000 the total income exceeds Rs. 50,000; (3)where the total income exceeds Rs. 60,000 Rs. 1,000 plus 20 per cent. of the but does not exceed Rs. 1,50,000 amount by which the total income exceeds Rs. 60,000; where the total income exceeds Rs. 1,50,000 Rs. 19,000 plus 30 per cent. of the wall to profit to be a feet to be a feet to be a set t

to secondrug and equidents and becomes an exceeds Rs. 1.50,000 and finds and

the Union calculated at the race of two and one-half personal of such income sax

36

## Surcharge on income-tax

The amount of income-tax computed in accordance with the preceding provisions of this Paragraph, or in section 112, shall,—

- (i) in the case of every individual or Hindu undivided family or association of persons or body of individuals having a total income exceeding eight hundred and fifty thousand rupees, be reduced by the amount of rebate of income-tax calculated under Chapter VIII-A, and the income-tax as so reduced, be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated at the rate of ten per cent. of such income-tax;
- (ii) in the case of every person, other than those mentioned in item (i), be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated at the rate of ten per cent. of such income-tax:

Provided that in case of persons mentioned in item (i) above having a total income exceeding eight hundred and fifty thousand rupees, the total amount payable as income-tax and surcharge on such income shall not exceed the total amount payable as income-tax on a total income of eight hundred and fifty thousand rupees by more than the amount of income that exceeds eight hundred and fifty thousand rupees.

## Paragraph B

In the case of every co-operative society,—

## Rates of income-tax

(1) where the total income does not exceed 10 per cent. of the total income; Rs. 10,000

(2) where the total income exceeds Rs. 10,000 but does not exceed Rs. 20,000

Rs. 1,000 plus 20 per cent. of the amount by which the total income exceeds Rs. 10,000;

(3) where the total income exceeds Rs. 20,000

Rs. 3,000 plus 30 per cent. of the amount by which the total income exceeds Rs. 20,000.

## Surcharge on income-tax

The amount of income-tax computed in accordance with the preceding provisions of this Paragraph, or in section 112, shall, in the case of every co-operative society, be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated at the rate of two and one-half per cent. of such income-tax.

In the case of every firm,

stali v vonichan den Sa beboore e.

Rate of income-tax

On the whole of the total income

## Surcharge on income-tax

The amount of income-tax computed at the rate hereinbefore specified, or in section 112, shall, in the case of every firm, be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated at the rate of two and one-half per cent. of such income-tax.

## Paragraph Dil disease sat tone lead with position

In the case of every local authority,—

Rate of income-tax

On the whole of the total income

on this will the set before

Duessia karanja di tri 30 per cent.

## the cost regalitions of the Surcharge on income-tax

The amount of income tax computed at the rate hereinbefore specified, or in section 112, shall, in the case of every local authority, be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated at the rate of two and one-half per cent. of such income-tax.

## Paragraph E

In the case of a company,

### Rates of income-tax CHARLING THE

I. In the case of a domestic company

35 per cent. of the total income:

- II. In the case of a company other than a domestic company—
  - (i) on so much of the total income as consists Tens with think, and It dispute the of
  - (a) royalties received from Government or an Indian concern in pursuance of an agreement made by it with the Government or the Indian concern after the 31st day of March, 1961 but before the 1st day of April, 1976; or
  - (b) fees for rendering technical services received from Government or an Indian concern in pursuance of an agreement made by it with the Government or the Indian concern after the 29th day of February, 1964 but before the 1st day of April, 1976,

and where such agreement has, in either case, 50 per cent; been approved by the Central Government

o watoz tara Braden sawii

(ii) on the balance, if any, of the total income 40 per cent;

Surcharge on income-tax

The amount of income-tax computed in accordance with the preceding provisions of this Paragraph, or in section 112, shall, in the case of every company, be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated at the rate of two and one-half per cent, of such income-tax.";

## (ii) in Part IV, in Rule 8,—

- (A) for sub-rules (1) and (2), the following sub-rules shall be substituted, namely:-
- "(1) Where the assessee has, in the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2004, any agricultural income and the net result of the computation of the agricultural income of the assessee for any one or more of the previous years relevant to the assessment years commencing on the 1st day of April, 1996 or the 1st day of April, 1997 or the 1st day of April, 1998 or the 1st day of April, 1999 or the 1st day of April, 2000 or the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003, is a loss, then, for the purposes of sub-section (2) You would be the amost of section 2 of this Act, and the section 3
  - (i) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1996, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1997 or the 1st day of April, 1998 or the 1st day of April, 1999 or the 1st day of April, 2000 or the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003,
    - (ii) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April,

1997, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1998 or the 1st day of April, 1999 or the 1st day of April, 2000 or the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003, when the spinon is to every edept 1

- (iii) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1998, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1999 or the 1st day of April, 2000 or the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003,
- (iv) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1999, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2000 or the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003,
- (v) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2000, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003,
- (vi) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2001, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, ad lists zalunduz gotwottor 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003,
- (vii) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant of inevelor next addivision to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, yns, 2004, and 2004, and 2002, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April,
  - (viii) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2003, 1 , 2201 0 8 da dinea la vah

shall be set off against the agricultural income of the assessee for insvoior rang appivere of the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on

The reservation and seed seed (2) Where the assessee has, in the previous year relevant moveled they analysed on to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2005, JingA to valuation or, if by virtue of any provision of the Income-tax Act, income-tax is to be charged in respect of the income of a period other than entro 1001, 2001 or the previous year, in such other period, any agricultural income and the net result of the computation of the agricultural income inevalar may analysis at of the assessee for any one or more of the previous years relevant

**la mojskojag pala**magain, ad commany, he increased by a To impore that per semi of

the of the computation of the c. for any one or more of the STATE YEARS COMMERCIAL OR Javas Land, 1997 or the Landay 1999 or the 1st day of April, 2000 ist day of April, 2002 or the 1st the perposes of sub-section (2)

lingA to yet set and the 1st day of April, 2004.

construct you considering on the list day of April,

engriffern Janua Agine di Ha

secule landaritative appears to be and

with a conflict delay by the

hors / Sycillo IS 1887 / Halles &

据以证式的编译 可可容易 (在)发生的

20人口用面包数数据中域的统计内线

SO ASTRO AND EST CAR A passon of

velicy No franc Justs 2000 to th

III on prod base navegar income

wasi berkom si databi bil

to the assessment years commencing on the 1st day of April, 1997 or the 1st day of April, 1998 or the 1st day of April, 1999 or the 1st day of April, 2000 or the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st installed any address of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003 or the 1st day of April, 2004, is a loss, then, for the purposes of sub-section (10) of section 2 of this Act,—

- the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to Ave. So was the first and gottomer the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1997, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1998 or the 1st day of April, 1999 or the 1st day of April, 2000 or the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003 or the 1st day of April, 2004, Yn die) i Mei itza zoemiele satui otek
  - (ii) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1998, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1999 or the 1st day of April, 2000 or the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003 or the 1st day of April, 2004,
  - (iii) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1999, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2000 or the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003 or the 1st day of April, 2004,
  - (iv) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2000, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003 or the 1st day of April, 2004,
  - (v) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2001, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003 or the 1st day of April, 2004,
  - (vi) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2002, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April. 2003 or the 1st day of April, 2004,
  - (vii) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2003, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off

Children to the call of all all dish bearing the rest. against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2004, lines to zee at or

(viii) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2004, The state of the first the second

shall be set off against the agricultural income of the assessee for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2005 " व कार्य होती हिल्ली अनु में अन्तार्थ और अ

(B) for sub-rule (4), the following sub-rule shall be substituted, namely:—

"(4) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Rule, no loss which has not been determined by the Assessing Officer under the provisions of these Rules or the Rules contained in Part IV of the First Schedule to the Finance (No. 2) Act, 1996 (33 of 1996), or of the First Schedule to the Finance Act, 1997 (26 of 1997), or of the First Schedule to the Finance (No. 2) Act, 1998 (21 of 1998), or of the First Schedule to the Finance Act, 1999 (27 of 1999), or of the First Schedule to the Finance Act, 2000 (10 of 2000), or of the First Schedule to the Finance Act, 2001 (14 of 2001), or of the First Schedule to the Finance Act, 2002 (20 of 2002), or of the First Schedule to the Finance Act, 2003 (32 of 2003), shall be set off under sub-rule (1) or, as the case may be, sub-rule (2).".

## CHAPTER III

## INDIRECT TAXES

of 2003.

Halfer 0396

Amendment 3. In section 169 of the Finance Act, 2003, for the words, figures and letters "the of section 1st day of March, 2004", the words, figures and letters "the 1st day of April, 2005" shall be 169 of Act 32 substituted. delight ha Valence in our was paled another than the and all objects the following

Betarin wis Ar

Aig to the third section goest was the in the second section of the second section is 2001 de de la la lagraf de la la lagra autra a un partir la proper la partir or the telling of a pell, 2004, 5 รสทรุงสัตร์ จะใช้รู้ ให้เอมิจอร์สโดยัง เรา ใหร้ายอมากก ๘๐ ๕๐๐ อศัมโติร์ no toto vescisali din vota robina libundia antina di ito, ito ito, od Abeth gor the read has astronationed gas It there is a significant a chaler beer and am bandel causant libraryation on two effe Fig Kitogen is in about gainness no cale in the property of the ડેલિકો જ છે. છે. તેના તેના મહેલ્યુએક જેવીડ એ તેના મુખ તેનું જૂતા ઉદ્દેશના જેવા ระบุบาทัยธา ประชุบบาทที่จริงหมู่ บริษัทร์ผู้ไม่กระบับครั้งกระบายผลเลยได้ที่ นี้ถูกไ Here has been a first trap opping to make the day for the party of that the formal true was been dead to the true to the weather the till the and the first and the first term and the first term of the first t เรียกลูสับโดย รูแนะเองได้ พูดีที่ เพียงสูติดัง โดย การการแบบ สามารถสายกร้าง ก - AND LENGTH PROPERTY

क्षरप्रकोतः बहुरम् । अर्थन क्षात्रीय काल्या । अत्यापार हा व्यवस्था । Align A County of Carlo was prior as server using those fit e has acontempered bet shown on this begins on

code from the day for hard, 2000 or the factor of Apart, 2000, THE JEWATE WHEN COME THE STATE OF THE PROPERTY OF

are has forced by and real and sparit Beleat Asset 1990 a microstry bury production of the solution between the feet before

the file that see by middle this are the violety seek seed and trad wheel laby to be the component with straight but

## THE APPROPRIATION (VOTE ON ACCOUNT) ACT, 2004

No. 14 of 2004

ON WASHING 600000

900,000,500

605(6) 中央基金管

374,0453,3

699.Quiatra 15 V. 00, \$1.52

both his bulk ersalau sa jua

进行的,严肃等。 1000 00, 10, NEE . . (MX, ACLEO, ACE) ersewis, etc. 000,00,00,00%

Signal Control

[12th February, 2004.]

Service Company of the Company

The second I had not be melons of the The principal and the

An Act to provide for the withdrawal of certain sums from and out of the Consolidated Fund of India for the services of a part of the financial year 063 pts. 1 (57) 464 Pry 1458 2004-05.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fifth Year of the Republic of India as follows:-

1. This Act may be called the Appropriation (Vote on Account) Act, 2004.

Short title.

(B) 10 (48) 21 2. From and out of the Consolidated Fund of India there may be withdrawn sums not exceeding those specified in column 3 of the Schedule amounting in the aggregate to the sum of three lakhs twenty-one thousand sixty-nine crores and ninety-three lakh rupees towards defraying the several charges which will come in course of payment during the financial year 2004-05.

Withdrawal of Rs. 321069. 93,00,000 from and out of the Consolidated Fund of India for the financial year 2004-05.

3. The sums authorised to be withdrawn from and out of the Consolidated Fund by Appropria-MAURICE TO this Act shall be appropriated for the services and purposes expressed in the Schedule in tion. relation to the said year.

JOSÉ IZ DOZDAN 4. Reference to the Ministries or Departments in the Schedule are to such Ministries Construction or Departments as existing immediately before the 8th January, 2004 and shall on or after that of references to date b from t

time to time.		000,00,00,00,00,00,00 000,00,00,00,00,00	Departments in the Schedule.
		0.50,06,00,00 \$40,00,00.0	committed to minute security and the minute of the second
William I		000,00,82,8922 - 000,00,14,723	Sugarthment of Trod Sectorities  Westernies  Westernies  Capital
- 5000 FC S		- 600,00,00,00,00 - 600,00,00,00,00	outpool
300.65.0	·	0.000 (0.0.11) (0.0.11)	Permiss Mentalism ( ) Leading Mentalism ( )

## THE SCHEDULE (See sections 2, 3 and 4)

	2			3		
lo. of	Services and purposes		Sums not exceeding			
/ote			Voted by Parliament	Charged on the Consolidated Fund	Total	
			Rs.	Rs.	Rs.	
	Department of Agriculture and Cooperation	Revenue Capital	1203,13,00,000 31,58,00,000	69,90,00,000	1203,13,00,000 101,48,00,000	
	Department of Agricultural Research and Education	Revenue	584,44,00,000	•••	584,44,00,000	
,	Department of Animal Husbandry and Dairying	Revenue	276,52,00,000	•	276,52,00,000	
	Ministry of Agro and Rural Industries	Capital Revenue	4,64,00,000	• 1	4,64,00,000 241,34,00,000	
· ;·	Atomic Energy	Capital Revenue	54,00,000 603,80,00,000	7,00,000	54,00,000 603,87,00,000	
	Nuclear Power Schemes	Capital Revenue Capital	501,11,00,000 437,67,00,000 752,54,00,000	Asmit benithened	501,11,00,000 437,67,00,000 752,54,00,000	
	Department of Chemicals and Petro- chemicals	Revenue Capital	27,19,00,000 11,67,00,000	mára i z lás asono sa	27,19,00,000 11,67,00,000	
	Department of Fertilisers	Revenue Capital	6078,40,00,000 43,99,00,000	1,00,000	6078,41,00,000 43,99,00,000	
a dest o Sec. Historiki	Ministry of Civil Aviation	Revenue Capital	147,37,00,000 15,02,00,000	ad to an teacher.	147 27 00 000	
	Ministry of Coal	Revenue Capital	106,61,00,000 42,83,00,000	तम् ५००-५४ त्या अस्तितः च्याद्वयाच्यात्रात्रात्रः स्टब्स्	106,61,00,000 42,83,00,000	
	Ministry of Mines	Revenue Capital	202,21,00,000 58,76,00,000	3,00,000	202,24,00,000 58,76,00,000	
) - 45	Department of Commerce	Revenue Capital	595,87,00,000 175,33,00,000	13,00,000	596,00,00,000 175,33,00,000	
	Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion	Revenue	200,13,00,000	essing/1990 od Bada . essy <b>8,00,000</b> a	200,21,00,000	
Mission	Department of Posts	Revenue Capital	2010,12,00,000 105,80,00,000	1,00,000	2010,13,00,000 105,80,00,000	
racas Verias Cosse	Department of Telecommunications	Revenue Capital	669,67,00,000 33,00,000	lati igi bullike ogomide Georgia ca bumbine.	33.00.000	
jánbit	Department of Information Technology	Revenue Capital	245,33,00,000 16,50,00,000	Smill of sa	245,33,00,000 16,50,000,000	
· ·	Department of Consumer Affairs	Revenue Capital	13,78,00,000 3,00,00,000	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	13,78,00,000 3,00,00,000	
	Department of Food and Public Distribution	Revenue Capital	9508,93,00,000 157,41,00,000	1,00,000	9508,94,00,000 157,41,00,000	
	Ministry of Defence	Revenue Capital	1870,76,00,000 145,27,00,000	9,00,000	1870,85,00,000 145,27,00,000	
• ;	Defence Pensions	Revenue	3749,91,00,000	9,00,000	3750,00,00,000	

	2		. 3	
o. of	Services and purposes	No.	Sums not exceeding	a
ote		Voted by Parliament	Charged on the Consolidated Fund	Total
		Rs.	Rs.	Rs.
	Defence Services—Army Revenue	9476,36,00,000	4,64,00,000	9481,00,00,000
	Defence Services—Navy Revenue	1808,40,00,000	81,00,000	1809,21,00,000
	Defence Services—Air Force Revenue	2931,86,00,000	41,00,000	2932,27,00,000
l.	Defence Ordnance Factories Revenue	943,54,00,000	40,00,000	943,94,00,000
	Defence Services—Research and Development Revenue	784,31,00,000	7,00,000	784,38,00,000
主态层	Capital Outlay on Defence Services Capital	7491,00,00,000	3,29,00,000	7494,29,00,000
149   385   288	Department of Development of North Eastern Region	346,19,00,000 18,55,00,000	 32,83,00,000	346,19,00,000 51,38,00,000
3 000	Ministry of Disinvestment	55,00,00,000	•	55,00,00,000
) - (Kidi	Ministry of Environment and Forests Revenue	428,15,00,000 5,58,00,000		428,15,00,000 5,58,00,000
)' ''(1)\p	Ministry of External Affairs Revenue Capital	1077,55,00,000 125,54,00,000	1,00,000 ···	1077,56,00,000 125,54,00,000
lui Virgi	Department of Economic Affairs Revenue Capital	852,82,00,000 514,25,00,000	en Grade, en	\$52,82,00,000 c
2	Currency, Coinage and Stamps Revenue Capital	311,27,00,000 163,83,00,000	21,00,000	311,48,00,000 163,83,00,000
} . }	Payments to Financial Institutions Revenue  Capital	1171,80,00,000 373,71,00,000	ante l'oblighe calerbris	1171,80,00,000 373,71,00,000
	CHARGED.—Interest Payments Revenue	373,71,00,000	44499,95,00,000	44499,95,00,000
5* ***********************************	Transfers to State and Union territory  Governments	8931,52,00,000	5545,00,00,000 8922,64,00,000	14476,52,00,000 8922,64,00,000
6	Loans to Government Servants, etc Capital CHARGED.—Repayment of Debt Capital	200,00,00,000	151092,82,00,000	200,00,00,000 151092,82,00,000
8 000	Department of Expenditure Revenue	8,56,00,000		n Gary <b>8,56,00,000</b> w
9	Pensions Revenue	1565,99,00,000	4,61,00,000	1570,60,00,000
0 (84.	Indian Audit and Accounts Department . Revenue Capital	352,85,00,000 3,67,00,000	10,55,00,000	363,40,00,000 3,67,00,000
1	Department of Revenue Revenue Capital	213,40,00,000 2,37,00,000	1,00,000	213,41,00,000 2,37,00,000
2	Direct Taxes Revenue Capital	355,32,00,000 35,00,00,000	1,00,000	355,33,00,000 35,00,00,000
3	Indirect Taxes	419,03,00,000 67,94,00,000	33,00,000	419,36,00,000 67,94,00,000
<b>4</b> (10) (10)	Department of Company Affairs Revenue Capital	18,00,00,000 1,00,00,000		18,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
5	Ministry of Food Processing Industries Revenue	38,56,00,000	TOTAL WALL CONTROL OF STREET	38,56,00,000
6	Department of Health Revenue Capital	884,81,00,000 118,57,00,000	este or west from a section	884,81,00,000 118,57,00,000

o. of	Services and purposes	77 2 3	Sums not exceeding	eall Las		
	erk og til som kvalde had setter som en eller som er er De skalle på talkere i som en eller	77 2 3 1	Sums not exceeding			
, , ,		Voted by Parliament	Charged on the Consolidated Fund	Total		
, Wij		Rs.	Rs.	Rs.		
· 1803.	Department of Ayurveda, Yoga and		einer s	permissi (enconce)		
*1.00 *1.00 *1.00	Naturopathy, Unani, Siddha and Homoeopathy (AYUSH) Revenue Capital	75,07,00,000 17,00,000		75,07,00,000 17,00,000		
	Department of Family Welfare Revenue	2232,12,00,000		2232,12,00,000		
	Department of Heavy Industry Revenue Capital	53,29,00,000 157,04,00,000	A CONTRACTOR OF THE STATE OF TH	53,29,00,000 157,04,00,000		
. Alba	Department of Public Enterprises Revenue	10,88,00,000	1.00 (1.00 (1.00))	10,88,00,000		
	Ministry of Home Affairs Revenue Capital	235,73,00,000 9,35,00,000	2,00,000	235,75,00,000 9,35,00,000		
(A)A	Cabinet Revenue Capital	88,15,00,000 2,33,00,000	4,00,000	88,19,00,000 2,33,00,000		
14 % 247	Police Revenue Capital	3634,80,00,000 498,65,00,000	1,10,00,000 5,78,00,000	3635,90,00,000 504,43,00,000		
100g 100g	Other Expenditure of the Ministry of Home Affairs Revenue	252,13,00,000	1,00,000	252,14,00,000		
Color Mary Color	Transfers to Union territory Governments Revenue Capital	202,34,00,000 136,32,00,000	District States of the second	202,34,00,000 136,32,00,000		
	Department of Elementary Education and Literacy Revenue	2001,56,00,000		2001,56,00,000		
	Department of Secondary Education and Higher Education Revenue Capital	1685,79,00,000 1,00,000	s services services	1685,79,00,000		
467), 1487)	Department of Women and Child  Development Revenue	1148,65,00,000	. vjeto bio pred jede da Lipina i Galilia i posta	5 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2		
i vari Vari	Ministry of Information and  Broadcasting Revenue Capital	421,12,00,000 83,62,00,000		421,13,00,000 83,62,00,000		
945,	Ministry of Labour Revenue	348,57,00,000 2,00,000	1,00,000	348,58,00,000 2,00,000		
	Election Commission Revenue	3,83,00.000		3,83,00,000		
2694   25 m 	Law and Justice	1219,90,00,000 34,00,000	The state of the s	1219,90,00,000 34,00,000		
u Mass. Talaha	CHARGED.—Supreme Court of India Revenue	il i jakaniili laten	11,56,00,000	11,56,00,000		
r kgil	Ministry of Non-Conventional Energy Sources Revenue	169,74,00,000		169,74,00,000		
5	Capital  Department of Ocean Development Revenue	76,36,00,000		32,01,00,000 76,36,00,000		
	Capital  Ministry of Parliamentary Affairs Revenue	33,00,000 1,96,00,000	The second secon	33,00,000 1,96,00,000		
	Ministry of Personnel, Public Grievances and Pensions Revenue	49,38,00,000		49,38,00,00		
- 1990 : 3 - 1990	Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas Revenue			3,38,00,000		

No. of	Services and purposes	Sums not exceeding				
			37-4-11	<del></del>		
Vote	en komuni obligacja 20. je v n Postava i komini komini, i		Voted by Parliament	Charged on the Consolidated Fund	Total	
		de la constitución de la constit	Rs.	Rs.	Rs.	
69	Ministry of Planning	Revenue	43,63,00,000		43,63,00,000	
70	Ministry of Power	Revenue Captial	701,29,00,000 879,20,00,000		701,29,00,000 879,20,00,000	
int.	CHARGED.—Staff, Household and Allowances					
· 190	of the President	Revenue		5,03,00,000	5,03,00,000	
72	Lok Sabha	Revenue	67,60,00,000	13,00,000	67,73,00,000	
73	Rajya Sabha	Revenue	29,97,00,000	7,00,000	30,04,00,000	
	CHARGED.—Union Public Service Commission	Revenue		17,33,00,000	17,33,00,000	
75	Secretariat of the Vice-President	Revenue	44,00,000		44,00,000	
76	Ministry of Road Transport and Highways	Revenue Capital	1791,92,00,000 2410,98,00,000	13,00,000 1,80,00,000	1792,05,00,000 2412,78,00,000	
77	Department of Rural Development	Revenue Capital	6054,29,00,000 2,50,00,000		6054,29,00,000 2,50,00,000	
78	Department of Land Resources	Revenue	421,49,00,000		421,49,00,000	
79	Department of Drinking Water Supply	Revenue	1320,46,00,000	Vo sa santanes	1320,46,00,000	
80	Department of Science and Technology .	Revenue Capital	406,50,00,000 23,57,00,000	1,00,000	406,51,00,000 23,57,00,000	
81	Department of Scientific and Industrial Research	Revenue Capital	431,97,00,000 1,37,00,000		431,97,00,000 1,37,00,000	
82	Department of Bio-technology	Revenue	107,82,00,000	A CONTRACTOR OF THE STATE OF TH	107,82,00,000	
83	Ministry of Shipping	Revenue Capital	182,02,00,000 102,54,00,000	6,67,00,000	182,02,00,000 109,21,00,000	
84	Ministry of Small Scale Industries	Revenue Capital	133,13,00,000 5,00,00,000		133,13,00,000 5,00,00,000	
85	Ministry of Social Justice and Empowerment	Revenue	457,14,00,000		457,14,00,000	
		Capital	43,25,00,000	1 ,	43,25,00,000	
86	Department of Space	Revenue Capital	722,31,00,000 188,11,00,000		722,44,00,000 188,23,00,000	
87	Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation	Revenue	861,80,00,000	1	861,80,00,000	
88	Ministry of Steel	Capital Revenue	6,95,00,000		6,95,00,000 22,70,00,000	
89	Ministry of Textiles	Capital Revenue	5,67,00,000 441,98,00,000	•	5,67,00,000 441,98,00,000	
		Capital	151,56,00,000	1	151,79,00,000	
90	Department of Culture	Revenue Capital	221,78,00,000 15,17,00,000		221,78,00,000 15,17,00,000	
91	Department of Tourism	Revenue Capital	75,75,00,000 98,17,00,000		75,75,00,000 98,17,00,000	
92	Ministry of Tribal Affairs	Revenue Capital	45,15,00,000 14,42,00,000		368,29,00,000 14,42,00,000	

Medical Ser Bookston , C Cresses and

1000,001 1110

DOMESTICE

. Foundation

55 SEPT ST.

inne og som kannet av en et skil Innen fra klapet

in the continue by material in the statement of

અભ્યારી મેટ્ટે માટ્ટ જેવાના ફ

Jordan Greenwall

a salezait, saprada

Santa, Mass, accept

No solve to gate

1	2		3	and the second of the second s
No. of	Services and purposes		Sums not exceeding	est.
Vote		Voted by Parliament	Charged on the Consolidated Fund	Total 76.00
		Rs.	Rs.	Rs.
93	Andaman and Nicobar Islands Revenue Capital	302,33,00,000 69,44,00,000	1,00,000	302,34,00,000 69,44,00,000
94	Chandigarh Revenue Capital	300,81,00,000 50,78,00,000	10,31,00,000 8,00,000	311,12,00,000 50,86,00,000
95	Dadra and Nagar Haveli Revenue Capital	151,27,00,000 11,83,00,000		151,27,00,000 11,83,00,000
96	Daman and Diu	82,50,00,000 9,93,00,000	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	82,50,00,000 9,93,00,000
97	Lakshadweep	72,89,00,000 12,68,00,000	•	72,89,00,000 12,68,00,000
98	Department of Urban Development Revenue Capital	320,58,00,000 598,64,00,000	4,89,00,000 3,00,00,000	325,47,00,000 601,64,00,000'
99	Public Works	229,47,00,000 80,16,00,000	33,00,000 33,00,000	229,80,00,000 80,49,00,000
100	Stationery and Printing Revenue Capital	49,02,00,000 7,00,000	en e	49,02,00,000
· · 101 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Department of Urban Employment and Poverty Alleviation	150,38,00,000 103,85,00,000	ng in sandi gradit Lina ing maka	150,38,00,000 103,85,00,000
102.	Ministry of Water Resources Revenue Capital	264,46,00,000 19,16,00,000	1,17,00,000	264,46,00,000 20,33,00,000
103	Ministry of Youth Affairs and Sports Revenue Capital	150,59,00,000 4,75,00,000	nyakadanan d	150,59,00,000 4,75,00,000
. Nr.	Тотац	110484,48,00,000	210585,45,00,000	321069,93,00,000

99 2 51 P

maya yare

30 1.00%

trainers a

## THE APPROPRIATION ACT, 2004

No. 15 of 2004

[12th February, 2004.]

प्रार्थकोर्ग १४ वर्षा हो है। वर्षा होता है स्वयं कार्य से क्रार्थ के क्रिकेट्स

An Act to authorise payment and appropriation of certain further sums from and out of the Consolidated Fund of India for the services of the financial year 2003-2004.

Be it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fifth Year of the Republic of India as follows:

1. This Act may be called the Appropriation Act, 2004.

NO.CH

Million A

Parting a Co - Capation -

ned 60, ch common 1550 nodec 753 000 ch 17 J.2

確認[日日本的

0410,0441 0000,011,7

300 00 f

Short title.

2. From and out of the Consolidated Fund of India there may be paid and applied sums not exceeding those specified in column 3 of the Schedule amounting in the aggregate to the sum of thirty-one thousand one hundred five crores and two lakh rupees towards defraying the several charges which will come in course of payment during the financial year 2003-04, in respect of the services specified in column 2 of the Schedule.

Issue of Rs. 31105,02,00,000 out of the Consolidated Fund of India for the financial year 2003-04.

3. The sums authorised to be paid and applied from and out of the Consolidated Fund of India by this Act shall be appropriated for the services and purposes expressed in the Schedule in relation to the said year.

Appropriation.

oma ( de la

3,00,000

4,00,000

1,00,000

1,00,000

1,24,00,000

## THE SCHEDULE (See sections 2 and 3)

	(See sections 2 and 3)						
1	2		3				
			Sums not exceeding				
No.		·	Voted by	Charged on the	Total		
of	Services and purposes	, ,	Parliament	Consolidated			
Vote		<u> </u>		Fund			
			Rs.	Rs.	Rs.		
1	Department of Agriculture and Cooperation	Revenue	2,00,000		2,00,00		
4	Ministry of Agro and Rural Industries	Revenue	50,00,00,000	••	50,00,00,00		
5	Atomic Energy	Capital	1,00,000		1,00,00		
6	Nuclear Power Schemes	Capital	257,60,00,000		257,60,00,00		
8	Department of Fertilisers	Revenue	88,38,00,000		88,38,00.00		
10	Ministry of Coal	Revenue	1,00,000	<b></b>	1,00,00		
11	Ministry of Mines	Capital	93,84,00,000	••	93,84,00,00		
12	Department of Commerce	Revenue	5,61,00,000	20,00,000	5,81,00,00		
13 ′	Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion	Revenue	1,00,000		1,00,00		
14	Department of Posts	Revenue	211,16,00,000	15,00,000	211,31,00,00		
		Capital		16,00,000	16,00,00		
15	Department of Telecommunications	Revenue	275,62,00,000		275,62,00,00		
16	Department of Information Technology	Revenue	7,51,00,000		7,51,00,00		
٠.		Capital	20,00,00,000		20,00,00,00		
19	Ministry of Defence	Revenue	248,92,00,000		248,92,00,00		
21	Defence Services—Army	Revenue		2,00,00,000	2,00,00,00		
24	Defence Ordnance Factories	Revenue	238,04,00,000	_,_,_,_,	238,04,00,00		
25	Defence Services—Research and Development	Revenue		14,00,000	14,00,00		
27	Department of Development of North-Eastern		and the second	- 1,50,500	11,00,00		
:	Region	Capital	1,00,000		1,00,00		
28	Ministry of Disinvestment	Revenue	20,63,00,000	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	20,63,00,00		
29	Ministry of Environment and Forests	Revenue	1,00,000		1,00,00		
31	Department of Economic Affairs	Revenue	3,00,000		3,00,00		
32	Currency, Coinage and Stamps	Revenue	. 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1	16,00,000	16,00,00		
33	Payments to Financial Institutions	Revenue	786,00,00,000	,0,00,000	786,00,00,00		
JJ	aymond to I individual individual on the control of	Capital	2,00,000	•	2,00,00		
	Charged.—Interest Payments	Revenue	2,00,000	4729,84,00,000	4729,84,00,00		
	Charged.—Repayment of Debt	Capital		21701,79,00,000	21701,79,00,00		
38	Department of Expenditure	Revenue	1,20,00,000	21701,75,00,000	1,20,00,00		
40	Indian Audit and Accounts Department	Revenue	46,18,00,000	95,00,000	47,13,00,00		
43	Indirect Taxes.	Revenue	139,00,00,000	25,00,000	139,00,00,00		
45	Ministry of Food Processing Industries	Revenue	1,00,000	<b></b>			
46	Department of Health	Revenue	90,02,00,000	•	1,00,00		
47	Department of Indian Systems of Medicine	Kevenue	50,02,00,000	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	90,02,00,00		
4/	and Homoeopathy	Revenue	1,00,000		1,00,0		
48	Department of Family Welfare	Revenue	1,00,000	**,	1,00,00		
					1,00,00		
51	Ministry of Home Affairs	Revenue	32,64,00,000	•	32,64,00,00		
52	Cabinat	Capital	3,05,00,000	7.00.000	3,05,00,00		
52	Cabinet	Revenue	48,15,00,000	7,00,000	48,22,00,0		
<b>5</b> 2	n-ti	Capital	4,38,00,000	01.00.000	4,38,00,0		
53	Police	Revenue	845,37,00,000	91,00,000	846,28,00,00		
	04 - 70 - 42 - 24 - 25	Capital	251,00,00,000	25,00,000	251,25,00,00		
54	Other Expenditure of the Ministry of Home				Ne or		

Revenue

Revenue

Revenue

Revenue

Revenue

Affairs .....

Ministry of Information and Broadcasting ......

Ministry of Labour .....

Transfers to Union territory Governments . . . . . . .

Department of Secondary Education and

55

57

59

60

3,00,000

4,00,000 1,00,000

1,00,000

1,24,00,000

	2		3			
			Sums r	ot exceeding		
No.		· · · .	Voted by	Charged on the	Total	
of	Services and purposes	.	Parliament	Consolidated		
Vote				Fund		
			Rs.	Rs.	Rs.	
2	Law and Justice	Revenue	1,00,000		1,00,000	
		Capital	1,00,000		1,00,000	
	CHARGED.—Supreme Court of India	Revenue		6,46,00,000	6,46,00,00	
6	Ministry of Parliamentary Affairs	Revenue	1,72,00,000		1,72,00,00	
7	Ministry of Personnel, Public Grievances					
	and Pensions	Capital	60,00,000	••	60,00,00	
8	Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas	Revenue	1,00,000	•	1,00,00	
		Capital	319,36,00,000	••	319,36,00,00	
0 -	Ministry of Power	Revenue	1,00,000		1,00,00	
į	of the President	Revenue		60,00,000	60,00,00	
/2	Lok Sabha	Revenue	2,95,00,000	57,00,000	3,52,00,00	
13	Rajya Sabha	Revenue	7,54,00,000	19,00,000	7,73,00,00	
	CHARGED.—Union Public Service Commission	Revenue		77,00,000	77,00,00	
6	Ministry of Road Transport and Highways	Revenue	4,28,00,000	•	4,28,00,00	
]		Capital	1,00,000	10,00,000	11,00,00	
7.	Department of Rural Development	Revenue	3,61,00,000		3,61,00,00	
9	Department of Drinking Water Supply	Revenue	20,01,00,000		20,01,00,00	
0	Department of Science and Technology	Revenue	1,00,000		1,00,00	
2	Department of Biotechnology	Revenue	1,00,000		1,00,00	
3	Ministry of Shipping	Revenue	2,00,000		2,00,00	
		Capital		8,00,00,000	8,00,00,00	
4	Ministry of Small Scale Industries	Revenue	1,00,000	,	1,00,00	
7	Ministry of Statistics and Programme		일어있다. 나는 하나 하		in the second	
	Implementation	Revénue	100,00,00,000	led by being a to	100,00,00,00	
9	Ministry of Textiles	Revenue	3,00,000		3,00,00	
0	Department of Culture	Revenue	6,71,00,000		6,71,00,00	
3	Andaman and Nicobar Islands	Revenue	1,00,000		1,00,00	
		Capital	8,36,00,000		8,36,00,00	
4	Chandigarh	Revenue	1,00,000	1,15,00,000	1,16,00,00	
1		Capital	2,17,00,000	2,20,00,000	2,17,00,00	
5	Dadra and Nagar Haveli	Revenue	75,52,00,000		75,52,00,00	
7	Lakshadweep	Capital	2,24,00,000		2,24,00,00	
8	Department of Urban Development	Revenue	75,51,00,000	•	75,51,00,00	
٥.	Department of Otoan Development 111111111111111111111111111111111111	Capital	250,01,00,000	2.47.00.000	252,48,00,00	
9	Public Works	Capital	1,00,000	2,47,00,000	1,00,00	
01	Department of Urban Employment and	Capital	1,00,000		1,00,00	
01	Proverty Alleviation	Revenue	1,00,000		1,00,00	
	I TOTALLY MILESTRALION SEE SEE SEE SEE SEE SEE SEE SEE SEE SE		1,00,000	(1971) 14 · ·		
02	Ministry of Woter Passages	Capital		m fa dy 😬 👝	1,00,00	
102	Ministry of Water Resources	Capital	1,53,00,000		1,53,00,00	
103	Ministry of Youth Affairs and Sports	Revenue	1,00,000	and the state of	1,00,00	
	TOTAL		4648,09,00,000	26456,93,00,000	31105,02,00,00	

## THE FOREIGNERS (AMENDMENT) ACT, 2004

## No. 16 of 2004

[20th February, 2004.]

2012年時 2月1日 1876年日 新光田日本

## An Act further to amend the Foreigners Act, 1946.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fifth Year of the Republic of India as

Short title.

THE LOCK O

Mark o MA

British My

- 1. This Act may be called the Foreigners (Amendment) Act, 2004.
- Substitution of new sections for section 14.
- 2. For section 14 of the Foreigners Act, 1946, the following sections shall be 31 of 1946, substituted, namely:

Penalty for contravention of provisions of the Act, etc.

yta jaa

000,00,00,00 500,00,00,00

90,000

ののおままむ!

## '14. Whoever-

Mistrop M. f

0.100/.

GREENWAY

(4) + 54,41 0/6:07:\*\*

- (a) remains in any area in India for a period exceeding the period for which the visa was issued to him;
- (b) does any act in violation of the conditions of the valid visa issued to him for his entry and stay in India or any part thereunder;
  - (c) contravenes the provisions of this Act or of any order made thereunder or any direction given in pursuance of this Act or such order for which no specific punishment is provided under this Act,

shall be punished with imprisonment for a term which may extend to five years and shall also be liable to fine; and if he has entered into a bond in pursuance of clause (f) of sub-section (2) of section 3, his bond shall be forfeited, and any person bound thereby shall pay the penalty thereof or show cause to the satisfaction of the convicting Court why such penalty should not be paid by

34 of 1920.

Explanation.— For the purposes of this section, the expression "visa" shall have the same meaning as assigned to it under the Passport (Entry into India) Rules, 1950 made under the Passport (entry into India) Act, 1920.

## 14A. Whoever A Company of the Action of the Company of the Company

Penalty for entry in restricted areas, etc.

- (a) enters into any area in India, which is restricted for his entry under any order made under this Act, or any direction given in pursuance thereof, without obtaining a permit from the authority, notified by the Central Government in the Official Gazette, for this purpose or remains in such area beyond the period specified in such permit for his stay; or
- (b) enters into or stays in any area in India without the valid documents required for such entry or for such stay, as the case may be, under the provisions of any order made under this Act or any direction given in pursuance thereof,

shall be punished with imprisonment for a term which shall not be less than two years, but may extend to eight years and shall also be liable to fine which shall not be less than ten thousand rupees but may extend to fifty thousand rupees; and if he has entered into a bond in pursuance of clause (f) of sub-section (2) of section 3, his bond shall be forfeited, and any person bound thereby shall pay the penalty thereof, or show cause to the satisfaction of the convicting Court why such penalty should not be paid by him.

14B. Whoever knowingly uses a forged passport for entering into India or remains therein without the authority of law for the time being in force shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which shall not be less than two years, but may extend to eight years and shall also be liable to fine which shall not be less than ten thousand rupees but may extend to fifty thousand rupees.

Penalty for using forged passport.

AND THING

14C. Whoever abets any offence punishable under section 14 or section 14A or section 14B shall, if the act abetted is committed in consequence of the abetment, be punished with the punishment provided for the offence.

Penalty for abetment.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section,—

- (i) an act or offence is said to be committed in consequence of the abetment, when it is committed in consequence of the instigation, or in pursuance of the conspiracy, or with the aid which constitutes the offence;
- (ii) the expression "abetment" shall have the same meaning as assigned to it under section 107 of the Indian Penal Code.'.

45 of 1860.

ELESS PRIECES

24x23 Vay C. 51 95&10752 C. 5

12.71& 14 (12.71V 154) Self Court the season and check at application of the color of the color of the color of the color and the contraction of the first the first point for the contraction of the contraction o

Takpali epikangangan dibi kepitate dali terdapat pagan aya 1997 sabili sebangan Tepak

## THE BRITISH STATUTES (REPEAL) ACT, 2004

rentani krise rizus prij lagini parre djima lipi dajuni di drag regri edro zargjeni or an, order made ander this fee, we pay directing pive, as permane, a factorial tentus 2 gals yet gerijing. Apricanide intration until gere edenlisels arists iv Son comment in the 1991 should cody, for this paper in the literal section in the we produce thinks Sharing door of the lateral or belong not reproved

## No. 17 of 2004

in forteen door of parkys in very very the facilities of boarship haded reproducing add astrone for the said which stopes above the following the said for the patients. A away noticeath was to the our room stone stone that has [20th February, 2004.]

here the more

An Act to repeal the British Law Ascertainment Act, 1859, the Foreign Law Ascertainment Act, 1861, the Colonial Probates Act, 1892, in so far as they apply to India, and the India (Consequential Provision) Act, 1949.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fifth Year of the Republic of India as follows:sources. A, his condition of the fortified, and

Short title.

10 4000

Definition.

1. This Act may be called the British Statutes (Repeal) Act, 2004: 100 and 100

2. In this Act, "British Statutes" means the British Law Ascertainment Act 1859. the Foreign Law Ascertainment Act, 1861, the Colonial Probates Act, 1892, in so far as they apply to India, and the India (Consequential Provision) Act, 1949.

remains therein without the authority of law for the time being in force shall he

3. The British Statutes are hereby repealed an income way that of broken your line and income was a broken your line.

loss than bed the asset of supress out may extend to they mousand supress.

22&23 Vict. C.63 24&25 Vict.C.11 55&56 Vict.C.6 12,13 & 14 Geor. VI C.92.

IGS VILLERY FOR tracracis malsor

Litary passag Repeal.

करते ज्या हिस्स्त , december 16

Add. Whose we also safe of these published in page section 14 or section lab or sauther (48) that; if the not abored is devented in consequence of the abetracent, he guarabled with the particlement provided for the offence.

Explandion - for the purposes of this softion

(i) but not by a some the same to be an equilibed in consequence within absence, when it is supplied in appropriate of the feeligibon, or in papertie our resultance evider des ser divid in granique est to granusure

banginas angsinoses agua asti avai ituda "mo aporta" iginpanguo ati (ii). to it meser section 12 of the indian Peacl (Society) THIS OUT IN

69年1月1日 11日

医抗原性质色 新启

No. 2013 358

150,60,025

\$2,000

# THE APPROPRIATION (RAILWAYS) VOTE ON ACCOUNT No. 2 ACT, 2004

Propriation to

Conference of the African Conference of the Conf

No. 18 of 2004

[22nd July, 2004.]

Lift og hit vertilinger i kin med i fak

. 18 St. 18 September 18 Sept. 18 Sept.

Hypoirs and Maintellance of themseads

Approprietion to Pools......

of Oxer Captionalism.

An Act to provide for the withdrawal of certain sums from and out of the Consolidated Fund of India for the services of a part of the financial year 2004-05 for the purposes of Railways.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fifth Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

- 1. This Act may be called the Appropriation (Railways) Vote on Account No. 2 Act, 2004.
- 2. From and out of the Consolidated Fund of India there may be withdrawn sums not exceeding those specified in column 3 of the Schedule amounting in the aggregate to the sum of forty thousand six hundred seventeen crores, forty-six lakhs, fifty thousand and five hundred rupees [inclusive of the sums specified in column 3 of the Schedule to the Appropriation (Railways) Vote on Account Act, 2004] towards defraying the several charges which will come in course of payment during the financial year 2004-05, in respect of the services relating to Railways specified in column 2 of the Schedule.

3. The sums authorised to be withdrawn from and out of the Consolidated Fund of India by this Act shall be appropriated for the services and purposes expressed in the Schedule in relation to the said year.

5678,66,00.000

The transfer of the state in the state of th

Short title

Withdrawal of Rs. 40617,46,50,500 from and out of the Consolidated Fund of India for the financial year 2004-05.

Appropriation.

12 of 2004.

Windelight Line Age 12 Age 17 Age 17 Age 18 Age 18

Amin's medicals

THE SCHEDULE (See sections 2 and 3)

1	2	ctions 2 and 3)	3				
No.	Services and purposes	Sums not exceeding					
o f Vote		Voted by Parliament	Charged on the Consolidated Fund	Total			
	THURSTANDISTON (E.C.	Rs.	Rs.	Rs.			
1	Railway Board	37,52,50,000	: <b></b>	37,52,50,000			
2	Miscellaneous Expenditure (General)	127,00,00,000	<b></b>	127,00,00,000			
3	General Superintendence and Services.						
	on Railways	874,57,25,000	50,000	874,57,75,000			
4.	Repairs and Maintenance of Permanent Way and Works	1626,48,97,000	1,05,000	1626,50,02,000			
5	Repairs and Maintenance of Motive	No. 88 of					
	Power	834,59,83,000	25,000	834,60,08,000			
6	Repairs and Maintenance of Carriages	8,	4				
	and Wagons	1730,31,17,000	and the second of the second	1730,31,17,000			
7	Repairs and Maintenance of Plant and		rvált ríok skátr Rosskátlastrak				
183	Equipment	933,07,84,000	evel to autor. For the partners	933,07,84,000			
8	Operating Expenses—Rolling Stock.	. \					
	and Equipment	al. transfer that A	ed to Particulari	F			
. 9	Operating Expenses—Traffic	5385,12,74,000	•	5385,12,74,000			
1.0	Operating Expenses Fuel	4138,21,37,000	no di Porno la No ili kalio pre	4138,21,37,000			
11	Staff Welfare and Amenities	689,91,93,000	1,47,500	689,93,40,500			
12	Miscellaneous Working Expenses	856,23,50,000	17,91,04,500	874,14,54,500			
13	Provident Fund, Pension and Other Retirement Benefits		10 30 (2 m 11) (80 10 32 30 : 11 (31 33 02 000 )	i) noise igo aga seus lliw dom 3230,09,73,000			
14	Appropriation to Funds	5070,00,00,000		5070,00,00,000			
15	Dividend to General Revenues,  Repayment of loans taken from	o withdrawn in	or beer volkes z	ins off A			
orti	General Revenues and Amortisation	n also his live s	organis de libra. Sy base arb ve do	on du ve am chodula in relati			
	of Over-Capitalisation	36,67,82,500		36,67,82,500			
16	Assets—Acquisition, Construction and Replacement—	1000					
	Revenue	17,50,00,000	"	17,50,00,000			
	Other Expenditure:		,				
	Capital	9937,96,42,000	4,00,00,000	9941,96,42,000			
	Railway Funds	1759,65,00,000	50,00,000	1760,15,00,000			
	Railway Safety Fund	200,50,00,000		200,50,00,000			
	Special Railway Safety Fund	1691,95,00,000	50,00,000	1692,45,00,000			
	TOTAL:	40594,19,16,500	23,27,34,000	40617,46,50,500			

## THE APPROPRIATION (No. 2) ACT, 2004

中国毛马克州州南北京

No. 19 of 2004

[29th July, 2004.]

An Act to provide for the authorisation of appropriation of moneys out of the Consolidated Fund of India to meet the amounts spent on certain services during the financial year ended on the 31st day of March, 2002, in excess of the amounts granted for those services and for that year.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fifth Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

1. This Act may be called the Appropriation (No. 2) Act, 2004.

Short title.

Issue of Rs.

2. From and out of the Consolidated Fund of India, the sums specified in column 3 of the Schedule, amounting in the aggregate to the sum of eight hundred seventy-eight crores, eighty-three lakhs, thirty-one thousand, six hundred seventy-eight rupees shall be deemed to have been authorised to be paid and applied to meet the amounts spent for defraying the charges in respect of the services specified in column 2 of the Schedule during the financial year ended on the 31st day of March, 2002, in excess of the amounts granted for those services and for that year.

878,83,31,678 out of the Consolidated Fund of India to meet certain excess expenditure

for the year ended on the 31st March,

2002.

Appropriation.

3. The sums deemed to have been authorised to be paid and applied from and out of the Consolidated Fund of India under this Act shall be deemed to have been appropriated for the services and purposes expressed in the Schedule in relation to the financial year ended on the 31st day of March, 2002.

THE SCHEDULE
(See sections 2 and 3)

1	2		3	
No.	and purposes		Excess	
of Vote	(No. 2) Auto, 2004	Voted portion	Charged portion	Total
11	Department of PostsRevenue Capital	Rs.	Rs. 45,000 15,83,000	Rs. 45,000 15,83,000
12	Department of Telecommunications	114,36,47,956		114,36,47,956
25	Payments to Financial Institutions	731,35,86,493		731,35,86,493
	CHARGED.—Interest Payments Revenue	•	28,39,19,677	28,39,19,677
44.	Other Expenditure of the Ministry of Home Affairs	Sheer Arabis Josephalaka	, इस वर्ग हो देख	5,73,600
80 👍	Department of Urban  Development	4,49,75,952		4,49,75,952
	ustice allowase. Total to make disting	850,22,10,401	28,61,21,277	878,83,31,678

A This has been been been been supported in the control of the con

[3] F. John and out M. Co. Episonticated Pract of tent entry perfect of the boundary of the boundaries of the first and control of the first part of the injurious of the first part of the control of the first part of the firs

ngi kinggang A

वर्षेत्री सहकीर्

siski liksi logorish Logorish

ASSET SEE

... Joseph of

polis gradu. Godibesgno

f of the Yest with any dec Mac Marck

To the suggestion of the suggest business to be suggested to the paint and could be defined in the suggest of t

# THE APPROPRIATION (VOTE ON ACCOUNT) No. 2 ACT, 2004

re noul

- CAROLINE : 1890 Grant, Ca on the control of the state of OF HEREVIEW No. 20 of 2004 and about is will become the production. - DOMESTICAL BROOK! \$3650,73 (81,98 I M. 9.00 M. 1900 100 (0) (8,5)% designation for [29th July, 2004.] 258,60,00,000 Control Calm 10 M MO 610 M mention Power Schoolsen An Act to provide for the withdrawal of certain sums from and out of the Consolidated Fund of India for the services of a part of the financial \$P\$ATES year 2004-05. aban Milastina I wan 1844 COM 60 FOLKERS BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fifth Year of the Republic of India as follows: 904100.3VJ\$ 1. This Act may be called the Appropriation (Vote on Account) No. 2 Act, 2004. 906,00sec.13 Short title. 2. From and out of the Consolidated Fund of India there may be withdrawn sums not 000000014.843 Withdrawal exceeding those specified in column 3 of the Schedule amounting in the aggregate to the of Rs. sum of four lakhs seventy-eight thousand five hundred nineteen crores and seven lakh ru-478519.07.00.000 pees towards defraying the several charges which will come in course of payment during the from and out of financial year 2004-05. the Consoli-1-00,00,00,0 496,46 (0,000) SMMO DA . . dated Fund of MAY LOW, DOG MAY LOG ON THE FORE India for the financial year 2004-05. 3. The sums authorised to be withdrawn from and out of the Consolidated Fund by this 3000,00,10,000 Act shall be appropriated for the services and purposes expressed in the Schedule in relation Appropriation. 170,00 of to the said year. Decolarization 24,30,00,000 4. References to the Ministries or Departments in the Schedule are to such Ministries or Departments as existing immediately before the 9th June, 2004 and shall on or after Construction of that date be construed as references to the appropriate Ministries or Departments as constireferences to Ministries or tuted from time to time. Departments in 24.75, 41.000 1775 (11) 35.4 the Schedule. 27,15,00 000 Mighighy of Congressy Affairs. .... fathyola: -000.00 SE. I 1,10,09,0110 000,00,70,00 20,67,00,000 annovaå . arith, parameth (ii) reputed di ¥. 1 08)0.0 J.NS, & 4,94,96,000 a the assessment of the first property 135-27, 75, 60, 000 JAMANE AN AMERICA \$100,0013 tancara: 2265 Links fall-jet-MM.00.11,375. WE'GO OF SEE AND MIST, ELF DWANTER. TO MY 180 GIVE \$2:75,**90**,000 Parking a lit 303(1.94.00.00) 3983,80 AB, 1801 Sub-devices 经价值的 建 400 OU 19 1 ES \$608,WI, FR 1435 1018/16 CONTRACTOR & STORY

## THE SCHEDULE (See sections 2, 3 and 4)

1	2						
No. of			Sums not exceeding				
Vote	Services and purposes		Voted by Parliament	Charged on the Consolidated Fund	Total		
	. માના માના માટે મિત્ર પ્રત્યો કો જો જોઈ.	ត់ នៅឆ្នាំង តែនាធិបា -	Rs.	Rs.	Rs.		
1	Department of Agriculture and Cooperation	Revenue Capital	1489,86,00,000 43,48,00,000	77,92,00,000	1489,86,00,000 121,40,00,000		
2	Department of Agricultural Research and Education	Revenue	876,66,00,000		876,66,00,000		
3	Department of Animal Husbandry and Dairying	Revenue	412,91,00,000	•	412,91,00,000		
4	Ministry of Agro and Rural Industries		6,96,00,000 380,01,00,000	••	6,96,00,000 380,01,00,000		
	Atomio Engage	Capital	81,00,000		81,00,000		
5	Atomic Energy	Capital	905,70,00,000 751,66,00,000	10,00,000	905,80,00,000 751,66,00,000		
6.*	Nuclear Power Schemes	-	656,51,00,000		656,51,00,000		
<b>0</b> .*,	Trucical Tower Sciences	Capital	1128,81,00,000	e. V salt jak sakkovišk	1128,81,00,000		
7	Department of Chemicals and Petrochemicals		42,68,00,000 24,17,00,000	To hope Labertie	42,68,00,000		
8	Department of Fertilisers	-	9655,92,00,000	1,00,000	9655,93,00,000		
		Capital	65,99,00,000	Laborall L.P. Vel bottomy	65,99,00,000		
9	Ministry of Civil Aviation		187,72,00,000 22,53,00,000	a band of the band	187,72,00,000 22,53,00,000		
10	Department of Coal		159,91,00,000 6 64,25,00,000	ক্ষান্ত কোনি কোনি ক্ষান্ত বিষয় কোনি কোনি কোনি কোনি কোনি কোনি কোনি কোনি			
11 🔅	Department of Mines	Revenue	270,82,00,000 72,14,00,000	5,00,000	270,87,00,000 72,14,00,000		
12	Department of Commerce		906,46,00,000 263,00,00,000	20,00,000	906,66,00,000 263,00,00,000		
13	Department of Industrial Policy and	•					
	Promotion  what good of the state of the sta		291,88,00,000 9,55,00,000	96 of horrors strange 88 of horrors strange	<b>292,</b> 01,00,000 <b>9,55,00,000</b>		
14	Department of Posts and obtained and not	Revenue Capital	3115,05,00,000 124,30,00,000	1,00,000	3115,06,00,000 124,30,00,000		
15 //	Department of Telecommunications design of the communications design of the communication de	Revenue Capital	1165,62,00,000 50,00,000	ing griphes es bassigna an griphes es classius an griphes es cautax	1165,62,00,000		
16	Department of Information Technology		368,00,00,000 24,75,00,000	Hanor (or as Dalois All Parto time.	1, 45 x E 15 35 35 yr (0.048 #9)		
1.7	Ministry of Company Affairs	-	27,25,00,000 1,50,00,000		27,25,00,000 1,50,00,000		
18	Department of Consumer Affairs	-	20,67,00,000 4,96,00,000	:	20,67,00,000		
19	Department of Food and Public				, 3,33,300		
	Distribution	Revenue Capital	13307,75,00,000 236,11,00,000	1,00,000	13307,76,00,000 236,11,00,000		
20	Ministry of Culture :	Revenue Capital	333,17,00,000 22,75,00,000		333,17,00,000 22,75,00,000		
21	Ministry of Defence		3981,86,00,000 217,91,00,000	13,00,000	3981,99,00,000 217,91,00,000		
22	Defence Pensions	-	5624,87,00,000	13,00,000	5625,00,00,000		

	A ALLENS BY CALLED AND A		-	Sums not exceeding	1.20
No. of			A. Jackson		
Vote	Services and purposes	46900	Voted by Parliament	Charged on the Consolidated Fund	Total
			Rs.	Rs.	Rs.
3	Defence Services—Army	Revenue	14314,54,00,000	6,96,00,000	14321,50,00,000
4	Defence Services—Navy		2687,60,00,000	122,00,000	2688,82,00,00
5	Defence Services—Air Force		4322,79,00,000	62,00,000	4323,41,00,00
6	Defence Ordnance Factories	Revenue	943,54,00,000	60,00,000	944,14,00,00
<b>.7</b> 88980	Defence Services—Research and Developme	ent Revenue	1176,47,00,000	11,00,000	1176,58,00,00
8	Capital Outlay on Defence Services	Capital	16736,50,00,000	4,93,00,000	16741,43,00,00
9	Ministry of Development of North				3403
	Eastern Region		519,28,00,000 28,96,00,000	49,25,00,000	519,28,00,00
, 344/30 •••	ACCUAL AND ACCUANT	Capital Revenue	642,23,00,000	49,23,00,000	78,21,00,00
30	Ministry of Environment and Forests	Revenue Capital	8,38,00,000	Shoundard Control	642,23,00,00 8,38,00,00
31	Ministry of External Affairs		1823,54,00,000	2,00,000	1823,56,00,00
, 14.48. Sales		Capital	261,32,00,000	The property of the property of	261,32,00,00
32	Department of Economic Affairs		1280,58,00,000	Principal Selection (white made	1280,58,00,00
- 1900 <b>3</b> 000	Common Colons and Stomes	Capital Revenue	771,38,00,000 466,91,00,000	32,00,000	771,38,00,00
300000	Currency, Coinage and Stamps	Capital	245,75,00,000	22,00,000	467,23,00,00 245,75,00,00
41000	Payments to Financial Institutions		1757,71,00,000		1757,71,00,00
.33.50	549 1.9 A. M. B.	Capital	4604,57,00,000	Principles of the principles of the	4604,57,00,00
- 450 c	CHARGED.—Interest Payments	Revenue	Day Thanking	66749,93,00,000	66749,93,00,00
86	Transfers to State and Union territory				and or originally
encja	Governments	Revenue Capital	13404,78,00,000	8310,00,00,000 13383,96,00,000	21714,78,00,00 13383,96,00,00
7	Loans to Government Servants, etc.	Capital	300,00,00,000		300,00,00,00
i i tanii	CHARGED.—Repayment of Debt	Capital		209410,00,00,000	209410,00,00,00
9	Department of Expenditure		13,31,00,000		13,31,00,00
10°16'02.	Pensions	de all territories	2348,98,00,000	6,92,00,000	2355,90,00;00
n <sup>000,0</sup>	Indian Audit and Accounts Department	d. American	552,27,00,000	16,32,00,000	568,59,00,00
. 33/6 (		Capital	5,50,00,000	Repeated by Society and Comment	40\\\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \
12	Department of Revenue		270,80,00,000	1,00,000	270,81,00,00
<b>13</b>	Direct Taxes		2,53,00,000 572,98,00,000	1,00,000	2,53,00,00 572,99,00,00
1. 1995 A		Capital	51,00,00,000	1,00,000	51,00,00,00
14	Indirect Taxes		630,80,00,000	50,00,000	631,30,00,00
	and the second s	Capital	99,42,00,000	owner still alter ( some	99,42,00,0
<b>15</b> - 77.0	Department of Disinvestment	Anna Cital	55,00,00,000	to the state of the state of	55,00,00,00
l6	Ministry of Food Processing Industries.	M. John James	57,84,00,000		57,84,00,0
<b>17</b>	Department of Health	Revenue Capital	1535,64,00,000 177,85,00,000		1535,64,00,00 177,85,00,00
48	Department of Ayurveda, Yoga and			***************************************	
શ્રીમાંક (. (	Naturopathy, Unani, Siddha and		1980   Janes 490	a managara da da ay 15 18	
THE GAR	Homoeopathy (AYUSH)	Revenue Capital	112,61,00,000 26,00,000	in wanter the Marketon 2.100	112,61,00,0 26,00,0
49	Department of Family Welfare	81 1x 1 - 1	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	See Secretarian Alana and Argenting News	3348,19,00,0

1	2 ;	The state of	Maria Com	3	* 8
No. of	CEARTING soip having	Agrount Sums not exceeding			
Vote	Services and purposes	a the state of	Voted by	Charged on the	
, <u>.</u>	TOTAL STANDARD CONTRACTOR		Parliament	Consolidated Fund	Total
iga yangi igi	Marie Control of the		Rs.	Rs.	Rs.
50 <sub>000.0</sub>	Department of Heavy Industry	. Revenue Capital	79,94,00,000 235,57,00,000	i de la companya de l	79,94,00,000 235,57,00,000
51 <sup>(4)()</sup> ,()	Department of Public Enterprises	243 S TAB 25 N	16,33,00,000	vieta, elita <b>ix</b> a	16,33,00,000
52 <sup>(1)</sup>	Ministry of Home Affairs	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	353,61,00,000	3,00,000	353,64,00,000
.000.0	Nessee Pakeselo	Capital	14,03,00,000	3,00,000 3,00,000	14,03,00,000
53000.0	Cabinet	. Revenue	81,52,00,000	3,00,000	81,55,00,000
- vana n	The leaves and all all	Capital	50,00,000		50,00,000
54 <sup>((10)</sup> ().()	Police	. Revenue	5454,20,00,000	1,65,00,000	5455,85,00,000
· .	ver one	Capital	750,98,00,000	8,68,00,000	759,66,00,000
55 <mark>000.0</mark>	Other Expenditure of the Ministry of	2000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 00			
*****	Home Affairs	. Revenue	378,19,00,000	1,00,000	378,20,00,000
56	Transfers to Union territory Governments.		303,52,00,000	the control of the co	303,52,00,000
- AAA 11		Capital	204,49,00,000	Barta Carwayiya	204,49,00,000
57 <sup>000,0</sup> 000,0	Department of Elementary Education and Literacy	. Revenue	5237,30,00,000	7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	5237,30,00,000
580000		. Revenue	ON ON LUNG WARE	leader Attita versione	3237,30,00,000
0.000	Department of Secondary Education and Higher Education	. Revenue	2528,69,00,000		2528,69,00,000
0.00.0		Capital	1,00,000	of the Constant of the	
59000.0	Department of Women and Child	PROPERTY:	par in doll Abrah		
000:0	Development	. Revenue	1480,64,00,000	. Denotudeki bioni	1480,64,00,000
60000	Ministry of Information and Broadcasting	. Revenue	631,68,00,000	2,00,000	631,70,00,000
0,000	<ul> <li>(1) (2) (3) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4</li></ul>	Capital	125,43,00,000	System Server	125,43,00,000
61	Ministry of Labour and Employment	. Revenue	522,86,00,000	1,00,000	522,87,00,000
6000.0	Company of the state of the sta	Capital	3,00,000		3,00,000
<b>62</b> (100),0	Election, Commission	Revenue	5,75,00,000		5,75,00,000
<b>63</b> ()()(),()	Law and Justice	Revenue	1255,85,00,000	เลยาราชาวาราชาวาราชาวาราชาวาราชาวาราชาวาราชาวาราชาวาราชาวาราชาวาราชาวาราชาวาราชาวาราชาวาราชาวาราชาวาราชาวาราชา	1255,85,00,000
Taha c	and hence the an income and	Capital	51,00,000	The state of the s	51,00,000
note n	CHARGED.—Supreme Court of India	. Revenue		17,34,00,000	17,34,00,000
65 <sup>000,0</sup>	Ministry of Non-Conventional Energy				Section 2 and 2 an
4440	Sources	Revenue	254,62,00,000		254,62,00,000
	1.65.32.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00	Capital	48,02,00,000	Languin kesti Esperia	48,02,00,000 3,00,00,000
-	Ministry of Non Resident Indians Affairs	Revenue Capital	3,00,00,000 50,00,000		50,00,000
060:0 <b>67</b> 660:0	Ministry of Panchayati Raj	100000000 VE	15,52,00,000	Samuel Carlotte	15,52,00,000
<b>68</b> 566.6	Department of Ocean Development		114,54,00,000		114,54,00,000
00,000,00 0,600		Capital	50,00,000	il vi daveti kaj indrigaĵis da kiĝanj	50,00,000
<b>69</b> .(0.00	Ministry of Parliamentary Affairs		2,95,00,000		2,95,00,000
700000	Ministry of Personnel, Public Grievances				
00000	and Pensions	Revenue	125,86,00,000	4,00,000	125,90,00,000
1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	Capital	3,58,00,000	4,50,00,000	8,08,00,000
71,000	Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas	0.5 th/2645 full	1786,71,00,000	A second with the second	1786,71,00,000
<b>72</b> 000,0	Ministry of Planning	11.051.051.055	3223,44,00,000		3223,44,00,000
. <b>-</b> 200,0		Capital	911,50,00,000	930,50,00,000	1842,00,00,000
73	Ministry of Power		1051,94,00,000	100 AND A SECTION OF A SECTION	1051,94,00,000
900,0	giasii. A la la National de la	Capital	1318,80,00,000	(62.00)	1318,80,00,000
0,010	CHARGED.—Staff, Household and Allowan	<del>-</del>			
GOOK				7,54,00,000	7,54,00,000

OF 2004

<u> </u>	2 Min other chin, roby, dag	دان سوا مستون شاه دارد	3	
No. of	(4) shipping one	Late in ranger of	io ok	
Vote	Services and purposes	Voted by Parliament	Charged on the Consolidated Fund	ાં Total
	Explanation + 6	Rs.	Rs.	Rs.
75	Lok Sabha Revenue	16 a purposes of (	his sub-clause,	0.3/1(1.101,60,00,000
76	Rajya Sabha Revenue	44,96,00,000	is an agreement between through a <b>f0.90,000</b> pc	45,06,00,000
hikush	CHARGED.—Union Public Service Commission Revenue	and didning carnin	gs or opc <b>26,00,00,000</b> 0	26,00,00,000
78	Secretariat of the Vice-President	1,56,00,000		1,56,00,000
<b>79</b> .	Ministry of Road Transport and Highways Revenue Capital	2687,88,00,000 3616,48,00,000	transport <b>2,70,00,000</b> 0	2688,08,00,000 3619,18,00,000
80,	Department of Rural Development Revenue Capital Capital	7549,48,00,000 2,50,00,000	between designated to period	7549,48,00,000 2,50,00,000
เลข,จก.: <b>81</b>	Department of Land Resources	632,24,00,000		632,24,00,000
82	Department of Drinking Water Supply Revenue	1650,70,00,000	livities of passioner	1650,70,00,000
<b>83</b> 0 (4) 1 260 (0)	Department of Science and Technology Revenue	609,76,00,000 35,35,00,000	krages constituted of b joint charlers, feeder se	609,77,00,000 35,35,00,000
84	Department of Scientific and Industrial	ing of container shi	oping.	
Klo,5(l.* " .	Research	647,95,00,000 2,05,00,000	rcy or expedient só todio ny referred to acetrose	2,05,00,000
85	Department of Bio-technology Revenue	161,73,00,000	stickings shall be mare	161,73,00,000
86	Ministry of Shipping Revenue Capital	273,04,00,000 153,82,00,000	hell by 110,00,00,000	273,04,00,000 163,82,00,000
87	Ministry of Small Scale Industries Revenue Capital	199,70,00,000 7,50,00,000	Help by the half the synt is.	199,70,00,000 7,50,00,000
88	Ministry of Social Justice and Empowerment Revenue Capital	685,71,00,000 89,88,00,000		685,71,00,000 89,88,00,000
89	Department of Space	1055,97,00,000 274,67,00,000	19,00,000 18,00,000	1056,16,00,000 274,85,00,000
90	Ministry of Statistics and Programme			
	Implementation	882,69,00,000 10,42,00,000		882,69,00,000 10,42,00,000
91	Ministry of Steel Revenue Capital	74,16,00,000 44,45,00,000	*	74,16,00,000 44,45,00,00
92	Ministry of Textiles	662,97,00,000 227,34,00,000	35,00,000	662,97,00,000
93	Ministry of Tourism			113,62,00,00 147,25,00,00
94	Ministry of Tribal Affairs	6 1	484,72,00,000	553,63,00,00 21,63,00,00
95	Andaman and Nicobar Islands		1,00,000	453,50,00,00 104,16,00,00
96	Chandigarh		15,47,00,000 13,00,000	466,69,00,00 76,31,00,00
97	Dadra and Nagar Haveli	17.75.00.000		226,91,00,00 17,75,00,00
98	Daman and Diu			123,75,00,00 14,90,00,00
99	Lakshadweep Revenue Capital			109,33,00,00 19,02,00,00

1		2, 7			3	A STATE OF THE STA
No. of		นูกสารเคราะ ที่หา อาลเก็			Sums not exceeding	3. 41. 4k.
Vote	1	rvices and purposes		Voted by Parliament	Charged on the Consolidated Fund	Total
38				Rs.	, Rs.	Rs.
<b>100</b> .00.	Lamina in the second of	Urban Development	Revenue Capital	477,18,00,000 657,96,00,000	11,03,00,000 4,50,00,000	488,21,00,000 662,46,00,000
<b>101</b> ,00,	Public Works	····igi an figurity	Revenue Capital	344,20,00,000 120,25,00,000	50,00,000 50,00,000	344,70,00,000 120,75,00,000
<b>102</b> 000,06, 000,00,	Stationery and	Printing	Revenue Capital	73,53,00,000 10,00,000	Second mark the sign	73,53,00,000 10,00,000
103,00, 000,00,		f Urban Employment and eviation		225,57,00,000 155,78,00,000	all dine to set these	225,57,00,000 155,78,00,000
000,00 <b>104</b> 000,003	1650,70	ater Resources	Capital	396,69,00,000 28,74,00,000	1,75,00,000	396,69,00,000 30,49,00,000
105.00 (100.00)	18,68	outh Affairs and Sports	Revenue Capital	225,88,00,000 7,12,00,000	A the State of the second state of the second secon	225,88,00,000 7,12,00,000
00,00,	0,5	TOTAL	\$ 95,000 to 100.00 to 100.	178969,81,00,000	299549,26,00,000	478519,07,00,000
CONTACT.			PHILIPPINE TO	Fig. With the second		Componenti Ca
,000,000, ,000,000,		020/25/04/0	P. MOGRAGES In Programme			
000,00,			1 100 St. 69 1.2 2 30 (6) 400		a seedad the stee	Respondence of
. 000,000			1 : 000,00,00,00 e 600,00,88,0	n I later	gridewing as home hand by	est production in
,000,000 ,000,000		\$600,000,51	\$100.00,100.0 \$100.00.00			ye history ( ) 188
000,000 000,000			2.643,40,000 0,4 <sub>30</sub> 63,900		ari hiye caa il ege gazaa. been	
.000,00, .000,00,	44,45		000,000,7,0	e y lossyll	na ann an An	ENGLISH OF
,000,000 ,000,000	227,69	AN (10.51)	1000000000	SS   Decition		A to Volkhauk Control
,000,000, ,000,000, ,000,000	CC.751	- 030000 XV,488	) (000,00,00)   (0,000,00)   (0,000,00)	William William		Market Market Comment of the Comment
000,00;	40,45	Carlotte Anna	Transition of the second	V Natharia		
000,000, 180,000	aran i			Children C.		
300,60, 200,00,	16.90\$ (C.96 - 13)	9-0003			To be for the same of the same	on aye oxery
			TO CHOS	Å Halling of		Other majory of
,60,000 ,00,000 ,00,600	66,000		1.000000000000000000000000000000000000	anewarin L		and sample (
and the second		kongrésianang solong solong				Commence of the state of

THE APPROPRIATION (RAILWAYS) No. 3 ACT, 2004

> Butthey of supplied that No. 21 or 2004

· Water Sell

MENTALL

AUNT CASSESSE JOHN DATE OF

[3rd September, 2004.]

rinselas localadira col·licus i m

An Act to authorise payment and appropriation of certain sums from and out of the Consolidated Fund of India for the services of the financial year 2004-05 for the purposes of Railways.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fifth Year of the Republic of India as follows:-

1. This Act may be called the Appropriation (Railways) No. 3 Act, 2004.

Short title.

2. From and out of the Consolidated Fund of India there may be paid and applied sums not exceeding those specified in column 3 of the Schedule amounting in the aggregate [inclusive of the sums specified in column 3 of the Schedule to the Appropriation (Railways) Vote on Account No. 2 Act, 2004] to the sum of eighty-one thousand one hundred sixty-six crores, seven lakhs and eleven thousand rupees towards defraying the several charges which will come in course of payment during the financial year 2004-05, in respect of the services relating to Railways specified in column 2 of the Schedule.

Issue of Rs. 81166,07,11,000 out of the Consolidated Fund of India for the financial year 2004-05.

3. The sums authorised to be paid and applied from and out of the Consolidated Appropriation. Fund of India by this Act shall be appropriated for the services and purposes expressed in the Schedule in relation to the said year.

Commission Red Line (Edge) E AND THE OWNER and the contribution of the contribution 1940, Paris Care James (1940) - 1945 (2017) - 1945 The same property of the same of BALLER HEALTH 2000年十二十五条成成的首都成 ते वर्षक हिंदी होते । है । के क्षेत्र है क्षा है है । के क्षा है · PER HER DESKEY BODY LESS TON CONTRACTOR SERVICE STATE OF THE SERVICE STATE STATE OF THE SERVICE STATE STATE

Mexiclesion of loss

(15VM. (1) Section 72 THE SCHEDULE of any loss company before its option (See sections 2 and 3) and which

e accrued to a mibutable to its

1		isses had been set i					
	recome in any of the previous s	ears when the com Sums not exceeding nage tax					
No.	schome.						
of	Services and purposes	a sub-section (1)	Charged on	able (or Total			
Vote	against any moome office than tele	an Voted by moor	the Consoli-	year beginning			
	on or after the company exercises	Parliament	dated Fund				
	(1) Any principal and	escary to Epiceria	a the led	maid to in with.			
	section (1) shall be made on a res		Rs.	Rs.			
1	Railway Board my profits or gain	75,05,00,000	ansfer of	75,05,00,000			
2	Miscellaneous Expenditure	qualifying assers s	raff be on:	encontestas .			
	(General) with the provisions	254,00,00,000	with sec	254,00,00,000			
3	General Superintendence and	ed in accordance	with the	is of sections			
	Services on Railways	1749,14,50,000	1,00,000	1749,15,50,000			
4	Repairs and Maintenance of	e of companing suc	h profits	ate provisions			
	Permanent Way and Works	3252,97,94,000	ittet 2,10,000	3253,00,04,000			
5	Repairs and Maintenance of	value of the block		yers" had been ;			
i ligat.	Motive Power	1669,19,65,000	50,000	1669,20,15,000			
6	Repairs and Maintenance of	reservernis Cha	March 112 (12) (13) New Committee				
	Carriages and Wagons	3460,62,34,000		3460,62,34,000			
e . 7	Repairs and Maintenance of	1866,15,67,000	which has said his	1066 15 67 000			
	Plant and Equipment	1800,15,07,000	es de lance	1866,15,67,000			
8	Operating Expenses — Rolling Stock and Equipment	2834,22,21,000	Makanad yans	2834,22,21,000			
9	Operating Expenses — Traffic	7122,01,28,000	mirkiboloni	7122,01,28,000			
10	Operating Expenses — Fuel	8276,42,74,000	AND FRANKS SIDE	8276,42,74,000			
11	Staff Welfare and Amenities	1379,83,85,000	2,95,000	1379,86,80,000			
0.4700		A MONTH OF THE	Second and the second	Appropriation ()			
12	Miscellaneous Working Expenses	1712,47,00,000	35,82,09,000	1748,29,09,000			
13	Provident Fund, Pension and		the selection of the	se the mayber.			
. 8(3)	Other Retirement Benefits	6459,53,42,000	66,04,000	6460,19,46,000			
14	Appropriation to Funds	10140,00,00,000	1 (MASSA (BV) 1	10140,00,00,000			
15	Dividend to General Revenues	the same of the third of the terms					
hoss	Repayment of loans taken	frace boat shirt as	Hy had a coldina	100 A 60 F 10 C 10 C			
1 815-89	from General Revenues and	ios habaltovious.	ad Santa at A of A	velativiti in namet			
	Amortization of Over-	2652 24 00 000	edi il e bistare	265274.00.000			
	Capitalisation	3652,74,00,000	i resployer 💯 🖽	3652,74,00,000			
16	Assets—Acquisition, Construction and Replacement—	iterika terripat da	Printed by the state of	Parking to be the			
	Revenue	35,00,00,000	n dajno. es	35,00,00,000			
	Other Expenditure	ith consisting on t	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	32,00,00,000			
		19875,92,83,000	8,00,00,000	19883,92,83,000			
	Capital	3519,30,00,000	1,00,00,000				
		401,00,00,000		401,00,00,000			
	Railway Safety Fund	3383,90,00,000	1,00,00,000				
• :	Special Railway Safety Fund	W 3 (A 12)					
	TOTAL	81119,52,43,000	46,54,68,000	81166,07,11,000			

Chargeable gains from transfer or tournage tax assets.

from a tradiprotistive of section (%) and properties and properties

segger man our gage to the applicant:

an no orner hinder change (ii) shall be passore indeed one angle. multing opportunity of living heard, a

THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PARTY OF

alla matricki se sepakarajni is vera samma zamnik pamikana alamata pejes i a sa sa sa sa to be the manufactor of the control of the control

America Committee of the control of

than gingung de riberge the symptom steam colori har der l

THE APPROPRIATION (No. 3) ACT, 2004

महामामान्यके, तुर्व अने हेर्मिकारको तक भी जिल्लाहरू है जिल्ला है जो के विकास की देश महामार्थ में देशकी है सकी

[3rd September, 2004.]

An Act to authorise payment and appropriation of certain sums from and out of the Consolidated Fund of India for the services of the financial year 2004-05.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fifth Year of the Republic of India The Affine the term of the section of the section of as follows:--

1. This Act may be called the Appropriation (No. 3) Act, 2004.

Short title. Issue of Rs.

2. From and out of the Consolidated Fund of India there may be paid and applied sums not exceeding those specified in column 3 of the Schedule amounting in the aggregate [inclusive of the sums specified in column 3 of the Schedule to the Appropriation (Vote on Account) No. 2 Act, 2004] to the sum of eight lakh sixty-one thousand six hundred and seventy-eight crores and forty-six lakh rupees towards defraying the several charges which will come in course of payment during the financial year 2004-05 in respect of the services specified in column 2 of the Schedule.

861678,46,00,000 out of the Consolidated Fund of India for the year

2004-05.

3. The sums authorised to be paid and applied from and out of the Consolidated Fund Appropriation. of India by this Act shall be appropriated for the services and purposes expressed in the 的现在分词 电影 IN THE DESIGNATION BRANCES AND STORY Schedule in relation to the said year.

4. References to Ministries or Departments in the Schedule are to such Ministries or Departments as existing immediately before the 9th June, 2004 and shall, on or after that date, be construed as references to the appropriate Ministries or Departments as reconstituted from time to time. 

1000

and the property of the second se

a virtugat staid valo torradore a visa y selector projection. Abso-

and the state of the contract of the state o

And the second of the top and the top and the second of th

. " Provided " จัดเลขานี้สู่เพื่อเลขานั้นแล้วสู่เหลือ เจอเลย ( ค.ศ. 1966) ( ค.ศ. 1966) ( ค.ศ. 1966) ( ค.ศ. 19 departured the S. C. profit and real deposit such this hard held in the second sector of

Thresial for the considerate of the reserve to a second of the second of

Construction of references to Ministries and Departments in the Schedule.

20 of 2004.

596, erubb + 68

000,000,000

(xhjëditi)

oco es de si BUSHINGE CO

CAR THERE

1911, 85.50

SHE'S COLD

فالإخاصاء التراسية

Maria Salaina

essential assets

09000401-0,4863

300,500F. N. MRROOFF IF.

elva elegant in tea

CALLEGE SERVE (a)(0.94); v(d

LEMMING - TO

may new for a second process for a heart of

. For a higher monadescode la des

And the transfer of the suppose of t

Markis B.S.S. F. 18

2004-00-00 19.00.00

(7.5.44. 35E

0.000,00

bar vice.

THE SCHEDULE (See sections 2, 3 and 4)

_	2			3	
				Sums not exceeding	
	Services and purposes		Voted by Parliament	Charged on the Consolidated Fund	Tota
1			Rs.	Rs.	R
1	Department of Agriculture and Cooperation	Revenue	2782,77,00,000		2782,77,00,00
,	Department of Agriculture and Cooperation	Capital	94,73,00,000	136,50,00,000	231,23,00,00
ĺ	Department of Agricultural Research and Education .	. Revenue	1753,31,00,000	150,50,00,000	1753,31,00,00
-	Department of Animal Husbandry and Dairying	Revenue	712,77,00,000		712,77,00,00
1	Department of Familian Franchistry and Dailying	Capital	13,91,00,000		13,91,00,00
	Ministry of Agro and Rural Industries	. Revenue	860,02,00,000		860,02,00,00
ĺ		Capital	1,61,00,000		1,61,00,00
-	Atomic Energy	Revenue	1811,39,00,000	20,00,000	1811,59,00,00
1		Capital	1531,18,00,000		1531,18,00,0
. -	Nuclear Power Schemes	. Revenue	1313,01,00,000		1313,01,00,0
1		Capital	2257,62,00,000		2257,62,00,0
1	Department of Chemicals and Petrochemicals	Revenue	82,72,00,000		82,72,00,0
1		Capital	41,67,00,000		41,67,00,0
	Department of Fertilisers	. Revenue	13162,19,00,000	1,00,000	13162,20,00,0
		Capital	131,97,00,000		131,97,00,0
١	Ministry of Civil Aviation	Revenue	242,09,00,000	attividation (1911)	242,09,00,0
		Capital	45,05,00,000		45,05,00,0
	Department of Coal	Revenue	319,82,00,000	Paraosas regil	319,82,00,0
ľ		Capital	128,50,00,000	. Landiditi	128,50,00,0
4	Department of Mines	. Revenue	476,63,00,000	10,00,000	476,73,00,0
1	化酶酶酶 医二甲酚 化电子电子 可规则已成为底土	Capital	72,27,00,000	Sparta Symples	72,27,00,0
١	Department of Commerce	Revenue	1812,93,00,000	40,00,000	1813,33,00,0
. J:	마다 아이라면 하는 사람들이 되었다. 2016년 전 1일 전 1	Capital	526,00,00,000		526,00,00,0
T	Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion	Revenue	- 581,30,00,000	25,00,000	581,55,00,0
.,		Capital	19,10,00,000	ปลา พัทธ์ในสาทักสารสำรัส	19,10,00,0
1	Department of Posts	. Revenue	6030,35,00,000	2,00,000	6030,37,00,0
		Capital	178,74,00,000		178,74,00,0
1	Department of Telecommunications	. Revenue	2331,24,00,000	List of Alberth (** 7 september 2)	2331,24,00,0
١	- January - storemental of tables in all significant	Capital	509,00,00,000	a है। अहा एं अंधार्थ अंधार (संकार्य )	509,00,00,0
I	Department of Information Technology	. Revenue	737,00,00,000	A. Simer L. M. Battle	737,00,00,0
1	and the second and the second of the second of the second	Capital	49,50,00,000		49,50,00,0
ŧ.:	Ministry of Company Affairs	. Revenue	54,50,00,000	Tation Committee	54,50,00,0
:	·····································	Capital	3,00,00,000	[1] [[A] 24 [[] [[] [] []	3,00,00,0
J	Department of Consumer Affairs	. Revenue	41,34,00,000	tal alabasa y labiya	41,34,00,0
1		Capital	9,46,00,000		9,46,00,0
4	Department of Food and Public Distribution	. Revenue	26628,59,00,000	2,00,000	26628,61,00,0
3	THE PERSON AND ASSOCIATION OF THE PROPERTY OF THE	Capital	472,22,00,000	gickika), de atambraci	472,22,00,0
1	Ministry of Culture	Revenue	667,33,00,000	area bomisano suces	667,33,00,0
1		Capital	45,50,00,000	The state of the end.	45,50,00,0
-	Ministry of Defence	. Revenue	5612,28,00,000	26,00,000	5612,54,00,0
1		Capital	435,82,00,000		435,82,00,0
1	Defence Pensions	. Revenue	11249,74,00,000	26,00,000	11250,00,00,0
1	Defence Services — Army	. Revenue	28629,07,00,000	13,92,00,000	28642,99,00,0
Ì	Defence Services — Navy	. Revenue	5375,20,00,000	2,43,00,000	5377,63,00,0
1	Defence Services — Air Force	. Revenue	8645,57,00,000	1,23,00,000	8646,80,00,0
Ί	Defence Ordnance Factories	. Revenue	943,54,00,000	1,20,00,000	944,74,00,0
ĺ	Defence Services — Research and Development	. Revenue	2352,94,00,000	22,00,000	2353,16,00,0
. I.	Capital Outlay on Defence Services	Capital	33472,99,00,000	9,86,00,000	33482,85,00,0
	Ministry of Development of North Eastern Region :	. Revenue	1038,56,00,000		1038,56,00,0
1		Capital	57,64,00,000	98,50,00,000	156,14,00,0
-	Ministry of Environment and Forests	. Revenue	1284,46,00,000		1284,46,00,0
		Capital	16,75,00,000	• • •	16,75,00,0
	Ministry of External Affairs	. Revenue	3264,03,00,000	3,00,000	3264,06,00,0
		Capital	376,63,00,000		376,63,00,0
1	Department of Economic Affairs	. Revenue	2561,16,00,000		2561,16,00,0
.		Capital	1542,76,00,000		1542,76,00,0
	Currency, Coinage and Stamps	. Revenue	933,82,00,000	63,00,000	934,45,00,0
		Capital	491,50,00,000	•••	491,50,00,0
	Payments to Financial Institutions	. Revenue	3515,41,00,000		3515,41,00,0
		Capital	9209,13,00,000		9209,13,00,0

о.				Sums not exceeding	
ote	Services and purposes	. '	Voted by Parliament	Charged on the Consolidated Fund	Total
			Rs.	Rs.	Rs.
	CHARGED.—Interest Payments	Revenue		133499,86,00,000	133499,86,00,000
	Transfers to State and Union territory Governments	Revenue	26809,55,00,000	16620,00,00,000	43429,55,00,000
.7		Capital		26767,92,00,000	26767,92,00,000
1 1	Loans to Government Servants, etc.	Capital	600,00,00,000		600,00,00,000
1,	CHARGED.—Repayment of Debt	Capital	11.00	342119,51,00,000	342119,51,00,000
73	Department of Expenditure	Revenue	26,62,00,000	Secretary Section (1)	26,62,00,000
3	Pensions	Revenue	4697,96,00,000	13,84,00,000	4711,80,00,000
1.	Indian Audit and Accounts Department	Revenue	1058,54,00,000	31,64,00,000	1090,18,00,000
\$.: 3	Department of Revenue	Capital Revenue	11,00,00,000 391,62,00,000	2,00,000	11,00,00,000 391,64,00,000
	COLUMN TO REVOIDE	Capital	5,05,00,000	2,00,000	5,05,00,000
٠,	Direct Taxes	Revenue	1145,96,00,000	2,00,000	1145,98,00,000
-7,		Capital	102,00,00,000		102,00,00,000
	Indirect Taxes	Revenue	1262,10,00,000	1,00,00,000	1263,10,00,000
3	Service Control of the Control of th	Capital	198,83,00,000		198,83,00,000
1	Department of Disinvestment	Revenue	55,00,00,000		55,00,00,000
	Ministry of Food Processing Industries	Revenue	115,68,00,000	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	115,68,00,000
- 2	Department of Health	Revenue Capital	2747,42,00,000 355,70,00,000	สดาสารไป เสียนซี สี	2747,42,00,000
1	Department of Ayurveda, Yoga and Naturopathy	Revenue	225,22,00,000	••	355,70,00,000 225,22,00,000
	Unani, Siddha and Homoeopathy (AYUSH)	Capital	51,00,000	na palika miji	51,00,000
Ž,	Department of Family Welfare	Revenue	6696,37,00,000	l	6696,37,00,000
è	Department of Heavy Industry	Revenue	159,87,00,000	3 , 23%	159,87,00,000
Ì	Stag (Stagle Group) — — Stagle St Frank Brown Brown Stagle S	Capital	471,13,00,000	si saati go Sasienis	471,13,00,000
	Department of Public Enterprises	Revenue	32,65,00,000		32,65,00,000
	Ministry of Home Affairs	Revenue	707,21,00,000	5,00,000	707,26,00,000
4	September 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Capital	28,05,00,000	£ 00 000	28,05,00,000
	Cabinet Company Compan	Revenue   Capital	163,04,00,000 1,00,00,000	6,00,000	163,10,00,000
		Revenue	10908,40,00,000	3,30,00,000	1,00,00,000
		Capital	1501,95,00,000	17,35,00,000	1519,30,00,000
	Other Expenditure of the Ministry of Home Affairs.	Revenue	756,38,00,000	2,00,000	756,40,00,000
	Transfers to Union territory Governments	Revenue	607,03,00,000	, zhasiai mein.	607,03,00,000
		Capital	408,97,00,000		408,97,00,000
	Department of Elementary Education and Literacy Department of Secondary Education and Higher Education	Revenue Revenue	6004,68,00,000	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	6004,68,00,000
	Department of Secondary Education and Higher Education	Capital	5057,38,00,000	19	5057,38,00,000
	Department of Women and Child Development	Revenue	2454,19,00,000	1877, 5513	2454,19,00,000
	Ministry of Information and Broadcasting	Revenue	1263,35,00,000	3,00,000	1263,38,00,000
	96 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	Capital	250,86,00,000		250,86,00,000
	Ministry of Labour and Employment	Revenue	1045,71,00,000	2,00,000	1045,73,00,000
		Capital	6,00,000	has armorati ma	6,00,000
	Election Commission	Revenue	11,50,00,000	33. 53.86.486.869	11,50,00,000
	Law, and Justice . Dephases to	Revenue	1361,70,00,000		1361,70,00,000
	CHARGED —Supreme Court of India .	Capital Revenue	1,02,00,000	34,68,00,000	1,02,00,000
	Ministry of Non-Conventional Energy Sources	Revenue	509,23,00,000	34,00,00,000	34,68,00,000 509,23,00,000
		Capital	96,04,00,000	e sveri en avante entimetis	96,04,00,000
	Ministry of Non Resident Indians Affairs	Revenue	6,00,00,000	•••	6,00,00,000
	Not the second s	Capital	1,00,00,000	a name	
	Ministry of Panchayati Raj	Revenue	31,04,00,000	·	31,04,00,000
	Department of Ocean Development	Revenue	229,08,00,000	े विश्वेद कर है कि को कि	
	Addition of Declinementary Affairs	Capital	1,00,00,000		1,00,00,000
	Ministry of Parliamentary Affairs  Ministry of Personnel, Public Grievances and Pensions.	Revenue Revenue	5,89,00,000 251,72,00,000	8,00,000	and the first of the second control of the
	winistry of reisonner, rubble offevalices and relisions.	Capital	7,15,00,000	9,00,00,000	251,80,00,000 16,15,00,000
	Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas	Revenue	3573,42,00,000	9,00,00,000	3573,42,00,000
	Ministry of Planning	Revenue	6446,88,00,000		6446,88,00,000
		Capital	1823,00,00,000	1861,00,00,000	3684,00,00,000
	Ministry of Power	Revenue	2103,87,00,000		2103,87,00,000
	the state of the s	Capital	2637,60,00,000		2637, 60,00,000

99. Æ

Y )							
0.	A CONTRACTOR OF THE CONTRACTOR			Sums not exceeding			
ote	Services and purposes	1.136v 1.136v 1.100v		Voted by Parliament	Charged on the Consolidated Fund	Tota	
	<i>i</i>			Rs.	Rs.	Rs	
- 3	CHARGED.—Staff, Household and Allowances					1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	
- 1	of the President		Revenue		15,08,00,000	15,08,00,000	
5			Revenue	202,80,00,000	40,00,000	203,20,00,000	
6	Rajya Sabha		Revenue	89,91,00,000	20,00,000	90,11,00,000	
् 8 ु	CHARGED.—Union Public Service Commission Secretariat of the Vice-President		Revenue Revenue	3,11,00,000	52,00,00,000	52,00,00,000	
° (	Ministry of Road Transport and Highways		Revenue	5375,75,00,000	40,00,000	3,11,00,000 5376,15,00,000	
,	avinistry of toad transport and fright ways	[* •f] · i• · · · · ·	Capital	7232,95,00,000	5,40,00,000	7238,35,00,000	
οil	Department of Rural Development	/*	Revenue	13598,96,00,000	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	13598,96,00,000	
		total	Capital	5,00,00,000		5,00,00,000	
1	Department of Land Resources	rituality of the	Revenue	1264,48,00,000		1264,48,00,000	
2	Department of Drinking Water Supply		Revenue	3301,39,00,000		3301,39,00,000	
3	Department of Science and Technology		Revenue	1219,51,00,000	2,00,000	1219,53,00,000	
۱ ۱		4_ <b>1</b> _	Capital	70,70,00,000	••	70,70,00,000	
4	Department of Scientific and Industrial Resea	ren	Revenue Capital	1295,90,00,000 4,10,00,000	• •	1295,90,00,000	
5	Service Services Control of the Cont	9.201.2	Revenue	323,45,00,000	Contraction and	4,10,00,000 323,45,00,000	
6			Revenue	570,55,00,000	and the second of the	570,55,00,000	
•		1. No. 14 Con.	Capital	307,63,00,000	20,00,00,000	327,63,00,000	
7	Ministry of Small Scale Industries	10 kV0.50 & 654 ·	Revenue	399,40,00,000		399,40,00,000	
,	re ha to see	warden in the contract	Capital	15,00,00,000	e en estre polici respecti	15,00,00,000	
8	Ministry of Social Justice and Empowerment	2-10.3.5 · · ·	Revenue	1377,26,00,000	Company of the second	1377,26,00,000	
	inavioreus. Ina∆ antivid ubolicaa	Water Stranger	Capital	179,75,00,000	16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 1	179,75,00,000	
9	Department of Space		Revenue	2166,94,00,000	38,00,000	2167,32,00,000	
0	Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implem	12.739	Capital	564,34,00,000 1834,87,00,000	35,00,000	564,69,00,000	
U 1	Ministry of Statistics and Programme implem	entation	Revenue Capital	20,84,00,000	Listan vertice to the fa	1834,87,00,000	
1	Ministry of Steel	0.000,385,000	Revenue	91,65,00,000		20,84,00,000 91,65,00,000	
•	in the state of th	ji) 94,86 9 G	Capital	88,89,00,000		88,89,00,000	
2	Province and the second	6.00 A4 C3).	Revenue	1325,93,00,000		1325,93,00,000	
_		91 (89.80) 1	Capital	454,68,00,000	70,00,000	455,38,00,000	
3	Ministry of Tourism	00-0000 8000	Revenue	227,24,00,000		227,24,00,000	
	ASSESSED TO SEE SEED OF SEED SEEDS	ok o Ot. Hett	Capital	314,50,00,000		314,50,00,000	
94	Ministry of Tribal Affairs	or extract to the	Revenue	138,32,00,000	970,43,00,000	1108,75,00,000	
	THE OR SELECTION AND ADDRESS OF THE OWNER OWN	artickation a	Capital	50,26,00,000	3. 3. 7 5. 7 5. 4 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	50,26,00,000	
)5		Odry. (y lubery	Revenue Capital	906,98,00,000 208,32,00,000	1,00,000	906,99,00,000	
6		C6.0028 1,54024	Revenue	902,43,00,000	30,93,00,000	208,32,00,000	
U	100.30.30.700	55 JEW 1857	Capital	152,35,00,000	25,00,000	933,36,00,000 152,60,00,000	
7	Dadra and Nagar Haveli	Caysal A. J. J. J.	Revenue	453,82,00,000	25,00,000	453,82,00,000	
	XELAGRISANS L	wajoo 61, 33 K	Capital	35,49,00,000		35,49,00,000	
8		8.9.30.12.54C	Revenue	247,50,00,000		247,50,00,000	
	GARCARCARCUPE 1 1 1	my Spanie	Capital	29,80,00,000		29,80,00,000	
9		1015 C. P. P. P.	Revenue	218,66,00,000	and water the	218,66,00,000	
-		BUSTES CO	Capital	38,03,00,000		38,03,00,000	
00		Mile Ble Donkin .	Revenue	954,35,00,000	22,06,00,000 as	976,41,00,000	
01		Projec (\$5, 10) - 1	Capital Revenue	835,92,00,000 688,40,00,000	9,00,00,000	844,92,00,000	
01	Thore works	W (338)	Capital	240,49,00,000	1,00,00,000	689,40,00,000	
102	Stationery and Printing		Revenue	147,05,00,000	1 120,000 100	147,05,00,000	
-	HOOLOGE \$ 2000	DARWELL AS	Capital	20,00,000	A	20,00,000	
03	Ministry of Urban Employment and Poverty	Alleviation	Revenue	530,13,00,000	1. 161 4 104 104	530,13,00,000	
		(K) (65 66,4	Capital	311,55,00,000	71.4 4.6388	311,55,00,000	
04		099.00 - 1	Revenue	793,38,00,000	ingli a	793,38,00,000	
0.5	I 9399 07 11 € 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 1	Withdo, on FE	Capital	57,48,00,000	3,50,00,000	60,98,00,000	
05	The state of the s	hidas (Albania (CS))	Revenue	451,76,00,000	, अक्ट्रानिवर्षकर्ष्य क्राह्म	451,76,00,000	
	Land Appendix 1 1 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1	(400) (40 (40) 1	Capital	14,24,00,000		14,24,00,000	
	S711 1 1/20 (1) 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	PREMISSION TO		339299,91,00,000	52237,8,55,00,000	861678,46,00,000	
		000,00,00,00,103	2000 (100)		CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR	22.1 2.1 5 5 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
	The state of the s	8000,081,531,5 1000,081,531,5	()		. Will them fill Fisher	di waten nama	
	A STATE OF THE STA	180 00 CA (10 00 1)	TRÆSKAN TILLLING			ar en i Languaga (A. 1927). Ar en i Languaga (A. 1927).	
		00/200,85,0450 00/20100,4387	ingsvik Might		1 (C)	er make terrifin (1669)	
		1301					

# THE FINANCE (No. 2) Act, 2004

# ARRANGEMENT OF SECTIONS

		CER-III Application of the supplied of the second
<i>i</i> .	Prelimi	INARY 1 government / wich see the
SECTIONS		gravitation (Distribution) is a first of the
. 1.	Short title and commencement.	and subject to the telephone of the
	CHAPT	TTTTTTT
	RATES OF IN	COME-TAX
2.	Income-tax.	ER III gajauni in da nobeomia (189
	CHAPT	Taxes
	DIRECT	Taxes
		e-tax (Et auf 1949) o Promotion (K. 3)
	Amendment of section 2.	As a secret can at any case of As
6	Amendment of section 7.	इत्हर का मार्ग्यात क्रांत्रकार के विके
	Amendment of section 10.	44. Amendament of mount 203,
	Amendment of section 12AA.	63. Substitution of year rection for se
	Amendment of section 17.	, 2 Kills, nather which balliprist 1985
	Amendment of section 32.	M. semicinous of section of
	Amendment of section 33AC.	48. Vinencison of an 205.
	Amendment of section 35AC.	49. Anyopined of social 206,
	Amendment of section 40.	200 Automobile de la 1800 de la 2000 de la 1800 de la 1
	Amendment of section 48.	P. Me codern to marketing it
	Amendment of section 56.	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *
	Amendment of section 71.	The Amendrophy of about a Make
	Insertion of new section 80CCD.	Non-Canondalest of second 2 may.
	Amendment of section 80DD.	SAS sederada manbahmA DR
	Amendment of section 80-IA.	Assiste indicarregal in addition of the second
	Amendment of section 80-IB.	56. Alaskedikslik of seeks a 1920.
	Amendment of section 80U.  Amendment of section 87.	57. Assuradiojas, od i.o., dan 2228.
	Amendment of section 88.	Sa Amondarit of position 2775 the
	Insertion of new section 88D.	the superstances of no deep 2 1922
	Insertion of new section 88E.	Je. 180 Prior of action (2019) 277A
	Amendment of section 90.	in. Amendment of the test of the
	Amendment of section 94.	62. Amado, a criscopos 279.
	Value 2 11	derived many was read formed to serie
	Amendment of section 115AB.  Amendment of section 115JB.	54. Amenyment of Yahrseath Schodale:
	Amendment of section 115D	Weekling
29.	THIS HOUSE OF SOCIOIL LINE	18. Assembled of wellow 15HA of Age

transportation w

RESIDENCE CONTRACTOR

. ใช่ ค.ศ. ซึ่งเกมี ในปฏิเภณ แกรมละใช้

in grand the suggest wi

al des marche for familia and f

golden molden film ligendament.

STEE CALL GARDES STEELS

· 1788 和张·斯·斯·斯·斯·斯

LES exercic continues in the species

Dr Kenner Com Branch

Associated of a discussion

MEN misses to combine to

#211 partime in new discussion dis

to de la decada de la filosofie de la fil

The supplies to severely the series

#### SECTIONS

- 30. Insertion of new section XII-G.
- 31. Amendment of section 119.
- 32. Amendment of section 139.
- 33. Amendment of section 139A.
- 34. Insertion of new section 142A.
- 35. Amendment of section 153.
- 36. Amendment of section 153B.
- 37. Amendment of section 194C.
- 38. Insertion of new section 194LA.
- 39. Amendment of section 197,
- 40. Amendment of section 198.
- 41. Amendment of section 199.
- 42. Amendment of section 200.
- 43. Amendment of section 202.
- 44. Amendment of section 203.
- 45. Substitution of new section for section 203A.
- 46. Insertion of new section 203AA.
- 47. Amendment of section 204.
- 48. Amendment of section 205.
- 49. Amendment of section 206.
- 50. Amendment of section 206C.
- 51. Amendment of section 206CA.
- 52. Amendment of section 245RR.
- 53. Amendment of section 246A.
- 54. Amendment of section 253.
- 55. Insertion of new section 271FA.
- 56. Amendment of section 272A.
- 57. Amendment of section 272B.
- 58. Amendment of section 272BBB.
- 59. Amendment of section 273B.
- 60. Insertion of new section 277A.
- 61. Amendment of section 278B.
- 62. Amendment of section 279.
- 63. Substitution of new section for section 258BA.
- 64. Amendment of Thirteenth Schedule.

### Wealth-tax

65. Amendment of section 35HA of Act 27 of 1957.

### SECTIONS

#### **CHAPTER IV**

### Indirect Taxes

#### Customs

- 66. Amendment of section 41.
- 67. Insertion of new section 122A.
- 68. Amendment of section 128.
- 69. Amendment of section 129A.
- 70. Amendment of section 129B.
- 71. Amendment of section 137.
- 72. Amendment of section 142. Additional and the results of the matter of the section 142.
- 73. Amendment of section 156. and you will the transfer of the
- 74. Validation of certain actions taken by Central Excise Officers.

# Customs Tariff and a state of the state of the

- 75. Amendment of section 3. aggreg protects of the control of the control of the
- 77. Amendment of section 9C.) நாரவர் நாகி இரை கொண்டிருக்கு விறிப்பு கிறியிருக்கு விறியிருக்கு வ
- 78. Amendment of First Schedule.

# Excise ingestions and violence of the latest and

Ambierto Visia Berginias can Bangari (14)

AND THE CANADA SECTION OF SECTION

- 79. Amendment of section 9A.
- 80. Amendment of section 11.
- 81. Insertion of new section 33Å.
- 82. Amendment of section 35. AMARIAN STRANGE
- 83. Amendment of section 35B.
- 84. Amendment of section 35C.
- 85. Amendment of section 37.
- 86. Amendment of Third Schedule.
- 87. Validation of certain actions taken by officers of customs.
- 88. Amendment of the CENVAT Credit Rules, 2002.

### Central Excise Tariff

89. Amendment of First Schedule to Act 5 to 1986.

### CHAPTER V

SERVICE TAX

90. Amendment of Act 32 of 1994.

### CHAPTER VI

### **EDUCATION CESS**

- 91. Education Cess.
- 92. Definition.
- 93. Education Cess on excisable goods.
- 94. Education Cess on imported goods.
- 95. Education Cess on taxable services.

SECTIONS

## CHAPTER VII

102. Assessment.  103. Rectification of mistake.  104. Interest on delayed payment of securities transaction tax.  105. Penalty for failure to collect or pay securities transaction tax.  106. Penalty for failure to furnish prescribed return.  107. Penalty for failure to comply with notice.  108. Penalty not to be imposed in certain cases.  109. Application of certain provisions of Act 43 of 1961. To include the failure to Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals). To include the failure to the Appellate Tribunal.  110. Appeals to the Appellate Tribunal.  111. False statement in verification, etc.  113. Institution of proceedings.  114. Power to make rules.  115. Power to remove difficulties.  CHAPTER VIII at the failure to comply with notice.  CHAPTER VIII at the failure to comply with notice.  Miscellaneous.	
98. Charge of securities transaction tax.  99. Value of taxable securities transaction.  100. Collection and recovery of securities transaction tax.  101. Recognised stock exchange or Mutual Fund to furnish prescribed return 102. Assessment.  103. Rectification of mistake.  104. Interest on delayed payment of securities transaction tax.  105. Penalty for failure to collect or pay securities transaction tax.  106. Penalty for failure to furnish prescribed return.  107. Penalty for failure to comply with notice.  108. Penalty not to be imposed in certain cases.  109. Appellate Tribunal.  110. Appeals to Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals).  111. Appeals to the Appellate Tribunal.  112. False statement in verification, etc.  113. Institution of proceedings.  114. Power to make rules.  CHAPTER VIII	
99. Value of taxable securities transaction.  100. Collection and recovery of securities transaction tax.  101. Recognised stock exchange or Mutual Fund to furnish prescribed return 102. Assessment.  103. Rectification of mistake.  104. Interest on delayed payment of securities transaction tax.  105. Penalty for failure to collect or pay securities transaction tax.  106. Penalty for failure to furnish prescribed return.  107. Penalty for failure to comply with notice.  108. Penalty not to be imposed in certain cases.  109. Appeals to Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals).  110. Appeals to the Appellate Tribunal.  111. Appeals to the Appellate Tribunal.  112. False statement in verification, etc.  113. Institution of proceedings.  114. Power to make rules.  115. Power to remove difficulties.  CHAPTER VIII	
100. Collection and recovery of securities transaction tax.  101. Recognised stock exchange or Mutual Fund to furnish prescribed return  102. Assessment.  103. Rectification of mistake.  104. Interest on delayed payment of securities transaction tax.  105. Penalty for failure to collect or pay securities transaction tax.  106. Penalty for failure to furnish prescribed return  107. Penalty for failure to comply with notice.  108. Penalty not to be imposed in certain cases.  109. Application of certain provisions of Act 43 of 1961.  110. Appeals to Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals).  111. Appeals to the Appellate Tribunal.  112. False statement in verification, etc.  113. Institution of proceedings.  114. Power to make rules.  115. Power to remove difficulties.  CHAPTER VIII  Miscellaneous.  116. Amendment of Act 5 of 1873.	
100. Collection and recovery of securities transaction tax.  101. Recognised stock exchange or Mutual Fund to furnish prescribed return  102. Assessment.  103. Rectification of mistake.  104. Interest on delayed payment of securities transaction tax.  105. Penalty for failure to collect or pay securities transaction tax.  106. Penalty for failure to furnish prescribed return  107. Penalty for failure to comply with notice.  108. Penalty not to be imposed in certain cases.  109. Application of certain provisions of Act 43 of 1961.  110. Appeals to Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals).  111. Appeals to the Appellate Tribunal.  112. False statement in verification, etc.  113. Institution of proceedings.  114. Power to make rules.  115. Power to remove difficulties.  CHAPTER VIII  Miscellaneous.  116. Amendment of Act 5 of 1873.	
101. Recognised stock exchange or Mutual Fund to furnish prescribed return 102. Assessment.  103. Rectification of mistake.  104. Interest on delayed payment of securities transaction tax.  105. Penalty for failure to collect or pay securities transaction tax.  106. Penalty for failure to furnish prescribed return.  107. Penalty for failure to comply with notice.  108. Penalty not to be imposed in certain cases.  109. Application of certain provisions of Act 43 of 1961.  110. Appeals to Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals).  111. Appeals to the Appellate Tribunal.  112. False statement in verification, etc.  113. Institution of proceedings.  114. Power to make rules.  115. Power to remove difficulties.  CHAPTER VIII  Miscellaneous.  116. Amendment of Act 5 of 1873.	
103. Rectification of mistake.  104. Interest on delayed payment of securities transaction tax.  105. Penalty for failure to collect or pay securities transaction tax.  106. Penalty for failure to furnish prescribed return.  107. Penalty for failure to comply with notice.  108. Penalty not to be imposed in certain cases.  109. Application of certain provisions of Act 43 of 1961.  100. Appeals to Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals).  110. Appeals to the Appellate Tribunal.  111. False statement in verification, etc.  113. Institution of proceedings.  114. Power to make rules.  115. Power to remove difficulties.  CHAPTER VIII	
104. Interest on delayed payment of securities transaction tax.  105. Penalty for failure to collect or pay securities transaction tax.  106. Penalty for failure to furnish prescribed return.  107. Penalty for failure to comply with notice:  108. Penalty not to be imposed in certain cases.  109. Application of certain provisions of Act 43 of 1961.  100. Appeals to Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals).  110. Appeals to the Appellate Tribunal.  111. Palse statement in verification, etc.  113. Institution of proceedings.  114. Power to make rules.  115. Power to remove difficulties.  CHAPTER VIII  Miscellaneous  Miscellaneous  Miscellaneous  Amendment of Act 5 of 1873.	
105. Penalty for failure to collect or pay securities transaction tax.  106. Penalty for failure to furnish prescribed return.  107. Penalty for failure to comply with notice.  108. Penalty not to be imposed in certain cases.  109. Application of certain provisions of Act 43 of 1961.  100. Appeals to Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals).  101. Appeals to the Appellate Tribunal.  112. False statement in verification, etc.  113. Institution of proceedings.  114. Power to make rules.  115. Power to remove difficulties.  CHAPTER VIII  MISCELLANEOUS  MISCELLANEOUS  MISCELLANEOUS  MISCELLANEOUS  According to the Appeal of the process	
106. Penalty for failure to furnish prescribed return.  107. Penalty for failure to comply with notice.  108. Penalty not to be imposed in certain cases.  109. Application of certain provisions of Act 43 of 1961.  110. Appeals to Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals).  111. Appeals to the Appellate Tribunal.  112. False statement in verification, etc.  113. Institution of proceedings.  114. Power to make rules.  115. Power to remove difficulties.  CHAPTER VIII of the proceedings of the processor	
107. Penalty for failure to comply with notice:  108. Penalty not to be imposed in certain cases.  109. Application of certain provisions of Act 43 of 1961 and a medical and Act 1961	
108. Penalty not to be imposed in certain cases.  109. Application of certain provisions of Act 43 of 1961: 10 in the first of the firs	
109. Application of certain provisions of Act 43 of 1961 and a substantial of Appeals to Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals). And appeals to the Appellate Tribunal.  111. Appeals to the Appellate Tribunal.  112. False statement in verification, etc.  113. Institution of proceedings.  114. Power to make rules.  115. Power to remove difficulties.  CHAPTER VIII and appeals to the Appellate Tribunal.  Miscellaneous and the Appeals of the Ap	
110. Appeals to Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals). A to describe the Appeals to the Appellate Tribunal.  111. Appeals to the Appellate Tribunal.  112. False statement in verification, etc.  113. Institution of proceedings.  114. Power to make rules.  115. Power to remove difficulties.  CHAPTER VIII of the Broad of the Appeals of th	
111. Appeals to the Appellate Tribunal.  112. False statement in verification, etc.  113. Institution of proceedings.  114. Power to make rules.  115. Power to remove difficulties.  CHAPTER VIII of the fidence of the proceedings.  Miscellaneous of the Appellate Tribunal.  Miscellaneous of the Appellate Tribunal.	
112. False statement in verification, etc.  113. Institution of proceedings.  114. Power to make rules.  115. Power to remove difficulties.  CHAPTER VIII of the Base to the architectual of Miscellaneous of the Make and the Miscellaneous of the Make and the Miscellaneous of the Misc	
113. Institution of proceedings.  114. Power to make rules.  115. Power to remove difficulties.  CHAPTER VIII of the block	
114. Power to make rules.  115. Power to remove difficulties.  CHAPTER VIII of the state of the	
115. Power to remove difficulties.  CHAPTER VIII of the British to the production of the Miscellaneous of the Production of the Miscellaneous of the Miscell	15.
CHAPTER VIII of the Blood to industriant A Miscellaneous Section of the Mi	er.
Miscellaneous gradient de membronaux.  116. Amendment of Act 5 of 1873.	1/2
116. Amendment of Act 5 of 1873.	7. + 3
Control of the second of the s	6.8
	h S
117. Amendment of Act 2 of 1899.	
118. Amendment of section 8. Spender & Marin To Hard Brown and a	Rei
119. Amendment of Chapter VI:	(3)
120. Amendment of section 4 of Act 39 of 2003.	88
121. Repeal of section 2 of Act 13 of 2004.	
THE FIRST SCHEDULE.	98
THE SECOND SCHEDULE, STATE AND STATE OF THE SECOND SCHEDULE, STATE	
Samuel and the state of the sta	7,7
. 4 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 -	
en e	
en de la companya de La companya de la companya del companya de la companya del companya de la companya	4 ( )
and the second of the second o	,
्रास्त्रकार स्वीतीय में का	
・ 「大学、大学、大学、大学、大学、大学、大学、大学、大学、大学、大学、大学、大学、大	. , ? ?
Standy decomposition of the control	.38 18.9

# THE FINANCE (No. 2) ACT, 2004 many satisfacts of the paragraphs of many and many and the first of

Company of the control of the property of the control of the control of the control of

in a support of the contract of the contract of the support of the contract of there in was really the state of the second state of the second state of Anthorney from a some comparation to differ the frame of more than a see of the sales of the

No. 23 of 2004 and and the house of the same of the sa

and a municipance of the enterior and a first the magnetic values and only a management to a setting and a setting and the control of the con Actions lead the company of a service to the [10th September, 2004.]

PROPERTURE SECTION HE STEPPING TO BEEN A MENT OF THE PROPERTY OF THE CONTRACT OF THE PROPERTY An Act to give effect to the financial proposals of the Central Government for the financial year 2004-2005. of the state of the state of the first

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fifth Year of the Republic of India as follows:such two parts take whether we of borregrees was growned a security of the first expension

# to the block of the contract of the contract CHAPTER Love and the contract of the Carlo Services. Low Processing to the transfer of the Alexander may not be the state of the Action of the Actions

#### PRELIMINARY

1. (1) This Act may be called the Finance (No. 2) Act, 2004. with conserved a trace publications shall be du boundaries the configure of a configure with

ARCH and loss school as 5, obligation of a figure of

DOMESTIC TO THE REPORT OF THE PARTY OF THE P

Short title and

(2) Save as otherwise provided in this Act, sections 2 to 65 shall be deemed to have come into force on the 1st day of April, 2004. anochiq is con unascogi masconnyonni istori, tennyoni in in in jipite tarini te, to unochnoj in tre meg mit te, ton no komponiponi, rediako jel sub vinal ke i bod bon. CHAPTERII benedati yili bog bodonit (dele menoch menoch istorial) en sisti i temponi care

commence ment.

#### RATES OF INCOME-TAX

and the case 🖈 every to exercite extract which will be a first cartes and the cartes and the cartes 2. (1) Subject to the provisions of sub-sections (2) and (3), for the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2004, income-tax shall be charged at the rates specified in Part I of the First Schedule and such tax as reduced by the rebate of income-tax calculated under Chapter VIII-A of the Income-tax Act, 1961 (hereinafter referred to as the Income-tax Act) shall be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated in each case in the manner provided therein. These box insqueria od on gast rat industrial arms of CA

Income-tax.

- (2) In the cases to which Paragraph A of Part I of the First Schedule applies, where the assessee has, in the previous year, any net agricultural income exceeding five thousand rupees, in addition to total income, and the total income exceeds fifty thousand rupees, then, the first first first and the colors of the first of the section of the section of the section of (c).
  - coasset, (961), and 1561 to be force commit study at the "rose to this relation to book as a final to enade (a) the net agricultural income shall be taken into account, in the manner provided in clause (b) [that is to say, as if the net agricultural income were comprised in the total income after the first fifty thousand rupees of the total income but without being liable to tax], only for the purpose of charging income-tax in respect of the total income; and

73

43 of 1961.

- (b) the income-tax chargeable shall be calculated as follows:—
- (i) the total income and the net agricultural income shall be aggregated and the amount of income-tax shall be determined in respect of the aggregate income at the rates specified in the said Paragraph A, as if such aggregate income were the total income;
- (ii) the net agricultural income shall be increased by a sum of fifty thousand rupees, and the amount of income-tax shall be determined in respect of the net agricultural income as so increased at the rates specified in the said Paragraph A, as if the net agricultural income as so increased were the total income;
- (iii) the amount of income-tax determined in accordance with sub-clause (i) shall be reduced by the amount of income-tax determined in accordance with sub-clause (ii) and the sum so arrived at shall be the income-tax in respect of the total income:

Provided that the amount of income-tax so arrived at, as reduced by the amount of rebate of income-tax calculated under Chapter VIII-A, shall be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated in each case in the manner provided in that Paragraph and the sum so arrived at shall be the income-tax in respect of the total income.

(3) In cases to which the provisions of Chapter XII or Chapter XII-A or section 115JB or sub-section (1A) of section 161 or section 164 or section 164A or section 167B of the Income-tax Act apply, the tax chargeable shall be determined as provided in that Chapter or that section, and with reference to the rates imposed by sub-section (1) or the rates as specified in that Chapter or section, as the case may be:

Provided that the amount of income-tax computed in accordance with the provisions of section 112 shall be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union as provided in Paragraph A, B, C, D or E, as the case may be, of Part I of the First Schedule:

Provided further that in respect of any income chargeable to tax under sections 115A, 115AB, 115AC, 115ACA, 115AD, 115B, 115BB, 115BBA, 115E and 115JB of the Income-tax Act, the amount of income-tax computed under this sub-section shall be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union, calculated,

- (a) in the case of every individual, Hindu undivided family, association of persons and body of individuals, whether incorporated or not, at the rate of ten per cent. of such income-tax where the total income exceeds eight hundred and fifty thousand rupees;
- (b) in the case of every co-operative society, firm, local authority and company, at the rate of two and one-half per cents of such income-tax;
- (c) in the case of every artificial juridical person referred to in sub-clause (vii) of clause (31) of section 2 of the Income-tax Act, at the rate of ten per cent. of such income-tax.
- (4) In cases in which tax has to be charged and paid under section 115-O or subsection (2) of section 115R of the Income-tax Act, the tax shall be charged and paid at the rate as specified in those sections and shall be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union, calculated at the rate of two and one-half per cent. of such tax.
- (5) In cases in which tax has to be deducted under sections 193, 194, 194A, 194B, 194BB, 194D and 195 of the Income-tax Act, at the rates in force, the deductions shall be made at the rates specified in Part II of the First Schedule and shall be increased, by a surcharge for

income view the item lifts throughout it pass of the rural incornation sylinged belief highle to tast, only the the purpose of charging inhancems in majory of the total licemain purposes of the Union, calculated in each case, in the manner provided therein.

- (6) In cases in which tax has to be deducted under sections 194C, 194E, 194EE, 194F, 194G, 194H, 194-I, 194J, 194LA, 196B, 196C and 196D of the Income-tax Act, the deductions shall be made at the rates specified in those sections and shall be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union, calculated,—
  - (a) in the case of every individual, Hindu undivided family, association of persons and body of individuals, whether incorporated or not, at the rate of ten per cent. of such tax where the income or the aggregate of such incomes paid or likely to be paid and subject to the deduction exceeds eight hundred and fifty thousand rupees;
  - (b) in the case of every co-operative society, firm, local authority and company, at the rate of two and one-half per cent. of such tax;
  - (c) in the case of every artificial juridical person referred to in sub-clause (vii) of clause (31) of section 2 of the Income-tax Act, at the rate of ten per cent. of such tax.
- (7) In cases in which tax has to be collected under the proviso to section 194B of the Income-tax Act, the collection shall be made at the rates specified in Part II of the First Schedule, and shall be increased, by a surcharge for purposes of the Union, calculated in the manner provided therein.
- (8) In cases in which tax has to be collected under section 206C of the Income-tax Act, the collection shall be made at the rates specified in that section and shall be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union, calculated,—
  - (a) in the case of every individual, Hindu undivided family, association of persons and body of individuals, whether incorporated or not, at the rate of ten per cent. of such tax where the amount or the aggregate of such amounts collected, and subject to the collection, exceeds eight hundred and fifty thousand rupees;
  - (b) in the case of every co-operative society, firm, local authority and company, at the rate of two and one-half per cent. of such tax;
    - (c) in the case of every artificial juridical person referred to in sub-clause (vii) of clause (3I) of section 2 of the Income-tax Act, at the rate of ten per cent. of such tax.
- (9) Subject to the provisions of sub-section (10), in cases in which income-tax has to be charged under sub-section (4) of section 172 or sub-section (2) of section 174 or section 174A or section 175 or sub-section (2) of section 176 of the Income-tax Act or deducted from, or paid on, income chargeable under the head "Salaries" under section 192 of the said Act or in which the "advance tax" payable under Chapter XVII-C of the said Act has to be computed at the rate or rates in force, such income-tax or, as the case may be, "advance tax" shall be so charged, deducted or computed at the rate or rates specified in Part III of the First Schedule and such tax as reduced by the rebate of income-tax calculated under Chapter VIII-A of the said Act shall be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union, calculated in each case in the manner provided therein:

Provided that in cases to which the provisions of Chapter XII or Chapter XII-A or section 115JB or sub-section (1A) of section 161 or section 164 or section 164A or section 167B of the Income-tax Act apply, "advance tax" shall be computed with reference to the rates imposed by this sub-section or the rates as specified in that Chapter or section, as the case may be:

Provided further that the amount of "advance tax" computed in accordance with the provisions of section 111A or section 112 of the Income-tax Act shall be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union as provided in Paragraph A, B, C, D or E, as the case may be, of Part III of the First Schedule:

Provided also that in respect of any income chargeable to tax under sections 115A, 115AB, 115AC, 115ACA, 115AD, 115B, 115BB, 115BBA, 115E and 115JB of the Income-tax Act, "advance tax" computed under the first proviso shall be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union, calculated,

- (a) in the case of every individual, Hindu undivided family, association of persons and body of individuals, whether incorporated or not, at the rate of ten per cent. of "advance tax" where the total income exceeds eight hundred and fifty thousand rupees;
- रेक अन्द्र भव्यू न (b) in the case of every co-operative society, firm, local authority and company, at the rate of two and one-half per cent. of such "advance tax";
  - (c) in the case of every artificial juridical person referred to in sub-clause (vii) of clause (31) of section 2 of the Income-tax Act, at the rate of ten per cent. of such l Awardan wydd o sisy cyfl fa "advance tax". 动物 建铁罐
- In cases to which, Paragraph A of Part III of the First Schedule applies, where the assessee has, in the previous year or, if by virtue of any provision of the Income-tax Act, income-tax is to be charged in respect of the income of a period other than the previous year, in such other period, any net agricultural income exceeding five thousand rupees, in addition to total income and the total income exceeds fifty thousand rupees, then, in charging incometax under sub-section (2) of section 174 or section 174A or section 175 or sub-section (2) of section 176 of the said Act or in computing the "advance tax" payable under Chapter XVII-C of the said Act, at the rate or rates in force,
- (a) the net agricultural income shall be taken into account, in the manner provided in clause (b) [that is to say, as if the net agricultural income were comprised in the total income after the first fifty thousand rupees of the total income but without being liable to tax], only for the purpose of charging or computing such income-tax or, as the case may be, "advance tax" in respect of the total income; and
  - (b) such income-tax or, as the case may be, "advance tax" shall be so charged or computed as follows:-
- (i) the total income and the net agricultural income shall be aggregated and the amount of income-tax or "advance tax" shall be determined in respect of the aggregate income at the rates specified in the said Paragraph A, as if such aggregate income were the total income;
- of and one of fifty thousand (ii) the net agricultural income shall be increased by a sum of fifty thousand rupees, and the amount of income-tax or "advance tax" shall be determined in used has a draw respect of the net agricultural income as so increased at the rates specified in the no in A hall and said Paragraph A, as if the net agricultural income were the total income; and
- having the bear of the (iii) the amount of income-tax or "advance tax" determined in accordance with sub-clause (i) shall be reduced by the amount of income-tax or, as the case may be, "advance tax" determined in accordance with sub-clause (ii) and the sum so arrived at shall be the income-tax or, as the case may be, "advance tax" in respect of the total income:

Provided that the amount of income-tax or "advance tax" so arrived at, as reduced by the rebate of income-tax calculated under Chapter VIII-A of the said Act, shall be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated in each case, in the manner provided therein.

sán í Abur Sídir

(11) The amount of income-tax as specified in sub-sections (4) to (10) and as increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated in the manner provided therein, shall be further increased by an additional surcharge for purposes of the Union, to be called the "Education Cess on Income-tax", so as to fulfil the commitment of the Government to provide and finance universalised quality basic education, calculated at the rate of two per cent. of and the feature of the feature of the contract such income-tax and surcharge.

- (12) For the purposes of this section and the First Schedule,
- (a) "domestic company" means an Indian company or any other company which, in respect of its income liable to income-tax under the Income-tax Act for the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2004, has made the prescribed arrangements for the declaration and payment within India of the dividends (including dividends on preference shares) payable out of such income;
- (b) "insurance commission" means any remuneration or reward, whether by way of commission or otherwise, for soliciting or procuring insurance business (including business relating to the continuance, renewal or revival of policies of insurance);
- (c) "net agricultural income", in relation to a person, means the total amount of agricultural income, from whatever source derived, of that person computed in accordance with the rules contained in Part IV of the First Schedule;
- (d) all other words and expressions used in this section and the First Schedule but not defined in this sub-section and defined in the Income-tax Act shall have the meanings respectively assigned to them in that Act.

# CHAPTER III

#### DIRECTTAVES

### Income-tax

3. In section 2 of the Income-tax Act, in clause (24), after sub-clause (xii), the following sub-clause shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—

Amendment of section 2.

- "(xiii) any sum referred to in clause (v) of sub-section (2) of section 56;".
- 4. In section 7 of the Income tax Act, after clause (ii), the following clause shall be inserted at the end, namely:

Amendment of section 7.

- "(iii) the contribution made, by the Central Government in the previous year, to the account of an employee under a pension scheme referred to in section 80CCD.".
- 5. In section 10 of the Income-tax Act,—

ได้เรียบได้เป็นสายเหมือนที่สายสาย ขอ

กระบบ<mark>คลัก เปล่น</mark>ร้อ

Amendment of section 10.

- be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April 2006, namely:
- "Provided further that nothing contained in this sub-clause shall apply to any income by way of interest paid or credited on or after the 1st day of April, 2005 to the Non-Resident (External) Account of such individual;";
- (b) in clause (6BB), for the words, figures and letters "an agreement entered after the 31st day of March, 1997 but before the 1st day of April, 1999 and approved by the Central Government in this behalf", the words, figures and letters "an agreement entered into after the 31st day of March, 1997 but before the 1st day of April, 1999, or entered into after the 31st day of March, 2005 and approved by the Central Government in this behalf" shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2006;
  - (c) in clause (15),—
  - (A) after sub-clause (iiib), the following sub-clause shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—
    - "(iiic) interest payable to the European Investment Bank, on a loan granted by it in pursuance of the framework-agreement for financial cooperation entered into on the 25th day of November, 1993 by the Central Government with that Bank;";
  - (B) in sub-clause (iv), in item (fa), after the words "by a scheduled bank", the words, figures and letters "before the 1st day of April, 2005" shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2006;

(d) in clause (15A), before the Explanation, the following proviso shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2006, namely:—

"Provided that nothing contained in this clause shall apply to any such agreement entered into on or after the 1st day of April, 2005.";

- (e) after clause (18), the following clause shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—
  - "(19) family pension received by the widow or children or nominated heirs, as the case may be, of a member of the armed forces (including paramilitary forces) of the Union, where the death of such member has occurred in the course of operational duties, in such circumstances and subject to such conditions, as may be prescribed;";
    - (f) in clause (23FB), with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004,—
    - (i) in Explanation 1, for clause (c), the following clause shall be substituted, namely:
      - '(c) "venture capital undertaking" means a venture capital undertaking referred to in the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996 made under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 and notified as such in the Official Gazette by the Board for the purposes of this clause;';

15 of 1992.

- (ii) Explanation 2 shall be omitted;
- (g) in clause (23G), before Explanation 1, the following proviso shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—

"Provided that the income, by way of dividends, other than dividends referred to in section 115-O, interest or long-term capital gains of an infrastructure capital company, shall be taken into account in computing the book profit and income-tax payable under section 115JB.";

- (h) after clause (36), the following shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—
- '(37) in the case of an assessee, being an individual or a Hindu undivided family, any income chargeable under the head "Capital gains" arising from the transfer of agricultural land, where
- The sub-clause (ii) such land is situate in any area referred to in item (a) or item (b) of the sub-clause (iii) of clause (14) of section  $2^{1/4}$
- (ii) such land, during the period of two years immediately preceding the date of transfer, was being used for agricultural purposes by such Hindu undivided family or individual or a parent of his;
  - (iii) such transfer is by way of compulsory acquisition under any law, or a transfer the consideration for which is determined or approved by the Central Government or the Reserve Bank of India;
  - (iv) such income has arisen from the compensation or consideration for such transfer received by such assessee on or after the 1st day of April, 2004.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this clause, the expression "compensation or consideration" includes the compensation or consideration enhanced or further enhanced by any court, tribunal or other authority;

- (38) any income arising from the transfer of a long-term capital asset, being an equity share in a company or a unit of an equity oriented fund where—
  - (a) the transaction of sale of such equity share or unit is entered into on or after the date on which Chapter VII of the Finance (No. 2) Act, 2004 comes into force; and

(b) such transaction is chargeable to securities transaction tax under that Chapter.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this clause, "equity oriented fund" means a fund—

(i) where the investible funds are invested by way of equity shares in domestic companies to the extent of more than fifty per cent. of the total proceeds of such fund; and

(ii) which has been set up under a scheme of a Mutual Fund specified under clause (23D):

Provided that the percentage of equity share holding of the fund shall be computed with reference to the annual average of the monthly averages of the opening and closing figures.'.

6. In section 12AA of the Income-tax Act, after sub-section (2), the following sub-section shall be inserted at the end, with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004, namely:—

Amendment of section 12AA

"(3) Where a trust or an institution has been granted registration under clause (b) of sub-section (1) and subsequently the Commissioner is satisfied that the activities of such trust or institution are not genuine or are not being carried out in accordance with the objects of the trust or institution, as the case may be, he shall pass an order in writing cancelling the registration of such trust or institution:

Provided that no order under this sub-section shall be passed unless such trust or institution has been given a reasonable opportunity of being heard.".

7. In section 17 of the Income-tax Act, in clause (1), after sub-clause (vii), the following sub-clause shall be inserted, namely:—

Amendment of section 17.

"(viii) the contribution made by the Central Government in the previous year, to the account of an employee under a pension scheme referred to in section 80CCD;".

8. In section 32 of the Income-tax Act, in sub-section (1), in clause (iia), in the first proviso, in clause (B), for the words "twenty-five per cent.", the words "ten per cent." shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005.

Amendment of section 32.

9. In section 33AC of the Income-tax Act, in sub-section (1), after the second proviso, the following proviso shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—

Amendment of section 33AC.

"Provided also that no deduction shall be allowed under this section for any assessment year commencing on or after the 1st day of April, 2005.".

10. In section 35AC of the Income-tax Act, for sub-sections (4) and (5), the following sub-sections shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004, namely:—

Amendment of section 35AC.

- "(4) Where an association or institution is approved by the National Committee under sub-section (1), and subsequently—
  - (i) that Committee is satisfied that the project or the scheme is not being carried on in accordance with all or any of the conditions subject to which approval was granted; or
  - (ii) such association or institution, to which approval has been granted, has not furnished to the National Committee, after the end of each financial year, a report in such form and setting forth such particulars and within such time as may be prescribed,

the National Committee may, at any time, after giving a reasonable opportunity of showing cause against the proposed withdrawal to the concerned association or institution, withdraw the approval:

Provided that a copy of the order withdrawing the approval shall be forwarded by the National Committee to the Assessing Officer having jurisdiction over the concerned association or institution.

- (5) Where any project or scheme has been notified as an eligible project or scheme under clause (b) of the Explanation, and subsequently—
  - (i) the National Committee is satisfied that the project or the scheme is not being carried on in accordance with all or any of the conditions subject to which such project or scheme was notified; or
  - (ii) a report in respect of such eligible project or scheme has not been furnished after the end of each financial year, in such form and setting forth such particulars and within such time as may be prescribed,

such notification may be withdrawn in the same manner in which it was issued:

Provided that a reasonable opportunity of showing cause against the proposed withdrawal shall be given by the National Committee to the concerned association, institution, public sector company or local authority, as the case may be:

Provided further that a copy of the notification by which the notification of the eligible project or scheme is withdrawn shall be forwarded to the Assessing Officer having jurisdiction over the concerned association, institution, public sector company or local authority, as the case may be, carrying on such eligible project or scheme.".

Amendment of section 40.

StrSatistics and

colouge for

lgranic sound.

Maghapaz

1841042 TO

- 11. In section 40 of the Income-tax Act, in clause (a), for sub-clause (i), the following shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—
  - (i) any interest (not being interest on a loan issued for public subscription before the 1st day of April, 1938), royalty, fees for technical services or other sum chargeable under this Act, which is payable,—
    - (A) outside India: or
    - (B) in India to a non-resident, not being a company or to a foreign company,

had med man to those or heligion apply historical

on which tax is deductible at source under Chapter XVII-B and such tax has not been deducted or, after deduction, has not been paid during the previous year, or in the subsequent year before the expiry of the time prescribed under subsection (1) of section 200:

Provided that where in respect of any such sum, tax has been deducted in any subsequent year or, has been deducted in the previous year but paid in any subsequent year after the expiry of the time prescribed under sub-section (1) of section 200, such sum shall be allowed as a deduction in computing the income of the previous year in which such tax has been paid.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this sub-clause,—

- (A) "royalty" shall have the same meaning as in Explanation 2 to clause (vi) of sub-section (1) of section 9;
  - (B) "fees for technical services" shall have the same meaning as in Explanation 2 to clause (vii) of sub-section (1) of section 9;

(ia) any interest, commission or brokerage, fees for professional services or fees for technical services payable to a resident, or amounts payable to a contractor or subcontractor, being resident, for carrying out any work (including supply of labour for carrying out any work), on which tax is deductible at source under Chapter XVII-B and such tax has not been deducted or, after deduction, has not been paid during the previous year, or in the subsequent year before the expiry of the time prescribed under sub-section (1) of section 200:

Provided that where in respect of any such sum, tax has been deducted in any subsequent year or, has been deducted in the previous year but paid in any subsequent year after the expiry of the time prescribed under sub-section (1) of section 200, such sum shall be allowed as a deduction in computing the income of the previous year in which such tax has been paid.

Explanation — For the purposes of this sub-clause,—

- (i) "commission or brokerage" shall have the same meaning as in clause Service (i) of the Explanation to section 194H; god To assety with the section
- (ii) "fees for technical services" shall have the same meaning as in Explanation 2 to clause (vii) of sub-section (1) of section 9;
- (iii) "professional services" shall have the same meaning as in clause (a) of the Explanation to section 1941;
  - (iv) "work" shall have the same meaning as in Explanation III to section
  - (ib) any sum paid on account of securities transaction tax under Chapter VII of the Finance (No. 2) Act, 2004;'.
  - 12. In section 48 of the Income-tax Act, after the fourth proviso and before the Explanation, the following proviso shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:---

Amendment

'Provided also that no deduction shall be allowed in computing the income chargeable under the head "Capital gains" in respect of any sum paid on account of securities transaction tax under Chapter VII of the Finance (No. 2) Act, 2004.'.

13. In section 56 of the Income tax Act, in sub-section (2), after clause (iv), the following clause shall be inserted at the end, with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—

Amendment of section 56.

(v) where any sum of money exceeding twenty-five thousand rupees is received without consideration by an individual or a Hindu undivided family from any person on or after the 1st day of September, 2004, the whole of such sum:

Provided that this clause shall not apply to any sum of money received-

- (a) from any relative; or
- (b) on the occasion of the marriage of the individual; or
- (c) under a will or by way of inheritance; or
- (d) in contemplation of death of the payer.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this clause, "relative" means

- (i) spouse of the individual;
  - (ii) brother or sister of the individual;
  - (iii) brother or sister of the spouse of the individual;
  - (iv) brother or sister of either of the parents of the individual;
  - (v) any lineal ascendant or descendant of the individual;
  - (vi) any lineal ascendant or descendant of the spouse of the individual;
  - (vii) spouse of the person referred to in clauses (ii) to (vi)
- 14. In section 71 of the Income-tax Act, after sub-section (2), the following sub-section shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:

Amendment of section 71.

'(2A) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-section (1) or sub-section (2), where in respect of any assessment year, the net result of the computation under the head "Profits and gains of business or profession" is a loss and the assessee has income assessable under the head "Salaries", the assessee shall not be entitled to have such loss set off against such income.'.

of section 48.

Insertion of new section 80CCD. Deduction in respect of contribution to pension scheme of Central

Government.

15. After section 80CCC of the Income-tax Act, the following section shall be inserted, namely:—

- '80CCD. (1) Where an assessee, being an individual employed by the Central Government on or after the 1st day of January, 2004, has in the previous year paid or deposited any amount in his account under a pension scheme notified or as may be notified by the Central Government, he shall, in accordance with, and subject to, the provisions of this section, be allowed a deduction in the computation of his total income, of the whole of the amount so paid or deposited as does not exceed ten per cent. of his salary in the previous year.
- (2) Where, in the case of an assessee referred to in sub-section (1), the Central Government makes any contribution to his account referred to in that sub-section, the assessee shall be allowed a deduction in the computation of his total income, of the whole of the amount contributed by the Central Government as does not exceed tenper cent. of his salary in the previous year.
- (3) Where any amount standing to the credit of the assessee in his account referred to in sub-section (1), in respect of which a deduction has been allowed under that sub-section or sub-section (2), together with the amount accrued thereon, if any, is received by the assessee or his nominee, in whole or in part, in any previous year,—
  - (a) on account of closure or his opting out of the pension scheme referred to in sub-section (1); or
- (b) as pension received from the annuity plan purchased or taken on such closure or opting out,

the whole of the amount referred to in clause (a) or clause (b) shall be deemed to be the income of the assessee or his nominee, as the case may be, in the previous year in which such amount is received, and shall accordingly be charged to tax as income of that previous year.

(4) Where any amount paid or deposited by the assessee has been allowed as a deduction under sub-section (1), no rebate with reference to such amount shall be allowed under section 88.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section, "salary" includes dearness allowance, if the terms of employment so provide, but excludes all other allowances and perquisites.'.

Amendment of section 80DD.

elegicous d

- - (a) in clause (c), after the figures "1995", occurring at the end, the words, brackets, letters and figures 'and includes "autism", "cerebral palsy" and "multiple disability" referred to in clauses (a), (c) and (h) of section 2 of the National Trust for Welfare of Persons with Autism, Cerebral Palsy, Mental Retardation and Multiple Disabilities Act, 1999' shall be inserted;

44 of 1999.

(b) in clause (e), after the figures "1995", occurring at the end, the words, brackets, letters and figures 'or such other medical authority as may, by notification, be specified by the Central Government for certifying "autism", "cerebral palsy", "multiple disabilities", "person with disability" and "severe disability" referred to in clauses (a), (c), (h), (j) and (o) of section 2 of the National Trust for Welfare of Persons with Autism, Cerebral Palsy, Mental Retardation and Multiple Disabilities Act, 1999' shall be inserted;

44 of 1999.

(c) in clause (f), after the figures "1995", occurring at the end, the words, brackets, letter and figures "or clause (j) of section 2 of the National Trust for Welfare of Persons with Autism, Cerebral Palsy, Mental Retardation and Multiple Disabilities Act, 1999" shall be inserted;

44 of 1999.

- (d) for clause (g), the following clause shall be substituted, namely:—
  - '(g) "person with severe disability" means—
  - (i) a person with eighty per cent. or more of one or more disabilities, as referred to in sub-section (4) of section 56 of the Persons With Disabilities (Equal Opportunities, Protection of Rights and Full Participation) Act, 1995; or

(ii) a person with severe disability referred to in clause (o) of section 2 of the National Trust for Welfare of Persons with Autism, Cerebral Palsy, Mental Retardation and Multiple Disabilities Act, 1999;'.

17. In section 80-IA of the Income-tax Act, with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005,—

Amendment of section 80-IA

- (a) in sub-section (2), after the words "generates power or commences transmission or distribution of power", the words "or undertakes substantial renovation and modernisation of the existing transmission or distribution lines" shall be inserted;
  - (b) in sub-section (3),—
  - (A) in the opening portion, for the words, brackets and figures "undertaking referred to in clause (iv)", the words, brackets and figures "undertaking referred to in clause (ii) or clause (iv)" shall be substituted;
  - (B) after clause (ii) and before Explanation 1, the following proviso shall be inserted, namely:—

"Provided that nothing contained in this sub-section shall apply in the case of transfer, either in whole or in part, of machinery or plant previously used by a State Electricity Board referred to in clause (7) of section 2 of the Electricity Act, 2003, whether or not such transfer is in pursuance of the splitting up or reconstruction or reorganisation of the Board under Part XIII of that Act.";

(c) in sub-section (4),—

- (A) in clause (ii), for the figures, letters and words "31st day of March, 2004", the figures, letters and words "31st day of March, 2005" shall be substituted;
- (B) in clause (iv), after sub-clause (b), the following shall be inserted, namely:—
- (c) undertakes substantial renovation and modernisation of the existing network of transmission or distribution lines at any time during the period beginning on the 1st day of April, 2004 and ending on the 31st day of March, 2006.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this sub-clause, "substantial renovation and modernisation" means an increase in the plant and machinery in the network of transmission or distribution lines by at least fifty per cent. of the book value of such plant and machinery as on the 1st day of April, 2004.'.

18. In section 80-IB of the Income-tax Act, with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005,—

Amendment of section 80-IB.

- (a) in sub-section (I), for the brackets, figures, word and letter "(II) and (IIA)", the brackets, figures, letters and word "(II), (IIA) and (IIB)" shall be substituted;
  - (b) in sub-section (4), after the third proviso, the following provisos shall be inserted, namely:—

Provided also that in the case of an industrial undertaking in the State of Jammu and Kashmir, the provisions of the first proviso shall have effect as if for the figures, letters and words "31st day of March, 2004", the figures, letters and words "31st day of March, 2005" had been substituted:

36 of 2003.

1 of 1996.

44 of 1999.

Provided also that no deduction under this sub-section shall be allowed to an industrial undertaking in the State of Jammu and Kashmir which is engaged in the manufacture or production of any article or thing specified in Part C of the Thirteenth Schedule.';

- (c) in sub-section (8A), in clause (iii), for the figures, letters and words "1st day of April, 2004", the figures, letters and words "1st day of April, 2005" shall be substituted;
  - (d) for sub-section (10), the following shall be substituted, namely:—
  - "(10) The amount of deduction in the case of an undertaking developing and building housing projects approved before the 31st day of March, 2007 by a local authority shall be hundred per cent. of the profits derived in the previous year relevant to any assessment year from such housing project if,—
    - (a) such undertaking has commenced or commences development and construction of the housing project on or after the 1st day of October, 1998 and completes such construction,—
      - (i) in a case where a housing project has been approved by the local authority before the 1st day of April, 2004, on or before the 31st day of March, 2008;
      - (ii) in a case where a housing project has been, or, is approved by the local authority on or after the 1st day of April, 2004, within four years from the end of the financial year in which the housing project is approved by the local authority.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this clause,—

- (i) in a case where the approval in respect of the housing project is obtained more than once, such housing project shall be deemed to have been approved on the date on which the building plan of such housing project is first approved by the local authority;
- (ii) the date of completion of construction of the housing project shall be taken to be the date on which the completion certificate in respect of such housing project is issued by the local authority;
- (b) the project is on the size of a plot of land which has a minimum area of

Provided that nothing contained in clause (a) or clause (b) shall apply to a housing project carried out in accordance with a scheme framed by the Central Government or a State Government for reconstruction or redevelopment of existing buildings in areas declared to be slum areas under any law for the time being in force and such scheme is notified by the Board in this behalf;

- (c) the residential unit has a maximum built-up area of one thousand square feet where such residential unit is situated within the city of Delhi or Mumbai or within twenty-five kilometres from the municipal limits of these cities and one thousand and five hundred square feet at any other place; and
  - (d) the built-up area of the shops and other commercial establishments included in the housing project does not exceed five per cent. of the aggregate built-up area of the housing project or two thousand square feet, whichever is less.";

- (e) in sub-section (11A), for the words "an undertaking deriving profit from", the words "an undertaking deriving profit from the business of processing, preservation and packaging of fruits or vegetables or from" shall be substituted;
- (f) after sub-section (11A), the following sub-section shall be inserted, namely:—
  - "(11B) The amount of deduction in the case of an undertaking deriving profits from the business of operating and maintaining a hospital in a rural area shall be hundred per cent. of the profits and gains of such business for a period of five consecutive assessment years, beginning with the initial assessment year, if—
    - (i) such hospital is constructed at any time during the period beginning on the 1st day of October, 2004 and ending on the 31st day of March, 2008;
    - (ii) the hospital has at least one hundred beds for patients;
    - (iii) the construction of the hospital is in accordance with the regulations, for the time being in force, of the local authority; and
    - (iv) the assessee furnishes alongwith the return of income, the report of audit in such form and containing such particulars as may be prescribed, and duly signed and verified by an accountant, as defined in the Explanation below subsection (2) of section 288, certifying that the deduction has been correctly claimed.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this sub-section, a hospital shall be deemed to have been constructed on the date on which a completion certificate in respect of such construction is issued by the concerned local authority.";

### (g) in sub-section (14),—

- (A) clauses (a) and (aa) shall be re-lettered as clauses (aa) and (ab) respectively, and before clause (aa) as so re-lettered, the following clause shall be inserted, namely:—
  - '(a) "built-up area" means the inner measurements of the residential unit at the floor level, including the projections and balconies, as increased by the thickness of the walls but does not include the common areas shared with other residential units;';

### (B) in clause (c),—

(I) in sub-clause (iv), after the words "undertaking engaged", the words "in the business of processing, preservation and packaging of fruits or vegetables or" shall be inserted;

But out will assist (A) must be

- (II) after sub-clause (vi), the following sub-clause shall be inserted, namely:—
  - "(vii) in the case of an undertaking engaged in operating and maintaining a hospital in a rural area, means the assessment year relevant to the previous year in which the undertaking begins to provide medical services;".

6037

a clauses (aa)

leoibem abive

Amendment of section 80U.

19. In section 80U of the Income-tax Act, for the Explanation, the following Explanation shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—

'Explanation.-For the purposes of this section,-

(a) "disability" shall have the meaning assigned to it in clause (i) of section 2 of the Persons With Disabilities (Equal Opportunities, Protection of Rights and Full Participation) Act, 1995, and includes "autism", "cerebral palsy" and "multiple disabilities" referred to in clauses (a), (c) and (h) of section 2 of the National Trust for Welfare of Persons with Autism, Cerebral Palsy, Mental Retardation and Multiple Disabilities Act, 1999;

1 of 1996.

44 of 1999.

(b) "medical authority" means the medical authority as referred to in clause (p) of section 2 of the Persons With Disabilities (Equal Opportunities, Protection of Rights and Full Participation) Act, 1995, or such other medical authority as may, by notification, be specified by the Central Government for certifying "autism", "cerebral palsy", "multiple disabilities", "person with disability" and "severe disability" referred to in clauses (a), (c), (h), (j) and (o) of section 2 of the National Trust for Welfare of Persons with Autism, Cerebral Palsy, Mental Retardation and Multiple Disabilities Act, 1999;

1 of 1996.

(c) "person with disability" means a person referred to in clause (t) of section 2 of the Persons With Disabilities (Equal Opportunities, Protection of Rights and Full Participation). Act, 1995, or clause (j) of section 2 of the National Trust for Welfare of Persons with Autism, Cerebral Palsy, Mental Retardation

44 of 1999.

and Multiple Disabilities Act, 1999;

1 of 1996.

44 of 1999

(d) "person with severe disability" means—

(i) a person with eighty per cent. or more of one or more disabilities, as referred to in sub-section (4) of section 56 of the Persons With Disabilities (Equal Opportunities, Protection of Rights and Full Participation) al stable of the Act, 1995; or which had

1 of 1996.

Carrier and the Carrier (ii) a person with severe disability referred to in clause (o) of section 2 of the National Trust for Welfare of Persons with Autism, Cerebral Palsy, Mental Retardation and Multiple Disabilities Act, 1999.'.

44 of 1999

Amendment of section 87.

ail ibse 20. In section 87 of the Income tax Act, with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005,—

(a) in sub-section (1), for the words, figures and letters "sections 88, 88A, 88B to stopmand 88C", the words, figures and letters "sections 88, 88A, 88B, 88C, 88D and 88E" anomos shall be substituted;

the walls but (b) in sub-section (2), after the words, figures and letter "or section 88C", the words, figures and letters "or section 88D or section 88E" shall be inserted.

Amendment of section 88.

21. In section 88 of the Income-tax Act, in sub-section (2), in clause (xv), in sub-clause (c), after item (6), the following item shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—

"(6A) the assessee's employer where such employer is an authority or a board or a corporation or any other body established or constituted under a Central or State Act, or".

Insertion of new section 88D.

22. After section 88C of the Income-tax Act, the following section shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely: a soliking engaged in

Rebate of income-tax in case of certain individuals.

some famura 1988D. An assessee, being an individual resident in India,—

to the previous (a) whose total income does not exceed one hundred thousand rupees, shall be entitled to a deduction from the amount of income-tax (as computed before allowing the deductions under this Chapter) on his total income with

which he is chargeable for any assessment year, of an amount equal to hundred per cent. of such income-tax;

- (b) whose total income exceeds one hundred thousand rupees and the income-tax payable on such total income (as computed before allowing the deductions under this Chapter) exceeds the amount by which such total income is in excess of one hundred thousand rupees, shall be entitled to a deduction from the amount of income-tax on his total income, of an amount equal to the amount by which the income-tax payable on such total income is in excess of the amount by which the total income exceeds one hundred thousand rupees."
- 23. After section 88D of the Income-tax Act, as so inserted, the following section shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—

Insertion of new section 88E

'88E. (1) Where the total income of an assessee in a previous year includes any income, chargeable under the head "Profits and gains of business or profession", arising from taxable securities transactions, he shall be entitled to a deduction, from the amount of income-tax on such income arising from such transactions, computed in the manner provided in sub-section (2), of an amount equal to the securities transaction tax paid by him in respect of the taxable securities transactions entered into in the course of his business during that previous year:

Rebate in respect of securities transaction

Provided that no deduction under this sub-section shall be allowed unless the assessee furnishes along with the return of income, evidence of payment of securities transaction tax in the prescribed form:

Provided further that the amount of deduction under this sub-section shall not exceed the amount of income-tax on such income computed in the manner provided in sub-section (2).

(2) For the purposes of sub-section (1), the amount of income-tax on the income arising from the taxable securities transactions, referred to in that sub-section, shall be equal to the amount calculated by applying the average rate of income-tax on such income.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section, the expressions "taxable securities transaction" and "securities transaction tax" shall have the same meanings respectively assigned to them under Chapter VII of the Finance (No. 2) Act, 2004.'.

24. In section 90 of the Income-tax Act, in the Explanation, the words and brackets ", where such foreign company has not made the prescribed arrangement for declaration and payment within India, of the dividends (including dividends on preference shares) payable out of its income in India" shall be omitted and shall be deemed to have been omitted with effect from the 1st day of April, 1962.

Amendment of section 90.

25. In section 94 of the Income-tax Act, with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005,—

Amendment of section 94.

- (a) in sub-section (7), for clause (b), the following clause shall be substituted, namely:
- "(b) such person sells or transfers
  - (i) such securities within a period of three months after such date; or
  - (ii) such unit within a period of nine months after such date;";
  - (b) after sub-section (7), the following sub-section shall be inserted, namely:—
    - "(8) Where-
    - (a) any person buys or acquires any units within a period of three months prior to the record dates, and a second dates and a second dates.
  - (b) such person is allotted additional units without any payment on the basis of holding of such units on such date;

(c) such person sells or transfers all or any of the units referred to in clause (a) within a period of nine months after such date, while continuing to hold all or any of the additional units referred to in clause (b),

then, the loss, if any, arising to him on account of such purchase and sale of all or any of such units shall be ignored for the purposes of computing his income chargeable to tax and notwithstanding anything contained in any other provision of this Act, the amount of loss so ignored shall be deemed to be the cost of purchase or acquisition of such additional units referred to in clause (b) as are held by him on the date of such sale or transfer.";

- (c) in the Explanation, for clause (aa), the following clause shall be substituted, namely:—
  - '(aa) "record date" means such date as may be fixed by—
  - (i) a company for the purposes of entitlement of the holder of the securities to receive dividend; or
  - (ii) a Mutual Fund or the Administrator of the specified undertaking or the specified company as referred to in the Explanation to clause (35) of section 10, for the purposes of entitlement of the holder of the units to receive income, or additional unit without any consideration, as the case may be;'.

26. After section 111 of the Income-tax Act, the following section shall be inserted, with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—

- '111A. (1) Where the total income of an assessee includes any income chargeable under the head "Capital gains", arising from the transfer of a short-term capital asset, being an equity share in a company or a unit of an equity oriented fund and—
  - (a) the transaction of sale of such equity share or unit is entered into on or after the date on which Chapter VII of the Finance (No. 2) Act, 2004 comes into force; and
  - (b) such transaction is chargeable to securities transaction tax under that Chapter,

the tax payable by the assessee on the total income shall be the aggregate of—

- (i) the amount of income-tax calculated on such short-term capital gains at the rate of ten per cent.; and
- (ii) the amount of income-tax payable on the balance amount of the total income as if such balance amount were the total income of the assessee:

Provided that in the case of an individual or a Hindu undivided family, being a resident, where the total income as reduced by such short-term capital gains is below the maximum amount which is not chargeable to income-tax, then, such short-term capital gains shall be reduced by the amount by which the total income as so reduced falls short of the maximum amount which is not chargeable to income-tax and the tax on the balance of such short-term capital gains shall be computed at the rate of ten per cent.

- (2) Where the gross total income of an assessee includes any short term capital gains referred to in sub-section (1), the deduction under Chapter VI-A shall be allowed from the gross total income as reduced by such capital gains.
- (3) Where the total income of an assessee includes any short-term capital gains referred to in sub-section (1), the rebate under section 88 shall be allowed from the income-tax on the total income as reduced by such capital gains.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section, the expression "equity oriented fund" shall have the meaning assigned to it in the Explanation to clause (38) of section 10.

Insertion of new section 111A.

Tax on shortterm capital gains in certain cases. 27. In section 115AD of the Income-tax Act, in sub-section (1), in clause (ii), the following proviso shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—

Amendment of section 115AD.

"Provided that the amount of income-tax calculated on the income by way of short-term capital gains referred to in section 111A shall be at the rate of ten per cent.;".

28. In section 115JB of the Income-tax Act, in the Explanation, with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005,—

Amendment of section 115JB.

- (a) in clause (f), for the word and figures "section 10", the words, figures, brackets and letter "section 10 [other than the provisions contained in clause (23G) thereof]" shall be substituted;
- (b) in clause (ii), for the words and figures "provisions of section 10", the words, figures, brackets and letter "provisions of section 10 [other than the provisions contained in clause (23G) thereof]" shall be substituted.
- 29. In section 115R of the Income-tax Act, in sub-section (2),—

Amendment of section 115R.

(a) for the words "at the rate of twelve and one-half per cent.:", the following shall be substituted with effect from the 9th day of July, 2004, namely:—

"at the rate of-

- (i) twelve and one-half per cent. on income distributed to any person being an individual or a Hindu undivided family; and
  - (ii) twenty per cent. on income distributed to any other person:";
- (b) in the proviso, the words, figures and letters "for a period of one year commencing from the 1st day of April, 2003" shall be omitted.
- 30. After Chapter XII-F of the Income-tax Act, the following Chapter shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—

Insertion of new Chapter XII-G

### 'CHAPTER XII-G

SPECIAL PROVISIONS RELATING TO INCOME OF SHIPPING COMPANIES

### A.—Meaning of certain expressions

115V. In this Chapter, unless the context otherwise requires,—

Definitions.

- (a) "bareboat charter" means hiring of a ship for a stipulated period on terms which give the charterer possession and control of the ship, including the right to appoint the master and crew;
- (b) "bareboat charter-cum-demise" means a bareboat charter where the ownership of the ship is intended to be transferred after a specified period to the company to whom it has been chartered;
- (c) "Director-General of Shipping" means the Director-General of Shipping appointed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 7 of the Merchant Shipping Act, 1958;
- (d) "factory ship" includes a vessel providing processing services in respect of processing of the fishing produce;
- (e) "fishing vessel" shall have the meaning assigned to it in clause (12) of section 3 of the Merchant Shipping Act, 1958;
- (f) "pleasure craft" means a ship of a kind whose primary use is for the purposes of sport or recreation;
  - (g) "qualifying company" means a company referred to in section 115VC;
  - (h) "qualifying ship" means a ship referred to in section 115VD;

44 of 1958

44 of 1958.

- (i) "seagoing ship" means a ship if it is certified as such by the competent authority of any country;
- (j) "tonnage income" means the income of a tonnage tax company computed in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter;
- (k) "tonnage tax activities" means the activities referred to in sub-sections (2) and (5) of section 115V-1;
- (1) "tonnage tax company" means a qualifying company in relation to which tonnage tax option is in force;
- (m) "tonnage tax scheme" means a scheme for computation of profits and gains of business of operating qualifying ships under the provisions of this Chapter.
- B.—Computation of tonnage income from business of operating qualifying ships

115VA. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in sections 28 to 43C, in the case of a company, the income from the business of operating qualifying ships, may, at its option, be computed in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter and such income shall be deemed to be the profits and gains of such business chargeable to tax under the head "Profits and gains of business or profession".

a ship if it operates any ship whether owned or chartered by it and includes a case where even a part of the ship has been chartered in by it in an arrangement such as slot charter, space charter or joint charter:

Provided that a company shall not be regarded as the operator of a ship which has been chartered out by it on bareboat charter-cum-demise terms or on bareboat charter terms for a period exceeding three years.

115VC. For the purposes of this Chapter, a company is a qualifying company if—

- (a) it is an Indian company;
- (b) the place of effective management of the company is in India;
- (c) it owns at least one qualifying ship; and
- The main object of the company is to carry on the business of operating

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section, "place of effective management of the company" means—

- (A) the place where the board of directors of the company or its executive directors, as the case may be, make their decisions; or
- (B) in a case where the board of directors routinely approve the commercial and strategic decisions made by the executive directors or officers of the company, the place where such executive directors or officers of the company perform their functions.
  - 115VD. For the purposes of this Chapter, a ship is a qualifying ship if

Claimed on filter the entire after a research in its you filthing

- (a) it is a sea going ship or vessel of fifteen net tonnage or more;
- (b) it is a ship registered under the Merchant Shipping Act, 1958, or a ship registered outside India in respect of which a licence has been issued by the Director-General of Shipping under section 406 or section 407 of the Merchant Shipping Act, 1958; and

Computation of profits and gains from the business of operating qualifying ships.

Operating ships.

Qualifying company.

Qualifying ship.

44 of 1958.

(c) a valid certificate in respect of such ship indicating its net tonnage is in force.

but does not include-

- (i) a seagoing ship or vessel if the main purpose for which it is used is the provision of goods or services of a kind normally provided on land;
  - (ii) fishing vessels;
  - (iii) factory ships;
  - (iv) pleasure crafts;
  - (v) harbour and river ferries;
  - (vi) off-shore installations;
  - (vii) dredgers;
- (viii) a qualifying ship which is used as a fishing vessel for a period of more than thirty days during a previous year.
- 115VE. (1) A tonnage tax company engaged in the business of operating qualifying ships shall compute the profits from such business under the tonnage tax scheme.

Manner of computation of income under tonnage tax scheme,

- (2) The business of operating qualifying ships giving rise to income referred to in sub-section (1) of section 115V-I shall be considered as a separate business (hereafter in this Chapter referred to as the tonnage tax business) distinct from all other activities or business carried on by the company.
- (3) The profits referred to in sub-section (1) shall be computed separately from the profits and gains from any other business.
- (4) The tonnage tax scheme shall apply only if an option to that effect is made in accordance with the provisions of section 115VP.
- (5) Where a company engaged in the business of operating qualifying ships is not covered under the tonnage tax scheme or, has not made an option to that effect, as the case may be, the profits and gains of such company from such business shall be computed in accordance with the other provisions of this Act.

115VF. Subject to the other provisions of this Chapter, the tonnage income shall be computed in accordance with section 115VG and the income so computed shall be deemed to be the profits chargeable under the head "Profits and gains of business or profession" and the relevant shipping income referred to in sub-section (1) of section 115V-I shall not be chargeable to tax.

Tonnage income.

115VG. (1) The tonnage income of a tonnage tax company for a previous year shall be the aggregate of the tonnage income of each qualifying ship computed in accordance with the provisions of sub-sections (2) and (3).

Computation of tonnage income.

- (2) For the purposes of sub-section (1), the tonnage income of each qualifying ship shall be the daily tonnage income of each such ship multiplied by—
  - (a) the number of days in the previous year; or
- (b) the number of days in part of the previous year in case the ship is operated by the company as a qualifying ship for only part of the previous year, as the case may be.
- (3) For the purposes of sub-section (2), the daily tonnage income of a qualifying ship having tonnage referred to in column (1) of the Table below shall be the amount specified in the corresponding entry in column (2) of the Table:

	5				
	1.23 8	555 20 10	1. 1 6 5 5 1 1		 TABLE
No. 2 127	1,17 00	3 3 3 3 3 4 3	1.4555	3 6 7 7 7 7	 TARIF

Qualifying ship having net tonnage	Amount of daily tonnage
क्षा पर प्राथम के कि एक <mark>(१)</mark> ८ केटर अमार्ट्स होते नेविकास प्राप्त के के अपनात	12/
up to 1,000	Rs. 46 for each 100 tons
exceeding 1,000 but not more than 10,000	Rs, 460 plus Rs. 35 for each 100 tons exceeding 1,000 tons
exceeding 10,000 but not more than 25,000	Rs. 3,610 plus Rs. 28 for each 100 tons exceeding 10,000 tons
exceeding 25,000	Rs. 7,810 plus Rs.19 for each 100 tons exceeding 25,000 tons.

(4) For the purposes of this Chapter, the tonnage shall mean the tonnage of a ship indicated in the certificate referred to in section 115VX and includes the deemed tonnage computed in the prescribed manner.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this sub-section, "deemed tonnage" shall be the tonnage in respect of an arrangement of purchase of slots, slot charter and an arrangement of sharing of break-bulk vessel.

- (5) The tonnage shall be rounded off to the nearest multiple of hundred tons and for this purpose any tonnage consisting of kilograms shall be ignored and thereafter if such tonnage is not a multiple of hundred, then, if the last figure in that amount is fifty tons or more, the tonnage shall be increased to the next higher tonnage which is a multiple of hundred and if the last figure is less than fifty tons, the tonnage shall be reduced to the next lower tonnage which is a multiple of hundred; and the tonnage so rounded off shall be the tonnage of the ship for the purposes of this section.
- (6) Notwithstanding anything contained in any other provision of this Act, no deduction or set off shall be allowed in computing the tonnage income under this Chapter.
- 115VH. (1) Where a qualifying ship is operated by two or more companies by way of joint interest in the ship or by way of an agreement for the use of the ship and their respective shares are definite and ascertainable, the tonnage income of each such company shall be an amount equal to a share of income proportionate to its share of that interest.
- (2) Subject to the provisions of sub-section (1), where two or more companies are operators of a qualifying ship, the tonnage income of each company shall be computed as if each had been the only operator.
- 115V-I. (1) For the purposes of this Chapter, the relevant shipping income of a tonnage tax company means—
  - (i) its profits from core activities referred to in sub-section (2);
  - (ii) its profits from incidental activities referred to in sub-section (5):

Provided that where the aggregate of all such incomes specified in clause (ii) exceeds one-fourth per cent. of the turnover from core activities referred to in subsection (2), such excess shall not form part of the relevant shipping income for the purposes of this Chapter and shall be taxable under the other provisions of this Act.

- (2) The core activities of a tonnage tax company shall be-
  - (i) its activities from operating qualifying ships; and

Calculation in case of joint operation,

anapare,

Relevant shipping income.

- (ii) other ship-related activities mentioned as under:-
  - (A) shipping contracts in respect of
    - (i) earning from pooling arrangements;
    - (ii) contracts of affreightment.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this sub-clause,—

- (a) "pooling arrangement" means an agreement between two or more persons for providing services through a pool or operating one or more ships and sharing earnings or operating profits on the basis of mutually agreed terms;
- (b) "contract of affreightment" means a service contract under which a tonnage tax company agrees to transport a specified quantity of specified products at a specified rate, between designated loading and discharging ports over a specified period;
- (B) specific shipping trades, being
- (i) on-board or on-shore activities of passenger ships comprising of fares and food and beverages consumed on board;
- (ii) slot charters, space charters, joint charters, feeder services,
  - (3) The Central Government, if it considers necessary or expedient so to do, may, by notification in the Official Gazette, exclude any activity referred to in clause (ii) of sub-section (2) or prescribe the limit up to which such activities shall be included in the core activities for the purposes of this section.
  - (4) Every notification issued under this Chapter shall be laid, as soon as may be after it is issued, before each House of Parliament, while it is in session for a total period of thirty days which may be comprised in one session or in two or more successive sessions, and if, before the expiry of the session immediately following the session or the successive sessions aforesaid, both Houses agree in making any modification in the notification, or both Houses agree that the notification should not be issued, the notification shall thereafter have effect only in such modified form or be of no effect, as the case may be; so, however, that any such modification or annulment shall be without prejudice to the validity of anything previously done under that notification.
- (5) The incidental activities shall be the activities which are incidental to the core activities and which may be prescribed for the purpose.
- (6) Where a tonnage tax company operates any ship, which is not a qualifying ship, the income attributable to operating such non-qualifying ship shall be computed in accordance with the other provisions of this Act.
  - (7) Where any goods or services held for the purposes of tonnage tax business are transferred to any other business carried on by a tonnage tax company, or where any goods or services held for the purposes of any other business carried on by such tonnage tax company are transferred to the tonnage tax business and, in either case, the consideration, if any, for such transfer as recorded in the accounts of the tonnage tax business does not correspond to the market value of such goods or services as on the date of the transfer, then, the relevant shipping income under this section shall be computed as if the transfer, in either case, had been made at the market value of such goods or services as on that date:

Provided that where, in the opinion of the Assessing Officer, the computation of the relevant shipping income in the manner hereinbefore specified presents exceptional difficulties, the Assessing Officer may compute such income on such reasonable basis as he may deem fit.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this sub-section, "market value", in relation to any goods or services, means the price that such goods or services would ordinarily fetch on sale in the open market.

(8) Where it appears to the Assessing Officer that, owing to the close connection between the tonnage tax company and any other person, or for any other reason, the course of business between them is so arranged that the business transacted between them produces to the tonnage tax company more than the ordinary profits which might be expected to arise in the tonnage tax business, the Assessing Officer shall, in computing the relevant shipping income of the tonnage tax company for the purposes of this Chapter, take the amount of income as may reasonably be deemed to have been derived therefrom.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this Chapter, in case the relevant shipping income of a tonnage tax company is a loss, then, such loss shall be ignored for the purposes of computing tonnage income.

Treatment of common costs.

- 115VJ. (1) Where a tonnage tax company also carries on any business or activity other than the tonnage tax business, common costs attributable to the tonnage tax business shall be determined on a reasonable basis.
- (2) Where any asset, other than a qualifying ship, is not exclusively used for the tonnage tax business by the tonnage tax company, depreciation on such asset shall be allocated between its tonnage tax business and other business on a fair proportion to be determined by the Assessing Officer, having regard to the use of such asset for the purpose of the tonnage tax business and for the other business.

Depreciation.

- 115VK. (1) For the purposes of computing depreciation under clause (iv) of section 115VL, the depreciation for the first previous year of the tonnage tax scheme (hereafter in this section referred to as "the first previous year" shall be computed on the written down value of the qualifying ships as specified under sub-section (2).
- (2) The written down value of the block of assets, being ships, as on the first day of the first previous year, shall be divided in the ratio of the book written down value of the qualifying ships (hereafter in this section referred to as the "qualifying assets") and the book written down value of the non-qualifying ships (hereafter in this section referred to as the other assets).
- (3) The block of qualifying assets as determined under sub-section (2) shall constitute a separate block of assets for the purposes of this Chapter.
- (4) For the purposes of sub-section (2), the book written down value of the block of qualifying assets and the block of other assets shall be computed in the following manner, namely:—
- (a) the book written down value of each qualifying asset and each other asset as on the first day of the previous year and which form part of the block of assets to be divided shall be determined by taking the book written down value of each asset appearing in the books of account as on the last day of the preceding previous year:

Provided that any change in the value of the assets consequent to their revaluation after the date on which the Finance (No. 2) Bill, 2004 receives the assent of the President shall be ignored;

- (b) the book written down value of all the qualifying assets and other assets shall be aggregated; and
- (c) the ratio of the aggregate book written down value of the qualifying assets to the aggregate book written down value of the other assets shall be determined.

(5) Where an asset forming part of a block of qualifying assets begins to be used for purposes other than the tonnage tax business, an appropriate portion of the written down value allocable to such asset shall be reduced from the written down value of that block and shall be added to the block of other assets.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this sub-section, appropriate portion of the written down value allocable to the asset, which begins to be used for purposes other than the tonnage tax business, shall be an amount which bears the same proportion to the written down value of the block of qualifying assets as on the first day of the previous year as the book written down value of the asset beginning to be used for purposes other than tonnage tax business bears to the book written down value of all the assets forming the block of qualifying asset.

(6) Where an asset forming part of a block of other assets begins to be used for tonnage tax business, an appropriate portion of the written down value allocable to such asset shall be reduced from the written down value of the block of other assets and shall be added to the block of qualifying asset.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this sub-section, appropriate portion of written down value allocable to the asset which begins to be used for the tonnage tax business shall be an amount which bears the same proportion to the written down value of the block of other assets as on the first day of the previous year as the book written down value of the asset beginning to be used for tonnage tax business bears to the total book written down value of all the assets forming the block of other assets.

(7) For the purposes of computing depreciation under clause (iv) of section 115VL in respect of an asset mentioned in sub-sections (5) and (6), depreciation computed for the previous year shall be allocated in the ratio of the number of days for which the asset was used for the tonnage tax business and for purposes other than tonnage tax business.

Explanation 1.—For the removal of doubts, it is hereby declared that for the purposes of this Act, depreciation on the block of qualifying assets and block of other assets so created shall be allowed as if such written down value referred to in subsection (2) had been brought forward from the preceding previous year.

Explanation 2.—For the purposes of this section, "book written down value" means the written down value as appearing in the books of account.

115VL. Notwithstanding anything contained in any other provision of this Act, in computing the tonnage income of a tonnage tax company for any previous year (hereafter in this section referred to as the "relevant previous year") in which it is chargeable to tax in accordance with this Chapter—

General exclusion of deduction and set off, etc.

- (i) sections 30 to 43B shall apply as if every loss, allowance or deduction referred to therein and relating to or allowable for any of the relevant previous years, had been given full effect to for that previous year itself;
- (ii) no loss referred to in sub-sections (1) and (3) of section 70 or sub-sections (1) and (2) of section 71 or sub-section (1) of section 72 or sub-section (1) of section 72A, in so far as such loss relates to the business of operating qualifying ships of the company, shall be carried forward or set off where such loss relates to any of the previous years when the company is under the tonnage tax scheme;
- (iii) no deduction shall be allowed under Chapter VI-A in relation to the profits and gains from the business of operating qualifying ships; and
- (iv) in computing the depreciation allowance under section 32, the written down value of any asset used for the purposes of the tonnage tax business shall be computed as if the company has claimed and has been actually allowed the deduction in respect of depreciation for the relevant previous years.

Exclusion of loss.

- company before its option for tonnage tax scheme and which are attributable to its tonnage tax business, as if such losses had been set off against the relevant shipping income in any of the previous years when the company is under the tonnage tax scheme.
  - (2) The losses referred to in sub-section (1) shall not be available for set off against any income other than relevant shipping income in any previous year beginning on or after the company exercises its option under section 115VP.
  - (3) Any apportionment necessary to determine the losses referred to in subsection (1) shall be made on a reasonable basis.

115VN. Any profits or gains arising from the transfer of a capital asset being an asset forming part of the block of qualifying assets shall be chargeable to income-tax in accordance with the provisions of section 45, read with section 50, and the capital gains so arising shall be computed in accordance with the provisions of sections 45 to 51:

Provided that for the purpose of computing such profits or gains, the provisions of section 50 shall have effect as if for the words "written down value of the block of assets", the words "written down value of the block of qualifying assets" had been substituted.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this Chapter, "written down value of the block of qualifying assets" means the written down value computed in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (2) of section 115 VK.

company, referred to in sub-section (1) of section 115V-I, shall be excluded from the book profit of the company for the purposes of section 115JB.

C.—Procedure for option of tonnage tax scheme

- 115 VP. (1) A qualifying company may opt for the tonnage tax scheme by making an application to the Joint Commissioner having jurisdiction over the company in the form and manner as may be prescribed, for such scheme.
- (2) The application under sub-section (1) may be made by any existing qualifying company at any time after the 30th day of September, 2004 but before the 1st day of January, 2005 (hereafter referred to as the "initial period"):

कार कामां का Provided that mines क्षेत्र अवस्थान के के व्यवस्थान स्वाहत्यक सहित्रक का अगारिक

- (i) a company incorporated after the initial period; or
- (ii) a qualifying company incorporated before the initial period but which becomes a qualifying company for the first time after the initial period,

may make an application within three months of the date of its incorporation or the date on which it became a qualifying company, as the case may be.

- (3) On receipt of an application for option for tonnage tax scheme under subsection (1), the Joint Commissioner may call for such information or documents from the company as he thinks necessary in order to satisfy himself about the eligibility of the company and after satisfying himself about such eligibility of the company to make such option for tonnage tax scheme, he—
- scheme; or
- have the control of the is not so satisfied, pass an order in writing refusing to all the same approve the option for tonnage tax scheme, the same approve the option for tonnage tax scheme, the same approve the option for tonnage tax scheme, the same approve the option for tonnage tax scheme, the same approve the option for tonnage tax scheme, the same approve the option for tonnage tax scheme, the same approve the option for tonnage tax scheme, the same approve the option for tonnage tax scheme, the same approve the option for tonnage tax scheme, the same approve the option for tonnage tax scheme, the same approve the option for tonnage tax scheme, the same approve the option for tonnage tax scheme, the same approve the option for tonnage tax scheme, the same approve the option for tonnage tax scheme, the same approve the option for tonnage tax scheme.

Chargeable gains from transfer of tonnage tax assets.

Exclusion from provisions of section 115JB.

Method and time of opting for tonnage tax scheme.

> v daglore Suppat de Folio ess

and a copy of such order shall be sent to the applicant:

Provided that no order under clause (ii) shall be passed unless the applicant has been given a reasonable opportunity of being heard.

- (4) Every order granting or refusing the approval of the option for tonnage tax scheme under clause (i) or clause (ii), as the case may be, of sub-section (3) shall be passed before the expiry of one month from the end of the month in which the application was received under sub-section (1).
- (5) Where an order granting approval is passed under sub-section (3), the provisions of this Chapter shall apply from the assessment year relevant to the previous year in which the option for tonnage tax scheme is exercised.
- 115VQ. (1) An option for tonnage tax scheme, after it has been approved under sub-section (3) of section 115VP, shall remain in force for a period of ten years from the date on which such option has been exercised and shall be taken into account from the assessment year relevant to the previous year in which such option is exercised.

Period for which tonnage tax option to remain in force.

- (2) An option for tonnage tax scheme shall cease to have effect from the assessment year relevant to the previous year in which—
  - (a) the qualifying company ceases to be a qualifying company;
  - (b) a default is made in complying with the provisions contained in section 115VT or section 115VU or section 115VV;
  - (c) the tonnage tax company is excluded from the tonnage tax scheme under section 115VZC;
  - (d) the qualifying company furnishes to the Assessing Officer, a declaration in writing to the effect that the provisions of this Chapter may not be made applicable to it,

and the profits and gains of the company from the business of operating qualifying ships shall be computed in accordance with the other provisions of this Act.

115VR. (1) An option for tonnage tax scheme approved under sub-section (3) of section 115VP may be renewed within one year from the end of the previous year in which the option ceases to have effect.

Renewal of tonnage tax scheme.

- (2) The provisions of sections 115VP and 115VQ shall apply in relation to a renewal of the option for tonnage tax scheme in the same manner as they apply in relation to the approval of option for tonnage tax scheme.
- 115VS. A qualifying company, which, on its own, opts out of the tonnage tax scheme or makes a default in complying with the provisions of section 115VT or section 115VU or section 115VV or whose option has been excluded from tonnage tax scheme in pursuance of an order made under sub-section (1) of section 115VZC, shall not be eligible to opt for tonnage tax scheme for a period of ten years from the date of opting out or default or order, as the case may be.

Prohibition to opt for tonnage tax scheme in certain cases.

### D.—Conditions for applicability of tonnage tax scheme

115VT. (1) A tonnage tax company shall, subject to and in accordance with the provisions of this section, be required to credit to a reserve account (hereafter in this section referred to as the Tonnage Tax Reserve Account) an amount not less than twenty per cent. of the book profit derived from the activities referred to in clauses (i) and (ii) of sub-section (1) of section 115V-I in each previous year to be utilised in the manner laid down in sub-section (3):

Transfer of profits to Tonnage Tax Reserve Account.

Provided that a tonnage tax company may transfer a sum in excess of twenty per cent. of the book profit and such excess sum transferred shall also be utilised in the manner laid down in sub-section (3).

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section, "book profit" shall have the same meaning as in the Explanation to sub-section (2) of section 115JB so far as it relates to the income derived from the activities referred to in clauses (i) and (ii) of subsection (1) of section 115V-I.

(2) Where the company has book profit from the business of operating qualifying ships and book loss from any other sources, and consequently, the company is not in a position to create the full or any part of the reserves under sub-section (1), the company shall create the reserves to the extent possible in that previous year and the shortfall, if any, shall be added to the amount of the reserves required to be created for the following previous year and such shortfall shall be deemed to be part of the reserve requirement of that following previous year:

Provided that to the extent the shortfall in creation of reserves during a particular previous year is carried forward to the following previous year under this sub-section, the company shall be considered as having created sufficient reserves for the first mentioned previous year:

Provided further that nothing contained in the first proviso shall apply in respect of the second year in case the shortfall in creation of reserves continues for two consecutive previous years.

- (3) The amount credited to the Tonnage Tax Reserve Account under sub-section (1) shall be utilised by the company before the expiry of a period of eight years next following the previous year in which the amount was credited—
  - (a) for acquiring a new ship for the purposes of the business of the company; and
  - (b) until the acquisition of a new ship, for the purposes of the business of operating qualifying ships other than for distribution by way of dividends or profits or for remittance outside India as profits or for the creation of any asset outside India.
- (4) Where any amount credited to the Tonnage Tax Reservé Account under subsection (1),—
  - (a) has been utilised for any purpose other than that referred to in clause (a) or clause (b) of sub-section (3); or
  - (b) has not been utilised for the purpose specified in clause (a) of subsection (3); or
  - (c) has been utilised for the purpose of acquiring a new ship as specified in clause (a) of sub-section (3), but such ship is sold or otherwise transferred, other than in any scheme of demerger by the company to any person at any time before the expiry of three years from the end of the previous year in which it was acquired,

an amount which bears the same proportion to the total relevant shipping income of the year in which such reserve was created, as the amount out of such reserve so utilised or not utilised bears to the total reserve created during that year under subsection (1) shall be taxable under the other provisions of this Act—

- (i) in a case referred to in clause (a), in the year in which the amount was so utilised; or
- (ii) in a case referred to in clause (b), in the year immediately following the period of eight years specified in sub-section (3); or
- (iii) in a case referred to in clause (c), in the year in which the sale or

Provided that the income so taxable under the other provisions of this Act shall be reduced by the proportionate tonnage income charged to tax in the year of creation of such reserves.

- (5) Notwithstanding anything contained in any other provision of this Chapter, where the amount credited to the Tonnage Tax Reserve Account in accordance with sub-section (1) is less than the minimum amount required to be credited under sub-section (1), an amount which bears the same proportion to the total relevant shipping income, as the shortfall in credit to the reserves bears to the minimum reserve required to be credited under sub-section (1) shall not be taxable under the tonnage tax scheme and shall be taxable under the other provisions of this Act.
- (6) If the reserve required to be created under sub-section (1) is not created for any two consecutive previous years, the option of the company for tonnage tax scheme shall cease to have effect from the beginning of the previous year following the second consecutive previous year in which the failure to create the reserve under sub-section (1) had occurred.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section, "new ship" includes a qualifying ship which, before the date of acquisition by the qualifying company was used by any other person, if it was not at any time previous to the date of such acquisition owned by any person resident in India.

115VU. (1) A tonnage tax company, after its option has been approved under sub-section (3) of section 115VP, shall comply with the minimum training requirement in respect of trainee officers in accordance with the guidelines framed by the Director-General of Shipping and notified in the Official Gazette by the Central Government.

Minimum training requirement for tonnage tax company.

- (2) The tonnage tax company shall be required to furnish a copy of the certificate issued by the Director-General of Shipping along with the return of income under section 139 to the effect that such company has complied with the minimum training requirement in accordance with the guidelines referred to in sub-section (1) for the previous year.
- (3) If the minimum training requirement is not complied with for any five consecutive previous years, the option of the company for tonnage tax scheme shall cease to have effect from the beginning of the previous year following the fifth consecutive previous year in which the failure to comply with the minimum training requirement under sub-section (1) had occurred.
- 115VV. (1) In the case of every company which has opted for tonnage tax scheme, not more than forty-nine per cent. of the net tonnage of the qualifying ships operated by it during any previous year shall be chartered in.

Limit for charter in of tonnage.

- (2) The proportion of net tonnage referred to in sub-section (1) in respect of a previous year shall be calculated based on the av rage of net tonnage during that previous year.
- (3) For the purposes of sub-section (2), the average of net tonnage shall be computed in such manner as may be prescribed in consultation with the Director-General of Shipping.
- (4) Where the net tonnage of ships chartered in exceeds the limit under subsection (1) during any previous year, the total income of such company in relation to that previous year shall be computed as if the option for tonnage tax scheme does not have effect for that previous year.
- (5) Where the limit under sub-section (1) had exceeded in any two consecutive previous years, the option for tonnage tax scheme shall cease to have effect from the beginning of the previous year following the second consecutive previous year in which the limit had exceeded.

112372.

Hollso

-322

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section, the term "chartered in" shall exclude a ship chartered in by the company on bareboat charter-cum-demise terms.

Maintenance and audit of many accounts. COLV.

- 115VW. An option for tonnage tax scheme by a tonnage tax company shall not have effect in relation to a previous year unless such company-
  - (i) maintains separate books of account in respect of the business of operating qualifying ships; and
- (ii) furnishes, along with the return of income for that previous year, the report of an accountant, in the prescribed form duly signed and verified by such and the late the second of the contract of accountant.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section, "accountant" shall have the same meaning as in the Explanation below sub-section (2) of section 288.

Determination (1997) of tonnage.

Minimum

manta tiupat

อนที่กลอง ร่อใ

vimenios zet

training

And and France concent.

THE PROPERTY OF THE

robin endicità de la castal

, serveto a xix species.

- 115VX. (1) For the purposes of this Chapter,—
- (a) the tonnage of a ship shall be determined in accordance with the valid certificate indicating its tonnage;
  - (b) "valid certificate" means,
    - (i) in case of ships registered in India—
- (a) having a length of less than twenty-four metres, a certificate assign by a very consider a cissued under the Merchant Shipping (Tonnage Measurement of Ship) Rules, 1987 made under the Merchant Shipping Act, 1958;

44 of 1958.

(b) having a length of twenty-four metres or more, an international tonnage certificate issued under the provisions of the Convention on Tonnage Measurement of Ships, 1969, as specified in the Merchant Shipping (Tonnage Measurement of Ship) Rules, 1987 made under the Merchant Shipping Act, 1958;

44 of 1958.

44 of 1958.

of the other of the (ii) in case of ships registered outside India, a licence issued by the Director-General of Shipping under section 406 or section 407 of the Merchant Shipping Act, 1958 specifying the net tonnage on the basis of between for any five Tonnage Certificate issued by the Flag State Administration where the die ze tan schone shall ship is registered or any other evidence acceptable to the Director-General dan adi garvetta ti of Shipping produced by the ship owner while seeking permission for aninism manch-le- oil chartering in the ship.

E.—Amalgamation and demerger of shipping companies

tor simil

Amalgamation of a company with another company or companies, then, subject to the other provisions of this section, the provisions relating to the tonnage tax scheme shall, as far as may be, apply to the amalgamated company if it is a qualifying company:

Provided that where the amalgamated company is not a tonnage tax company, it shall exercise an option for tonnage tax scheme under sub-section (1) of section 115VP within three months from the date of the approval of the scheme of amalgamation: -tologrica g

Provided further that where the amalgamating companies are tonnage tax companies, the provisions of this Chapter shall, as far as may be, apply to the amalgamated company for such period as the option for tonnage tax scheme which has of nonzeless the longest unexpired period continues to be in force: when the longest unexpired period continues to be in force: TOD ROUGH SIMON

Provided also that where one of the amalgamating companies is a qualifying company as on the 1st day of October, 2004 and which has not exercised the option avinuation for tonnage tax scheme within the initial period, the provisions of this Chapter shall not apply to the amalgamated company and the income of the amalgamated company from and the business of operating qualifying ships shall be computed in accordance with the other provisions of this Act.

115VZ. Where in a scheme of demerger, the demerged company transfers its business to the resulting company before the expiry of the option for tonnage tax scheme, then, subject to the other provisions of this Chapter, the tonnage tax scheme shall, as far as may be, apply to the resulting company for the unexpired period if it is a qualifying company:

Demerger.

Provided that the option for tonnage tax scheme in respect of the demerged company shall remain in force for the unexpired period of the tonnage tax scheme if it continues to be a qualifying company.

regioneri Laccioni

#### F-Miscellaneous

115VZA. (1) A temporary cessation (as against permanent cessation) of operating any qualifying ship by a company shall not be considered as a cessation of operating of such qualifying ship and the company shall be deemed to be operating such qualifying ship for the purposes of this Chapter.

Effect of of temporarily ceasing to operate qualifying on A shipsanii and its

(2) Where a qualifying company continues to operate a ship, which temporarily ceases to be a qualifying ship, such ship shall not be considered as a qualifying ship for the purposes of this Chapter.

G-Provisions of this Chapter not to apply in certain cases

115VZB. (1) Subject to the provisions of this Chapter, the tonnage tax scheme shall not apply where a tonnage tax company is a party to any transaction or arrangement which amounts to an abuse of the tonnage tax scheme.

Avoidance of tax was

(2) For the purposes of sub-section (1), a transaction or arrangement shall be considered an abuse if the entering into or the application of such transaction or arrangement results, or would but for this section have resulted, in a tax advantage being obtained for—

Estantan by Velantan Office to

- (i) a person other than a tonnage tax company; or
- (ii) a tonnage tax company in respect of its non-tonnage tax activities.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section, "tax advantage" include—

- (i) the determination of the allowance for any expense or interest, or the determination of any cost or expense allocated or apportioned, or, as the case may be, which has the effect of reducing the income or increasing the loss, as the case may be, from activities other than tonnage tax activities chargeable to tax, computed on the basis of entries made in the books of account in respect of the previous year in which the transaction was entered into; or
  - (ii) a transaction or arrangement which produces to the tonnage tax company more than ordinary profits which might be expected to arise from tonnage tax activities.
- 115VZC. (1) Where a tonnage tax company is a party to any transaction or arrangement referred to in sub-section (1) of section 115VZB, the Assessing Officer shall, by an order in writing, exclude such company from the tonnage tax scheme:

Exclusion from tonnage tax scheme.

Provided that an opportunity shall be given by the Assessing Officer by serving a notice calling upon such company to show cause, on a date and time to be specified in the notice, why it should not be excluded from the tonnage tax scheme:

Provided further that no order under this sub-section shall be passed without the previous approval of the Chief Commissioner.

(2) The provisions of this section shall not apply where the company shows to the satisfaction of the Assessing Officer that the transaction or arrangement was a bona fide commercial transaction and had not been entered into for the purpose of obtaining tax advantage under this Chapter.

(3) Where an order has been passed under sub-section (1) by the Assessing Officer excluding the tonnage tax company from the tonnage tax scheme, the option for tonnage tax scheme shall cease to be in force from the first day of the previous year in which the transaction or arrangement was entered into.'.

Amendment of section 119.

31. In section 119 of the Income-tax Act, in sub-section (2), in clause (a), after the bracket and words "(whether by way of relaxation of any of the provisions of sections", the figures and letters "115P, 115S," shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004.

Amendment of section 139.

32. In section 139 of the Income-tax Act, in sub-section (9), in the Explanation, in clause (c), in sub-clause (i), for the words "deducted at source and", the words, figures and letters "deducted at source before the 1st day of April, 2005 and" shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005.

Amendment of section 139A.

- 33. In section 139A of the Income-tax Act,—
- (a) in sub-section (5A), the first proviso shall be omitted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005;
- (b) in sub-sections (5C) and (5D), for the word "buyer", the words "buyer or licensee or lessee" shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004.

Insertion of new section 142A. 34. After section 142 of the Income-tax Act, the following section shall be inserted and shall be deemed to have been inserted with effect from the 15th day of November, 1972, namely:—

Estimate by Valuation Officer in certain cases.

- '142A. (1) For the purposes of making an assessment or re-assessment under this Act, where an estimate of the value of any investment referred to in section 69 or section 69B or the value of any bullion, jewellery or other valuable article referred to in section 69A or section 69B is required to be made, the Assessing Officer may require the Valuation Officer to make an estimate of such value and report the same to him.
- (2) The Valuation Officer to whom a reference is made under sub-section (1) shall, for the purposes of dealing with such reference, have all the powers that he has under section 38A of the Wealth-tax Act, 1957.

27 of 1957.

(3) On receipt of the report from the Valuation Officer, the Assessing Officer may, after giving the assessee an opportunity of being heard, take into account such report in making such assessment or re-assessment:

Provided that nothing contained in this section shall apply in respect of an assessment made on or before the 30th day of September, 2004, and where such assessment has become final and conclusive on or before that date, except in cases where a reassessment is required to be made in accordance with the provisions of section 153A.

Explanation.—In this section, "Valuation Officer" has the same meaning as in clause (r) of section 2 of the Wealth-tax Act, 1957.'.

27 of 1957.

Amendment of section 153.

- 35. In section 153 of the Income-tax Act, in Explanation 1, with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004,—
  - (a) in clause (v), for the words "that section,", the words "that section, or" shall be substituted;
  - (b) after clause (v) and before the words "shall be excluded", the following clauses shall be inserted, namely:—
    - "(vi) the period commencing from the date on which an application is made before the Authority for Advance Rulings under sub-section (1) of section 245Q and ending with the date on which the order rejecting the application is received by the Commissioner under sub-section (3) of section 245R, or

(vii) the period commencing from the date on which an application is made before the Authority for Advance Rulings under sub-section (1) of section 245Q and ending with the date on which the advance ruling pronounced by it is received by the Commissioner under sub-section (7) of section 245R.".

36. In section 153B of the Income-tax Act, in sub-section (1), in the Explanation, with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004,—

Amendment of section 153B.

- (a) in clause (iv), for the words "that section,", the words "that section, or" shall be substituted;
- (b) after clause (iv) and before the words "shall be excluded", the following clauses shall be inserted, namely:—
  - "(v) the period commencing from the date on which an application is made before the Authority for Advance Rulings under sub-section (1) of section 245Q and ending with the date on which the order rejecting the application is received by the Commissioner under sub-section (3) of section 245R, or
  - (vi) the period commencing from the date on which an application is made before the Authority for Advance Rulings under sub-section (1) of section 245Q and ending with the date on which the advance ruling pronounced by it is received by the Commissioner under sub-section (7) of section 245R,".
- 37. In section 194C of the Income-tax Act, in sub-section (3), for clause (i), the following clause shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004, namely:—

Amendment of section 194C.

"(i) the amount of any sum credited or paid or likely to be credited or paid to the account of, or to, the contractor or sub-contractor, if such sum does not exceed twenty thousand rupees:

Provided that where the aggregate of the amounts of such sums credited or paid or likely to be credited or paid during the financial year exceeds fifty thousand rupees, the person responsible for paying such sums referred to in sub-section (1) or, as the case may be, sub-section (2) shall be liable to deduct income-tax under this section; or".

38. After section 194L of the Income-tax Act, the following section shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004, namely:—

Insertion of new section 194LA.

194LA. Any person responsible for paying to a resident any sum, being in the nature of compensation or the enhanced compensation or the consideration or the enhanced consideration on account of compulsory acquisition, under any law for the time being in force, of any immovable property (other than agricultural land), shall, at the time of payment of such sum in cash or by issue of a cheque or draft or by any other mode, whichever is earlier, deduct an amount equal to ten per cent. of such sum as income-tax thereon:

Payment of compensation on acquisition of certain immovable property.

Provided that no deduction shall be made under this section where the amount of such payment or, as the case may be, the aggregate amount of such payments to a resident during the financial year does not exceed one hundred thousand rupees.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section,—

- (i) "agricultural land" means agricultural land in India including land situate in any area referred to in items (a) and (b) of sub-clause (iii) of clause (14) of section 2:
- (ii) "immovable property" means any land (other than agricultural land) or any building or part of a building.'

39. In section 197 of the Income-tax Act, in sub-section (1), for the figures and letters "194C, 194D, 194G, 194H, 194-I, 194J, 194K", the figures and letters "194C, 194D, 194G, 194H, 194-I, 194J, 194K, 194LA" shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004.

Amendment of section 197 Amendment of section

40. In section 198 of the Income-tax Act, for the portion beginning with the words and figures "the provisions of sections 192" and ending with the word, figures and letter "section 196D", the words "the foregoing provisions of this Chapter" shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004.

Amendment of section 199.

- 41. In section 199 of the Income-tax Act,—
- (a) in sub-section (1), for the portion beginning with the words and figures "the provisions of sections 192" and ending with the word, figures and letter "section 196D", the words "the foregoing provisions of this Chapter" shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004;
- (b) after sub-section (2), the following sub-section shall be inserted at the end with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—
  - "(3) Where any deduction is made in accordance with the foregoing provisions of this Chapter on or after the 1st day of April, 2005 and paid to the Central Government, the amount of tax deducted and specified in the statement referred to in section 203AA shall be treated as tax paid on behalf of the persons referred to in sub-section (1) or, as the case may be, sub-section (2) and credit shall be given to him for the amount so deducted in the assessment made under this Act for the assessment year for which such income is assessable without the production of certificate."

Amendment of section 200.

- 42. In section 200 of the Income-tax Act,—
- (a) in sub-section (1), for the portion beginning with the words and figures "the provisions of sections 192" and ending with the word, figures and letter "section 196D", the words "the foregoing provisions of this Chapter" shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004;
- (b) after sub-section (2), the following sub-section shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—
  - "(3) Any person deducting any sum on or after the 1st day of April, 2005 in accordance with the foregoing provisions of this Chapter or, as the case may be, any person being an employer referred to in sub-section (1A) of section 192 shall, after paying the tax deducted to the credit of the Central Government within the prescribed time, prepare quarterly statements for the period ending on the 30th June, the 30th September, the 31st December and the 31st March in each financial year and deliver or cause to be delivered to the prescribed income-tax authority or the person authorised by such authority such statement in such form and verified in such manner and setting forth such particulars and within such time as may be prescribed."

Amendment of section 202.

43. In section 202 of the Income-tax Act, for the portion beginning with the word and figures "sections 192" and ending with the word, figures and letter "section 196D", the words "the foregoing provisions of this Chapter" shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004.

Amendment of section 203.

- 44. In section 203 of the Income-tax Act.-
- (a) in sub-section (1), for the portion beginning with the words and figures "the provisions of sections 192" and ending with the word, figures and letter "section 196D", the words "the foregoing provisions of this Chapter" shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004;
- (b) after sub-section (2), the following sub-section shall be inserted at the end with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:
  - "(3) Where the tax has been deducted or paid in accordance with the foregoing provisions of this Chapter on or after the 1st day of April, 2005, there shall be no requirement to furnish a certificate referred to in sub-section (1) or, as the case may be, sub-section (2)."

45. For section 203A of the Income-tax Act, the following section shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004, namely:—

Substitution of new section for section 203A.

'203A. (1) Every person, deducting tax or collecting tax in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter, who has not been allotted a tax deduction account number or, as the case may be, a tax collection account number, shall, within such time as may be prescribed, apply to the Assessing Officer for the allotment of a "tax deduction and collection account number".

Tax deduction and collection account number.

- (2) Where a "tax deduction account number" or, as the case may be, a "tax collection account number" or a "tax deduction and collection account number" has been allotted to a person, such person shall quote such number—
  - (a) in all challans for the payment of any sum in accordance with the provisions of section 200 or sub-section (3) of section 206C;
  - (b) in all certificates furnished under section 203 or sub-section (5) of section 206C;
  - (c) in all the returns, delivered in accordance with the provisions of section 206 or sub-section (5A) or sub-section (5B) of section 206C to any income-tax authority; and
  - (d) in all other documents pertaining to such transactions as may be prescribed in the interests of revenue.
- 46. After section 203A of the Income-tax Act, the following section shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—

Insertion of new section 203AA.

"203AA. The prescribed income-tax authority or the person authorised by such authority referred to in sub-section (3) of section 200, shall, within the prescribed time after the end of each financial year beginning on or after the 1st day of April, 2005 prepare and deliver to every person from whose income the tax has been deducted or in respect of whose income the tax has been paid a statement in the prescribed form specifying the amount of tax deducted or paid and such other particulars as may be prescribed."

Furnishing of statement of tax deducted.

47. In section 204 of the Income-tax Act, for the portion beginning with the word and figures "sections 192" and ending with the words and figures "sections 195 to 203", the words "the foregoing provisions of this Chapter" shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004.

Amendment of section 204.

48. In section 205 of the Income-tax Act, for the portion beginning with the word and figures "sections 192" and ending with the word, figures and letter "section 196D", the words "the foregoing provisions of this Chapter" shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004.

Amendment of section 205.

- 49. In section 206 of the Income-tax Act,-
  - (a) in sub-section (1), with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004,—
  - (i) for the words "prescribed income-tax authority", the words "prescribed income-tax authority or such other authority or agency as may be prescribed" shall be substituted;
    - (ii) the following proviso shall be inserted, namely:-

"Provided that the Board may, if it considers necessary or expedient so to do, frame a scheme for the purposes of filing such returns with such other authority or agency referred to in this sub-section."; Amendment of section 206.

- (b) in sub-section (2), with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005,—
- (i) for the words "other than the principal officer in the case of every company", the words "other than the prescribed person in the case of every office of the Government and the principal officer in the case of every company" shall be substituted;
  - (ii) for the proviso, the following proviso shall be substituted, namely:—

"Provided that the prescribed person in the case of every office of Government and the principal officer in the case of every company responsible for deducting tax under the foregoing provisions of this Chapter shall, deliver or cause to be delivered, within the prescribed time after the end of each financial year, such returns on computer media under the said scheme."

Amendment of section 206C.

50. In section 206C of the Income-tax Act,-

(a) after sub-section (1B), the following sub-section shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004, namely:—

'(IC) Every person, who grants a lease or a licence or enters into a contract or otherwise transfers any right or interest either in whole or in part in any parking lot or toll plaza or mine or quarry, to another person, other than a public sector company (hereafter in this section referred to as "licensee or lessee") for the use of such parking lot or toll plaza or mine or quarry for the purpose of business shall, at the time of debiting of the amount payable by the licensee or lessee to the account of the licensee or lessee or at the time of receipt of such amount from the licensee or lessee in cash or by the issue of a cheque or draft or by any other mode, whichever is earlier, collect from the licensee or lessee of any such licence, contract or lease of the nature specified in column (2) of the Table below, a sum equal to the percentage, specified in the corresponding entry in column (3) of the said Table, of such amount as income-tax:

TABLE

Sl. No.			Nature of contract or licence or lease, etc.	Percentage
(1)			T (2) A - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1	(3)
(i) (ii)			Parking lot Toll plaza	Two per cent. Two per cent.
(iii)	) , •		Mining and quarrying	Two per cent.';

- (b) in sub-section (2), after the word, brackets and figure "sub-section (1)", the words, brackets, figure and letter "or sub-section (1C)" shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004;
  - (c) in sub-section (3),—
  - (i) after the word, brackets and figure "sub-section (1)", the words, brackets, figure and letter "or sub-section (1C)" shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004;
  - (ii) the following proviso shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—

"Provided that the person collecting tax on or after the 1st day of April, 2005 in accordance with the foregoing provisions of this section shall, after paying the tax collected to the credit of the Central Government within the prescribed time, prepare quarterly statements for the period ending on the 30th June, the 30th September, the 31st December and the

31st March in each financial year and deliver or cause to be delivered to the prescribed inconvertax authority, or the person authorised by such authority, such statement in such form and verified in such manner and setting forth such particulars and within such time as may be prescribed.";

(d) in sub-section (4), the following proviso shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—

"Provided that where any amount is collected in accordance with the provisions of this section on or after the 1st day of April, 2005 and paid under subsection (3) to the credit of the Central Government, the amount of tax collected and specified in the statement referred to in the second proviso to sub-section (5) shall be deemed as payment of tax on behalf of the person from whom the amount has been collected and credit shall be given to him for the amount so collected in the assessment made under this Act for the assessment year for which such income is assessable without the production of certificate.";

#### (e) in sub-section (5),—

- (i) for the word "buyer", the words "buyer or licensee or lessee" shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004;
- (ii) the following provisos shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—
  - "Provided that no certificate may be furnished in a case where tax has been collected in accordance with the foregoing provisions of this section on or after the 1st day of April, 2005:

Provided further that the prescribed income-tax authority or the person authorised by such authority referred to in sub-section (3) shall, within the prescribed time after the end of each financial year, prepare and deliver to the buyer referred to in sub-section (1) or, as the case may be, to the licensee or lessee referred to in sub-section (1C), a statement in the prescribed form specifying the amount of tax collected and such other particulars as may be prescribed.";

- (f) in sub-section (5A), with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004,—
- (i) for the words, figures and letters "prepare half-yearly returns for the period ending on the 30th September and 31st March in each financial year", the words "prepare within the prescribed time after the end of each financial year" shall be substituted;
- (ii) for the words "prescribed income-tax authority", the words "prescribed income-tax authority or such other authority or agency as may be prescribed" shall be substituted;
  - (iii) the following proviso shall be inserted, namely:
  - "Provided that the Board may, if it considers necessary or expedient so to do, frame a scheme for the purposes of filing such returns with such other authority or agency referred to in this sub-section.";
- (g) for sub-sections (5B) and (5C), the following sub-sections shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—
  - "(5B) Without prejudice to the provisions of sub-section (5A), any person collecting tax, other than in a case where the seller is a company, the Central Government or a State Government, may at his option, deliver or cause to be delivered such return to the prescribed income-tax authority in accordance with such scheme as may be specified by the Board in this behalf, by notification in

the Official Gazette, and subject to such conditions as may be specified therein, on or before the prescribed time after the end of each financial year, on a floppy, diskette, magnetic cartridge tape, CD-ROM or any other computer readable media (hereinafter referred to as the computer media) and in the manner as may be specified in that scheme:

Provided that where the person collecting tax is a company or the Central Government or a State Government, such person shall, in accordance with the provisions of this section, deliver or cause to be delivered, within the prescribed time after the end of each financial year, such returns on computer media under the said scheme.

- (5C) Notwithstanding anything contained in any other law for the time being in force, a return filed on computer media shall be deemed to be a return for the purposes of sub-section (5A) and the rules made thereunder and shall be admissible in any proceedings made thereunder, without further proof of production of the original, as evidence of any contents of the original or of any facts stated therein.
- (5D) Where the Assessing Officer considers that the return delivered or caused to be delivered under sub-section (5B) is defective, he may intimate the defect to the person collecting tax and give him an opportunity of rectifying the defect within a period of fifteen days from the date of such intimation or within such further period which, on an application made in this behalf, the Assessing Officer may, in his discretion, allow; and if the defect is not rectified within the said period of fifteen days or, as the case may be, the further period so allowed, then, notwithstanding anything contained in any other provision of this Act, such return shall be treated as an invalid return and the provisions of this Act shall apply as if such person had failed to deliver the return.";
- (h) in sub-section (9), with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004,—
- (i) for the word "buyer", the words "buyer or licensee or lessee" shall be substituted;
- (ii) after the word, brackets and figure "sub-section (1)", at both the places where they occur, the words, brackets, figure and letter "or sub-section (1C)" shall be inserted.

Amendment of section 206CA.

51. In section 206CA of the Income-tax Act, after sub-section (2), the following proviso shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004, namely:—

"Provided that the provisions of this section shall not apply on or after the 1st day of October, 2004.".

Amendment of section 245RR

52. In section 245RR of the Income-tax Act, for the words, brackets, figures and letter "under sub-section (1) of section 245R", the words, brackets, figures and letter "under sub-section (1) of section 245Q" shall be substituted and shall be deemed to have been substituted with effect from the 1st day of October, 1998.

Amendment of section 246A.

53. In section 246A of the Income-tax Act, in sub-section (1), in clause (a), in the opening portion, for the words "an order against the assessee", the words, brackets, figures/and letters "an order passed by a Joint Commissioner under clause (ii) of sub-section (3) of section 115VP or an order against the assessee" shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004.

Amendment of section 253.

- 54. In section 253 of the Income-tax Act, in sub-section (1), after clause (b), the following clause shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004, namely:—
  - "(ba) an order passed by an Assessing Officer under sub-section (1) of section 115VZC; or.".

55. After section 271F of the Income-tax Act, the following section shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—

Insertion of new section 271FA.

"271FA. If a person who is required to furnish an annual information return, as required under sub-section (1) of section 285BA, fails to furnish such return within the time prescribed under that sub-section, the income-tax authority prescribed under the said sub-section may direct that such person shall pay, by way of penalty, a sum of one hundred rupees for every day during which the failure continues."

Penalty for failure to furnish annual information return.

56. In section 272A of the Income-tax Act, in sub-section (2), after clause (j), the following clause shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—

Amendment of section 272 A

"(k) to deliver or cause to be delivered a copy of the statement within the time specified in sub-section (3) of section 200 or the proviso to sub-section (3) of section 206C,":

57. In section 272B of the Income-tax Act, in sub-section (2), after the word, brackets, figure and letter "sub-section (5A)", the words, brackets, figure and letter "or sub-section (5C)" shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005.

Amendment of section 272B.

58. In section 272BBB of the Income-tax Act, in sub-section (1), for the words "fails to comply", the words, figures and letters "fails to comply before the 1st day of October, 2004" shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004.

Amendment of section 272BBB

59. In section 273B of the Income-tax Act, for the word, figures and letter "section 271F," the words, figures and letters "section 271F, section 271FA," shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005.

Amendment of section 273B

60. After section 277 of the Income-tax Act, the following section shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004, namely:—

Insertion of new section 277A.

"277A. If any person (hereafter in this section referred to as the first person) wilfully and with intent to enable any other person (hereafter in this section referred to as the second person) to evade any tax or interest or penalty chargeable and imposable under this Act, makes or causes to be made any entry or statement which is false and which the first person either knows to be false or does not believe to be true, in any books of account or other document relevant to or useful in any proceedings against the first person or the second person, under this Act, the first person shall be punishable with rigorous imprisonment for a term which shall not be less than three months but which may extend to three years and with fine.

Falsification of books of account or document, etc.

Explanation.—For the purposes of establishing the charge under this section, it shall not be necessary to prove that the second person has actually evaded any tax, penalty or interest chargeable or imposable under this Act.".

61. In section 278B of the Income-tax Act, after sub-section (2) and before the Explanation, the following sub-section shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004, namely:—

Amendment of section 278B.

"(3) Where an offence under this Act has been committed by a person, being a company, and the punishment for such offence is imprisonment and fine, then, without prejudice to the provisions contained in sub-section (1) or sub-section (2), such company shall be punished with fine and every person, referred to in sub-section (1), or the director, manager, secretary or other officer of the company referred to in sub-section (2), shall be liable to be proceeded against and punished in accordance with the provisions of this Act.".

Amendment of section 279.

Substitution of new section for section 285BA.
Obligation to furnish annual information return.

- 62. In Section 279 of the Income-tax Act, in sub-section (1), for the words and figures "section 277 or section 278", the words, figures and letter "section 277, section 277A or section 278" shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004.
- 63. For section 285BA of the Income-tax Act, the following section shall be substituted with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005, namely:—

#### '285BA. (1) Any person, being-

- (a) an assessee; or
- (b) the prescribed person in the case of an office of Government; or
- (c) a local authority or other public body or association; or
- (d) the Registrar or Sub-Registrar appointed under section 6 of the Registration Act, 1908; or

16 of 1908.

(e) the registering authority empowered to register motor vehicles under Chapter IV of the Motor Vehicles Act, 1988; or

59 of 1988.

(f) the Post Master General as referred to in clause (j) of section 2 of the Indian Post Office Act, 1898; or

6 of 1898.

(g) the Collector referred to in clause (c) of section 3 of the Land Acquisition Act, 1894; or

1 of 1894.

(h) the recognised stock exchange referred to in clause (f) of section 2 of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956; or

42 of 1956.

(i) an officer of the Reserve Bank of India, constituted under section 3 of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934; or

2 of 1934.

(1) a depository referred to in clause (e) of sub-section (1) of section 2 of the Depositories Act, 1996,

22 of 1996.

who is responsible for registering, or, maintaining books of account or other documents containing a record of any specified financial transaction, under any law for the time being in force, shall furnish an annual information return, in respect of such specified financial transaction which is registered or recorded by him during any financial year beginning on or after the 1st day of April, 2004 and information relating to which is relevant and required for the purposes of this Act, to the prescribed income-tax authority or such other authority or agency as may be prescribed.

- (2) The annual information return referred to in sub-section (1) shall be furnished within the prescribed time after the end of such financial year, in such form and manner (including on a floppy, diskette, magnetic cartridge tape, CD-ROM or any computer readable media) as may be prescribed.
- (3) For the purposes of sub-section (1), "specified financial transaction" means any—
  - (a) transaction of purchase, sale or exchange of goods or property or right or interest in a property; or
    - (b) transaction for rendering any service; or
    - (c) transaction under a works contract; or
    - (d) transaction by way of an investment made or an expenditure incurred;

(e) transaction for taking or accepting any loan or deposit,

which may be prescribed:

Provided that the Board may prescribe different values for different transactions in respect of different persons having regard to the nature of such transactions:

Provided further that the value or, as the case may be, the aggregate value of such transactions during a financial year so prescribed shall not be less than fifty thousand rupees.

- (4) Where the prescribed income-tax authority considers that the annual information return furnished under sub-section (1) is defective, he may intimate the defect to the person who has furnished such return and give him an opportunity of rectifying the defect within a period of one month from the date of such intimation or within such further period which, on an application made in this behalf, the prescribed income-tax authority may, in his discretion, allow; and if the defect is not rectified within the said period of one month or, as the case may be, the further period so allowed, then, notwithstanding anything contained in any other provision of this Act, such return shall be treated as an invalid return and the provisions of this Act shall apply as if such person had failed to furnish the annual information return.
- (5) Where a person who is required to furnish an annual information return under sub-section (1) has not furnished the same within the prescribed time, the prescribed income-tax authority may serve upon such person a notice requiring him to furnish such return within a period not exceeding sixty days from the date of service of such notice and he shall furnish the annual information return within the time specified in the notice.'.
- 64. In the Thirteenth Schedule to the Income-tax Act, with effect from the 1st day of April, 2005,—

Amendment of Thirteenth Schedule.

- (a) for the brackets, words, figures and letters "[See section 80-IC(2)]", the brackets, words, figures and letters "[See sections 80-IB(4) and 80-IC(2)]" shall be substituted:
  - (b) after Part B, the following Part shall be inserted, namely:—

# The PART C

### FOR THE STATE OF JAMMU AND KASHMIR

S.No	New all a leaf and Article of thing and a leaf age.	
1.	Cigarettes/cigars of tobacco, manufactured tobacco and substitutes	
<b>2.</b>	Distilled/brewed alcoholic drinks	
3.	Aerated branded beverages and their concentrates".	

#### Wealth-tax

65. In section 35HA of the Wealth-tax Act, 1957, after sub-section (2), the following sub-section shall be inserted with effect from the 1st day of October, 2004, namely:—

"(3) Where an offence under this Act has been committed by a person, being a company and such offence is punishable with imprisonment and fine, then, without prejudice to the provisions contained in sub-section (1) or sub-section (2), such company shall be punished with fine and every person, referred to in sub-section (1) or the director, manager, secretary or other officer of the company referred to in sub-section (2), shall be liable to be proceeded against and punished in accordance with the provisions of this Act.".

Amendment of section 35HA of Act 27 of 1957.

### **CHAPTER IV**

#### INDIRECT TAXES

#### Customs

Amendment of section 41.

66. In section 41 of the Customs Act, 1962 (hereinafter referred to as the Customs Act), in sub-section (1), the proviso shall be omitted.

52 of 1962.

Insertion of new section 122A. Adjudication

Procedure.

- 67. After section 122 of the Customs Act, the following section shall be inserted, namely:—
  - "122A. (1) The adjudicating authority shall, in any proceeding under this Chapter or any other provision of this Act, give an opportunity of being heard to a party in a proceeding, if the party so desires.
  - (2) The adjudicating authority may, if sufficient cause is shown, at any stage of proceeding referred to in sub-section (1), grant time, from time to time, to the parties or any of them and adjourn the hearing for reasons to be recorded in writing:

Provided that no such adjournment shall be granted more than three times to a party during the proceeding.".

Amendment of section 128.

- 68. In section 128 of the Customs Act, after sub-section (1), the following sub-section shall be inserted, namely:—
  - "(1A) The Commissioner (Appeals) may, if sufficient cause is shown, at any stage of hearing of an appeal, grant time, from time to time, to the parties or any of them and adjourn the hearing of the appeal for reasons to be recorded in writing:

Provided that no such adjournment shall be granted more than three times to a party during hearing of the appeal.".

Amendment of section 129A.

- 69. In section 129A of the Customs Act, with effect from such date as the Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, appoint, for sub-section (6), the following sub-sections shall be substituted, namely:—
  - "(6) An appeal to the Appellate Tribunal shall be in such form and shall be verified in such manner as may be specified by rules made in this behalf and shall, irrespective of the date of demand of duty and interest or of levy of penalty in relation to which the appeal is made, be accompanied by a fee of,—
    - (a) where the amount of duty and interest demanded and penalty levied by any officer of customs in the case to which the appeal relates is five lakh rupees or less, one thousand rupees;
    - (b) where the amount of duty and interest demanded and penalty levied by any officer of customs in the case to which the appeal relates is more than five lakh rupees but not exceeding fifty lakh rupees, five thousand rupees;
    - (c) where the amount of duty and interest demanded and penalty levied by any officer of customs in the case to which the appeal relates is more than fifty lakh rupees, ten thousand rupees:

Provided that no such fee shall be payable in the case of an appeal referred to in sub-section (2) or a memorandum of cross-objections referred to in sub-section (4).

- (7) Every application made before the Appellate Tribunal,—
- (a) in an appeal for grant of stay or for rectification of mistake or for any other purpose; or
  - (b) for restoration of an appeal or an application,

shall be accompanied by a fee of five hundred rupees:

Provided that no such fee shall be payable in the case of an application filed by or on behalf of the Commissioner of Customs under this sub-section.".

70. In section 129B of the Customs Act, after sub-section (1), the following sub-section shall be inserted, namely:—

Amendment of section 129B.

"(1A) The Appellate Tribunal may, if sufficient cause is shown, at any stage of hearing of an appeal, grant time to the parties or any of them and adjourn the hearing of the appeal for reasons to be recorded in writing:

Provided that no such adjournment shall be granted more than three times to a party during hearing of the appeal.".

71. In section 137 of the Customs Act, after sub-section (2), the following sub-section shall be inserted, namely:—

Amendment of section 137.

"(3) Any offence under this Chapter may, either before or after the institution of prosecution, be compounded by the Chief Commissioner of Customs on payment, by the person accused of the offence to the Central Government, of such compounding amount as may be specified by rules.".

72. In section 142 of the Customs Act, in sub-section (1), the following proviso shall be inserted at the end, namely:—

Amendment of section

"Provided that where the person (hereinafter referred to as predecessor), by whom any sum payable under this Act including the amount required to be paid to the credit of the Central Government under section 28B is not paid, transfers or otherwise disposes of his business or trade in whole or in part, or effects any change in the ownership thereof, in consequence of which he is succeeded in such business or trade by any other person, all goods, materials, preparations, plants, machineries, vessels, utensils, implements and articles in the custody or possession of the person so succeeding may also be attached and sold by the proper officer, after obtaining written approval from the Commissioner of Customs, for the purposes of recovering the amount so payable by such predecessor at the time of such transfer or otherwise disposal or change."

73. In section 156 of the Customs Act, in sub-section (2), after clause (g), the following clause shall be inserted, namely:—

Amendment of section

"(h) the amount to be paid for compounding under sub-section (3) of section 137.".

74. (1) The notification of the Government of India in the Ministry of Finance (Department of Revenue) No. 83/2004-Customs (N.T.), dated the 30th June, 2004, published in the Official Gazette vide No.GS.R. 393(E), dated the 30th June, 2004 (hereinafter referred to as the said notification) shall, for the purposes of hundred per cent. export-oriented undertakings, be deemed to be, and to have always been, for all purposes, in force retrospectively on and from the 11th day of May, 1982 and accordingly, notwithstanding anything contained in any judgment, decree or order of any court, tribunal or other authority—

Validation of certain actions taken by Central Excise Officers.

- (a) any action taken or anything done by a Central Excise Officer appointed by the said notification as an officer of customs to discharge the duties of an officer of customs in respect of hundred per cent. export-oriented undertakings, on and from the 11th day of May, 1982 to 30th day of June, 2004, shall, for all purposes, be deemed to be, and to have always been, validly taken or done as if the appointment made by the said notification was in force at all material times;
- (b) no suit or other proceedings shall be instituted, maintained or continued in any court, tribunal or other authority against the Central Government or the Central Excise Officer appointed as an officer of customs by the said notification for any action taken or anything done in good faith during the discharge of his duties as an officer of customs in respect of hundred per cent. export-oriented undertakings during the period on and from the 11th day of May, 1982 to 30th day of June, 2004, as if the appointment made by the said notification was in force at all material times;

- (c) recovery made of any amount of duty or interest or penalty or fine or other charges by or under the order or direction of the Central Excise Officer appointed as an officer of customs by the said notification during the period on and from the 11th day of May, 1982 to 30th day of June, 2004 shall be deemed to be valid, and to have always been, for all purposes, as validly and effectively, made as if the appointment made by the said notification was in force at all material times.
- (2) For the purposes of sub-section (1), the Central Board of Excise and Customs shall have and shall be deemed to have always had the power to bring into force the said notification with retrospective effect as if the Central Board of Excise and Customs had the power to bring into force the said notification under section 4 of the Customs Act, 1962, retrospectively, at all material times.

52 of 1962.

(3) For the purposes of this section, the designations of the officers of customs and the Central Excise Officers as existed before the commencement of the Finance Act, 1995, shall be deemed to be the corresponding substituted designations as specified in the Tables respectively below section 50 and section 70 of the said Finance Act.

22 of 1995.

Explanation 1.—For the removal of doubts, it is hereby declared that no act or omission on the part of any person shall be punishable as an offence which would not have been so punishable if the said notification had not come retrospectively into force.

Explanation 2.—For the purposes of this section, "hundred per cent. export-oriented undertaking" shall have the meaning assigned to it in clause (ii) of Explanation 2 to the proviso to clause (b) of section 3 of the Central Excise Act, 1944.

1 of 1944.

#### Customs tariff

Amendment of section 3. 75. In section 3 of the Customs Tariff Act, 1975 (hereinafter referred to as the Customs Tariff Act), in sub-section (2), in clause (ii), the following amendments shall be made and shall be deemed to have been made on and from the 9th day of July, 2004, namely:—

51 of 1975.

- (a) in sub-clause (d), the word "and", occurring at the end, shall be omitted;
  - (b) after sub-clause (d), the following sub-clause shall be inserted, namely:—

"(dd) the Education Cess on imported goods referred to in section 94 of the Finance (No. 2) Act, 2004; and".

Amendment of section 9A. 76. In section 9A of the Customs Tariff Act, in sub-section (8), for the words "relating to non-levy, short-levy, refunds and appeals", the words "relating to, the date for determination of rate of duty, non-levy, short-levy, refunds, interest, appeals, offences and penalties" shall be substituted.

Amendment of section 9C

- 77. In section 9C of the Customs Tariff Act, with effect from such date as the Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, appoint, after sub-section (1), the following sub-sections shall be inserted, namely:—
  - "(IA) An appeal under sub-section (I) shall be accompanied by a fee of fifteen thousand rupees.
    - (1B) Every application made before the Appellate Tribunal,—
    - (a) in an appeal under sub-section (1), for grant of stay or for rectification of mistake or for any other purpose; or
      - (b) for restoration of an appeal or an application,

shall be accompanied by a fee of five hundred rupees.".

78. In the First Schedule to the Customs Tariff Act,—

Amendment of First Schedule.

(i) in Chapter 11, in tariff items 1108 12 00, 1108 14 00, 1108 19 10 and 1108 19 90, for the entry in column (4) occurring against each of them, the entry "50%" shall be substituted;

(ii) in Chapter 19, in tariff item 1903 00 00, for the entry in column (4), the entry "50%" shall be substituted;

(iii) in Chapter 29, in tariff item 2922 42 20, for the entry in column (2), the entry "--- Monosodium glutamate" shall be substituted;

(iv) in Chapter 35, in tariff items 3505 10 10 and 3505 10 90, for the entry in column (4) occurring against each of them, the entry "50%" shall be substituted.

#### Excise

of 1944.

79. Section 9A of the Central Excise Act, 1944 (hereinafter referred to as the Central Excise Act) shall be re-numbered as sub-section (1) thereof and after sub-section (1) as so renumbered, the following sub-section shall be inserted, namely:—

Amendment of section 9A.

"(2) Any offence under this Chapter may, either before or after the institution of prosecution, be compounded by the Chief Commissioner of Central Excise on payment, by the person accused of the offence to the Central Government, of such compounding amount as may be prescribed."

80. In section 11 of the Central Excise Act, the following proviso shall be inserted at the end, namely:—

Amendment of section 11.

"Provided that where the person (hereinafter referred to as predecessor) from whom the duty or any other sums of any kind, as specified in this section, is recoverable or due, transfers or otherwise disposes of his business or trade in whole or in part, or effects any change in the ownership thereof, in consequence of which he is succeeded in such business or trade by any other person, all excisable goods, materials, preparations, plants, machineries, vessels, utensils, implements and articles in the custody or possession of the person so succeeding may also be attached and sold by such officer empowered by the Central Board of Excise and Customs, after obtaining written approval from the Commissioner of Central Excise, for the purposes of recovering such duty or other sums recoverable or due from such predecessor at the time of such transfer or otherwise disposal or change."

81. After section 33 of the Central Excise Act, the following section shall be inserted, namely:—

Insertion of new section 33A

"33A. (1) The Adjudicating authority shall, in any proceeding under this Chapter or any other provision of this Act, give an opportunity of being heard to a party in a proceeding, if the party so desires.

Adjudication procedure.

(2) The Adjudicating authority may, if sufficient cause is shown, at any stage of proceeding referred to in sub-section (1), grant time, from time to time, to the parties or any of them and adjourn the hearing for reasons to be recorded in writing:

Provided that no such adjournment shall be granted more than three times to a party during the proceeding.".

82. In section 35 of the Central Excise Act, after sub-section (1), the following sub-section shall be inserted, namely:—

Amendment of section 35.

"(1A) The Commissioner (Appeals) may, if sufficient cause is shown, at any stage of hearing of an appeal, grant time, from time to time, to the parties or any of them and adjourn the hearing of the appeal for reasons to be recorded in writing:

Provided that no such adjournment shall be granted more than three times to a party during hearing of the appeal."

83. In section 35B of the Central Excise Act, with effect from such date as the Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, appoint, for sub-section (6), the following sub-sections shall be substituted, namely:—

Amendment of section 35B.

"(6) An appeal to the Appellate Tribunal shall be in the prescribed form and

shall be verified in the prescribed manner and shall, irrespective of the date of demand of duty and interest or of levy of penalty in relation to which the appeal is made, be accompanied by a fee of,—

- (a) where the amount of duty and interest demanded and penalty levied by any Central Excise Officer in the case to which the appeal relates is five lakh rupees or less, one thousand rupees;
- (b) where the amount of duty and interest demanded and penalty levied by any Central Excise Officer in the case to which the appeal relates is more than five lakh rupees but not exceeding fifty lakh rupees, five thousand rupees;
- (c) where the amount of duty and interest demanded and penalty levied by any Central Excise Officer in the case to which the appeal relates is more than fifty lakh rupees, ten thousand rupees:

Provided that no such fee shall be payable in the case of an appeal referred to in sub-section (2) or a memorandum of cross-objections referred to in sub-section (4).

- (7) Every application made before the Appellate Tribunal,—
- (a) in an appeal for grant of stay or for rectification of mistake or for any other purpose; or
  - (b) for restoration of an appeal or an application,

shall be accompanied by a fee of five hundred rupees:

Provided that no such fee shall be payable in the case of an application filed by or on behalf of the Commissioner of Central Excise under this sub-section.".

Amendment of section 35C.

- 84. In section 35C of the Central Excise Act, after sub-section (1), the following sub-section shall be inserted, namely:—
  - "(1A) The Appellate Tribunal may, if sufficient cause is shown, at any stage of hearing of an appeal, grant time, from time to time, to the parties or any of them and adjourn the hearing of the appeal for reasons to be recorded in writing:

Provided that no such adjournment shall be granted more than three times to a party during hearing of the appeal.".

Amendment of section 37.

- 85. In section 37 of the Central Excise Act, in sub-section (2),—
  - (a) after clause (ic), the following clause shall be inserted, namely:
  - "(id) provide for the amount to be paid for compounding under subsection (2) of section 9A;";
  - (b) after clause (xvia), the following clause shall be inserted, namely:—

"(xviaa) provide for credit of service tax leviable under Chapter V of the Finance Act, 1994, paid or payable on taxable services used in, or in relation to, the manufacture of excisable goods;".

32 of 1994.

Amendment of Third Schedule. 86. In the Third Schedule to the Central Excise Act, against serial No. 91, in column (3), in the entry, the words "other than monochrome," shall be omitted.

Validation of certain actions taken by officers of customs. 87. (1) The notification of the Government of India in the Ministry of Finance (Department of Revenue) No. 38/2001-Central Excise (N.T.), dated the 26th June, 2001, published in the Official Gazette vide No. G.S.R. 467(E), dated the 26th June, 2001 (hereinafter referred to as the principal notification), as amended by the notification of the Government of India in the erstwhile Ministry of Finance and Company Affairs (Department of Revenue) No. 32/2002-Central Excise (N.T.), dated the 17th September, 2002, published in the Official Gazette vide No. G.S.R. 655(E), dated the 17th September, 2002 (hereinafter referred to as the first amendment) and the notification of the Government of India in the erstwhile Ministry of Finance and Company Affairs (Department of Revenue) No. 1/2003-Central Excise (N.T.), dated the 13th January, 2003,

published in the Official Gazette vide No. GS.R. 27(E), dated the 13th January, 2003 (hereinafter referred to as the second amendment) shall, for the purposes of hundred per cent. export-oriented undertakings, be deemed to be, and to have always been, for all purposes, in force retrospectively on and from the 11th day of May, 1982 and accordingly, notwithstanding anything contained in any judgment, decree or order of any court, tribunal or other authority—

- (a) any action taken or anything done by an officer of customs invested with the powers of a Central Excise Officer to discharge the duties of the Central Excise Officer in respect of hundred per cent. export-oriented undertakings, on and from the 11th day of May, 1982 to 13th day of January, 2003, by the first amendment and the second amendment to the principal notification, shall, for all purposes, be deemed to be, and to have always been, validly taken or done as if the investment of powers made by the first amendment and the second amendment to the principal notification were in force at all material times;
- (b) no suit or other proceedings shall be instituted, maintained or continued in any court, tribunal or other authority against the Central Government or an officer of customs invested with powers of the Central Excise Officer, by the first amendment and the second amendment to the principal notification, for any action taken or anything done in good faith during the discharge of his duties as the Central Excise Officer in respect of hundred per cent. export-oriented undertakings during the period on and from the 11th day of May, 1982 to 13th day of January, 2003, as if the investment of powers made by the first amendment and the second amendment to the principal notification were in force at all material times;
- (c) recovery made of any amount of duty or interest or penalty or fine or other charges by or under the order or direction of an officer of customs invested with powers of the Central Excise Officer by the first amendment and the second amendment to the principal notification during the period on and from the 11th day of May, 1982 to 13th day of January, 2003 shall be deemed to be valid, and to have always been, for all purposes, as validly and effectively made as if the investment of powers made by the first amendment and the second amendment to the principal notification were in force at all material times.
- (2) For the purposes of sub-section (1), the Central Board of Excise and Customs shall have and shall be deemed to have always had the powers to bring into force the principal notification, the first amendment and the second amendment with retrospective effect as if the Central Board of Excise and Customs had the powers to bring into force the principal notification, the first amendment and the second amendment under clause (b) of section 2 of the Central Excise Act, 1944, retrospectively, at all material times.
- (3) For the purposes of this section, the designations of the officers of customs and the Central Excise Officers as existed before the commencement of the Finance Act, 1995 shall be deemed to be the corresponding substituted designations as specified in the Tables respectively below section 50 and section 70 of the said Finance Act.

Explanation 1.—For the removal of doubts, it is hereby declared that no act or omission on the part of any person shall be punishable as an offence which would not have been so punishable if the principal notification as amended by the first amendment and the second amendment had not come retrospectively into force.

Explanation 2.—For the purposes of this section, "hundred per cent. export-oriented undertaking" shall have the meaning assigned to it in clause (ii) of Explanation 2 to the proviso to clause (b) of section 3 of the Central Excise Act, 1944.

88. (1) In the CENVAT Credit Rules, 2002 made by the Central Government in exercise of the powers conferred by section 37 of the Central Excise Act, 1944, in rule 3, in sub-rule (6), in clause (b), the Explanation shall stand amended and shall be deemed to have been amended retrospectively in the manner as specified in the Second Schedule, on and from the corresponding date mentioned in column (3) of that Schedule and, accordingly,

Amendment of the CENVAT Credit Rules, 2002.

.

1 of 1944.

22 of 1995

1 of 1944

1 of 1944.

notwithstanding anything contained in any judgment, decree or order of any court, tribunal or other authority, any action taken or anything done or purported to have been taken or done under the said *Explanation* shall be deemed to be, and to have always been, for all purposes, as validly and effectively, taken or done as if the said *Explanation* as amended by this sub-section had been in force at all material times.

(2) For the purposes of sub-section (1), the Central Government shall have and shall be deemed to have the power to make rules with retrospective effect as if the Central Government had the power to make rules under section 37 of the Central Excise Act, 1944, retrospectively, at all material times.

1 of 1944.

(3) The CENVAT credit shall be allowed of such additional duty of excise leviable under section 3 of the Additional Duties of Excise (Goods of Special Importance) Act, 1957 which has been disallowed but which would not have been disallowed if the amendment made by sub-section (1) was in force at all material times.

58 of 1957.

(4) Recovery shall be made of such CENVAT credit of additional duty of excise leviable under section 3 of the Additional Duties of Excise (Goods of Special Importance) Act, 1957 which has been availed but which would not have been availed if the amendment made by sub-section (1) was in force at all material times and the provisions of CENVAT Credit Rules, 2002 relating to the recovery of CENVAT credit, along with interest, shall apply for the recovery made under this sub-section subject to the modification that the relevant date defined in section 11A of the Central Excise Act, 1944, shall, for the purposes of recovery under this sub-section, be deemed to be the date on which the Finance (No. 2) Bill, 2004 receives the assent of the President.

58 of 1957.

1 of 1944.

Explanation 1.—For the removal of doubts, it is hereby declared that no act or omission on the part of any person shall be punishable as an offence which would not have been so punishable if this section had not come into force.

Explanation 2.—For the purposes of this section, the expression "CENVAT credit" has the meaning assigned to it in the CENVAT Credit Rules, 2002.

### Central Excise Tariff

89. In the First Schedule to the Central Excise Tariff Act, 1985,—

(i) in Chapter 50, in sub-heading Nos. 5004.11, 5004.90, 5005.10, 5005.20 and 5005.90, for the entry in column (4) occurring against each of them, the entry "8%" shall be substituted;

(ii) in Section XV, after NOTE 9, the following NOTE shall be inserted, namely:—

"10. In relation to the products of this Section, the process of drawing or redrawing a rod, wire or any other similar article, into wire shall amount to 'manufacture'.":

(iii) in Chapter 90, in sub-heading No. 9001.10, for the entry in column (4), the entry "8%" shall be substituted;

(iv) in Chapter 95, in sub-heading No. 9504.10, for the entry in column (4), the entry "8%" shall be substituted.

#### CHAPTER V

#### SERVICE TAX

Amendment of Act 32 of

Amendment

of First Schedule to

Act 5 of

1986.

90. In the Finance Act, 1994,—

(a) in section 65,—

(i) after clause (3), the following clauses shall be inserted, namely:—

'(3a) "aircraft" has the meaning assigned to it in clause (1) of section 2 of the Aircraft Act, 1934;

22 of 1934.

of 1994.

of 1994

(3b) "aircraft operator" means any commercial concern which provides the service of transport of goods by aircraft;

- (3c) "airport" has the meaning assigned to it in clause (b) of section 2 of the Airports Authority of India Act, 1994;
- (3d) "airports authority" means the Airports Authority of India constituted under section 3 of the Airports Authority of India Act, 1994 and also includes any person having the charge of management of an airport or a civil enclave;";
- (ii) for clause (12), the following clause shall be substituted, namely:—
  - '(12) "banking and other financial services" means—
  - (a) the following services provided by a banking company or a financial institution including a non-banking financial company or any other body corporate or commercial concern, namely:—
    - (i) financial leasing services including equipment leasing and hire-purchase;
      - (ii) credit card services;
      - (iii) merchant banking services;
      - (iv) securities and foreign exchange (forex) broking;
    - (v) asset management including portfolio management, all forms of fund management, pension fund management, custodial, depository and trust services, but does not include cash management;
    - (vi) advisory and other auxiliary financial services including investment and portfolio research and advice, advice on mergers and acquisitions and advice on corporate restructuring and strategy;
    - (vii) provision and transfer of information and data processing; and
    - (viii) other financial services, namely, lending; issue of pay order, demand draft, cheque, letter of credit and bill of exchange; providing bank guarantee, over draft facility, bill discounting facility, safe deposit locker, safe vaults; operation of bank accounts;
  - (b) foreign exchange broking provided by a foreign exchange broker other than those covered under sub-clause (a);';
- (iii) for clause (19), the following clauses shall be substituted, namely:—
  - '(19) "business auxiliary service" means any service in relation to—
  - (i) promotion or marketing or sale of goods produced or provided by or belonging to the client; or
  - (ii) promotion or marketing of service provided by the client; or
  - (iii) any customer care service provided on behalf of the client; or
  - (iv) procurement of goods or services, which are inputs for the client; or

- (v) production of goods on behalf of the client; or
- (vi) provision of service on behalf of the client; or
- (vii) a service incidental or auxiliary to any activity specified in sub-clauses (i) to (vi), such as billing, issue or collection or recovery of cheques, payments, maintenance of accounts and remittance, inventory management, evaluation or development of prospective customer or vendor, public relation services, management or supervision,

and includes services as a commission agent, but does not include any information technology service and any activity that amounts to "manufacture" within the meaning of clause (f) of section 2 of the Central Excise Act, 1944.

1 of 1944.

Explanation.—For the removal of doubts, it is hereby declared that for the purposes of this clause, "information technology service" means any service in relation to designing, developing or maintaining of computer software, or computerised data processing or system networking, or any other service primarily in relation to operation of computer systems.

- (19a) "business exhibition" means an exhibition,---
  - (a) to market; or
  - (b) to promote; or
  - (c) to advertise; or
  - (d) to showcase,

any product or service, intended for the growth in business of the producer or provider of such product or service, as the case may be;';

- (iv) after clause (24), the following clause shall be inserted, namely:
- '(24a) "civil enclave" has the meaning assigned to it in clause (i) of section 2 of the Airports Authority of India Act, 1994;';

55 of 1994.

- (v) clause (28) shall be omitted;
- (vi) in clause (29), for the words "in relation to commissioning or installation", the words "in relation to erection, commissioning or installation" shall be substituted;
- (vii) after clause (30), the following clause shall be inserted, namely:—
  - '(30a) "construction service" means—
  - (a) construction of new building or civil structure or a part thereof; or
  - (b) repair, alteration or restoration of, or similar services in relation to, building or civil structure,

which is-

- (i) used, or to be used, primarily for; or
- (ii) occupied, or to be occupied, primarily with; or
- (iii) engaged, or to be engaged, primarily in,

commerce or industry, or work intended for commerce or industry, but does not include road, airport, railway, transport terminal, bridge, tunnel, long distance pipeline and dam;

(viii) after clause (39), the following clause shall be inserted, namely:—

"(39a) "erection, commissioning or installation" means any service provided by a commissioning and installation agency in relation to erection, commissioning or installation of plant, machinery or equipment;

- (ix) after clause (46), the following clause shall be inserted, namely:—
- '(46a) "forward contract" has the meaning assigned to it in clause (c) of section 2 of the Forward Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1952;';
- (x) after clause (50), the following clauses shall be inserted, namely:—
- '(50a) "goods carriage" has the meaning assigned to it in clause (14) of section 2 of the Motor Vehicles Act, 1988;
- (50b) "goods transport agency" means any commercial concern which provides service in relation to transport of goods by road and issues consignment note, by whatever name called;";
- (xi) after clause (55), the following clauses shall be inserted, namely:—
- '(55a) "intellectual property right" means any right to intangible property, namely, trade marks, designs, patents or any other similar intangible property, under any law for the time being in force, but does not include copyright;
  - (55b) "intellectual property service" means,—
    - (a) transferring, whether permanently or otherwise; or
    - (b) permitting the use or enjoyment of,

any intellectual property right;';

- (xii) after clause (75), the following clauses shall be inserted, namely:—
- '(75a) "opinion poll" means any service designed to secure information on public opinion regarding social, economic, political or other issues;
- (75b) "opinion poll agency" means any person engaged in providing any service in relation to opinion poll;";
- (xiii) after clause (76), the following clause shall be inserted, namely:—
- '(76a) "outdoor caterer" means a caterer engaged in providing services in connection with catering at a place other than his own;";
- (xiv) after clause (77), the following clauses shall be inserted, namely:—
- '(77a) "pandal or shamiana" means a place specially prepared or arranged for organising an official, social or business function;
- (77b) "pandal or shamiana contractor" means a person engaged in providing any service, either directly or indirectly, in connection with the preparation, arrangement, erection or decoration of a pandal or shamiana, and includes the supply of furniture, fixtures, lights and lighting fittings, floor coverings and other articles for use therein;';
- (xv) after clause (86), the following clauses shall be inserted, namely:—
- '(86a) "programme" means any audio or visual matter, live or recorded, which is intended to be disseminated by transmission of electromagnetic waves through space or through cables intended to be received by the general public either directly or indirectly through the medium of relay stations;

4 of 1952.

9 of 1988

(86b) "programme producer" means a commercial concern which produces a programme on behalf of another person;';

(xvi) after clause (89), the following clauses shall be inserted, namely:—

'(89a) "recognised association" has the meaning assigned to it in clause (j) of section 2 of the Forward Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1952;

74 of 1952.

(89b) "registered association" has the meaning assigned to it in clause (*ij*) of section 2 of the Forward Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1952;"; (xvii) for clause (101), the following clause shall be substituted, namely:—

74 of 1952.

'(101) "stock-broker" means a person, who has either made an application for registration or is registered as a stock-broker or sub-broker, as the case may be, in accordance with the rules and regulations made under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992;";

15 of 1992.

(xviii) clause (103) shall be omitted;

(xix) after clause (104), the following clause shall be inserted, namely:—

'(104a) "survey and exploration of mineral" means geological, geophysical or other prospecting, surface or sub-surface surveying or map making service, in relation to location or exploration of deposits of mineral, oil or gas;';

(xx) in clause (105),—

भागात्र केने हैं।

- (a) in sub-clause (a), for the words "to an investor", the words "to any person" shall be substituted;
- (b) in sub-clause (g), after the words "disciplines of engineering", the words "but not in the discipline of computer hardware engineering or computer software engineering" shall be inserted;
- (c) for sub-clause (zm), the following sub-clause shall be substituted, namely:—
- "(zm) to a customer, by a banking company or a financial institution including a non-banking financial company, or any other body corporate or commercial concern, in relation to banking and other financial services;";
  - (d) sub-clause (zp) shall be omitted;
  - (e) in sub-clause (zs), for the words "to a customer, by a cable operator", the words "to any person, by a cable operator, including a multisystem operator," shall be substituted;
  - (f) in sub-clause (zx), for the words "in relation to life insurance business", the words "in relation to the risk cover in life insurance" shall be substituted;
  - (g) in sub-clause (zzd), for the words "commissioning or installation", the words "erection, commissioning or installation" shall be substituted;
  - (h) after sub-clause (zzl), the following sub-clauses shall be inserted, namely:—
  - "(zzm) to any person, by the airports authority or any person authorised by it, in an airport or a civil enclave;
    - (zzn) to any person, by an aircraft operator, in relation to transport of goods by aircraft;
    - (zzo) to an exhibitor, by the organiser of a business exhibition, in relation to business exhibition;
  - (zzp) to a customer, by a goods transport agency, in relation to transport of goods by road in a goods carriage;

- (zzq) to any person, by a commercial concern, in relation to construction service:
- (zzr) to any person, by the holder of intellectual property right, in relation to intellectual property service;
- (zzs) to any person, by an opinion poll agency, in relation to opinion poll;
  - (zzt) to a client, by an outdoor caterer;
- (zzu) to any person, by a programme producer, in relation to a programme;
- (zzv) to a customer, by any person, in relation to survey and exploration of mineral;
- (zzw) to a client, by a pandal or shamiana contractor in relation to a pandal or shamiana in any manner and also includes the services, if any, rendered as a caterer;
- (zzx) to a customer, by a travel agent, in relation to the booking of passage for travel;
- (zzy) to any person, by a member of a recognised association or a registered association, in relation to a forward contract;";
- (xxi) for clause (115), the following clauses shall be substituted, namely:—
- '(115) "tour operator" means any person engaged in the business of planning, scheduling, organising or arranging tours (which may include arrangements for accommodation, sightseeing or other similar services) by any mode of transport, and includes any person engaged in the business of operating tours in a tourist vehicle covered by a permit granted under the Motor. Vehicles Act, 1988 or the rules made thereunder;
- (115a) "travel agent" means any person engaged in providing any service connected with booking of passage for travel, but does not include air travel agent and rail travel agent;";
- (b) for section 66, the following section shall be substituted, namely:—

"66. There shall be levied a tax (hereinafter referred to as the service tax) at the rate of ten per cent. of the value of the taxable services referred to in subclauses (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), (f), (g), (h), (i), (j), (k), (l), (m), (n), (o), (p), (q), (r), (s), (l), (u), (v), (w), (x), (y), (z), (za), (zb), (zc), (zd), (ze), (zf), (zg), (zf), (zj), (zj), (zz), (zz)

Charge of service tax.

- (c) in section 67,—
- (a) the Explanation shall be numbered as Explanation 1, and in the Explanation 1 as so numbered,—
  - (i) in clause (vi), the word "and" occurring at the end shall be omitted;
    - (ii) for clause (vii), the following clauses shall be substituted, namely:—
- "(vii) the cost of parts or other material, if any, sold to the customer during the course of providing erection, commissioning or installation service; and
  - The below of the given (viii) interest on loans."; we may recent

50 of 1988

(b) after Explanation 1 as so numbered, the following Explanation shall be inserted, namely:-

"Explanation 2.—Where the gross amount charged by a service provider is inclusive of service tax payable, the value of taxable service shall be such amount as with the addition of tax payable, is equal to the gross amount charged.";

- (d) sections 71 and 72 shall be omitted;
- (e) for section 73, the following section shall be substituted, namely:

'73. (1) Where any service tax has not been levied or paid or has been shortlevied or short-paid or erroneously refunded, the Assistant Commissioner of Central Excise or, as the case may be, the Deputy Commissioner of Central Excise may. within one year from the relevant date, serve notice on the person chargeable with the service tax which has not been levied or paid or which has been short-levied or short-paid or the person to whom such tax refund has erroneously been made, requiring him to show cause why he should not pay the amount specified in the notice:

Provided that where any service tax has not been levied or paid or has been short-levied or short-paid or erroneously refunded by reason of-

- (a) fraud; or
- (b) collusion; or
- (c) wilful mis-statement; or
- (d) suppression of facts; or
- (e) contravention of any of the provisions of this Chapter or of the radiant forming Wester rules made thereunder with intent to evade payment of service tax,

by the person chargeable with the service tax or his agent, the provisions of this sub-section shall have effect, as if, for the words "one year", the words "five southern route years" had been substituted.

> Explanation.—Where the service of the notice is stayed by an order of a court, the period of such stay shall be excluded in computing the aforesaid period of one year or five years, as the case may be.

- (2) The Assistant Commissioner of Central Excise or, as the case may be, the Deputy Commissioner of Central Excise shall, after considering the representation, if any, made by the person on whom notice is served under subsection (1), determine the amount of service tax due from, or erroneously refunded to, such person (not being in excess of the amount specified in the notice) and thereupon such person shall pay the amount so determined.
- (3) Where any service tax has not been levied or paid or has been shortlevied or short-paid or erroneously refunded, the person chargeable with the service tax, or the person to whom such tax refund has erroneously been made, may pay the amount of such service tax, chargeable or erroneously refunded, on the basis of his own ascertainment thereof, or on the basis of tax ascertained by a Central Excise Officer before service of notice on him under sub-section (1) in respect of such service tax, and inform the Assistant Commissioner of Central Excise or, as the case may be, the Deputy Commissioner of Central Excise of such payment in writing, who, on receipt of such information shall not serve any notice under sub-section (1) in respect of the amount so paid:

Provided that the Assistant Commissioner of Central Excise or, as the case may be, the Deputy Commissioner of Central Excise may determine the amount of short-payment of service tax or erroneously refunded service tax, if any,

Recovery of service tax not levied or paid or shortlevied or short-paid of Olicity: erroneously accepy vo refunded.

"ar emised) nar salama allog Hi of bosse es (9), (4), (es

sicken65 and

which in his opinion has not been paid by such person and, then, the Assistant Commissioner of Central Excise or, as the case may be, the Deputy Commissioner of Central Excise shall proceed to recover such amount in the manner specified in this section, and the period of "one year" referred to in sub-section (1) shall be counted from the date of receipt of such information of payment.

Explanation.—For the removal of doubts, it is hereby declared that the interest under section 75 shall be payable on the amount paid by the person under this sub-section and also on the amount of short payment of service tax or erroneously refunded service tax, if any, as may be determined by the Assistant Commissioner of Central Excise or, as the case may be, the Deputy Commissioner of Central Excise, but for this sub-section.

- (4) Nothing contained in sub-section (3) shall apply to a case where any service tax has not been levied or paid or has been short-levied or short-paid or erroneously refunded by reason of—
  - (a) fraud; or
  - (b) collusion; or
  - (c) wilful mis-statement; or
  - (d) suppression of facts; or
  - (e) contravention of any of the provisions of this Chapter or of the rules made thereunder with intent to evade payment of service tax.
- (5) The provisions of sub-section (3) shall not apply to any case where the service tax had become payable or ought to have been paid before the 14th day of May, 2003.
  - (6) For the purposes of this section, "relevant date" means,—
  - (i) in the case of taxable service in respect of which service tax has not been levied or paid or has been short-levied or short-paid—
    - (a) where under the rules made under this Chapter, a periodical return, showing particulars of service tax paid during the period to which the said return relates, is to be filed by an assessee, the date on which such return is so filed:
    - (b) where no periodical return as aforesaid is filed, the last date on which such return is to be filed under the said rules;
      - (c) in any other case, the date on which the service tax is to be paid under this Chapter or the rules made thereunder;
    - (ii) in a case where the service tax is provisionally assessed under this Chapter or the rules made thereunder, the date of adjustment of the service tax after the final assessment thereof;
  - (iii) in a case where any sum, relating to service tax, has erroneously been refunded, the date of such refund.';"

# (f) in section 74,— 6. \* January 1986 1997 1997 1997 1997 1997

- (i) in sub-section (4), for the words "an assessment or reducing a refund or otherwise increasing the liability of the assessee", the words "the liability of the assessee or reducing a refund" shall be substituted;
- (ii) in sub-section (6), for the word "assessment", the words "liability of an assessee or increasing the refund" shall be substituted;
- (iii) in sub-section (7), for the word "assessment", the words "liability of the assessee" shall be substituted;

Penalty for contravention of any, provision for which no panalty is. (g) in section 75, for the words "at the rate of fifteen per cent, per annum", the words "at such rate not below ten per cent, and not exceeding thirty-six per cent, per annum, as is for the time being fixed by the Central Government, by notification in the Official Gazette," shall be substituted;

- (h) section 75A shall be omitted;
- (i) in section 76, for the words "one hundred rupees", the words "one hundred rupees for every day during which such failure continues" shall be substituted;
  - (i) for section 77, the following section shall be substituted, namely:—
  - "77. Whoever contravenes any of the provisions of this Chapter or any rule made thereunder for which no penalty is separately provided in this Chapter, shall be liable to a penalty which may extend to an amount not exceeding one thousand rupees.";
- (k) in section 78, for the portion beginning with the words "If the Assistant Commissioner" and ending with the words "value of such taxable service:", the following shall be substituted, namely:—

"Where any service tax has not been levied or paid or has been short-levied or short-paid or erroneously refunded, by reason of—

- (a) fraud; or
  - (b) collusion; or
  - (c) wilful mis-statement; or
    - (d) suppression of facts; or
    - (e) contravention of any of the provisions of this Chapter or of the rules made thereunder with intent to evade payment of service tax,

the person, liable to pay such service tax or erroneous refund, as determined under sub-section (2) of section 73, shall also be liable to pay a penalty, in addition to such service tax and interest thereon, if any, payable by him, which shall not be less than, but which shall not exceed twice, the amount of service tax so not levied or paid or short-levied or short-paid or erroneously refunded:";

- (1) section 79 shall be omitted;
- (m) in section 80, for the words and figures "section 77, section 78 or section 79", the words and figures "section 77 or section 78" shall be substituted;
  - (n) section 81 shall be omitted;
- (a) in section 85, in sub-section (1), the words and figures "section 71, section 72 or" shall be omitted;
- (p) in section 86, with effect from such date as the Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, appoint, for sub-section (c), the following subsections shall be substituted, namely:—
  - "(6) An appeal to the Appellate Tribunal shall be in the prescribed form and shall be verified in the prescribed manner and shall, irrespective of the date of demand of service tax and interest or of levy of penalty in relation to which the appeal is made, be accompanied by a fee of,—
    - (a) where the amount of service tax and interest demanded and penalty levied by any Central Excise Officer in the case to which the appeal relates is five lakh rupees or less, one thousand rupees;
    - (b) where the amount of service tax and interest demanded and penalty levied by any Central Excise Officer in the case to which the

Penalty for contravention of any provision for which no penalty is provided. appeal relates is more than five lakh rupees but not exceeding fifty lakh rupees, five thousand rupees;

penalty levied by any Central Excise Officer in the case to which the appeal relates is more than fifty lakh rupees, ten thousand rupees:

Provided that no fee shall be payable in the case of an appeal referred to in sub-section (2) or sub-section (2A) or a memorandum of cross-objections referred to in sub-section (4).

- (6A) Every application made before the Appellate Tribunal,—
- (a) in an appeal for grant of stay or for rectification of mistake or for any other purpose; or
- (b) for restoration of an appeal or an application,

shall be accompanied by a fee of five hundred rupees:

Provided that no such fee shall be payable in the case of an application filed by the Commissioner of Central Excise or Assistant Commissioner of Central Excise or Deputy Commissioner of Central Excise, as the case may be, under this sub-section.".

- (q) in section 94, in sub-section (2), for clause (f), the following clauses shall be substituted, namely:—
  - "(f) provisions for determining export of taxable services;
  - (g) grant of exemption to, or rebate of service tax paid on, taxable services which are exported out of India;
  - (h) rebate of service tax paid or payable on the taxable services consumed or duties paid or deemed to have been paid on goods used for providing taxable services which are exported out of India; and
  - (i) any other matter which by this Chapter is to be, or may be, prescribed.";
- (r) in section 95, after sub-section (1A), the following sub-section shall be inserted, namely:—
  - "(1B) If any difficulty arises in respect of implementing, or assessing the value of, any taxable service incorporated in this Chapter by the Finance (No. 2) Act, 2004, the Central Government may, by order published in the Official Gazette, not inconsistent with the provisions of this Chapter, remove the difficulty:

Provided that no such order shall be made after the expiry of a period of two years from the date on which the Finance (No. 2) Bill, 2004 receives the assent of the President.".

# CHAPTER VI

#### **EDUCATION CESS**

91. (1) Without prejudice to the provisions of sub-section (11) of section 2, there shall be levied and collected, in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter as surcharge for purposes of the Union, a cess to be called the Education Cess, to fulfil the commitment of the Government to provide and finance universalised quality basic education.

Education Cess

- (2) The Central Government may, after due appropriation made by Parliament by law in this behalf, utilise, such sums of money of the Education Cess levied under sub-section (11) of section 2 and this Chapter for the purposes specified in sub-section (1), as it may consider necessary.
- 92. The words and expressions used in this Chapter and defined in the Central Excise Act, 1944, the Customs Act, 1962 or Chapter V of the Finance Act, 1994, shall have the meanings respectively assigned to them in those Acts or Chapter, as the case may be.

Definition

Education Cess on excisable goods. 93. (1) The Education Cess levied under section 91, in the case of goods specified in the First Schedule to the Central Excise Tariff Act, 1985, being goods manufactured or produced, shall be a duty of excise (in this section referred to as the Education Cess on excisable goods), at the rate of two per cent., calculated on the aggregate of all duties of excise (including special duty of excise or any other duty of excise but excluding Education Cess on excisable goods) which are levied and collected by the Central Government in the Ministry of Finance (Department of Revenue), under the provisions of the Central Excise Act, 1944 or under any other law for the time being in force.

5 of 1986.

1 of 1944.

(2) The Education Cess on excisable goods shall be in addition to any other duties of excise chargeable on such goods, under the Central Excise Act, 1944 or any other law for the time being in force.

1 of 1944.

(3) The provisions of the Central Excise Act, 1944 and the rules made thereunder, including those relating to refunds and exemptions from duties and imposition of penalty shall, as far as may be, apply in relation to the levy and collection of the Education Cess on excisable goods as they apply in relation to the levy and collection of the duties of excise on such goods under the Central Excise Act, 1944 or the rules, as the case may be.

1 of 1944.

Education Cess on imported goods.

Education

Cess on taxable

services

94. (1) The Education Cess levied under section 91, in the case of goods specified in the First Schedule to the Customs Tariff Act, 1975, being goods imported into India, shall be a duty of customs (in this section referred to as the Education Cess on imported goods), at the rate of two per cent., calculated on the aggregate of duties of customs which are levied and collected by the Central Government in the Ministry of Finance (Department of Revenue), under section 12 of the Customs Act, 1962 and any sum chargeable on such goods under any other law for the time being in force, as an addition to, and in the same manner as, a duty of customs, but not including—

51 of 1975.

- 52 of 1962.
- (a) the safeguard duty referred to in sections 8B and 8C of the Customs Tariff

51 of 1975.

- (b) the countervailing duty referred to in section 9 of the Customs Tariff Act, 1975;
- 51 of 1975.
- (c) the anti-dumping duty referred to in section 9A of the Customs Tariff Act, 1975; and

51 of 1975.

- (d) the Education Cess on imported goods.
- (2) The Education Cess on imported goods shall be in addition to any other duties of customs chargeable on such goods, under the Customs Act, 1962 or any other law for the time being in force.

52 of 1962.

(3) The provisions of the Customs Act, 1962 and the rules and regulations made thereunder, including those relating to refunds and exemptions from duties and imposition of penalty shall, as far as may be, apply in relation to the levy and collection of the Education Cess on imported goods as they apply in relation to the levy and collection of the duties of customs on such goods under the Customs Act, 1962 or the rules or the regulations, as the

52 of 1962.

case may be.

95. (1) The Education Cess levied under section 91, in the case of all services which are taxable services, shall be a tax (in this section referred to as the Education Cess on taxable services) at the rate of two per cent., calculated on the tax which is levied and collected under section 66 of the Finance Act, 1994.

32 of 1994.

(2) The Education Cess on taxable services shall be in addition to the tax chargeable on such taxable services, under Chapter V of the Finance Act, 1994.

32 of 1994.

(3) The provisions of Chapter V of the Finance Act, 1994 and the rules made thereunder, including those relating to refunds and exemptions from tax and imposition of penalty shall, as far as may be, apply in relation to the levy and collection of the Education Cess on taxable services, as they apply in relation to the levy and collection of tax on such taxable services under Chapter V of the Finance Act, 1994 or the rules, as the case may be.

32 of 1994.

#### **CHAPTER VII**

#### SECURITIES TRANSACTION TAX

96. (1) This Chapter extends to the whole of India.

(2) It shall come into force on such date as the Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, appoint.

Extent, commencement and application.

(3) It shall apply to taxable securities transactions entered into on or after the commencement of this Chapter.

97. In this Chapter, unless the context otherwise requires,—

Definitions.

(1) "Appellate Tribunal" means the Appellate Tribunal constituted under section 43 of 1961. 252 of the Income-tax Act, 1961;

(2) "Assessing Officer" means the Income-tax Officer or Assistant Commissioner of Income-tax or Deputy Commissioner of Income-tax or Joint Commissioner of Income-tax or Additional Commissioner of Income-tax who is authorised by the Board to exercise or perform all or any of the powers and functions conferred on, or assigned to, an Assessing Officer under this Chapter;

- (3) "Board" means the Central Board of Direct Taxes constituted under the Central Boards of Revenue Act, 1963;
- (4) "derivative" has the meaning assigned to it in clause (aa) of section 2 of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956;
  - (5) "equity oriented fund" means a fund-
  - (i) where the investible funds are invested by way of equity shares in domestic companies to the extent of more than fifty per cent. of the total proceeds of such fund; and
    - (ii) which has been set up under a scheme of a Mutual Fund:

Provided that the percentage of equity share holding of the fund shall be computed with reference to the annual average of the monthly averages of the opening and closing figures;

- (6) "Mutual Fund" means a Mutual Fund specified under clause (23D) of section 10 of the Income-tax Act, 1961;
- (7) "option in securities" has the meaning assigned to it in clause (d) of section 2 of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956;
- (8) "option premium" means the premium payable by the purchaser of an "option in securities" at the time of such purchase;
  - (9) "prescribed" means prescribed by rules made by the Board under this Chapter;
- (10) "recognised stock exchange" shall have the same meaning as in clause (f) of section 2 of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956;
- (11) "securities transaction tax" means tax leviable on the taxable securities transactions under the provisions of this Chapter;
- (12) "strike price" means the price at which the "option in securities" may be exercised on the expiry date of such option;
  - (13) "taxable securities transaction" means a transaction of—

54 of 1963.

42 of 1956

43 of 1961.

42 of 1956.

42 of 1956.

(a) purchase or sale of an equity share in a company or a derivative or a unit of an equity oriented fund, entered into in a recognised stock exchange; or

(b) sale of a unit of an equity oriented fund to the Mutual Fund;

(14) words and expressions used but not defined in this Chapter and defined in the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, the Income-tax Act, 1961 or the rules made thereunder, shall apply, so far as may be, in relation to securities transaction tax.

42 of 1956 43 of 1961.

Charge of securities transaction tax.

98. On and from the commencement of this Chapter, there shall be charged a securities transaction tax in respect of the taxable securities transaction specified in column (2) of the Table below, at the rate specified in the corresponding entry in column (3) of the said Table, on the value of such transaction and such tax shall be payable by the purchaser or the seller, specified in the corresponding entry in column (4) of the said Table:

#### TARLE

data balan in his makarat arakin haki banzar taka bata bata bata bata ba

SI.	No. Taxable securities transaction	Rate P	ayable by
(1)	l en la language bis van 🕗 di Armakage in belancha fa		
1		0.075 per cent. P	
	(a) the transaction of such purchase is entered into in a recognised stock exchange; and		
	(b) the contract for the purchase of such share or unit is settled by the actual delivery or transfer of such share or unit.	e un localitatoria <mark>esperial</mark> Constantino de la Constantino Constantino de la Constantino della Consta	
<b>2</b> .0)	हिंदि के में कि किया भी महारिक्ष में इस्त में महि में भी किया कर्ण क		Seller
.e.\$	(a) the transaction of such sale is entered into in a recognised stock exchange; and		
Tay d	(b) the contract for the sale of such share or unit is settled by the actual delivery or transfer of such share or unit.	olid Brahagaraha Lagar <del>inggil Brah</del> agara	
3	Sale of an equity share in a company or a unit of an equity oriented fund, where—	0.015 per cent.	Seller
::A.	(a) the transaction of such sale is entered into in a recognised stock exchange; and	gen et leglandis Leventiere plei new fat	
	(b) the contract for the sale of such share or unit is settled otherwise than by the actual delivery or transfer of such share or unit.		
4	Sale of a derivative, where the transaction of such sale is entered into in a recognised stock exchange.	0.01 per cent.	Seller
5	Sale of a unit of an equity oriented fund to the Mutual Fund.	0.15 per cent.	Seller

Value of taxable securities transaction. 99. The value of taxable securities transaction,—

(a) in the case of a taxable securities transaction relating to a derivative, being "option in securities", shall be the aggregate of the strike price and the option premium of such "option in securities";

- (b) in the case of a taxable securities transaction relating to a derivative, being "futures", shall be the price at which such "futures" is traded; and
- (c) in the case of any other taxable securities transaction, shall be the price at which such securities are purchased or sold:

Provided that the Board may, having regard to the manner in which taxable securities transactions are settled in a recognised stock exchange or such other factors which may be relevant for the purposes of determining the price of such securities, specify, by rules made by it, the method of determining the price of such securities for the purposes of this clause.

- 100. (1) Every recognised stock exchange shall collect the securities transaction tax from every person, being a purchaser or a seller, as the case may be, who enters into a taxable securities transaction in that stock exchange, at the rates specified in section 98.
- Collection and recovery of securities transaction tax.
- (2) The prescribed person in the case of every Mutual Fund shall collect the securities transaction tax from every person who sells a unit to that Mutual Fund, at the rate specified in section 98.
- (3) The securities transation tax collected during any calendar month in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (1) or sub-section (2), shall be paid by every recognised stock exchange or by the prescribed person in the case of every Mutual Fund, as the case may be, to the credit of the Central Government by the seventh day of the month immediately following the said calendar month.
- (4) Any recognised stock exchange or the prescribed person in the case of any Mutual Fund, who fails to collect the tax in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (1) or subsection (2), shall, notwithstanding such failure, be liable to pay the tax to the credit of the Central Government in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (3).
- 101. (1) Every recognised stock exchange or the prescribed person in the case of every Mutual Fund (hereafter in this Chapter referred to as assessee) shall, within the prescribed time after the end of each financial year, prepare and deliver or cause to be delivered to the Assessing Officer or to any other authority or agency authorised by the Board in this behalf, a return in such form and verified in such manner and setting forth such particulars as may be prescribed, in respect of all taxable securities transactions entered into during such financial year in that stock exchange or, as the case may be, in respect of all taxable securities transactions, being sale of units to such Mutual Fund during such financial year.

Recognised stock exchange or Mutual Fund to furnish prescribed

- (2) Where any assessee fails to furnish the return under sub-section (1) within the prescribed time, the Assessing Officer may issue a notice to such assessee and serve it upon him, requiring him to furnish the return in the prescribed form and verified in the prescribed manner setting forth such particulars within such time as may be prescribed.
- (3) Any assessee who has not furnished the return within the time allowed under subsection (1) or sub-section (2), or having furnished a return under sub-section (1) or subsection (2), discovers any omission or wrong statement therein, may furnish a return or a revised return, as the case may be, at any time before the assessment is made.
- 102. (1) For the purposes of making an assessment under this Chapter, the Assessing Officer may serve on any assessee, who has furnished a return under section 101 or upon whom a notice has been served under sub-section (2) of section 101 (whether a return has been furnished or not), a notice requiring him to produce or cause to be produced on a date to be specified therein such accounts or documents or other evidence as the Assessing Officer may require for the purposes of this Chapter and may, from time to time, serve further notices requiring the production of such further accounts or documents or other evidence as he may require.

Assessment.

(2) The Assessing Officer, after considering such accounts, documents or other evidence, if any, as he has obtained under sub-section (1) and after taking into account any other relevant material which he has gathered, shall, by an order in writing, assess the value of taxable securities transactions during the relevant financial year and determine the amount of securities transaction tax payable or refundable on the basis of such assessment:

Provided that no assessment shall be made under this sub-section after the expiry of two years from the end of the relevant financial year.

- (3) Every assessee, in case any amount is refunded to it on assessment under subsection (2), shall, within such time as may be prescribed, refund such amount to the concerned person from whom such amount was collected.
- Rectification of mistake.
- 103. (1) With a view to rectifying any mistake apparent from the record, the Assessing Officer may amend any order passed by him under the provisions of this Chapter within one year from the end of the financial year in which the order sought to be amended was passed.
- (2) Where any matter has been considered and decided in any proceeding by way of appeal relating to an order referred to in sub-section (1), the Assessing Officer passing such order may, notwithstanding anything contained in any law for the time being in force, amend the order under that sub-section in relation to any matter other than the matter which has been so considered and decided.
  - (3) Subject to the other provisions of this section, the Assessing officer may—
    - (a) make an amendment under sub-section (1) of his own motion; or
    - (b) make such amendment if any mistake is brought to his notice by the assessee.
- (4) An amendment, which has the effect of enhancing an assessment or reducing a refund or otherwise increasing the liability of the assessee, shall not be made under this section unless the Assessing Officer concerned has given notice to the assessee of his intention so to do and has allowed the assessee a reasonable opportunity of being heard.
- (5) Where an amendment is made under this section, an order shall be passed in writing by the Assessing Officer.
- (6) Subject to the other provisions of this Chapter, where any such amendment has the effect of reducing the assessment, the Assessing Officer shall make any refund, which may be due to such assessee.
- (7) Where any such amendment has the effect of enhancing the assessment or reducing the refund already made, the Assessing Officer shall make an order specifying the sum payable by the assessee and the provisions of this Chapter shall apply accordingly.
- Interest on delayed payment of securities transaction

tax.

104. Every assessee who fails to credit the securities transaction tax or any part thereof as required under section 100, to the account of the Central Government within the period specified in that section, shall pay simple interest at the rate of one per cent. of such tax for every month or part of a month by which such crediting of the tax or any part thereof is delayed.

Penalty for failure to collect or pay securities transaction

- 105. Any assessee who-
- (a) fails to collect the whole or any part of the securities transaction tax as required under section 100; or
- (b) having collected the securities transaction tax, fails to pay such tax to the credit of the Central Government in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (3) of that section, shall be liable to pay,—

- (i) in the case referred to in clause (a), in addition to paying the tax in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (4) of that section, or interest, if any, in accordance with the provisions of section 104, by way of a penalty, a sum equal to the amount of securities transaction tax that he failed to collect; and
- (ii) in the case referred to in clause (b), in addition to paying the tax in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (3) of that section and interest in accordance with the provisions of section 104, by way of penalty, a sum of one thousand rupees for every day during which the failure continues, so, however, that the penalty under this clause shall not exceed the amount of securities transaction tax that it failed to pay.
- 106. If an assessee fails to furnish in due time the return which it is required to furnish under sub-section (1) of section 101 or by notice given under sub-section (2) of that section, it shall be liable to pay, by way of penalty, a sum of one hundred rupees for every day during which the failure continues.

Penalty for failure to furnish prescribed return.

107. If the Assessing Officer in the course of any proceedings under this Chapter is satisfied that any person has failed to comply with a notice under sub-section (1) of section 102, he may direct that such person shall pay, by way of penalty, in addition to any securities transaction tax and interest, if any, payable by him, a sum of ten thousand rupees for each such failure.

Penalty for failure to comply with notice.

108. Notwithstanding anything contained in the provisions of section 105 or section 106 or section 107, no penalty shall be imposable for any failure referred to in the said provisions if the assessee proves that there was reasonable cause for the said failure:

Penalty not to be imposed in certain

Provided that no order imposing a penalty under this Chapter shall be made unless the assessee has been given a reasonable opportunity of being heard.

43 of 1961.

43 of 1961.

109. The provisions of the following sections of the Income-tax Act, 1961, as in force from time to time, shall apply, so far as may be, in relation to securities transaction tax as they apply in relation to income-tax:—

Application of certain provisions of Act 43 of 1961.

120, 131, 133A, 156, 178, 220 to 227, 229, 232, 260A, 261, 262, 265 to 269, 278B, 282 and 288 to 293.

110. (1) Any assessee aggrieved by any assessment order passed by the Assessing Officer under section 102 or any order under section 103, or denying his liability to be assessed under this Chapter, or by an order levying penalty under this Chapter, may appeal to the Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals) within thirty days from the date of receipt of the order of the Assessing Officer.

Appeals to Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals).

- (2) Every appeal under sub-section (1) shall be in the prescribed form and shall be verified in the prescribed manner and shall be accompanied by a fee of one thousand rupees.
- (3) Where an appeal has been filed under the provisions of sub-section (1), the provisions of sections 249 to 251 of the Income-tax Act, 1961, shall, as far as may be, apply.
- 111. (1) Any assessee aggrieved by an order passed by a Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals) under section 110 may appeal to the Appellate Tribunal against such order.

Appeals to the Appellate Tribunal

- (2) The Commissioner of Income-tax may, if he objects to any order passed by the Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals) under section 110, direct the Assessing Officer to appeal to the Appellate Tribunal against such order.
- (3) Every appeal under sub-section (1) or sub-section (2) shall be filed within sixty days of the date on which the order sought to be appealed against is received by the assessee, or by the Commissioner of Income-tax, as the case may be.

- (4) Every appeal under sub-section (1) or sub-section (2) shall be in the prescribed form and shall be verified in the prescribed manner and in the case of an appeal filed under sub-section (1) shall be accompanied by a fee of one thousand rupees.
- (5) Where an appeal has been filed before the Appellate Tribunal under sub-section (1) or sub-section (2), the provisions of sections 252 to 255 of the Income-tax Act, 1961, shall, as far as may be, apply.

43 of 1961.

False statement in verification, etc.

- 112. (1) If a person makes a statement in any verification under this Chapter or any rule made thereunder, or delivers an account or statement, which is false, and which he either knows or believes to be false, or does not believe to be true, he shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend to three years and with fine.
- (2) Notwithstanding anything contained in the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973, an offence punishable under sub-section (1) shall be deemed to be non-cognizable within the meaning of that Code.

2 of 1974

Institution of proceedings.

113. A person shall not be proceeded against for any offence under section 112 except with the previous sanction of the Chief Commissioner of Income-tax.

Power to make rules.

- 114. (1) The Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, make rules for carrying out the provisions of this Chapter.
- (2) In particular, and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing power, such rules may provide for all or any of the following matters, namely:—
  - (a) the time within which the return shall be delivered or caused to be delivered to the Assessing Officer or to any other agency and the form and the manner in which such return shall be furnished under sub-section (1) or sub-section (2) of section 101;
  - (b) the time within which the return shall be furnished on receipt of notice under sub-section (2) of section 101;
  - (c) the form in which an appeal under section 110 or section 111 may be filed and the manner in which they may be verified;
    - (d) any other matter which by this Chapter is to be, or may be, prescribed.
- (3) Every rule made under this Chapter and every notification issued under this Chapter shall be laid, as soon as may be after it is made or issued, before each House of Parliament, while it is in session for a total period of thirty days which may be comprised in one session or in two or more successive sessions, and if, before the expiry of the session immediately following the session or the successive sessions aforesaid, both Houses agree in making any modification in the rule or notification or both Houses agree that the rule should not be made or the notification should not be issued, the rule or notification shall thereafter have effect only in such modified form or be of no effect, as the case may be; so, however, that any such modification or annulment shall be without prejudice to the validity of anything previously done under that rule or notification.

Power to remove difficulties.

115. (1) If any difficulty arises in giving effect to the provisions of this Chapter, the Central Government may, by order published in the Official Gazette, not inconsistent with the provisions of this Chapter, remove the difficulty:

Provided that no such order shall be made after the expiry of a period of two years from the date on which the provisions of this Chapter come into force.

(2) Every order made under this section shall be laid, as soon as may be after it is made, before each House of Parliament.

### **CHAPTER VIII**

#### Miscellaneous

116. In section 3 of the Government Savings Banks Act, 1873, for clause (b), the following clauses shall be substituted, namely:—

Amendment of Act 5 of 1873.

- '(b) "Government Savings Bank" means-
  - (i) a Post Office Savings Bank; or
- (ii) a banking company, or any other company or institution, as the Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, specify, for the purposes of this Act;
- (bb) "Secretary" means,-
- (i) in the case of a Post Office Savings Bank, the Postmaster-General appointed for the area in which the Post Office Savings Bank is situated, or any officer of the Government as the Central Government may, by general or special order, specify in this behalf; and
- (ii) in the case of a banking company or other company or institution, an officer of that banking company or other company or institution, as the case may be, or any officer of the Government or any other person as the Central Government may, by general or special order, specify in this behalf;'.
- 117. In the Indian Stamp Act, 1899,—

Amendment of Act 2 of 1899.

- (i) in section 2, after clause (25), the following clause shall be inserted, namely:—
- '(26) "Stamp" means any mark, seal or endorsement by any agency or person duly authorised by the State Government, and includes an adhesive or impressed stamp, for the purposes of duty chargeable under this Act.';
- (ii) in section 9, in sub-section (1), in clause (b), after the words "consolidation of duties", the words "of policies of insurance and" shall be inserted;
- (iii) in Schedule I, in Article No. 53, in the first column, for the words "five hundred rupees", the words "five thousand rupees" shall be substituted.
- 118. In section 8 of the Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 (hereinafter referred to as the Central Sales Tax Act),—

Amendment of section 8.

- (a) for sub-section (6), the following sub-section shall be substituted, namely:—
- "(6) Notwithstanding anything contained in this section, no tax under this Act shall be payable by any dealer in respect of sale of any goods made by such dealer, in the course of inter-State trade or commerce to a registered dealer for the purpose of setting up, operation, maintenance, manufacture, trading, production, processing, assembling, repairing, reconditioning, re-engineering, packaging or for use as packing material or packing accessories in a unit located in any special economic zone or for development, operation and maintenance of special economic zone by the developer of the special economic zone, if such registered dealer has been authorised to establish such unit or to develop, operate and maintain such special economic zone by the authority specified by the Central Government in this behalf.";
- (b) in sub-section (8), for the words, brackets and figures "authority referred to in sub-section (6) a declaration in the prescribed manner on the prescribed form obtained from the authority referred to in sub-section (5)", the following shall be substituted, namely:—

4 of 1956.

"prescribed authority referred to in sub-section (4) a declaration in the prescribed manner on the prescribed form obtained from the authority specified by the Central Government under sub-section (6)".

Amendment of Chapter VI.

119. In Chapter VI of the Central Sales Tax Act, as directed to be inserted by section 3 of the Central Sales Tax (Amendment) Act, 2001, and as it stands amended by the Finance Act, 2003, with effect from the commencement of the Central Sales Tax (Amendment) Act, 2001,---

41 of 2001. 32 of 2003.

- (a) in section 19, in sub-section (1), for the words, figures and letter "section 6A or section 9", the words, figures and letter "section 6A read with section 9" shall be substituted;
- (b) in section 20, in sub-section (1), for the words, figures and letter "section 6A or section 9", the words, figures and letter "section 6A read with section 9" shall be substituted;
- (c) in section 21, in sub-section (3), in the first proviso, for the words "also to the State Government", the words "also to each State Government" shall be substituted;
- (d) in section 22, after sub-section (1), the following sub-section shall be inserted, namely:-
  - "(1A) The Authority may grant stay of the operation of the order of the assessing authority against which the appeal is filed before it or order the predeposit of the tax before entertaining the appeal and while granting such stay or making such order for the pre-deposit of the tax, the Authority shall have regard, if the assessee has already made pre-deposit of the tax under the general sales tax law of the State concerned, to such pre-deposit.";
- (e) in section 25, for the words "every appeal", the words "any proceeding" shall be substituted;
- (f) in section 26, for the words "the assessing authorities", the words "each State Government concerned, the assessing authorities" shall be substituted.

Amendment of section 4 of Act 39 of 2003.

120. In section 4 of the Fiscal Responsibility and Budget Management Act, 2003, for the figures, letters and word "31st March, 2008", at both the places where they occur, the figures, letters and word "31st March, 2009" shall be substituted.

Repeal of section 2 of Act 13 of 2004.

121. Section 2 of the Finance Act, 2004 is hereby repealed and shall be deemed never to have been enacted.

State of the state

gita ing Palangana gitabang talinggan ang palanggan bilang mang talinggan di naganggan

#### THE FIRST SCHEDULE

(See section 2)

#### PART I

## **INCOME-TAX**

#### Paragraph A

In the case of every individual or Hindu undivided family or association of persons or body of individuals, whether incorporated or not, or every artificial juridical person referred to in sub-clause (vii) of clause (31) of section 2 of the Income-tax Act, not being a case to which any other Paragraph of this Part applies,—

#### Rates of income-tax

(1) where the total income does not exceed Rs. 50,000

Nil:

(2) where the total income exceeds Rs. 50,000 but does not exceed Rs. 60,000

10 per cent. of the amount by which the total income exceeds Rs. 50,000;

(3) where the total income exceeds Rs. 60,000 but does not exceed Rs. 1,50,000

Rs. 1,000 plus 20 per cent. of the amount by which the total income exceeds Rs. 60,000;

(4) where the total income exceeds Rs. 1,50,000

Rs. 19,000 plus 30 per cent. of the amount by which the total income exceeds Rs. 1,50,000.

#### Surcharge on income-tax

The amount of income-tax computed in accordance with the preceding provisions of this Paragraph, or in section 112, shall,—

(i) in the case of every individual or Hindu undivided family or association of persons or body of individuals having a total income exceeding eight hundred and fifty thousand rupees, be reduced by the amount of rebate of income-tax calculated under Chapter VIII-A, and the income-tax as so reduced, be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated at the rate of ten per cent. of such income-tax;

(ii) in the case of every person, other than those mentioned in item (i), be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated at the rate of ten per cent. of such income-tax:

Provided that in case of persons mentioned in item (i) above having a total income exceeding eight hundred and fifty thousand rupees, the total amount payable as income-tax and surcharge on such income shall not exceed the total amount payable as income-tax on a total income of eight hundred and fifty thousand rupees by more than the amount of income that exceeds eight hundred and fifty thousand rupees.

#### Paragraph B

In the case of every co-operative society,—

#### Rates of income-tax

1) where the total income does not exceed Rs.10,000

10 per cent. of the total income;

 where the total income exceeds Rs.10,000 but does not exceed Rs. 20,000 Rs.1,000 plus 20 per cent. of the amount by which the total income exceeds Rs.10,000;

3) where the total income exceeds Rs. 20,000

Rs. 3,000 plus 30 per cent. of the amount by which the total income exceeds Rs. 20,000.

#### Surcharge on income-tax

The amount of income-tax computed in accordance with the preceding provisions of this Paragraph, or in section 112, shall, in the case of every co-operative society, be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated at the rate of two and one-half per cent. of such income-tax.

Paragraph C

In the case of every firm,-

Rate of income-tax

On the whole of the total income

35 per cent.

#### Surcharge on income-tax

The amount of income-tax computed at the rate hereinbefore specified, or in section 112, shall, in the case of ever firm, be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated at the rate of two and one-half per cent. of suc income-tax.

Paragraph D

In the case of every local authority,-

Rate of income-tax

On the whole of the total income

30 per cent.

Surcharge on income-tax

The amount of income-tax computed at the rate hereinbefore specified, or in section 112, shall, in the case of every local authority, be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated at the rate of two and one-half per cent. of such income-tax.

Paragraph E

In the case of a company,-

Rates of income-tax

I. In the case of a domestic company

35 per cent. of the total income:

- II. In the case of a company other than a domestic company-
- (i) on so much of the total income as consists of,—
  - (a) royalties received from Government or an Indian concern in pursuance of an agreement made by it with the Government or the Indian concern after the 31st day of March, 1961 but before the 1st day of April, 1976; or
  - (b) fees for rendering technical services received from Government or an Indian concern in pursuance of an agreement made by it with the Government or the Indian concern after the 29th day of February, 1964 but before the 1st day of April, 1976,

and where such agreement has, in either case, been approved by the Central Government

50 per cent.

(ii) on the balance, if any, of the total income

40 per cent.

Surcharge on income-tax

The amount of income-tax computed in accordance with the preceding provisions of this Paragraph, or in section 112, shall, in the case of every company, be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated at the rate of two and one-half per cent. of such income-tax.

### PART II

## RATES FOR DEDUCTION OF TAX AT SOURCE IN CERTAIN CASES

In every case in which under the provisions of sections 193, 194, 194A, 194B, 194BB, 194D and 195 of the Incometax Act, tax is to be deducted at the rates in force, deduction shall be made from the income subject to the deduction at the following rates:—

	Rate of income-tax
1. In the case of a person other than a company—	
(a) where the person is resident in India—	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
(i) on income by way of interest other than "Interest on securities";	10 per cent.;
(ii) on income by way of winnings from lotteries, crossword puzzles, card games and other games of any sort	30 per cent.;
(iii) on income by way of winnings from horse races	30 per cent.;
(iv) on income by way of insurance commission	10 per cent.;
(ν) on income by way of interest payable on—	10 per cent.;
(A) any debentures or securities other than a security of the Central or State Government for money issued by or on behalf of any local authority or a corporation established by a Central, State or Provincial Act;	
(B) any debentures issued by a company where such debentures are listed on a recognised stock exchange in India in accordance with the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (42 of 1956) and any rules made thereunder	en de la serie de la composition de la La composition de la composition de la La composition de la
(vi) on any other income	20 per cent.;
(b) where the person is not resident in India—	and prote desiring
(1) in the case of a non-resident Indian-	
(A) on any investment income	20 per cent.:
(B) on income by way of long-term capital gains referred to in section 115E	10 per cent.;
(C) on other income by way of long-term capital gains [not being long-term capital gains referred to in clauses (33), (36) and (38) of section 10]	20 per cent.;
(D) on income by way of interest payable by Government or an Indian concern on moneys borrowed or debt incurred by Government or the Indian concern in foreign currency	20 per cent.;
(E) on income by way of winnings from lotteries, crossword puzzles, card games and other games of any sort	30 per cent.;
(F) on income by way of winnings from horse races	30 per cent.;
(G) on the whole of the other income	30 per cent.;
(ii) in the case of any other person—	
(A) on income by way of interest payable by Government or an Indian concern on moneys borrowed or debt incurred by Government or the Indian concern in foreign currency	20 per cent.;
(B) on income by way of winnings from lotteries, crossword puzzles, card games and other games of any sort	30 per cent.;
(C) on income by way of winnings from horse races	30 per cent.;
(D) on income by way of long-term capital gains [not being long-term capital gains referred to in clauses (33), (36) and (38) of section 10]	20 per cent.;
(E) on the whole of the other income	30 per cent.

2.	In	the	case	of	a	comp	an	y

(a) where the company is a domestic company—

(i) on income by way of interest other than "Interest on securities"

20 per cent.;

(ii) on income by way of winnings from lotteries, crossword puzzles, card games and other games of any sort

30 per cent.;

(iii) on income by way of winnings from horse races

30 per cent.;

(iv) on any other income

20 per cent.;

(b) where the company is not a domestic company—

(i) on income by way of winnings from lotteries, crossword puzzles, card games and other games of any sort

30 per cent.;

(ii) on income by way of winnings from horse races

30 per cent.;

(iii) on income by way of interest payable by Government or an Indian concern on moneys borrowed or debt incurred by Government or the Indian concern in foreign currency

20 per cent.;

(iv) on income by way of royalty payable by Government or an Indian concern in pursuance of an agreement made by it with the Government or the Indian concern after the 31st day of March, 1976 where such royalty is in consideration for the transfer of all or any rights (including the granting of a licence) in respect of copyright in any book on a subject referred to in the first proviso to sub-section (1A) of section 115A of the Income-tax Act, to the Indian concern, or in respect of any computer software referred to in the second proviso to sub-section (1A) of section 115A of the Income-tax Act, to a person resident in India—

(A) where the agreement is made before the 1st day of June, 1997

30 per cent.;

(B) where the agreement is made on or after the 1st day of June, 1997

20 per cent.;

( $\nu$ ) on income by way of royalty [not being royalty of the nature referred to in sub-item (b)( $i\nu$ )] payable by Government or an Indian concern in pursuance of an agreement made by it with the Government or the Indian concern and where such agreement is with an Indian concern, the agreement is approved by the Central Government or where it relates to a matter included in the industrial policy, for the time being in force, of the Government of India, the agreement is in accordance with that policy—

(A) where the agreement is made after the 31st day of March, 1961 but before the 1st day of April, 1976

50 per cent.;

(B) where the agreement is made after the 31st day of March, 1976 but before the 1st day of June, 1997

30 per cent.;

(C) where the agreement is made on or after the 1st day of June, 1997

20 per cent.;

(vi) on income by way of fees for technical services payable by Government or an Indian concern in pursuance of an agreement made by it with the Government or the Indian concern and where such agreement is with an Indian concern, the agreement is approved by the Central Government or where it relates to a matter included in the industrial policy, for the time being in force, of the Government of India, the agreement is in accordance with that policy—

(A) where the agreement is made after the 29th day of February, 1964 but before the 1st day of April, 1976

50 per cent.;

(B) where the agreement is made after the 31st day of March, 1976 but before the 1st day of June, 1997

30 per cent.;

(C) where the agreement is made on or after the 1st day of June, 1997

20 per cent.;

(vii) on income by way of long-term capital gains [not being long-term capital gains referred to in clauses (33), (36) and (38) of section 10]

20 per cent.;

(viii) on any other income

40 per cent.

Explanation.—For the purpose of item 1(b)(i) of this Part, "investment income" and "non-resident Indian" shall have the meanings assigned to them in Chapter XII-A of the Income-tax Act.

#### Surcharge on income-tax

The amount of income-tax deducted in accordance with the provisions of-

- (A) item 1 of this Part, shall be increased by a surcharge, for purposes of the Union, calculated,—
- (i) in the case of every individual, Hindu undivided family, association of persons and body of individuals, whether incorporated or not, at the rate of ten per cent. of such tax where the income or the aggregate of such incomes paid or likely to be paid and subject to the deduction exceeds eight hundred and fifty thousand rupees;
- (ii) in the case of every co-operative society, firm and local authority, at the rate of two and one-half per cent. of such tax;
- (iii) in the case of every artificial juridical person referred to in sub-clause (vii) of clause (31) of section 2 of the Income-tax Act, at the rate of ten per cent. of such tax.
- (B) item 2 of this Part, shall be increased by a surcharge, for purposes of the Union, calculated at the rate of two and one-half per cent. of such income-tax.

#### PART III

RATES FOR CHARGING INCOME-TAX IN CERTAIN CASES, DEDUCTING INCOME-TAX FROM INCOME CHARGEABLE UNDER THE HEAD "SALARIES" AND COMPUTING "ADVANCE TAX"

In cases in which income-tax has to be charged under sub-section (4) of section 172 of the Income-tax Act or sub-section (2) of section 174 or section 174 or section 175 or sub-section (2) of section 176 of the said Act or deducted from, or paid on, from income chargeable under the head "Salaries" under section 192 of the said Act or in which the "advance tax" payable under Chapter XVII-C of the said Act has to be computed at the rate or rates in Free, such income-tax or, as the case may be, "advance tax" [not being "advance tax" in respect of any income chargeable to tax under Chapter XII or Chapter XII-A or section 115JB or sub-section (1A) of section 161 or section 164 or section 164A or section 167B of the Income-tax Act at the rates as specified in that Chapter or section or surcharge on such "advance tax" in respect of any income chargeable to tax under section 115A or section 115AB or section 115AC or section 115ACA or section 115AD or section 115BB or section 115BBA or section 115BBA or section 115BB shall be charged, deducted or computed at the following rate or rates:—

#### Paragraph A

In the case of every individual or Hindu undivided family or association of persons or body of individuals, whether incorporated or not, or every artificial juridical person referred to in sub-clause (vii) of clause (31) of section 2 of the Income-tax Act, not being a case to which any other Paragraph of this Part applies,—

### Rates of income-tax

- (1) where the total income does not exceed Rs. 50,000
- (2) where the total income exceeds Rs. 50,000 but does not exceed Rs. 60,000
- (3) where the total income exceeds Rs. 60,000 but does not exceed Rs. 1,50,000
- (4) where the total income exceeds Rs. 1,50,000

Nil:

10 per cent. of the amount by which the total income exceeds Rs. 50,000;

Rs. 1,000 plus 20 per cent. of the amount by which the total income exceeds Rs. 60,000;

Rs. 19,000 plus 30 per cent. of the amount by which the total income exceeds Rs. 1,50,000.

#### Surcharge on income-tax

The amount of income-tax computed in accordance with the preceding provisions of this Paragraph or in section 111A or section 112 shall,—

- (i) in the case of every individual or Hindu undivided family or association of persons or body of individuals having a total income exceeding eight hundred and fifty thousand rupees, be reduced by the amount of rebate of income-tax calculated under Chapter VIIIA, and the income-tax as so reduced, be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated at the rate of ten per cent. of such income-tax;
- (ii) in the case of every person, other than those mentioned in item (i), be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated at the rate of ten per cent: of such income-tax:

Provided that in case of persons mentioned in item (i) above having a total income exceeding eight hundred and fifty thousand rupees, the total amount payable as income-tax and surcharge on such income shall not exceed the total amount payable as income-tax on a total income of eight hundred and fifty thousand rupees by more than the amount of income that exceeds eight hundred and fifty thousand rupees.

#### Paragraph B

In the case of every co-operative society,-

#### Rates of income-tax

(1) where the total income does not exceed Rs. 10,000

10 per cent. of the total income;

(2) where the total income exceeds Rs. 10.000 but does not exceed Rs. 20,000

Rs. 1,000 plus 20 per cent. of the amount by which the total income exceeds Rs. 10,000;

(3) where the total income exceeds Rs. 20,000

Rs. 3,000 plus 30 per cent. of the amount by which the total income exceeds Rs. 20,000.

#### Surcharge on income-tax

The amount of income-tax computed in accordance with the preceding provisions of this Paragraph, or in section 111A or section 112, shall, in the case of every co-operative society, be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated at the rate of two and one-half per cent. of such income-tax.

Paragraph C

In the case of every firm,

Rate of income-tax

On the whole of the total income

35 per cent.

#### Surcharge on income-tax

The amount of income-tax computed at the rate hereinbefore specified, or in section 111A or section 112, shall, in the case of every firm, be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated at the rate of two and one-half per cent. of such income-tax.

Paragraph D

In the case of every local authority,—

Rate of income-tax

On the whole of the total income

30 per cent.

#### Surcharge on income-tax

The amount of income-tax computed at the rate hereinbefore specified, or in section 111A or section 112, shall, in the case of every local authority, be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated at the rate of two and one-half per cent. of such income-tax.

#### Paragraph E

In the case of a company,-

#### Rates of income-tax

I. In the case of a domestic company

35 per cent. of the total income;

- II. In the case of a company other than a domestic company-
  - (i) on so much of the total income as consists of,—
  - (a) royalties received from Government or an Indian concern in pursuance of an agreement made by it with the Government or the Indian concern after the 31st day of March, 1961 but before the 1st day of April, 1976; or
  - (b) fees for rendering technical services received from Government or an Indian concern in pursuance of an agreement made by it with the Government or the Indian concern after the 29th day of February, 1964 but before the 1st day of April, 1976,

and where such agreement has, in either case, been approved by the Central Government

(ii) on the balance, if any, of the total income

50 per cent.

40 per cent.

Surcharge on income-tax

The amount of income-tax computed in accordance with the preceding provisions of this Paragraph, or in section 111A or section 112, shall, in the case of every company, be increased by a surcharge for purposes of the Union calculated at the rate of two and one-half per cent. of such income-tax.

#### PART IV

[See section 2(12)(c)]

#### RULES FOR COMPUTATION OF NET AGRICULTURAL INCOME

Rule 1.—Agricultural income of the nature referred to in sub-clause (a) of clause (1A) of section 2 of the Incometax Act shall be computed as if it were income chargeable to income-tax under that Act under the head "Income from other sources" and the provisions of sections 57 to 59 of that Act shall, so far as may be, apply accordingly:

Provided that sub-section (2) of section 58 shall apply subject to the modification that the reference to section 40A therein shall be construed as not including a reference to sub-sections (3) and (4) of section 40A.

- Rule 2.—Agricultural income of the nature referred to in sub-clause (b) or sub-clause (c) of clause (IA) of section 2 of the Income-tax Act [other than income derived from any building required as a dwelling-house by the receiver of the rent or revenue of the cultivator or the receiver of rent-in-kind referred to in the said sub-clause (c)] shall be computed as if it were income chargeable to income-tax under that Act under the head "Profits and gains of business or profession" and the provisions of sections 30, 31, 32, 36, 37, 38, 40, 40A [other than sub-sections (3) and (4) thereof], 41, 43, 43A, 43B and 43C of the Income-tax Act shall, so far as may be, apply accordingly.
- Rule 3.—Agricultural income of the nature referred to in sub-clause (c) of clause (1A) of section 2 of the Income-tax Act, being income derived from any building required as a dwelling-house by the receiver of the rent or revenue or the cultivator or the receiver of rent-in-kind referred to in the said sub-clause (c) shall be computed as if it were income chargeable to income-tax under that Act under the head "Income from house property" and the provisions of sections 23 to 27 of that Act shall, so far as may be, apply accordingly.
  - Rule 4.—Notwithstanding anything contained in any other provisions of these rules, in a case—
  - (a) where the assessee derives income from sale of tea grown and manufactured by him in India, such income shall be computed in accordance with rule 8 of the Income-tax Rules, 1962, and sixty per cent. of such income shall be regarded as the agricultural income of the assessee;

- (b) where the assessee derives income from sale of centrifuged latex or cenex or latex based crepes (such as pale latex crepe) or brown crepes (such as estate brown crepe, re-milled crepe, smoked blanket crepe or flat bark crepe) of technically specified block rubbers manufactured or processed by him from rubber plants grown by him in India, such income shall be computed in accordance with rule 7A of the Income-tax Rules, 1962, and sixty-five per cent. of such income shall be regarded as the agricultural income of the assessee;
- (c) where the assessee derives income from sale of coffee grown and manufactured by him in India, such income shall be computed in accordance with rule 7B of the Income-tax Rules, 1962, and sixty per cent. or seventy-five per cent., as the case may be, of such income shall be regarded as the agricultural income of the assessee.
- Rule 5.—Where the assessee is a member of an association of persons or a body of individuals (other than a Hindu undivided family, a company or a firm) which in the previous year has either no income chargeable to tax under the Income-tax Act or has total income not exceeding the maximum amount not chargeable to tax in the case of an association of persons or a body of individuals (other than a Hindu undivided family, a company or a firm) but has any agricultural income, then, the agricultural income or loss of the association or body shall be computed in accordance with these rules and the share of the assessee in the agricultural income or loss so computed shall be regarded as the agricultural income or loss of the assessee.
- Rule 6.—Where the result of the computation for the previous year in respect of any source of agricultural income is a loss, such loss shall be set off against the income of the assessee, if any, for that previous year from any other source of agricultural income:

Provided that where the assessee is a member of an association of persons or a body of individuals and the share of the assessee in the agricultural income of the association or body, as the case may be, is a loss, such loss shall not be set off against any income of the assessee from any other source of agricultural income.

- Rule 7.—Any sum payable by the assessee on account of any tax levied by the State Government on the agricultural income shall be deducted in computing the agricultural income.
- Rule 8.—(1) Where the assessee has, in the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2004, any agricultural income and the net result of the computation of the agricultural income of the assessee for any one or more of the previous years relevant to the assessment years commencing on the 1st day of April, 1996 or the 1st day of April, 1997 or the 1st day of April, 1998 or the 1st day of April, 1999 or the 1st day of April, 2000 or the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003, is a loss, then, for the purposes of sub-section (2) of section 2 of this Act,—
  - (i) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1996, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1997 or the 1st day of April, 1998 or the 1st day of April, 1999 or the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003,
  - (ii) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1997, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1998 or the 1st day of April, 1999 or the 1st day of April, 2000 or the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003,
  - (iii) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1998, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1999 or the 1st day of April, 2000 or the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st day of April, 2003,
  - (iv) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1999, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2000 or the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003,
  - (v) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2000, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003,

- (vi) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2001, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003,
- (vii) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2002, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2003,
- (viii) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2003,

shall be set off against the agricultural income of the assessee for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2004.

- (2) Where the assessee has, in the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2005, or, if by virtue of any provision of the Income-tax Act, income-tax is to be charged in respect of the income of a period other than the previous year, in such other period, any agricultural income and the net result of the computation of the agricultural income of the assessment on or more of the previous years relevant to the assessment years commencing on the 1st day of April, 1997 or the 1st day of April, 1998 or the 1st day of April, 1999 or the 1st day of April, 2000 or the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003 or the 1st day of April, 2004, is a loss, then, for the purposes of sub-section (10) of section 2 of this Act,—
  - (i) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1997, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1998 or the 1st day of April, 1999 or the 1st day of April, 2000 or the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003 or the 1st day of April, 2004,
  - (ii) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1998, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1999 or the 1st day of April, 2000 or the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003 or the 1st day of April, 2004,
  - (iii) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 1999, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2000 or the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003 or the 1st day of April, 2004,
  - (iv) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2000, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2001 or the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003 or the 1st day of April, 2004,
  - (v) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2001, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2002 or the 1st day of April, 2003 or the 1st day of April, 2004,
  - (vi) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2002, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2003 or the 1st day of April, 2004,
  - (vii) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April 2003, to the extent, if any, such loss has not been set off against the agricultural income for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2004,
  - (viii) the loss so computed for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2004,
- shall be set off against the agricultural income of the assessee for the previous year relevant to the assessment year commencing on the 1st day of April, 2005.
- (3) Where any person deriving any agricultural income from any source has been succeeded in such capacity by another person, otherwise than by inheritance, nothing in sub-rule (1) or sub-rule (2) shall entitle any person, other than the person incurring the loss, to have it set off under sub-rule (1) or, as the case may be, sub-rule (2).

- (4) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Rule, no loss which has not been determined by the Assessing Officer under the provisions of these Rules or the Rules contained in Part IV of the First Schedule to the Finance (No. 2) Act, 1996 (33 of 1996), or of the First Schedule to the Finance Act, 1997 (26 of 1997), or of the First Schedule to the Finance (No. 2) Act, 1998 (21 of 1998), or of the First Schedule to the Finance Act, 1999 (27 of 1999), or of the First Schedule to the Finance Act, 2000 (10 of 2000), or of the First Schedule to the Finance Act, 2001 (14 of 2001), or of the First Schedule to the Finance Act, 2002 (20 of 2002), or of the First Schedule to the Finance Act, 2003 (32 of 2003), shall be set off under sub-rule (1) or, as the case may be, sub-rule (2).
- Rule 9. Where the net result of the computation made in accordance with these rules is a loss, the loss so computed shall be ignored and the net agricultural income shall be deemed to be nil.
- Rule 10. The provisions of the Income-tax Act relating to procedure for assessment (including the provisions of section 288A relating to rounding off of income) shall, with the necessary modifications, apply in relation to the computation of the net agricultural income of the assessee as they apply in relation to the assessment of the total income.
- Rule 11. For the purposes of computing the net agricultural income of the assessee, the Assessing Officer shall have the same powers as he has under the Income-tax Act for the purposes of assessment of the total income.

ુર્તા કોફ એ શાહુર કોલવા પેટ્ર કોઈલ કેફ કે વાર્ષ તાલુકા ઉર્દે કરો તે કોઈ તો તાલુકો છે. કોઈ કેફ જે ઉપલબ્ધ કાર જે આ ઉપલબ્ધ કે ત્યાના તાલુકો લગ કોઈ તાલુકો કોઈ કેફ જે કેઈ તાલુકો જો તો તાલુકા તાલુકા કોઈ કોફ જે પ્રયુપ્ત કોઈ તાલુ

the activity was figure that we will be the state of the same distribution of the same of

tratingularity of the home which are the horizon have been been been been also been a set to be in the contribution Died volge 18<sup>24</sup>s. Digitako volumi kital makkel plogitako pos karingrakoj ili mindon a komplementiko. Endi di pro pro

received, all acceptions and the expression of the control of the control of the control of the control of the વેલા જાલમાં વધુ મહિલાનો અંતામાર કે મેં આવેલા જોઈએ પાકિસ કેલા કેલા મુખ્યા છે. તે કેલા માના એ કર્યા માના સામાં સ માના જાલમાં વધુ મહિલાનો અને તામ કરે કે માના પાકિસ કરા કેલા કેલા માના કરા છે. તે માના અને કર્યા માના આવેલા કર્ય

en such de la la section de la completa de la section de la completa de la completa de la completa de la comple La completa de la completa de la completa de la fina de la completa de la completa de la completa de la comple La completa de la comp

The process of given the continuous process of the continuous and according to that there, and that there to be a first of the first of the second and the standing of the second o

and a set of a gradual stay of a refer to have been been asset for all a second and

ert de parte des pro-

Friedrich in der Germanner und der Steiner der Germanner der Steiner der Germanner der Germanner der Germanner

getting for the netter gain and the consequence of believed as a

ાં તે કું તો કાર્યક્ષ કરવા તે કે પ્રાપ્ત કરવા કે જાણ છે. આ કારણ માટે જે જે માટે જે અને જે જોઈ છે. તે જે કું તો કાર્યક્ષ કરવા તે કે પ્રાપ્ત કરવા કે જાણ છે. આ કારણ માટે જે જે માટે જે જે એ જે જોઈ છે. તે જે જે જે on activities were how in 1800 if his office and in 1800 is a constant for

The probability growing to be you have not been

#### THE SECOND SCHEDULE

[See section 88(1)]

Provision of the CENVAT Credit Rules, 2002 to be amended	Amendment  OFFA COMPANIES OF VICEO AND DEAD STATE SHAPE SHAPE STATE SHAPE SHAP	Date of effect of amendment
(1)	(2)	(3)
Explanation to clause of sub-rule (6) of rule 3		1st March, 2003
	"Explanation.—For the removal of doubts, it is hereby declared that the credit of the additional duty of excise leviable under section 3 of the Additional Duties of Excise (Goods of Special Importance) Act, 1957 (58 of 1957) and paid on or after the 1st day of April, 2000, may be utilised towards payment of duty of excise leviable under the First Schedule or the Second Schedule to the	

An Act further to grand the Banking Regulation Act. 1999 calcule Depósis insurance and circuit share bee Corporation. Let., 1961.

the it concern ignorationism in the Fifty No. 20 the Proposition of India

#### LARMAR"

### PRACHMINISHY

(1) Fig. Act stay be relled the Gaglery Recolution (Amendment) and Macchesters of the telephone Are, 2006

ome other tentes. - anos seo ? tentes

(2) Save as otherwise provided in this Ar., the provisions of the Art soul in dramed to tease outs. Into they but the Sign day of supposition, filling

#### APPLICE IN

र्वतिकारी सक्षरे वाल्य व विक्र क्षेत्र क्षण व क्षणिये सक्ष । रहेवा व क्षणिय

X. in Part V of the fienting Regulation Act, 1940 (reconfer to all 1 bapter is reconfer to principal Act), incur provinces of the principal Scientist to, or in (deficiency operative received to, or in (deficiency operative received to, or in (deficiency), our

Amadamin at we find it at Acc was 1989,7

- (1) in section 2 of the considering section and and of observations (1) of closes (1) of the said section of the considering (1) of closes (1)
- of that stoom forms of the control of the country of the storm and and shall so decreased the control of the co
- to be a been again at maker any terms of a recognition of and or decised to be a decised to be a being an facult and be a seen again at maker any terms and the factors of any maker terms at the configuration and adaptive terms at the factors of any maker terms at the factors are confident for the factors of the factors and the factors are confident.

a (Oktober) in distribute da Masserbober in Te

e in Section of the sectemperature section of the

## THE BANKING REGULATION (AMENDMENT) AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ACT, 2004

to the Cliterian Creation over 2001, in our door and miss (2), in elements (3), in chappe (d), the

this tend broadland general it is addined to have the first to the section of the state of the section of the state of the section of the sec

han from the state of the following the first of the firs

[20th December, 2004.]

Taga Truck of

An Act further to amend the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the Deposit Insurance and Credit Guarantee Corporation Act, 1961.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fifth Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

#### CHAPTER I

## PRELIMINARY

Short title and commencement.

Becaminem to

- 1. (1) This Act may be called the Banking Regulation (Amendment) and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 2004.
- (2) Save as otherwise provided in this Act, the provisions of this Act shall be deemed to have come into force on the 24th day of September, 2004,

#### **CHAPTER II**

#### AMENDMENTS TO THE BANKING REGULATION ACT, 1949

Amendment of section 56 of Act 10 of 1949.

- 2. In Part V of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 (hereafter in this Chapter referred to as the principal Act), in the provisions of the principal Act as applied to, or in relation to, cooperative societies, by section 56,—
  - (I) in section 5 of the principal Act, as amended by sub-clause (i) of clause (c) of the said section 56,—
    - (A) after clause (ccii), the following clause shall be inserted and shall be deemed to have been inserted with effect from the 1st day of March, 1966, namely:—

'(cciia) "co-operative society" means a society registered or deemed to have been registered under any Central Act for the time being in force relating to the multi-State co-operative societies, or any other Central or State law relating to co-operative societies for the time being in force;';

disable by a resome

toste the desirate

as dise od Hada a

by the currented

delinite it aniod

Jand Lander has

hal in persecution of a publicate property with the province agprovided the Reserve Bush under section 12 of the Muit Star Car operative Societies Aut, 1902, an order encounting a saturate of

(B) after clause (cciii), the following clauses shall be inserted and shall be deemed to have been inserted with effect from the 1st day of March, 1966, and the part of hamely: The results of the same of the Administration by such por

'(cciiia) "multi-State co-operative bank" means a multi-State cooperative society which is a primary co-operative bank; Inches set Orthe a

- (cciiib) "multi-State co-operative society" means a multi-State cooperative society registered as such under any Central Act for the time being in force relating to the multi-State co-operative societies but does not include a national co-operative society and a federal co-operative;';
- an abarrand ven (C) in clause (ccvii), the words "co-operative society" shall be omitted and shall be deemed to have been omitted with effect from the 1st day of March, tub line environ functions and dutie
- (II) after section 22 of the principal Act, as amended by clause (o) of the said section 56, the following section shall be inserted, namely:-
- "22A. Notwithstanding anything contained in any law or, judgment delivered or decree or order of any court made,
- (a) ino licence, granted to a multi-State co-operative society by the Reserve Bank under section 22, which was subsisting on the date of commencement of the Banking Regulation (Amendment) and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 2004, shall be invalid or be deemed ever to have been invalid merely by the reason of such judgment, decree or order;

avisses of a self-library (b) every licence, granted to a multi-State co-operative society by the Reserve Bank under section 22, which was subsisting on the date of to see the commencement of the Banking Regulation (Amendment) and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 2004, shall be valid and be deemed always to have been validly granted in accordance with law;

overed bus receive has a (c); a multi-State co-operative society whose application for grant of licence for carrying on banking business was pending with the Reserve Bank on the date of commencement of the Banking Regulation (Amendment) and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 2004 shall be eligible to carry on banking business until it is granted a licence in pursuance of section 22 or is, by a notice in writing notified by the Reserve Bank that the licence cannot be granted to it;"; minumbasian (1)

(III) for clause (zaa) of the said section 56, the following clauses shall be substituted, namely: The distriction of the control of the substitution of

'(zaa) after section 36AA of the principal Act, the following sections shall vasti was be inserted, namely: --- building antique antique and (c)

"36AAA. (1) Where the Reserve Bank is satisfied that in the public interest or for preventing the affairs of a multi-State co-operative bank being conducted in a manner detrimental to the interest of the depositors BOOK HER (1) BOOK of the multi-State co-operative bank or for securing the proper management of the multi-State co-operative bank, it is necessary so to do, the Reserve Bank may, for reasons to be recorded in writing, by order, supersede the Board of directors of such multi-State co-operative bank for a period not exceeding five years as may be specified in the order, which may be extended from time to time, so, however, that total period shall not exceed five years.

granted by Reserve Bank to multi-State co-operative societies.

Validation of

licences

Supersession of Board of directors of a multi-State cooperative bank.

CHARRY OF WHERE to av get -00 mass 41kms Mond asimitana. at both in or LORGE BLOTTE

with mornith to real

omeni shingi k

alfiber sell of test)

robective hank

สายสิ่งเมลาน์ เสรีร้าง

simple and the parties

is ar imbir.V

VI KARAS

sociatios.

State House of

- (2) The Reserve Bank may, on supersession of the Board of directors of the multi-State co-operative bank under sub-section (1) appoint an Administrator for such period as it may determine.
- (3) The Reserve Bank may issue such directions to the Administrator as it may deem appropriate and the Administrator shall be bound to follow such directions.
- (4) Upon making the order of supersession of the Board of directors of a multi-State co-operative bank, chel a federal co-aparative c
- (a) the chairman, managing director and other directors as from the date of supersession of the Board shall vacate their offices discilled in vehical on merias such; but bothers used evid of emeasts of fleels.
- (b) all the powers, functions and duties which may, by or hing office (a) second and funder the provisions of the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act. 2002 or this Act or any other law for the time being in force, be exercised and discharged by or on behalf of the Board of directors of such a multi-State co-operative bank or by a resolution passed in general meeting of such co-operative bank, shall, until the Board of only of the constituted, be exercised and discharged by the Administrator appointed by the Reserve Bank enough the first function in the sunder sub-section (2) without being money as a

Provided that the power exercised by the Administrator shall be valid notwithstanding that such power is exercisable by a resolution passed in the general meeting of such multi-State co-operative For administration of grades of the bank, to the top, CR heart of the board tree is the contract of the

- The Reserve Bank may constitute a committee of three or more persons who have experience in law, finance, banking, administration or accountancy to assist the Administrator in discharge of his duties.
- The committee shall meet at such times and places and observe such rules of procedure as may be specified by the Reserve Bank.
- bers of the committee constituted by the Reserve Bank shall be such as may be specified by the Reserve Bank and be payable by the concerned multi-State co-operative bank.
- (7) On and before expiration of period of supersession of the Board of directors as specified in the order issued under sub-section (1), the Administrator of the multi-State co-operative bank shall call the general meeting of the society to elect new directors.
  - (8) Notwithstanding anything contained in any other law or in any contract, or bye-laws of a multi-State co-operative bank, no person shall be entitled to claim any compensation for the loss or termination of his office. sease de Maseul in a arealar debaséries en tha
- The Administrator appointed under sub-section (2) shall vacate office immediately after the Board of directors of the multi-State co-operative society has been constituted.
- 36AAB. Where a multi-State co-operative bank, being an eligible co-operative bank, has been registered under section 13A of the Deposit Insurance and Credit Guarantee Corporation Act, 1961, as an insured bank, and subsequently -

(a) in pursuance of a scheme prepared with the previous approval of the Reserve Bank under section 18 of the Multi-State Cooperative Societies Act, 2002, an order sanctioning a scheme of

39 of 2002

Order of winding up of multi-State cooperative bank to be final in certain cases.

and stocks (Flacor)

compromise and arrangement or reorganisation or reconstruction has been made; or

- (b) on requisition by the Reserve Bank, an order for winding up of the multi-State co-operative bank has been made under section 87 of the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002; or
- (c) an order for the supersession of the Board and the appointment of an Administrator therefor has been made under section 36AAA,

such order for sanctioning the scheme of compromise and arrangement or reorganisation or reconstruction under clause (a) or the winding up of the multi-State co-operative bank under clause (b) or an order for the supersession of the Board and the appointment of an Administrator under clause (c) shall not be liable to be called in question in any manner.

36AAC. Where a multi-State co-operative bank, being an insured bank within the meaning of the Deposit Insurance and Credit Guarantee Corporation Act, 1961, is wound up and the Deposit Insurance Corporation has become liable to the depositors' of the insured bank under subsection (1) or sub-section (2) of section 16 of that Act, the Deposit Insurance Corporation shall be reimbursed by the liquidator or such other person in the circumstances, to the extent and in the manner provided in section 21 of that Act.";

Reimbursement to Deposit Insurance Corporation by liquidator or transferee bank.

(zab) in section 36AD, sub-section (3) shall be omitted;';

(II) in clause (zb) of the said section 56, for the word, figures and letter "Part IIA", the words, figures and letters "Part IIA except sections 36AAA, 36AAB and 36AAC" shall be substituted.

# increased as self-increased in from a data. The self-constituent is a self-constituent of discountries and the self-constituent in the self-constituen

# AMENDMENTS TO THE DEPOSIT INSURANCE AND CREDIT GUARANTEE Corporation Act, 1961

3. In the Deposit Insurance and Credit Guarantee Corporation Act, 1961, in section 2,

Amendment of section 2 of Act 47 of 1961.

- (a) in clause (q), the words "co-operative society" shall be omitted and shall be deemed to have been omitted with effect from the 1st day of March, 1966;
- (b) in clause (r), for the words "primary co-operative bank", the words "co-operative society", "primary co-operative bank" shall be substituted and shall be deemed to have been substituted with effect from the 1st day of March, 1966.

#### **CHAPTER IV**

#### REPEAL AND SAVING

4. (1) The Banking Regulation (Amendment) and Miscellaneous Provisions Ordinance, 2004 is hereby repealed.

Repeal and

speckan blood the Delneralis

and a title of the Added the

(2) Notwithstanding such repeal, anything done or any action taken under the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the Deposit Insurance and Credit Guarantee Corporation Act, 1961, as amended by the said Ordinance shall be deemed to have been done or taken under the corresponding provisions of those Acts, as amended by this Act.

1961

002

. 3 of 2004

of 1949. of 1961. (b) on pequiphion by dis Henrico Mich, as or we by a thining

## THE CUSTOMS AND CENTRAL EXCISE LAWS (REPEAL) ACT, 2004

by an eader the the superar citin of the Board and the stepointacent of an Administrator Generally has been mode inches soci-

36AACL Wijerd a modification on operative bank, being an in-and

no sa suo agaistas fata diche del comprese de treficial esta pala cultivate del decidio de con re segunites con la companication pader clubs. (a) se the whething an efficie a mary art wit retire we no (5) assets No. 25 of 2004(6 to south littles exacts set in recognition A as to trainint ogge sat the brack and a nation nations (c) shall not be fiable to be carled is question in ony manner.

[21st December, 2004.]

aradmib2 textly or phone postil listerators (Sinyeaustion by in rotable of 9.835 BROBE dried

Short title.

Repeal of certain enactments.

Savings.

AnthodoliscianA

wallout notice

1761 TO TO

An Act to repeal certain Customs and Central Excise enactments.

Be it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fifth Year of the Republic of India as rate section (2) of section to of that Act, the Depersonalor ance Corporation shall be reimbursed by the figuritation of

- 1. This Act may be called the Customs and Central Excise Laws (Repeal) Act, 2004.
  - 2. The enactments specified in the Schedule are hereby repealed.

3. (1) The repeal by this Act of any enactment shall not affect any other enactment in which the repealed enactment has been applied, incorporated or referred to:

Physical design (Charles and seeding (Dan) and seed of the charles

and this Act shall not affect the validity, invalidity, effect or consequences of anything already done or suffered, or any right, title, obligation or liability already acquired, accrued or incurred, or any remedy or proceedings in respect thereof, or any release or discharge of or from any debt, penalty, obligation, liability, claim or demand, or any indemnity already granted, or the proof of any past act or thing; where it may not not on examine the

nor shall this Act affect any principle or rule of law, or established jurisdiction, form or course of pleading, practice or procedure, or existing usage, custom, privilege, restriction, exemption, office or appointment, notwithstanding that the same respectively may have been in any manner affirmed or recognised or derived by, in or from any enactment hereby (a) in clause (a), the words "gayopprishive wooldy" shall be unified audibalant

nor shall the repeal by this Act of any enactment revive or restore any jurisdiction, office, custom, liability, right, title, privilege, restriction, exemption, usage, practice, procedure or other matter or thing not now existing or in force.

(2) Sub-section (1) shall not be held to prejudice or affect the general application of section 6 of the General Clauses Act, 1897 with regard to the effect of repeal of the Acts specified in the Schedule.

10 of 1897

3 of Mist

5000 Th

1701-76

iválvas ona jrosyði

baallangs# Sept 9778

t. (1) The Budding Reighburg (Amendanat) and Miscellaneous brevisions Ordinamed 1934 is belony trained.

(2) Metwith-fending and repeat anything Jone or any action takes upday the Bundebur, Registation Act, 1943 and the Depicest Insurance and Gredit Committee Corporation Act. 1961, as singuined by thought Coshanne that be deemed to have been down or sken under the corresponding provisions of decay (27), at ameated by this Act.

## THE SCHEDULE (See section 2)

Year	Number	Short title			
(1)	(2)	(3) - (4) - (4) (3) - (4) (4) (4) (4)			
1958	27	The Mineral Oils (Additional Duties of Excise and Customs) Act, 1958.			
1959	58	The Sugar (Special Excise Duty) Act, 1959.			
1986	45	The Central Duties of Excise (Retrospective Exemption) Act, 1986.			
1986	62	The Customs and Excise Revenues Appellate Tribunal Act, 1986.			
1988	29	The Customs and Central Excises Laws (Amendment) Act, 1988.			

## THE PREVENTION OF TERRORISM (REPEAL) ACT, 2004

### No. 26 of 2004

[21st December, 2004.]

### An Act to repeal the Prevention of Terrorism Act, 2002.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fifth Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

Short title and commencement.

- 1. (1) This Act may be called the Prevention of Terrorism (Repeal) Act, 2004.
- (2) It shall be deemed to have come into force on the 21st day of September, 2004.

Repeal of Act 15 of 2002 and saving.

- 2. (1) The Prevention of Terrorism Act, 2002 (hereinafter referred to as the principal Act) is hereby repealed.
  - (2) The repeal of the principal Act shall not affect—
  - (a) the previous operation of, or anything duly done or suffered under the principal Act, or
  - (b) any right, privilege or obligation or liability acquired, accrued or incurred under the principal Act, or
  - (c) any penalty, forfeiture or punishment incurred in respect of any offence under the principal Act, or
  - (d) any investigation, legal proceeding or remedy in respect of any such right, privilege, obligation, liability, penalty, forfeiture or punishment as aforesaid,

and, any such investigation, legal proceeding or remedy may be instituted, continued or enforced and any such penalty, forfeiture or punishment may be imposed as if the principal Act had not been repealed:

Provided that notwithstanding anything contained in this sub-section or in any other law for the time being in force, no court shall take cognizance of an offence under the principal Act after the expiry of the period of one year from the commencement of this Act.

(3) Notwithstanding the repeal of section 60 of the principal Act, the Review Committee constituted by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of that section, whether or not an application under sub-section (4) of that section has been made, shall review all cases registered under the principal Act as to whether there is a prima facie

Repeal and saving

case for proceeding against the accused thereunder and such review shall be completed within a period of one year from the commencement of this Act and where the Review Committee is of the opinion that there is no *prima facie* case for proceeding against the accused, then,—

- (a) in cases in which cognizance has been taken by the Court, the cases shall be deemed to have been withdrawn; and
- (b) in cases in which investigations are pending, the investigations shall be closed forthwith,

with effect from the date of issuance of the direction by such Review Committee in this regard.

- (4) The Review Committee constituted by the Central Government under subsection (1) of section 60 of the principal Act shall, while reviewing cases, have powers of a civil court under the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 in respect of the following matters, namely:—
  - (a) discovery and production of any document;
  - (b) requisitioning any public record or copy thereof from any court or office.
- (5) The Central Government may constitute more Review Committees, as it may consider necessary, for completing the review within the period specified in sub-section (3).
  - 3. (1) The Prevention of Terrorism (Repeal) Ordinance, 2004 is hereby repealed.

The control help a mind a result of the Roman America

in the control of the manner in history have all outly such all the manner to

more some till er dometick fill bledt fille

(2) Notwithstanding such repeal, anything done or any action taken under the said Ordinance shall be deemed to have been done or taken under the corresponding provisions of this Act.

นู้เก็บได้ เป็นเมื่อง นักเก็บ เก็บ ซึ่งที่ใน มาซึมเน็บเป็นควา ผู้กาลที่เก็บแก่ตั้งแม้ได้หาสำหรับ และผู้เก็ง ในช่านั้นการเหมือ ค.ศ. ค.ศ. ค.ศ. ในการแก้ว่า การแผ่งเมื่องการกำหนับมี เหมือนในเพาะหลับสักผมใหม่ใหม่ใหม่ใน เป็นเป็น เป็นแบบเลื่อน และ ให้ มี เหมือน และ เพาะสามา และ ค.ศ. และ ค.ศ. และ ค.ศ. แนะ ค.ศ. และ ค.ศ. และ ค.ศ. เหมือนที่ เป็นผู้เป็นเพลิสตร์ และ เป็น มีเก็บ เหมือน เป็น ค.ศ. และ ค.ศ. และ ค.ศ. แนะ ค.ศ. และ ค.ศ. และ ค.ศ. และ

5 of 1908.

Ord. 1 of 2004.

## THE APPROPRIATION (RAILWAYS) NO. 4 ACT, 2004

No. 27 of 2004

[21st December, 2004.]

An Act to authorise payment and appropriation of certain further sums from and out of the Consolidated Fund of India for the services of the financial year 2004-05 for the purposes of Railways.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fifth Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

2. From and out of the Consolidated Fund of India there may be paid and applied

Short title.

1. This Act may be called the Appropriation (Railways) No. 4 Act, 2004.

Issue of Rs. 2565,40,15,000 out of the Consolidated Fund of India for the financial year 2004-05.

Appropriation.

- sums not exceeding those specified in column 3 of the Schedule amounting in the aggregate to the sum of two thousand five hundred and sixty-five crores, forty lakhs and fifteen thousand rupees towards defraying the several charges which will come in course of payment during the financial year 2004-05, in respect of the services relating to Railways specified in column 2 of the Schedule.
- 3. The sums authorised to be paid and applied from and out of the Consolidated Fund of India by this Act shall be appropriated for the services and purposes expressed in the Schedule in relation to the said year.

# THE SCHEDULE (See sections 2 and 3)

1	2	3,44			
No.	Services and purposes	Sums not exceeding			
of Vote		Voted by Charged Parliament on the Consolidated Fund	Total		
16	Assets—Acquisition, Construction and Replacement	Rs. Rs.	Rs.		
	Other Expenditure				
	Capital	1537,00,00,000	1537,00,00,000		
	Railway Funds	10,000	10,000		
	Railway Safety Fund	5,000	5,000 1028,40,00,000		
	TOTAL	2565,40,15,000	2565,40,15,000		

## THE SPECIAL TRIBUNALS (SUPPLEMENTARY PROVISIONS) REPEAL ACT, 2004

No. 28 of 2004

[24th December, 2004.]

An Act to repeal the Special Tribunals (Supplementary Provisions) Act, 1946.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fifth Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

Short title.

1. This Act may be called the Special Tribunals (Supplementary Provisions) Repeal Act, 2004.

Repeal of Act 26 of 1946.

2. The Special Tribunals (Supplementary Provisions) Act, 1946 is hereby repealed.

## THE UNLAWFUL ACTIVITIES (PREVENTION) AMENDMENT ACT, 2004

atheres green hits bearing with his makers and a first of

No. 29 of 2004

Latter from a more disclosure Prof. Sections (Wiscons) Test, also

aboth the commission of the contract back a behavior of the company of the company (2004.]

1. 化充度器 电扩张电影电影转音轮。

issue the stand by a think has hear.

and An Act further to amend the Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fifth Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

1. (1) This Act may be called the Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Amendment Act, 2004. Called the bear about the bear activities (Prevention) Amendment

Short title and commencement.

- (2) It shall be deemed to have come into force on the 21st day of September,
- 2. In the Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967 (hereinafter referred to as the principal Act), in the long title, after the word "associations", the words ", and for dealing

with terrorist activities," shall be inserted. The state of the state

Amendment of long title.

3. In the principal Act, for the words and figures "Code of Criminal Procedure, 1898", wherever they occur, the word "Code" shall be substituted.

Substitution of word "Code" for "Code of Criminal Procedure, 1898".

4. In Chapter I of the principal Act, for sections 1, 2 and 2A, the following sections shall be substituted, namely:—

Amendment of Chapter I.

1. (1) This Act may be called the Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967.

Short title, extent and application.

- (2) It extends to the whole of India.
- (3) Every person shall be liable to punishment under this Act for every act or omission contrary to the provisions thereof, of which he is held guilty in India.
- (4) Any person, who commits an offence beyond India, which is punishable under this Act, shall be dealt with according to the provisions of this Act in the same manner as if such act had been committed in India.

159

of 1967.

of 1967.

f 1898

- (5) The provisions of this Act apply also to—
  - (a) citizens of India outside India;
  - (b) persons in the service of the Government, wherever they may be; and
- (c) persons on ships and aircrafts, registered in India, wherever they may be.

Definitions.

- 2. (1) In this Act, unless the context otherwise requires,—
  - (a) "association" means any combination or body of individuals;
- (b) "cession of a part of the territory of India" includes admission of the claim of any foreign country to any such part;
  - (c) "Code" means the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973;

2 of 197

- (d) "court" means a criminal court having jurisdiction, under the Code, to try offences under this Act;
- (e) "Designated Authority" means such officer of the Central Government not below the rank of Joint Secretary to that Government, or such officer of the State Government not below the rank of Secretary to that Government, as the case may be, as may be specified by the Central Government or the State Government, by notification published in the Official Gazette;
  - (f) "prescribed" means prescribed by rules made under this Act; RESTREE
- (g) "proceeds of terrorism" means all kinds of properties which have been derived or obtained from commission of any terrorist act or have been acquired through funds traceable to a terrorist act, irrespective of person in whose name such proceeds are standing or in whose possession they are found, and includes any property which is being used, or is intended to be used, for the purpose of a terrorist organisation;
  - (h) "property" means property and assets of every description, whether corporeal or incorporeal, movable or immovable, tangible or intangible and deeds and instruments evidencing title to, or interest in, such property or assets, and includes cash and bank account;
  - (i) "secession of a part of the territory of India from the Union" includes the assertion of any claim to determine whether such part will remain a part of the territory of India;
  - (j) "State Government", in relation to a Union territory, means the Administrator thereof;
  - (k) "terrorist act" has the meaning assigned to it in section 15, and the expressions "terrorism" and "terrorist" shall be construed accordingly;
  - (1) "terrorist gang" means any association, other than terrorist organisation, whether systematic or otherwise, which is concerned with, or involved in, terrorist act;

- (m) "terrorist organisation" means an organisation listed in the Schedule or an organisation operating under the same name as an organisation so listed;
  - (n) "Tribunal" means the Tribunal constituted under section 5;
- (o) "unlawful activity", in relation to an individual or association, means any action taken by such individual or association (whether by committing an act or by words, either spoken or written, or by signs or by visible representation or otherwise),—
  - (i) which is intended, or supports any claim, to bring about, on any ground whatsoever, the cession of a part of the territory of India or the secession of a part of the territory of India from the Union, or which incites any individual or group of individuals to bring about such cession or secession; or
  - (ii) which disclaims, questions, disrupts or is intended to disrupt the sovereignty and territorial integrity of India; or
    - (iii) which causes or is intended to cause disaffection against India;
  - (p) "unlawful association" means any association,—
  - (i) which has for its object any unlawful activity, or which encourages or aids persons to undertake any unlawful activity, or of which the members undertake such activity; or
  - (ii) which has for its object any activity which is punishable under section 153A or section 153B of the Indian Penal Code, or which encourages or aids persons to undertake any such activity, or of which the members undertake any such activity:

Provided that nothing contained in sub-clause (ii) shall apply to the State of Jammu and Kashmir;

- (q) words and expressions used but not defined in this Act and defined in the Code shall have the meanings respectively assigned to them in the Code.
- (2) Any reference in this Act to any enactment or any provision thereof shall, in relation to an area in which such enactment or such provision is not in force, be construed as a reference to the corresponding law or the relevant provision of the corresponding law, if any, in force in that area.'.
- 5. In section 5 of the principal Act, in sub-section (7), for the word and figures "Chapter XXXV", the word and figures "Chapter XXVI" shall be substituted.
- 6. For section 10 of the principal Act, the following section shall be substituted, namely:—
  - "10. Where an association is declared unlawful by a notification issued under section 3 which has become effective under sub-section (3) of that section,—
    - (a) a person, who—
      - (i) is and continues to be a member of such association; or
      - (ii) takes part in meetings of such association; or
    - (iii) contributes to, or receives or solicits any contribution for the purpose of, such association; or
      - (iv) in any way assists the operations of such association,

shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend to two years, and shall also be liable to fine; and

Amendment of section 5.

Substitution of new section for section 10.

Penalty for being member of an unlawful association, etc.

1860

- (b) a person, who is or continues to be a member of such association, or voluntarily does an act aiding or promoting in any manner the objects of such association and in either case is in possession of any unlicensed firearms, ammunition, explosive or other instrument or substance capable of causing mass destruction and commits any act resulting in loss of human life or grievous injury to any person or causes significant damage to any property,—
  - (i) and if such act has resulted in the death of any person, shall be punishable with death or imprisonment for life, and shall also be liable to fine;
- (ii) in any other case, shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which shall not be less than five years but which may extend to imprisonment for life, and shall also be liable to fine."

Substitution of new Chapters and Schedule for Chapter IV. 7. For Chapter IV of the principal Act, the following Chapters and the Schedule shall be substituted, namely:—

#### **'CHAPTER IV**

#### PUNISHMENT FOR TERRORIST ACTIVITIES

Terrorist act.

15. Whoever, with intent to threaten the unity, integrity, security or sovereignty of India or to strike terror in the people or any section of the people in India or in any foreign country, does any act by using bombs, dynamite or other explosive substances or inflammable substances or firearms or other lethal weapons or poisons or noxious gases or other chemicals or by any other substances (whether biological or otherwise) of a hazardous nature, in such a manner as to cause, or likely to cause, death of, or injuries to any person or persons or loss of, or damage to, or destruction of, property or disruption of any supplies or services essential to the life of the community in India or in any foreign country or causes damage or destruction of any property or equipment used or intended to be used for the defence of India or in connection with any other purposes of the Government of India, any State Government or any of their agencies, or detains any person and threatens to kill or injure such person in order to compel the Government in India or the Government of a foreign country or any other person to do or abstain from doing any act, commits a terrorist act.

Punishment for terrorist

- 16. (1) Whoever commits a terrorist act shall,
  - (a) if such act has resulted in the death of any person, be punishable with death or imprisonment for life, and shall also be liable to fine;
  - (b) in any other case, be punishable with imprisonment for a term which shall not be less than five years but which may extend to imprisonment for life, and shall also be liable to fine.
- 17. Whoever raises fund for the purpose of committing a terrorist act shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which shall not be less than five years but which may extend to imprisonment for life, and shall also be liable to fine.
- 18. Whoever conspires or attempts to commit, or advocates, abets, advises or incites or knowingly facilitates the commission of, a terrorist act or any act preparatory to the commission of a terrorist act, shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which shall not be less than five years but which may extend to imprisonment for life, and shall also be liable to fine.
- 19. Whoever voluntarily harbours or conceals, or attempts to harbour or conceal any person knowing that such person is a terrorist shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which shall not be less than three years but which may extend to imprisonment for life, and shall also be liable to fine:

Provided that this section shall not apply to any case in which the harbour or concealment is by the spouse of the offender.

Punishment for raising fund for terrorist act, Punishment for conspiracy, etc.

Punishment for harbouring, etc.

4 of 1884. 6 of 1908.

20 of 1952.

54 of 1959.

20. Any person who is a member of a terrorist gang or a terrorist organisation, which is involved in terrorist act, shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend to imprisonment for life, and shall also be liable to fine.

Punishment for being member of terrorist gang or organisation.

21. Whoever knowingly holds any property derived or obtained from commission of any terrorist act or acquired through the terrorist fund shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend to imprisonment for life, and shall also be liable to fine.

Punishment for holding proceeds of terrorism.

22. Whoever threatens any person who is a witness or any other person in whom such witness may be interested, with violence, or wrongfully restrains or confines the witness, or any other person in whom the witness may be interested, or does any other unlawful act with intent to cause any of the said acts, shall be punishable with imprisonment which may extend to three years, and shall also be liable to fine.

Punishment for threatening witness.

23. (1) If any person with intent to aid any terrorist contravenes any provision of, or any rule made under the Explosives Act, 1884 or the Explosive Substances Act, 1908 or the Inflammable Substances Act, 1952 or the Arms Act, 1959, or is in unauthorised possession of any bomb, dynamite or hazardous explosive substance or other lethal weapon or substance capable of mass destruction or biological or chemical substance of warfare, he shall, notwithstanding anything contained in any of the aforesaid Acts or the rules made thereunder, be punishable with imprisonment for a term which shall not be less than five years but which may extend to imprisonment for life, and shall also be liable to fine.

Enhanced penalties.

(2) Any person who, with intent to aid any terrorist, attempts to contravene or abets, or does any act preparatory to contravention of any provision of any law or rule specified in sub-section (1), shall be deemed to have contravened that provision under sub-section (1) and the provisions of that sub-section in relation to such person, have effect subject to the modification that the reference to "imprisonment for life" therein shall be construed as a reference to "imprisonment for ten years".

#### CHAPTER V

### FORFEITURE OF PROCEEDS OF TERRORISM

24. (1) No person shall hold or be in possession of any proceeds of terrorism.

Forfeiture of proceeds of terrorism.

- (2) Proceeds of terrorism, whether held by a terrorist or by any other person and whether or not such terrorist or other person is prosecuted or convicted for any offence under Chapter IV or Chapter VI, shall be liable to be forfeited to the Central Government or the State Government, as the case may be, in the manner provided under this Chapter.
- 25. (1) If an officer investigating an offence committed under Chapter IV or Chapter VI, has reason to believe that any property in relation to which an investigation is being conducted, represents proceeds of terrorism, he shall, with the prior approval in writing of the Director General of the Police of the State in which such property is situated, make an order seizing such property and where it is not practicable to seize such property, make an order of attachment directing that such property shall not be transferred or otherwise dealt with except with the prior permission of the officer making such order, or of the Designated Authority before whom the property seized or attached is produced and a copy of such order shall be served on the person concerned.

Powers of investigating officer and Designated Authority and appeal against order of Designated Authority.

- (2) The investigating officer shall duly inform the Designated Authority within forty-eight hours of the seizure or attachment of such property.
- (3) The Designated Authority before whom the seized or attached property is produced shall either confirm or revoke the order of seizure or attachment so issued within a period of sixty days from the date of such production:

Provided that an opportunity of making a representation by the person whose property is being seized or attached shall be given.

- (4) In the case of immovable property attached by the investigating officer, it shall be deemed to have been produced before the Designated Authority, when the investigating officer notifies his report and places it at the disposal of the Designated Authority.
- (5) The investigating officer may seize and detain any cash to which this Chapter applies if he has reasonable grounds for suspecting that—
  - (a) it is intended to be used for the purposes of terrorism; or
  - (b) it forms the whole or part of the resources of a terrorist organisation:

Provided that the cash seized under this sub-section by the investigating officer shall be released within a period of forty-eight hours beginning with the time when it is seized unless the matter involving the cash is before the Designated Authority and such Authority passes an order allowing its retention beyond forty-eight hours.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this sub-section, "cash" means—

- (a) coins or notes in any currency;
- (b) postal orders;
- (c) traveller's cheques;
- (d) banker's drafts; and
- (e) such other monetary instruments as the Central Government or, as the case may be, the State Government may specify by an order made in writing.
- (6) Any person aggrieved by an order made by the Designated Authority may prefer an appeal to the court within a period of thirty days from the date of receipt of the order, and the court may either confirm the order of attachment of property or seizure so made or revoke such order and release the property.
- 26. Where any property is seized or attached on the ground that it constitutes proceeds of terrorism and the court confirms the order in this regard under subsection (6) of section 25, it may order forfeiture of such property, whether or not the person from whose possession it is seized or attached, is prosecuted in a court for an offence under Chapter IV or Chapter VI.
- 27. (1) No order forfeiting any proceeds of terrorism shall be made under section 26 unless the person holding or in possession of such proceeds is given a notice in writing informing him of the grounds on which it is proposed to forfeit the proceeds of terrorism and such person is given an opportunity of making a representation in writing within such reasonable time as may be specified in the notice against the grounds of forfeiture and is also given a reasonable opportunity of being heard in the matter.
- (2) No order of forfeiture shall be made under sub-section (1), if such person establishes that he is a *bona fide* transferee of such proceeds for value without knowing that they represent proceeds of terrorism.

Court to order forfeiture of proceeds of terrorism.

Issue of show cause notice before forfeiture of proceeds of terrorism.

- (3) It shall be competent for the court to make an order in respect of property seized or attached,—
  - (a) directing it to be sold if it is a perishable property and the provisions of section 459 of the Code shall, as nearly as may be practicable, apply to the net proceeds of such sale;
  - (b) nominating any officer of the Central Government or the State Government, in the case of any other property, to perform the function of the Administrator of such property subject to such conditions as may be specified by the court.
- 28. (1) Any person aggrieved by an order of forfeiture under section 26 may, within one month from the date of the receipt of such order, appeal to the High Court within whose jurisdiction, the court, which passed the order appealed against, is situated

Appeal.

- (2) Where an order under section 26 is modified or annulled by the High Court or where in a prosecution instituted for any offence under Chapter IV or Chapter VI, the person against whom an order of forfeiture has been made under section 26 is acquitted, such property shall be returned to him and in either case if it is not possible for any reason to return the forfeited property, such person shall be paid the price therefor as if the property had been sold to the Central Government with reasonable interest calculated from the day of seizure of the property and such price shall be determined in the manner prescribed.
- 29. The order of forfeiture made under this Chapter by the court, shall not prevent the infliction of any other punishment to which the person affected thereby is liable under Chapter IV or Chapter VI.

Order of forfeiture not to interfere with other punishments.

30. (1) Where any claim is preferred or any objection is made to the seizure or attachment of any property under section 25 on the ground that such property is not liable to seizure or attachment, the Designated Authority before whom such property is produced, shall proceed to investigate the claim or objection:

Claims by third party.

Provided that no such investigation shall be made where the Designated Authority considers that the claim or objection is designed to cause unnecessary delay.

- (2) Where an appeal has been preferred under sub-section (6) of section 25 and any claimant or objector establishes that the property specified in the notice issued under section 27 is not liable to be forfeited under this Chapter, the said notice shall be withdrawn or modified accordingly.
- 31. The Designated Authority, acting under the provisions of this Chapter, shall have all the powers of a civil court required for making a full and fair inquiry into the matter before it.

Powers of Designated Authority.

32. Where, after the issue of an order under section 25 or issue of a notice under section 27, any property referred to in the said order or notice is transferred by any mode whatsoever, such transfer shall, for the purpose of the proceedings under this Chapter, be ignored and if such property is subsequently forfeited, the transfer of such property shall be deemed to be null and void.

Certain transfers to be null and void.

33. (1) Where any person is accused of an offence under Chapter IV or Chapter VI, it shall be open to the court to pass an order that all or any of the properties, movable or immovable or both, belonging to him, shall, during the period of such trial, be attached, if not already attached under this Chapter.

Forfeiture of property of certain persons.

(2) Where a person has been convicted of any offence punishable under Chapter IV or Chapter VI, the court may, in addition to awarding any punishment, by order in writing, declare that any property, movable or immovable or both, belonging to the accused and specified in the order, shall stand forfeited to the Central Government or the State Government, as the case may be, free from all encumbrances.

Company to transfer shares to Government. 34. Where any share in a company stand forfeited to the Central Government or the State Government, as the case may be, under this Chapter, then, the company shall, on receipt of the order of the court, notwithstanding anything contained in the Companies Act, 1956, or the articles of association of the company, forthwith register the Central Government or the State Government, as the case may be, as the transferee of such share.

1 of 1956.

#### **CHAPTER VI**

#### TERRORIST ORGANISATIONS

Amendment of Schedule, etc.

- 35. (1) The Central Government may, by order, in the Official Gazette,—
  - (a) add an organisation to the Schedule;
- (b) add also an organisation to the Schedule, which is identified as a terrorist organisation in a resolution adopted by the Security Council under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, to combat international terrorism;
  - (c) remove an organisation from the Schedule;
  - (d) amend the Schedule in some other way.
- (2) The Central Government shall exercise its power under clause (a) of subsection (1) in respect of an organisation only if it believes that it is involved in terrorism.
- (3) For the purposes of sub-section (2), an organisation shall be deemed to be involved in terrorism if it—
  - (a) commits or participates in acts of terrorism, or
  - (b) prepares for terrorism, or
  - (c) promotes or encourages terrorism, or
  - (d) is otherwise involved in terrorism.
- 36. (1) An application may be made to the Central Government for the exercise of its power under clause (c) of sub-section (1) of section 35 to remove an organisation from the Schedule.
  - (2) An application under sub-section (1) may be made by—
    - (a) the organisation, or
  - (b) any person affected by inclusion of the organisation in the Schedule as a terrorist organisation.
- (3) The Central Government may prescribe the procedure for admission and disposal of an application made under this section.
- (4) Where an application under sub-section (1) has been rejected the applicant may apply for a review to the Review Committee constituted by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 37 within one month from the date of receipt of the order of such refusal by the applicant.
- (5) The Review Committee may allow an application for review against rejection to remove an organisation from the Schedule, if it considers that the decision to reject was flawed when considered in the light of the principles applicable on an application for judicial review.
- (6) Where the Review Committee allows review under sub-section (5) by or in respect of an organisation, it may make an order to such effect.
- (7) Where an order is made under sub-section (6), the Central Government shall, as soon as the certified copy of the order is received by it, make an order removing the organisation from the Schedule.
- 37. (1) The Central Government shall constitute one or more Review Committees for the purposes of section 36.

Denotification of a terrorist organisation.

Review Committees.

- (2) Every such Committee shall consist of a Chairperson and such other members not exceeding three and possessing such qualifications as may be prescribed.
- (3) A Chairperson of the Committee shall be a person who is, or has been, a Judge of a High Court, who shall be appointed by the Central Government and in the case of appointment of a sitting Judge, the concurrence of the Chief Justice of the concerned High Court shall be obtained.
- 38. (1) A person, who associates himself, or professes to be associated, with a terrorist organisation with intention to further its activities, commits an offence relating to membership of a terrorist organisation:

Offence relating to membership of a terrorist organisation.

Provided that this sub-section shall not apply where the person charged is able to prove—

- (a) that the organisation was not declared as a terrorist organisation at the time when he became a member or began to profess to be a member; and
- (b) that he has not taken part in the activities of the organisation at any time during its inclusion in the Schedule as a terrorist organisation.
- (2) A person, who commits the offence relating to membership of a terrorist organisation under sub-section (1), shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term not exceeding ten years, or with fine, or with both.
- 39. (1) A person commits the offence relating to support given to a terrorist organisation,—

Offence relating to support given to a terrorist organisation.

- (a) who, with intention to further the activity of a terrorist organisation,—
  - (i) invites support for the terrorist organisation, and
- (ii) the support is not or is not restricted to provide money or other property within the meaning of section 40; or
- (b) who, with intention to further the activity of a terrorist organisation, arranges, manages or assists in arranging or managing a meeting which he knows is
  - (i) to support the terrorist organisation, or
  - (ii) to further the activity of the terrorist organisation, or
  - (iii) to be addressed by a person who associates or professes to be associated with the terrorist organisation; or
- (c) who, with intention to further the activity of a terrorist organisation, addresses a meeting for the purpose of encouraging support for the terrorist organisation or to further its activity.
- (2) A person, who commits the offence relating to support given to a terrorist organisation under sub-section (1) shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term not exceeding ten years, or with fine, or with both.
- 40. (1) A person commits the offence of raising fund for a terrorist organisation, who, with intention to further the activity of a terrorist organisation,—
  - (a) invites another person to provide money or other property, and intends that it should be used, or has reasonable cause to suspect that it might be used, for the purposes of terrorism; or
  - (b) receives money or other property, and intends that it should be used, or has reasonable cause to suspect that it might be used, for the purposes of terrorism; or

Offence of raising fund for a terrorist organisation.

(c) provides money or other property, and knows, or has reasonable cause to suspect, that it would or might be used for the purposes of terrorism.

Explanation.—For the purposes of this sub-section, a reference to provide money or other property includes of its being given, lent or otherwise made available, whether or not for consideration.

(2) A person, who commits the offence of raising fund for a terrorist organisation under sub-section (1), shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term not exceeding fourteen years, or with fine, or with both.

#### CHAPTER VII

#### MISCELLANEOUS

Continuance of association.

Power to

delegate.

Officers competent to investigate offences under Chapters IV and VI.

Protection of

witnesses.

- 41. An association shall not be deemed to have ceased to exist by reason only of any formal act of its dissolution or change of name but shall be deemed to continue so long as any actual combination for the purposes of such association continues between any members thereof.
- 42. The Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, direct that all or any of the powers which may be exercised by it under section 7, or section 8, or both, shall, in such circumstances and under such conditions, if any, as may be specified in the notification, be exercised also by any State Government and the State Government may, with the previous approval of the Central Government, by order in writing, direct that any power which has been directed to be exercised by it shall, in such circumstances and under such conditions, if any, as may be specified in the direction, be exercised by any person subordinate to the State Government as may be specified therein.
  - 43. Notwithstanding anything contained in the Code, no police officer,—
  - (a) in the case of the Delhi Special Police Establishment, constituted under sub-section (1) of section 2 of the Delhi Special Police Establishment Act, 1946, below the rank of a Deputy Superintendent of Police or a police officer of equivalent rank;

25 of 1946.

- (b) in the metropolitan areas of Mumbai, Kolkata, Chennai and Ahmedabad and any other metropolitan area notified as such under sub-section (1) of section 8 of the Code, below the rank of an Assistant Commissioner of Police;
- (c) in any case not relatable to clause (a) or clause (b), below the rank of a Deputy Superintendent of Police or a police officer of an equivalent rank,

shall investigate any offence punishable under Chapter IV or VI.

- 44. (1) Notwithstanding anything contained in the Code, the proceedings under this Act may, for reasons to be recorded in writing, be held *in camera* if the court so desires.
- (2) A court, if on an application made by a witness in any proceeding before it or by the Public Prosecutor in relation to such witness or on its own motion, is satisfied that the life of such witness is in danger, it may, for reasons to be recorded in writing, take such measures as it deems fit for keeping the identity and address of such witness secret.
- (3) In particular, and without prejudice to the generality of the provisions of sub-section (2), the measures which a court may take under that sub-section may include—
  - (a) the holding of the proceedings at a place to be decided by the court;
  - (b) the avoiding of the mention of the name and address of the witness in its orders or judgments or in any records of the case accessible to public;

- (c) the issuing of any directions for securing that the identity and address of the witness are not disclosed;
- (d) a decision that it is in the public interest to order that all or any of the proceedings pending before such a court shall not be published in any manner.
- (4) Any person who contravenes any decision or direction issued under subsection (3) shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend to three years, and shall also be liable to fine.
  - 45. No court shall take cognizance of any offence—

Cognizance of offences.

- (i) under Chapter III without the previous sanction of the Central Government or any officer authorised by the Central Government in this behalf;
- (ii) under Chapters IV and VI without the previous sanction of the Central Government or, as the case may be, the State Government, and where such offence is committed against the Government of a foreign country without the previous sanction of the Central Government.
- 46. Notwithstanding anything contained in the Indian Evidence Act, 1872 or any other law for the time being in force, the evidence collected through the interception of wire, electronic or oral communication under the provisions of the Indian Telegraph Act, 1885 or the Information Technology Act, 2000 or any other law for the time being in force, shall be admissible as evidence against the accused in the court during the trial of a case:

Admissibility of evidence collected through the interception of communications.

Provided that the contents of any wire, electronic or oral communication intercepted or evidence derived therefrom shall not be received in evidence or otherwise disclosed in any trial, hearing or other proceeding in any court unless each accused has been furnished with a copy of the order of the competent authority under the aforesaid law, under which the interception was directed, not less than ten days before trial, hearing or proceeding:

Provided further that the period of ten days may be waived by the judge trying the matter, if he comes to the conclusion that it was not possible to furnish the accused with such order ten days before the trial, hearing or proceeding and that the accused shall not be prejudiced by the delay in receiving such order.

47. (1) Save as otherwise expressly provided in this Act, no proceeding taken under this Act by the Central Government or the District Magistrate or any officer authorised in this behalf by the Central Government or the District Magistrate, shall be called in question in any civil court in any suit or application or by way of appeal or revision, and no injunction shall be granted by any civil court or other authority in respect of any action taken or to be taken in pursuance of any power conferred by or under this Act.

Bar of jurisdiction.

- (2) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-section (1), no civil court or other authority shall have, or be entitled to exercise, any jurisdiction, powers or authority in relation to the matters referred to in section 36.
- 48. The provisions of this Act or any rule or order made thereunder shall have effect notwithstanding anything inconsistent therewith contained in any enactment other than this Act or any instrument having effect by virtue of any enactment other than this Act.

Effect of Act and rules, etc., inconsistent with other enactments.

49. No suit, prosecution or other legal proceeding shall lie against-

Protection of action taken in good faith.

(a) the Central Government or a State Government or any officer or authority of the Central Government or State Government or District Magistrate or any officer authorised in this behalf by the Government or the District Magistrate or any other authority on whom powers have been conferred under this Act, for anything which is in good faith done or purported to be done in pursuance of this Act or any rule or order made thereunder; and

1 of 1872.

13 of 1885. 21 of 2000. (b) any serving or retired member of the armed forces or para-military forces in respect of any action taken or purported to be taken by him in good faith, in the course of any operation directed towards combating terrorism.

Saving

50. Nothing in this Act shall affect the jurisdiction exercisable by, or the procedure applicable to, any court or other authority under any law relating to the navy, army or air force or other armed forces of the Union.

Impounding of passport and arms licence of person chargesheeted under the Act. 51. Notwithstanding anything contained in any other law for the time being in force, the passport and the arms licence of a person, who is charge-sheeted for having committed any offence under this Act, shall be deemed to have been impounded for such period as the court may deem fit.

Power to make rules.

- 52. (1) The Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, make rules for carrying out the provisions of this Act.
- (2) In particular, and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing powers, such rules may provide for all or any of the following matters, namely:—
  - (a) the service of notices or orders issued or made under this Act and the manner in which such notices or orders may be served, where the person to be served is a corporation, company, bank or other association;
  - (b) the procedure to be followed by the Tribunal or a District Judge in holding any inquiry or disposing of any application under this Act;
- (c) determination of the price of the forfeited property under sub-section (2) of section 28;
  - (d) the procedure for admission and disposal of an application under subsection (3) of section 36;
- (e) the qualifications of the members of the Review Committee under subsection (2) of section 37; and
  - (f) any other matter which is required to be, or may be, prescribed.

orders and rules to be laid before both Houses of Parliament.

53. Every order and every rule made by the Central Government under this Act shall be laid, as soon as may be after it is made, before each House of Parliament, while it is in session, for a total period of thirty days which may be comprised in one session or in two or more successive sessions, and if, before the expiry of the session immediately following the session or the successive sessions aforesaid, both Houses agree in making any modification in the order or rule or both Houses agree that the order or rule should not be made, the order or rule shall thereafter have effect only in such modified form or be of no effect, as the case may be; so, however, that any such modification or annulment shall be without prejudice to the validity of anything previously done under that order or rule.

ું મારા કરતાં હતાં કે તેના કે જિલ્લાએ કું કહેવાં તેના નાન જે તેના જ જેવાં કહિલી ના અને અને કરતાં કરી છે. તે જે અને કર્યાત્ર કર્યું તે કે જે તે જો કહિલી હોય છે. 'હોર્ક કેંગ કે તેનું કે જે તે કે કે કું જે કું કરીએ કર્યા કે કું કર્યા પ્રકાશ હોતા કે જું હાર્યું કે તેના કો કું કિંદા કેંગ કર્યાત્ર કે તે કે તેનુ કરતાં છે. જે કો ફાય કરી કે જે કે

al especial de la company de l

and the second security at the second security and the second security of the second second section of the second

maker i spoje rodin ali nistani o popis i more, a koje i more, stori

## THE SCHEDULE [See sections 2(1)(m) and 35]

#### TERRORIST ORGANISATIONS

- 1. BABBAR KHALSA INTERNATIONAL.
- 2. KHALISTAN COMMANDO FORCE.
- 3. KHALISTAN ZINDABAD FORCE.
- 4. INTERNATIONAL SIKH YOUTH FEDERATION.
- 5. LASHKAR-E-TAIBA/PASBAN-E-AHLE HADIS.
- 6. JAISH-E-MOHAMMED/TAHRIK-E-FURQAN.
- 7. HARKAT-UL-MUJAHIDEEN/HARKAT-UL-ANSAR/HARKAT-UL-JEHAD-E-ISLAMI.
- 8. HIZB-UL-MUJAHIDEEN/HIZB-UL-MUJAHIDEEN PIR PANJAL REGIMENT.
- 9. AL-UMAR-MUJAHIDEEN.
- 10. JAMMU AND KASHMIR ISLAMIC FRONT.
- 11. UNITED LIBERATION FRONT OF ASSAM (ULFA).
- 12. NATIONAL DEMOCRATIC FRONT OF BODOLAND (NDFB).
- 13. PEOPLE'S LIBERATION ARMY (PLA).
- 14. UNITED NATIONAL LIBERATION FRONT (UNLF).
- 15. PEOPLE'S REVOLUTIONARY PARTY OF KANGLEIPAK (PREPAK).
- 16. KANGLEIPAK COMMUNIST PARTY (KCP).
- 17. KANGLEI YAOL KANBA LUP (KYKL).
- 18. MANIPUR PEOPLE'S LIBERATION FRONT (MPLF).
- 19. ALL TRIPURA TIGER FORCE.
- 20. NATIONAL LIBERATION FRONT OF TRIPURA.
- 21. LIBERATION TIGERS OF TAMIL EELAM (LTTE).
- 22. STUDENTS ISLAMIC MOVEMENT OF INDIA.
- 23. DEENDAR ANJUMAN.
- 24. COMMUNIST PARTY OF INDIA (MARXIST-LENINIST)—PEOPLE'S WAR, ALLITS FORMATIONS AND FRONT ORGANISATIONS.
- 25. MAOIST COMMUNIST CENTRE (MCC), ALL ITS FORMATIONS AND FRONT ORGANISATIONS.
- 26. AL BADR.
- 27. JAMIAT-UL-MUJAHIDDEN.
- 28. AL-QAIDA.
- 29. DUKHTARAN-E-MILLAT (DEM).

- 30. TAMIL NADU LIBERATION ARMY (TNLA).
- 31. TAMIL NATIONAL RETRIEVAL TROOPS (TNRT).
- 32. AKHIL BHARAT NEPALI EKTA SAMAJ (ABNES).'.

Repeal and saving.

- **8.** (1) The Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Amendment Ordinance, 2004 is hereby Ord. 2 of 2004. repealed.
- (2) Notwithstanding such repeal, anything done or any action taken under the principal Act, as amended by the said Ordinance, shall be deemed to have been done or taken under the principal Act, as amended by this Act.

## THE ENFORCEMENT OF SECURITY INTEREST AND RECOVERY OF DEBTS LAWS (AMENDMENT) ACT, 2004

No. 30 of 2004

[29th December, 2004.]

An Act to amend the Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 and further to amend the Recovery of Debts Due to Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 1993 and the Companies Act, 1956.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fifth Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

#### CHAPTER I

#### **PRELIMINARY**

1. (1) This Act may be called the Enforcement of Security Interest and Recovery of Debts Laws (Amendment) Act, 2004.

Short title and commencement

(2) Save as otherwise provided in this Act, the provisions of this Act shall be deemed to have come into force on the 11th day of November, 2004.

#### CHAPTER II

AMENDMENTS TO THE SECURITISATION AND RECONSTRUCTION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND ENFORCEMENT OF SECURITY INTEREST ACT, 2002

2. In section 2 of the Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 (hereafter in this Chapter referred to as the principal Act), in sub-section (1),—

Amendment of section 2.

(i) after clause (h), the following clause shall be inserted, namely:—

54 of 2002.

51 of 1993.

- '(ha) "debt" shall have the meaning assigned to it in clause (g) of section 2 of the Recovery of Debts Due to Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 1993;';
- (ii) in clause (j), the words "in accordance with the directions or guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank" shall be omitted;

173

(iii) in clause (o), for the words "doubtful or loss asset, in accordance with the directions or under guidelines relating to assets classifications issued by the Reserve Bank", the following shall be substituted, namely:—

"doubtful or loss asset,---

- (a) in case such bank or financial institution is administered or regulated by any authority or body established, constituted or appointed by any law for the time being in force, in accordance with the directions or guidelines relating to assets classifications issued by such authority or body;
- (b) in any other case, in accordance with the directions or guidelines relating to assets classifications issued by the Reserve Bank;";
- (iv) in clause (u), for the words "trustee or any asset management company making investment on behalf of mutual fund or provident fund or gratuity fund or pension fund", the words, brackets and figures "trustee or securitisation company or reconstruction company which has been granted a certificate of registration under sub-section (4) of section 3 or any asset management company making investment on behalf of mutual fund" shall be substituted;
- (v) in clause (zd), for sub-clause (ii), the following sub-clause shall be substituted, namely:—
  - "(ii) securitisation company or reconstruction company, whether acting as such or managing a trust set up by such securitisation company or reconstruction company for the securitisation or reconstruction, as the case may be; or".

Amendment of section 3.

- 3. In section 3 of the principal Act, in sub-section (3), after clause (g), the following clause shall be inserted at the end, namely:—
  - "(h) that securitisation company or reconstruction company has complied with one or more conditions specified in the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank for the said purpose.".

Amendment of section 4.

- 4. In section 4 of the principal Act, in sub-section (2),—
  - (a) the words "rejection of application for registration or" shall be omitted;
- (b) for the words "such order of rejection or cancellation", the words "such order of cancellation" shall be substituted.

Insertion of new section 5A.

5. After section 5 of the principal Act, the following section shall be inserted, namely:—

Transfer of pending applications to any one of Debts Recovery Tribunals in certain cases. "5A. (1) If any financial asset, of a borrower acquired by a securitisation company or reconstruction company, comprise of secured debts of more than one bank or financial institution for recovery of which such banks or financial institutions has filed applications before two or more Debts Recovery Tribunals, the securitisation company or reconstruction company may file an application to the Appellate Tribunal having jurisdiction over any of such Tribunals in which such applications are pending for

transfer of all pending applications to any one of the Debts Recovery Tribunals as it deems fit.

- (2) On receipt of such application for transfer of all pending applications under sub-section (1), the Appellate Tribunal may, after giving the parties to the application an opportunity of being heard, pass an order for transfer of the pending applications to any one of the Debts Recovery Tribunals.
- (3) Notwithstanding anything contained in the Recovery of Debts Due to Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 1993, any order passed by the Appellate Tribunal under sub-section (2) shall be binding on all the Debts Recovery Tribunals referred to in subsection (1) as if such order had been passed by the Appellate Tribunal having jurisdiction on each such Debts Recovery Tribunal.
- (4) Any recovery certificate, issued by the Debts Recovery Tribunal to which all the pending applications are transferred under sub-section (2), shall be executed in accordance with the provisions contained in sub-section (23) of section 19 and other provisions of the Recovery of Debts Due to Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 1993 shall, accordingly, apply to such execution."

6. In section 7 of the principal Act,-

Amendment of section 7.

- (i) after sub-section (2), the following sub-section shall be inserted, namely:—
- "(2A) (a) The scheme for the purpose of offering security receipts under sub-section (1) or raising funds under sub-section (2), may be in the nature of a trust to be managed by the securitisation company or reconstruction company, and the securitisation company or reconstruction company shall hold the assets so acquired or the funds so raised for acquiring the assets, in trust for the benefit of the qualified institutional buyers holding the security receipts or from whom the funds are raised.
- (b) The provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 shall, except in so far as they are inconsistent with the provisions of this Act, apply with respect to the trust referred to in clause (a) above.";
- (ii) in sub-section (3), for the words "security receipts issued by such company", the words "security receipts issued under a scheme by such company" shall be substituted.
- 7. After section 12 of the principal Act, the following section shall be inserted, namely:

Insertion of new section

"12A. The Reserve Bank may at any time direct a securitisation company or reconstruction company to furnish it within such time as may be specified by the Reserve Bank, with such statements and information relating to the business or affairs of such securitisation company or reconstruction company (including any business or affairs with which such company is concerned) as the Reserve Bank may consider necessary or expedient to obtain for the purposes of this Act.".

Power of Reserve Bank to call for statements and information.

8. In section 13 of the principal Act,—

Amendment of section 13.

- (i) after sub-section (3), the following sub-section shall be inserted, namely:—
- "(3A) If, on receipt of the notice under sub-section (2), the borrower makes any representation or raises any objection, the secured creditor shall consider

51 of 1993.

51 of 1993.

2 of 1882.

such representation or objection and if the secured creditor comes to the conclusion that such representation or objection is not acceptable or tenable, he shall communicate within one week of receipt of such representation or objection the reasons for non-acceptance of the representation or objection to the borrower:

Provided that the reasons so communicated or the likely action of the secured creditor at the stage of communication of reasons shall not confer any right upon the borrower to prefer an application to the Debts Recovery Tribunal under section 17 or the Court of District Judge under section 17A.";

- (ii) in sub-section (4), for clause (b), the following clause shall be substituted, namely:—
  - "(b) take over the management of the business of the borrower including the right to transfer by way of lease, assignment or sale for realising the secured asset:

Provided that the right to transfer by way of lease, assignment or sale shall be exercised only where the substantial part of the business of the borrower is held as security for the debt:

Provided further that where the management of whole of the business or part of the business is severable, the secured creditor shall take over the management of such business of the borrower which is relatable to the security for the debt;".

Amendment of section 15.

9. In section 15 of the principal Act, in sub-section (1), for the words "When the management of business of a borrower is taken over by a secured creditor", the words, brackets, letters and figures "When the management of business of a borrower is taken over by a securitisation company or reconstruction company under clause (a) of section 9 or, as the case may be, by a secured creditor under clause (b) of sub-section (4) of section 13" shall be substituted.

Amendment of section 17.

- 10. In section 17 of the principal Act,-
  - (a) in sub-section (I),—
  - (i) for the words "may prefer an appeal", the words "may make an application along with such fee, as may be prescribed," shall be substituted and shall be deemed to have been substituted with effect from the 21st day of June, 2002;
  - (ii) after sub-section (1), the following proviso shall be inserted and shall be deemed to have been inserted with effect from the 21st day of June, 2002, namely:—

"Provided that different fees may be prescribed for making the application by the borrower and the person other than the borrower.";

(iii) after the proviso as so inserted, the following Explanation shall be inserted, namely:—

"Explanation.—For the removal of doubts, it is hereby declared that the communication of the reasons to the borrower by the secured creditor for not having accepted his representation or objection or the likely action of the secured creditor at the stage of communication of reasons to the borrower shall not entitle the person (including borrower) to make an application to the Debts Recovery Tribunal under this sub-section.";

- (b) for sub-sections (2) and (3), the following sub-sections shall be substituted, namely:—
  - "(2) The Debts Recovery Tribunal shall consider whether any of the measures referred to in sub-section (4) of section 13 taken by the secured creditor for enforcement of security are in accordance with the provisions of this Act and the rules made thereunder.

- (3) If, the Debts Recovery Tribunal, after examining the facts and circumstances of the case and evidence produced by the parties, comes to the conclusion that any of the measures referred to in sub-section (4) of section 13, taken by the secured creditor are not in accordance with the provisions of this Act and the rules made thereunder, and require restoration of the management of the business to the borrower or restoration of possession of the secured assets to the borrower, it may by order, declare the recourse to any one or more measures referred to in sub-section (4) of section 13 taken by the secured creditors as invalid and restore the possession of the secured assets to the borrower or restore the management of the business to the borrower, as the case may be, and pass such order as it may consider appropriate and necessary in relation to any of the recourse taken by the secured creditor under sub-section (4) of section 13.
- (4) If, the Debts Recovery Tribunal declares the recourse taken by a secured creditor under sub-section (4) of section 13, is in accordance with the provisions of this Act and the rules made thereunder, then, notwithstanding anything contained in any other law for the time being in force, the secured creditor shall be entitled to take recourse to one or more of the measures specified under sub-section (4) of section 13 to recover his secured debt.
- (5) Any application made under sub-section (1) shall be dealt with by the Debts Recovery Tribunal as expeditiously as possible and disposed of within sixty days from the date of such application:

Provided that the Debts Recovery Tribunal may, from time to time, extend the said period for reasons to be recorded in writing, so, however, that the total period of pendency of the application with the Debts Recovery Tribunal, shall not exceed four months from the date of making of such application made under sub-section (1).

- (6) If the application is not disposed of by the Debts Recovery Tribunal within the period of four months as specified in sub-section (5), any part to the application may make an application, in such form as may be prescribed, to the Appellate Tribunal for directing the Debts Recovery Tribunal for expeditious disposal of the application pending before the Debts Recovery Tribunal and the Appellate Tribunal may, on such application, make an order for expeditious disposal of the pending application by the Debts Recovery Tribunal.
- (7) Save as otherwise provided in this Act, the Debts Recovery Tribunal shall, as far as may be, dispose of the application in accordance with the provisions of the Recovery of Debts Due to Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 1993 and the rules made thereunder."

11. After section 17 of the principal Act, the following section shall be inserted, namely:—

"17A. In the case of a borrower residing in the State of Jammu and Kashmir, the application under section 17 shall be made to the Court of District Judge in that State having jurisdiction over the borrower which shall pass an order on such application.

Explanation.—For the removal of doubts, it is hereby declared that the communication of the reasons to the borrower by the secured creditor for not having accepted his representation or objection or the likely action of the secured creditor at the stage of communication of reasons shall not entitle the person (including borrower) to make an application to the Court of District Judge under this section.".

12. In section 18 of the principal Act,-

(a) in sub-section (1),—

Insertion of new section 17A.

Making of application to Court of District Judge in certain cases.

Amendment of section 18.

51 of 1993.

- (i) for the words and figures "under section 17, may prefer an appeal", the words and figures "under section 17, may prefer an appeal along with such fee, as may be prescribed" shall be substituted and shall be deemed to have been substituted with effect from the 21st day of June, 2002;
- (ii) after sub-section (1), the following proviso shall be inserted and shall be deemed to have been inserted with effect from the 21st day of June, 2002, namely:
  - "Provided that different fees may be prescribed for filing an appeal by the borrower or by the person other than the borrower:";
- (iii) after the proviso as so inserted, the following provisos shall be inserted, namely:-

"Provided further that no appeal shall be entertained unless the borrower has deposited with the Appellate Tribunal fifty per cent. of the amount of debt due from him, as claimed by the secured creditors or determined by the Debts Recovery Tribunal, whichever is less:

Provided also that the Appellate Tribunal may, for the reasons to be recorded in writing, reduce the amount to not less than twenty-five per cent. of debt referred to in the second proviso.".

Insertion of new sections 18A and 18B 13. After section 18 of the principal Act, the following sections shall be inserted,

Validation of fees levied.

"18A. Any fee levied and collected for preferring, before the commencement of the Enforcement of Security Interest and Recovery of Debts Laws (Amendment) Act, 2004, an appeal to the Debts Recovery Tribunal or the Appellate Tribunal under this Act, shall be deemed always to have been levied and collected in accordance with law as if the amendments made to sections 17 and 18 of this Act by sections 10 and 12 of the said Act were in force at all material times.

Appeal to High Court in certain cases.

18B. Any borrower residing in the State of Jammu and Kashmir and aggrieved by any order made by the Court of District Judge under section 17A may prefer an appeal, to the High Court having jurisdiction over such Court, within thirty days from the date of receipt of the order of the Court of District Judge:

Provided that no appeal shall be preferred unless the borrower has deposited, with the Jammu and Kashmir High Court, fifty per cent. of the amount of the debt due from him as claimed by the secured creditor or determined by the Court of District Judge, whichever is less: saske so and compared

Provided further that the High Court may, for the reasons to be recorded in writing, reduce the amount to not less than twenty-five per cent. of the debt referred to in the first proviso."... De la training and to be training and the

14. For section 19 of the principal Act, the following section shall be substituted,

Right of borrower to receive compensation and costs in certain cases.

Substitution of new section for section 19.

> "19. If the Debts Recovery Tribunal or the Court of District Judge, on an application made under section 17 or section 17A or the Appellate Tribunal or the High Court on an appeal preferred under section 18 or section 18A, holds that the possession of secured assets by the secured creditor is not in accordance with the provisions of this Act and rules made thereunder and directs the secured creditors to return such secured assets to the concerned borrowers, such borrower shall be entitled to the payment of such compensation and costs as may be determined by such Tribunal or Court of District Judge or Appellate Tribunal or the High Court referred to in section 18B.".

15. In section 25 of the principal Act,-

Amendment of section 25.

- (a) after sub-section (1), the following sub-section shall be inserted, namely:—
- "(1A) On receipt of intimation under sub-section (1), the Central Registrar shall order that a memorandum of satisfaction shall be entered in the Central Register.";
- (b) in sub-section (2), for the words "The Central Registrar shall, on receipt of such intimation", the words, brackets and figures "If the concerned borrower gives an intimation to the Central Registrar for not recording the payment or satisfaction referred to in sub-section (1), the Central Registrar shall on receipt of such intimation" shall be substituted.
- 16. In section 28 of the principal Act, for the words and figures "under section 12", the words, figures and letter "under section 12 or section 12A" shall be substituted.

Amendment of section 28.

17. In section 31 of the principal Act, in clause (g), for the words "any properties not liable to attachment", the words and brackets "any properties not liable to attachment (excluding the properties specifically charged with the debt recoverable under this Act)" shall be substituted.

Amendment of section 31.

18. In section 38 of the principal Act, in sub-section (2), after clause (b), the following clauses shall be inserted, namely:—

Amendment of section 38.

- "(ba) the fee for making an application to the Debts Recovery Tribunal under sub-section (1) of section 17;
- (bb) the form of making an application to the Appellate Tribunal under sub-section (6) of section 17;
- (bc) the fee for preferring an appeal to the Appellate Tribunal under sub-section (I) of section 18;".

Rote Flag South Wall best Subs to N

# CHAPTERIII

AMENDMENTS TO THE RECOVERY OF DEBTS DUE TO BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

ACT, 1993

19. In section 2 of the Recovery of Debts Due to Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 1993 (hereafter in this Chapter referred to as the principal Act), in clause (h), after subclause (i), the following sub-clause shall be inserted, namely:—

Amendment of section 2.

54 of 2002.

51 of 1993.

- "(ia) the securitisation company or reconstruction company which has obtained a certificate of registration under sub-section (4) of section 3 of the Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002;".
- 20. In section 19 of the principal Act, after sub-section (1), the following provisos shall be inserted, namely:—

Amendment of section 19

"Provided that the bank or financial institution may, with the permission of the Debts Recovery Tribunal, on an application made by it, withdraw the application, whether made before or after the Enforcement of Security Interest and Recovery of Debts Laws (Amendment) Act, 2004 for the purpose of taking action under the Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002, if no such action had been taken earlier under that Act:

Provided further that any application made under the first proviso for seeking permission from the Debts Recovery Tribunal to withdraw the application made under sub-section (I) shall be dealt with by it as expeditiously as possible and disposed of within thirty days from the date of such application:

Provided also that in case the Debts Recovery Tribunal refuses to grant permission for withdrawal of the application filed under this sub-section, it shall pass such orders after recording the reasons therefor."

54 of 2002.

#### **CHAPTER IV**

# AMENDMENTS TO THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

Amendment of section 4A.

Amendment of section

424A.

21. In section 4A of the Companies Act, 1956 (hereafter in this Chapter referred to as the principal Act), in sub-section (1), clause (vii) shall be omitted.

1 of 1956

22. In section 424A of the principal Act, in sub-section (1), after the second proviso, the following provisos shall be inserted, namely:-

"Provided also that in case any reference had been made before the Tribunal and a scheme for revival and rehabilitation submitted before the commencement of the Enforcement of Security Interest and Recovery of Debts Laws (Amendment) Act, 2004, such reference shall abate if the secured creditors, representing three-fourth in value of the amount outstanding against financial assistance disbursed to the borrower, have taken measures to recover their secured debt under sub-section (4) of section 13 of the Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002:

54 of 2002.

Provided also that no reference shall be made under this section if the secured creditors representing three-fourth in value of the amount outstanding against financial assistance disbursed to the borrower have taken measures to recover their secured debt under sub-section (4) of section 13 of the Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement Security Interest Act, 2002.".

54 of 2002

#### **CHAPTER V**

#### REPEAL AND SAVING

Repeal and saving.

23. (1) The Enforcement of Security Interest and Recovery of Debts Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2004 is hereby repealed.

There was the broken state

Production and the second seco

letter i dele lindriget iggerklichter in hell i helle lindrike helle kliegerkliche op in der de sich von die Betrick ist klieger i dele lindrik der de lindrik in der der de soch de lindrike op in de lindrike in de lindr De lindrike betrick de lindrike betrick de de de lindrike betrick de lindrike in de lindrike betrick de lindrik

a destruccións de la començación de la martir de la començación de la començación de la començación de la come En las començacións de la començación de

have a stain in the heart will

akina kanan mendelik permani matik perjetah pertakan di mengan penjetah penjetah penjetah penjetah penjetah p Menanggan penjetah p

5 of 2004,

(2) Notwithstanding such repeal, anything done or any action taken under the Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002, and the Recovery of Debts Due to Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 1993 and the Companies Act, 1956, as amended by the said Ordinance, shall be deemed to have been done or taken under the corresponding provisions of those Acts, as amended by this Act.

54 of 2002.

51 of 1993.

1 of 1956.

# THE CONSTITUTION (NINETY-FIRST AMENDMENT) ACT, 2003

[1st January, 2004.]

#### An Act further to amend the Constitution of India.

Beit enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fourth Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

1. This Act may be called the Constitution (Ninety-first Amendment) Act, 2003.

Short title.

2. In article 75 of the Constitution, after clause (1), the following clauses shall be inserted, namely:—

Amendment of article 75.

- "(1A) The total number of Ministers, including the Prime Minister, in the Council of Ministers shall not exceed fifteen per cent. of the total number of members of the House of the People.
- (1B) A member of either House of Parliament belonging to any political party who is disqualified for being a member of that House under paragraph 2 of the Tenth Schedule shall also be disqualified to be appointed as a Minister under clause (1) for duration of the period commencing from the date of his disqualification till the date on which the term of his office as such member would expire or where he contests any election to either House of Parliament before the expiry of such period, till the date on which he is declared elected, whichever is earlier."
- 3. In article 164 of the Constitution, after clause (1), the following clauses shall be inserted, namely:—

Amendment of article 164.

"(IA) The total number of Ministers, including the Chief Minister, in the Council of Ministers in a State shall not exceed fifteen per cent. of the total number of members of the Legislative Assembly of that State:

Provided that the number of Ministers, including the Chief Minister, in a State shall not be less than twelve:

Provided further that where the total number of Ministers, including the Chief Minister, in the Council of Ministers in any State at the commencement of the Constitution (Ninety-first Amendment) Act, 2003 exceeds the said fifteen per cent. or the number specified in the first proviso, as the case may be, then, the total number of Ministers in that State shall be brought in conformity with the provisions of this clause within six months from such date as the President may by public notification appoint.

(1B) A member of the Legislative Assembly of a State or either House of the Legislature of a State having Legislative Council belonging to any political party who is disqualified for being a member of that House under paragraph 2 of the Tenth Schedule shall also be disqualified to be appointed as a Minister under clause (1) for duration of the period commencing from the date of his disqualification till the date on which the term of his office as such member would expire or where he contests any election to the Legislative Assembly of a State or either House of the Legislature of a State having Legislative Council, as the case may be, before the expiry of such period, till the date on which he is declared elected, whichever is earlier.".

Insertion of new article namely:-361B.

4. After article 361A of the Constitution, the following article shall be inserted,

Disqualification for appointment on remunerative political post.

'361B. A member of a House belonging to any political party who is disqualified for being a member of the House under paragraph 2 of the Tenth Schedule shall also be disqualified to hold any remunerative political post for duration of the period commencing from the date of his disgalification till the date on which the term of his office as such member would expire or till the date on which he contests an election to a House and is declared elected, whichever is earlier. Albani solosia in in english eas

Explanation.—For the purposes of this article,—

- (a) the expression "House" has the meaning assigned to it in clause (a) of paragraph 1 of the Tenth Schedule;
  - (b) the expression "remunerative political post" means any office-
  - (i) under the Government of India or the Government of a State where the salary or remuneration for such office is paid out of the public revenue of the Government of India or the Government of the State, as the case may be; or
  - (ii) under a body, whether incorporated or not, which is wholly or partially owned by the Government of India or the Government of a State and the salary or remuneration for such office is paid by such body,

except where such salary or remuneration paid is compensatory in nature.'.

- 5. In the Tenth Schedule to the Constitution.—
- (a) in paragraph 1, in clause (b), the words and figure "paragraph 3 or, as the case may be," shall be omitted;
- (b) in paragraph 2, in sub-paragraph (1), for the words and figures "paragraphs 3, 4 and 5", the words and figures "paragraphs 4 and 5" shall be substituted;
  - (c) paragraph 3 shall be omitted.

्रात्र के सम्बद्धाः स्थानिक विकास स्थानिक स्थानिक स्थानिक स्थानिक स्थानिक स्थानिक स्थानिक स्थानिक स्थानिक स्था स्थानिक स्थानि

a digital and mengga Sama a disebber separati sama andia salip mada alikula yenera a sama inga s A digital kenamanang a sebagai sebagai

ત્રા કર્યા કર્યા છે. તે તે તે તે કર્યા કર્યા કર્યા કરતા છે. તેમ મોલકમાં તે કર્યા કર્યા છે. તે તેમ ત્રાં કર્યાન ત્રાં કર્યા છે. તેમ ત્રાં કર્યા કર્યા કર્યા કર્યા કર્યા ક

Amendment of the Tenth Schedule,

# THE CONSTITUTION (NINETY-SECOND AMENDMENT) ACT, 2003

[7th January, 2004.]

#### An Act further to amend the Constitution of India.

BE it enacted by Parliament in the Fifty-fourth Year of the Republic of India as follows:—

1. This Act may be called the Constitution (Ninety-second Amendment) Act, 2003.

Short title.

2. In the Eighth Schedule to the Constitution,—

Amendment of Eighth Schedule.

- (a) existing entry 3 shall be re-numbered as entry 5, and before entry 5 as so renumbered, the following entries shall be inserted, namely:—
  - "3. Bodo.
  - 4. Dogri.";
  - (b) existing entries 4 to 7 shall respectively be re-numbered as entries 6 to 9;
- (c) existing entry 8 shall be re-numbered as entry 11 and before entry 11 as so renumbered, the following entry shall be inserted, namely:—
  - "10. Maithili.";
- (d) existing entries 9 to 14 shall respectively be re-numbered as entries 12 to 17;
- (e) existing entry 15 shall be re-numbered as entry 19 and before entry 19 as so re-numbered, the following entry shall be inserted, namely:—
  - "18. Santhali.";
- (f) existing entries 16 to 18 shall respectively be re-numbered as entries 20 to 22.

#### INDEX

A

ACCOUNT	. AGE
The Appropriation (Railways) Vote on Act, 2004	30
The Appropriation Vote on	41
The Appropriation (Railways) Vote on No. 2 Act, 2004	53
The Appropriation (Vote on) No. 2 Act, 2004	57
ACTIVITIES	
The Unlawful (Prevention) Amendment Act, 2004	159
AFFAIRS	
The Indian Council of World (Amendment) Act, 2003	11.
ALLOWANCES	
The Salary,and pension of members of parliament (Amendment) Act, 2003.	24
APPROPRIATION	
The (Railways) Act, 2004	32
The (Railways) No. 2 Act, 2004	28
The (Railways) Vote on Account Act, 2004	30
The	47
The (Railways) Vote on Account No. 2 Act; 2004	53
The Vote on Account Act, 2004	41
The (Railways) No. 3 Act, 2004	63
The (No. 2) Act, 2004	55
The (No. 3) Act, 2004.4	65
The (Railways) No. 4 Act. 2004	156
BANKING	
TheRegulation (Amendment) and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 2004.	148
BRITISH	
The Statutes (Repeal) Act, 2004	52
$\mathbf{c}$	
· CENTRAL	
The Customs and Excise Laws (Repeal) Act, 2004	152
CITIZENSHIP	
The (Amendment) Act, 2003	13
COMPANIES	y45.
The Sick Industrial (Special Provisions) Repeal Act, 2003	1
CONTITUTION	
The(Ninety-first Amendment) Act, 2003	181
The(Ninety-second Amendment) Act, 2003	183
COUNCIL	
The Indian of World Affairs (Amendment) Act, 2003	11

# Index

CUSTOMS	Page
The and Central Excise Laws (Repeal) Act, 2004	152
D	
DEBTS	
The Enforcement of Security Interest and Recovery ofLaws (Amendment) Act, 2004	17,3
DELIMITATION	
The(Amendment) Act, 2003	. 7
ENFORCEMENT	,
The of Security Interest and Recovery of Debts Laws (Amendment) Act, 2004	173
EXCISE THE CONTROL OF THE PARTY	
The Customs and Central Laws (Repeal) Act, 2004	152
FINANCE	4155
The Act, 2004	34
The (No. 2) Act 2004	69
FOREIGNERS	
The (Amendment) Act, 2004	- 50
The state of the s	
INDIAN	
The Council of World Affairs (Amendment) Act, 2003	11
The Telegraph (Amendment) Act, 2003	22
INDUSTRIAL	
The Sick Companies (Special Provisions) Repeal Act, 2003	1
INTEREST	h KWA
The Enforcement of Security	173
LAWS	e. Seedi.
The Customs and Central Excise (Repeal) Act, 2004	152
The Enforcement of Security Interest and Recovery of Debts	and the second
(Amendment) Act, 2004	
and the second of the second o	
MEMBERS A STATE OF THE SECOND	
The Salary, Allowances and Pension of	24
MISCELLANEOUS	i. Herek
The Banking Regulation (Amendment) and Provisions Act, 2004	. 148

1.1.		PAGE
NINE	N ETY-FIRST	
	The Constitution ( Amendment) Act, 2003	181
NINE	ETY-SECOND	
	The Constitution ( Amendment) Act, 2003	183
	on the term of the first of the second of th	
PARI	LIAMENT	
***	The Salary, Allowances and Pension of Members of	24
PENS	SION	·
	The Salary, Allowances and	24
PEOI	PLE	ÿ
	The Representation of the (Second Amendment) Act, 2003	5.
PRA	DESH	
	The Uttar Reorganisation (Amendment) Act, 2003	21
PREV	VENTION	
· .	The of Terrorism (Amendment) Act, 2003	9
216 1236	The of Terrorism (Repeal) Act, 2004	154
\$ 12°	The Unlawful Activities () Amendment Act, 2004	159
D 4 Y	. <b>R</b> .WAYS	,
KAIL		
	The Appropriation (	32
	The Appropriation () No. 2 Act, 2004	
	The Appropriation (	
5 18	The Appropriation () Vote on Account No. 2 Act, 2004	53
·	The Appropriation () No. 3 Act, 2004	63
	The Appropriation () No. 4 Act, 2004	156
REC	OVERY	g 1550
REG	The Enforcement of Security Interest and	173
* >1	The Banking (Amendment) and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 2004.	148
REO	RGANISATION	(s.)
	The Uttar Pradesh (Amendment) Act, 2003	21
REPI	BAL II	
377	The Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions)	. 1
	The British Statutes () Act, 2004	52
	The Customs and Central Excise Laws (	152
· : .	The Prevention of Terrorism () Act, 2004	154
74	The Special Tribunals (Supplementary Provisions)	158
REP	RESENTATION	38.78.7
C	The Of the People (Second Amendment) Act. 2003	5

### Index

$oldsymbol{s}$	PAGE
SALARY	٠,
The, Allowances and Pension of Members of Parliament (Amendment) Act, 2003	24
SECOND	
The Representation of the People ( Amendment) Act, 2003	5
SECURITY	,
The Enforcement of	173
SICK .	
TheIndustrial Companies (Special Provisions) Repeal	1
Act, 2003SPECIAL	
The Sick Industrial Companies (	
Act, 2003	1
The Tribunals (Supplementary Provisions) Repeal Act, 2004	158
STATUTES	
The British (Repeal) Act, 2004	52
SUPPLEMENTARY	
The Special Tribunals ( Provisions) Repeal Act, 2004	158
TELEGRAPH	
The Indian (Amendment) Act, 2003	22
TERRORISM	
The Prevention of (Amendment) Act, 2003	9
The Prevention of (Repeal) Act, 2004	154
TRIBUNALS	
The Special (Supplementary Provisions) Repeal Act, 2004	158
UNLAWFUL	
The Activities (Prevention) Amendment Act, 2004	1.59
UTTAR PRADESH	
The Reorganisation (Amendment) Act, 2003	21
VOTE ON ACCOUNT	
The Appropriation (Railways) Act, 2004	30
The Appropriation	
The Appropriation (Railways) No. 2 Act, 2004	
The Appropriation () No. 2 Act, 2004	. 57
기계 이 생물 나는 사람들이 하는 🕶 그리는 이를 가장 먹으라다.	
WORLD	
The Indian Council of Affairs (Amendment) Act, 2003	. 11

	word about the send of the following that the testing of Assembles of the house
14 S. L.	The commence of the state of th
· . · ·	
	Land Burger existing of the region of the legical particles and the properties of the Land
A.	THE REPORT OF THE PROPERTY OF
	The Coff of the College of Land and Land and Rocovay of the Service and Roc
173	(Apprehense) not, 2004 in his million has in his his him him has
	Control (Special Control Industrial Control in Special Provisions) Rungal
1	The state of the s
4	The sick Industrial Computity (
j	The state of the s
VČ.	TEC
660	14000 A. A. (Bengall) A. (Bengal
44.4	The second of th
#21.	Dur Spacial Tribunals ( Perfeishers) Marcal Airt 2004
M. Sandi	Anna mana sana 1965 hakitat lakusika 1960 lakusi mala mana manasa manasa manasa 207
	그는 그 마시다 나는 아이들은 사람은 사람들이 하고 이름다.
22	The traffect standard to (concentrate) &et 2003
Q	The Engyenhod of
154	The Freweigique of any and a (Report Act, 2006
:	CHANGE OF THE CONTRACT OF THE
381	The Special Commence (Sepple nemacy Provincency Repeal Act, 2004
	보고 하면 보인 회사 가는 사용하는 것 한 보고 들어 없을 때문에 다
024	The comment of Schult. 4 (Parsynthon) Amendment Act. 2004.
	And the second of the second o
: 1 : 1	经价格总统 医皮肤 医乳腺性 化二氯甲基甲基甲基甲基甲基甲基甲基甲基甲基甲基甲基甲基甲基甲基甲基甲基甲基甲基甲基
	The minimum Recognition (Amendment) Act, 2403,, Milling and the control of th
	THE STATE OF PERSONAL PROPERTY OF THE STATE
ÛŁ.	- The Appropriation (fullways) Act 200
1	The Angrophables (American) (Act 2008)
153	The Approprincian (Bollweys)
6.3	A The Appropriation (
<i>i</i> , :	아이들 사람이 되는데 그렇지 않는데 하지 않는데 하게 하는데 하다니다.
33. :	The Indian Council of
	그는 사람들은 사람들이 하는 사람들이 가득하는 것은 가장 없는 사람들이 가득하는 것이 되었다. 그는 사람들이 살아 되었다면 살아